From: "dustin@healthygulf.org" <dustin@healthygulf.org>
To: "Knodel, Marissa S" <marissa.knodel@boem.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Accepted: BOEM-Gulf community outreach & engagement @ Fri May 13,
2022 12:30pm - 1:30pm (CDT) (Knodel, Marissa S)

Date: Fri, 29 Apr 2022 14:59:16 +0000
Importance: Normal
Attachments: unnamed; invite.ics

This email has been received from outside of DOI -Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

dustin@healthygulf.org has accepted this invitation.

BOEM-Gulf community outreach & engagement

When Fri May 13, 2022 12:30pm — 1:30pm Central Time - Chicago
Calendar Knodel, Marissa S
Who « Knodel, Marissa S - organizer

- dustin@healthygulf.org - creator
« DuFore, Chris M

. Filostrat, John

« Celata, Michael

- Belter, Mark S

* Reuther, Dustin J

. Dalton, Laura M

« Robbins, Laura A

« Lyncker, Lissa A

o Moriarty, Tracey B

Purpose: To meet one another and discuss outreach and engagement strategies for underserved and
environmental justice communities in the Gulf region for BOEM programs and activities, specifically the development of
the next National OCS Oil and Gas Leasing Program, offshore wind, and carbon sequestration rulemaking.

Participants:

* Kendall Dix, Policy Director, Gulf Coast Center for Law and Policy

* Monique Hardin, Deep South Center for Environmental Justice

* Dustin Renaud, Communications Director, Healthy Gulf

* Mike Celata, Regional Director, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

* Laura Robbins, Deputy Regional Director, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

* Lissa Lyncker, Chief of Staff, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

* John Filostrat, Public Affairs, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

* Tracey Moriarty, Deputy Chief of Public Affairs, BOEM

* Chris DuFore, Resource Evaluation/Resource Studies/Regional Analysis Unit, BOEM Gulf of Mexico
* Laura Dalton, Resource Evaluation/Reserves Unit, BOEM Gulf of Mexico




* Dustin Reuther, Social Sciences Unit, BOEM Gulf of Mexico
* Mark Belter, Marine Biologist, Environmental Assessment Division, BOEM Gulf of Mexico
*Mari a Knodel, Senior Advi or, BOEM

Draft Agenda

* Introductions

* Review purpose and scope of meeting

* Overview of BOEM Gulf activitie and need for under erved and EJ community outreach and engagement
* [Additional agenda items from Healthy Gulf, GCCLP, and Deep South Center forthcoming]

* lIdentify next steps and action items

Micro oft Team meeting

Join on your computer or mobile app
Click here to join the meeting

Learn More | Meeting options

Invitation from Google Calendar
You are receiving this courtesy email at the account marissa knodel@boem gov because you are an attendee of this event

To stop receiving future updates for this event, decline this event. Alternatively you can sign up for a Google account at
https://calendar.google.com/calendar/ and control your notification settings for your entire calendar.

Forwarding this invitation could allow any recipient to send a response to the organizer and be added to the guest list, or invite others regardless
of their own invitation status, or to modify your RSVP. Learn More.



Event: [EXTERNAL] Accepted: BOEM-Gulf community outreach &
engagement @ Fri May 13, 2022 12:30pm - 1:30pm (CDT) (Knodel, Marissa S)

Start Date: 2022-05-13 17:30:00 +0000

End Date: 2022-05-13 18:30:00 +0000

Comment: This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on
links, opening attachments, or responding. dustin@healthygulf.org has accepted this invitation.
BOEM-Gulf community outreach &amp; engagement When Fri May 13, 2022 12:30pm - 1:30pm
Central Time - Chicago Calendar Knodel, Marissa S Who « Knodel, Marissa S - organizer *
dustin@healthygulf.org - creator » DuFore, Chris M - Filostrat, John « Celata, Michael ¢ Belter,
Mark S « Reuther, Dustin | » Dalton, Laura M * Robbins, Laura A « Lyncker, Lissa A « Moriarty,
Tracey B Purpose: To meet one another and discuss outreach and engagement strategies for
underserved and environmental justice communities in the Gulf region for BOEM programs and
activities, specifically the development of the next National OCS Qil and Gas Leasing Program,
offshore wind, and carbon sequestration rulemaking. Participants: * Kendall Dix, Policy Director,
Gulf Coast Center for Law and Policy * Monique Hardin, Deep South Center for Environmental
Justice * Dustin Renaud, Communications Director, Healthy Gulf * Mike Celata, Regional Director,
BOEM Gulf of Mexico * Laura Robbins, Deputy Regional Director, BOEM Gulf of Mexico * Lissa
Lyncker, Chief of Staff, BOEM Gulf of Mexico * John Filostrat, Public Affairs, BOEM Gulf of Mexico
* Tracey Moriarty, Deputy Chief of Public Affairs, BOEM * Chris DuFore, Resource
Evaluation/Resource Studies/Regional Analysis Unit, BOEM Gulf of Mexico * Laura Dalton,
Resource Evaluation/Reserves Unit, BOEM Gulf of Mexico * Dustin Reuther, Social Sciences Unit,
BOEM Gulf of Mexico * Mark Belter, Marine Biologist, Environmental Assessment Division, BOEM
Gulf of Mexico * Marissa Knodel, Senior Advisor, BOEM Draft Agenda * Introductions * Review
purpose and scope of meeting * Overview of BOEM Gulf activities and need for underserved and
EJ community outreach and engagement * [Additional agenda items from Healthy Gulf, GCCLP,
and Deep South Center forthcoming] * Identify next steps and action items

Microsoft Teams
meeting Join on your computer or mobile app Click here to join the meeting Learn More |
Meeting options
Invitation from Google Calendar<https://calendar.google.com/calendar/> You are receiving this
courtesy email at the account marissa.knodel@boem.gov because you are an attendee of this
event. To stop receiving future updates for this event, decline this event. Alternatively you can
sign up for a Google account at https://calendar.google.com/calendar/ and control your
notification settings for your entire calendar. Forwarding this invitation could allow any recipient
to send a response to the organizer and be added to the guest list, or invite others regardless of
their own invitation status, or to modify your RSVP. Learn
More<https://support.google.com/calendar/answer/37135#forwarding>.

Date Created: 2022-04-29 15:01:34 +0000
Date Modified: 2022-04-29 15:01:34 +0000
Priority: 5



DTSTAMP: 2022-04-29 14:59:16 +0000

Attendee: Knodel, Marissa S <marissa.knodel@boem.gov>



Event: BOEM-Gulf community outreach & engagement

Start Date: 2022-05-13 17:30:00 +0000

End Date: 2022-05-13 18:30:00 +0000

Organizer: Knodel, Marissa S <marissa.knodel@boem.gov>
Status: CONFIRMED

DTSTAMP: 2022-04-29 14:59:16 +0000

Attendee: dustin@healthygulf.org <dustin@healthygulf.org>
Date Created: 2022-04-29 14:25:49 +0000

Date Modified: 2022-04-29 14:59:16 +0000

Purpose: To meet one another and discuss outreach and engagement strategies for underserved
and environmental justice communities in the Gulf region for BOEM programs and activities,
specifically the development of the next National OCS Oil and Gas Leasing Program, offshore
wind, and carbon sequestration rulemaking.

Participants:

Kendall Dix, Policy Director, Gulf Coast Center for Law and Policy

Monique Hardin, Deep South Center for Environmental Justice

Dustin Renaud, Communications Director, Healthy Gulf

Mike Celata, Regional Director, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

Laura Robbins, Deputy Regional Director, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

Lissa Lyncker, Chief of Staff, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

John Filostrat, Public Affairs, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

Tracey Moriarty, Deputy Chief of Public Affairs, BOEM

Chris DuFore, Resource Evaluation/Resource Studies/Regional Analysis Unit, BOEM Gulf of
Mexico

Laura Dalton, Resource Evaluation/Reserves Unit, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

Dustin Reuther, Social Sciences Unit, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

Mark Belter, Marine Biologist, Environmental Assessment Division, BOEM Gulf of Mexico
Marissa Knodel, Senior Advisor, BOEM

O T T T S

* ok ok F

Draft Agenda

* Introductions

* Review purpose and scope of meeting

* Qverview of BOEM Gulf activities and need for underserved and EJ community outreach and
engagement

* [Additional agenda items from Healthy Gulf, GCCLP, and Deep South Center forthcoming]

* |dentify next steps and action items



Microsoft Teams meeting
Join on your computer or mobile app
Click here to join the (X&)




From: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
To: Rachael DeWitt <rdewitt@oceanconservancy.org>
Subject: Accepted: [EXTERNAL] BOEM and OC Ocean Justice Meeting
Date: Fri, 15 Sep 2023 14:37:57 +0000
Importance: Normal
Attachments: unnamed




Event: Accepted: [EXTERNAL] BOEM and OC Ocean Justice Meeting

Start Date: 2023-09-19 14:00:00 +0000
End Date: 2023-09-19 14:30:00 +0000

Location: https://oceanconservancy.zoom.us/j/952394387107?
pwd=NmdtRIBqM2UyYzN2VXRyZHYvQjlwdz09

Class: X-PERSONAL

Comment:

Date Created: 2023-09-15 14:39:29 +0000
Date Modified: 2023-09-15 14:39:29 +0000
Priority: 5

DTSTAMP: 2023-09-15 14:37:55 +0000

Attendee: Rachael DeWitt <rdewitt@oceanconservancy.org>



From: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
To: "Hoskins, Diane" <Dhoskins@oceana.org>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Acreage q
Date: Tue, 16 Nov 2021 23:10:57 +0000

Yes, that's correct.

Marissa Knodel

Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Hoskins, Diane <Dhoskins@oceana.org>
Sent: Tuesday, November 16, 2021 5:27 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Acreage q

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Hi Marissa, can you clarify why the acreage available for the region wide lease sale has gone up? I am guessing
because of old leases expiring, but wanted to confirm. Thank you, Diane



From: Sara Chieffo <Sara Chieffo@lcv.org>
To: Sara Chieffo <Sara_Chieffo@lcv.org>
Cc: Lizzy Duncan <lduncan@lcv.org>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Alex Taurel's LCV Farewell Party -- Please RSVP by tomorrow
Date: Thu, 10 Nov 2022 16:34:52 +0000
Inline-Images: image001.png

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Friends,
| wanted to make sure you had seen our request for you to join LCV for Alex’s Farewell Party next week. We would love
to see you there!

Please RSVP no later than this Friday, November 11th,

Party Details

When: Thursday, Nov 17th 5:30-7:30pm EST

Where: Tiki TNT & Potomac Distilling Company: 1130 Maine Ave SW, Washington, D.C. 20024
RSVP: You can RSVP at the evite link: http://evite.me/y6XAX35Aus

Best,
Sara

Sara Chieffo

(she, her, hers)

VP, Government Affairs

League of Conservation Voters

740 15th St NW, Suite 700 | Washington, DC 20005
202-413-9125 | sara_chieffo@lcv.org

v LGV

Our Earth Is Worth Fighting For




From: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
To: "Celata, Michael" <Michael.Celata@boem.gov>, "Robbins, Laura A"
<laura.robbins@boem.gov>, "Lyncker, Lissa A" <Lissa.Lyncker@boem.gov>, "Filostrat,
John" <John.Filostrat@boem.gov>, "Moriarty, Tracey B" <Tracey.Moriarty@boem.gov>,
"DuFore, Chris M" <Chris.DuFore@boem.gov>, "Dalton, Laura M"
<Laura.Dalton@boem.gov>, "Reuther, Dustin J" <Dustin.Reuther@boem.gov>,
"dustin@healthygulf.org" <dustin@healthygulf.org>, "Belter, Mark S"
<Mark.Belter@boem.gov>
Subject: BOEM-Gulf community outreach & engagement
Date: Fri, 29 Apr 2022 14:25:49 +0000
Importance: Normal

Attachments: unnamed

Purpose: To meet one another and discuss outreach and engagement strategies for underserved and
environmental justice communities in the Gulf region for BOEM programs and activities, specifically the
development of the next National OCS Oil and Gas Leasing Program, offshore wind, and carbon sequestration
rulemaking.

Participants:

« Kendall Dix, Policy Director, Gulf Coast Center for Law and Policy

« Monique Hardin, Deep South Center for Environmental Justice

« Dustin Renaud, Communications Director, Healthy Gulf

o Mike Celata, Regional Director, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

« Laura Robbins, Deputy Regional Director, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

o Lissa Lyncker, Chief of Staff, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

« John Filostrat, Public Affairs, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

» Tracey Moriarty, Deputy Chief of Public Affairs, BOEM

 Chris DuFore, Resource Evaluation/Resource Studies/Regional Analysis Unit, BOEM Gulf of Mexico
« Laura Dalton, Resource Evaluation/Reserves Unit, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

« Dustin Reuther, Social Sciences Unit, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

o Mark Belter, Marine Biologist, Environmental Assessment Division, BOEM Gulf of Mexico
« Marissa Knodel, Senior Advisor, BOEM

Draft Agenda

 Introductions

» Review purpose and scope of meeting

« Overview of BOEM Gulf activities and need for underserved and EJ community outreach and engagement
» [Additional agenda items from Healthy Gulf, GCCLP, and Deep South Center forthcoming]

« |dentify next steps and action items

Microsoft Teams meeting



Join on your computer or mobile app
Click here to join the meeting

Learn More | Meeting_ options



Event: BOEM-Gulf community outreach & engagement

Start Date: 2022-05-13 17:30:00 +0000

End Date: 2022-05-13 18:30:00 +0000

Organizer: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Class: X-PERSONAL

Date Created: 2022-04-29 14:30:23 +0000

Date Modified: 2022-04-29 14:30:23 +0000

Priority: 5

DTSTAMP: 2022-04-29 14:25:49 +0000

Attendee: Celata, Michael <Michael.Celata@boem.gov>; Robbins, Laura A
<laura.robbins@boem.gov>; Lyncker, Lissa A <Lissa.Lyncker@boem.gov>; Filostrat, John
<John.Filostrat@boem.gov>; Moriarty, Tracey B <Tracey.Moriarty@boem.gov>; DuFore, Chris M
<Chris.DuFore@boem.gov>; Dalton, Laura M <Laura.Dalton@boem.gov>; Reuther, Dustin |
<Dustin.Reuther@boem.gov>; dustin@healthygulf.org <dustin@healthygulf.org>; Belter, Mark S
<Mark.Belter@boem.gov>

Alarm: Display the following message 5m before start

Reminder

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

S T T

*



* Mark Belter, Marine Biologist, Environmental Assessment Division, BOEM Gulf of Mexico
* Marissa Knodel, Senior Advisor, BOEM
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

Learn More<https://aka.ms/JoinTeamsMeeting> | Meeting

b) (5)

‘




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
"dustin@healthygulf.org" <dustin@healthygulf.org>
Subject: BOEM-Gulf community outreach & engagement
Date: Fri, 29 Apr 2022 14:22:37 +0000
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

» Kendall Dix, Policy Director, Gulf Coast Center for Law and Policy

» Monique Hardin, Deep South Center for Environmental Justice

o Dustin Renaud, Communications Director, Healthy Gulf

» Mike Celata, Regional Director, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

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

« Chris DuFore, Resource Evaluation/Resource Studies/Regional Analysis Unit, BOEM Gulf of Mexico
o Laura Dalton, Resource Evaluation/Reserves Unit, BOEM Gulf of Mexico
« Dustin Reuther, Social Sciences Unit, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

« Marissa Knodel, Senior Advisor, BOEM

Draft Agenda

 Introductions

o Review purpose and scope of meeting

» Overview of BOEM Gulf activities and need for underserved and EJ community outreach and engagement
» [Additional agenda items from Healthy Gulf, GCCLP, and Deep South Center forthcoming]

« Identify next steps and action items

Microsoft Teams meeting

Join on your computer or mobile app
Click here to join the meeting




Learn More | Meeting_options




Event: BOEM-Gulf community outreach & engagement

Start Date: 2022-05-13 17:30:00 +0000

End Date: 2022-05-13 18:30:00 +0000

Organizer: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Class: X-PERSONAL

Date Created: 2022-04-29 14:27:19 +0000

Date Modified: 2022-04-29 14:27:19 +0000

Priority: 5

DTSTAMP: 2022-04-29 14:22:37 +0000

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
<Dustin.Reuther@boem.gov>; dustin@healthygulf.org <dustin@healthygulf.org>

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

* % ok o ok F * o+ F



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

V ‘




From: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
To: Kendall Dix <kdix@taproot.earth>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: BOEM-Gulf community outreach & engagement
Date: Tue, 19 Jul 2022 22:23:34 +0000

I’'m sorry, I left the office before I received your message, but will check tomorrow! I do not have a key to the
room but will try to track one down.

Get Outlook for i0S

From: Kendall Dix <kdix@taproot.earth>

Sent: Tuesday, July 19, 2022 5:50:20 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: BOEM-Gulf community outreach & engagement

Hi, marissa. Thanks again for this afternoon.

Also, we might have left a phone in the conference room. If you find a rose gold Samsung flip phone, would you
please let me know?

Thanks,
Kendall

On Thu, Jul 14, 2022 at 1:58 PM Kendall Dix <kdix@taproot.earth> wrote:
Thanks, Marissa. Looking forward to it.

On Thu, Jul 14, 2022 at 11:13 AM Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov> wrote:
Hello Kendall,

We're all set for Tuesday, July 19 at 4:00 p.m. at the Main Interior building, 1849 C St. NW. The security

entrance is off of C St, and security usually takes 10-15 minutes. We'll be on the 5th floor, room 5248. My
cell is below if you and Colette have any issues.

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, July 12, 2022 2:26 PM

To: Kendall Dix <kdix@taproot.earth>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: BOEM-Gulf community outreach & engagement

Sounds great, thank you!

Marissa Knodel



Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202 538 2415
Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Kendall Dix <kdix@taproot.earth>

Sent: Tuesday, July 12, 2022 2 15 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Subject: Re [EXTERNAL] Re BOEM Gulf community outreach & engagement

OK, great. Let's lock up Tuesday at 4:00. Right now it will just be me and Colette, but I'm going to check to
see if anyone from NDN Collective would like to join, and I'll let you know

Thanks,
Kendall

On Tue, Jul 12, 2022 at 2:14 PM Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov> wrote:
Director Lefton said if we can meet around 4 00 p m on Tuesday, she may be back from Boston by then

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202 538 2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, July 12,2022 1 42 PM

To: Kendall Dix <kdix@taproot.earth>

Subject: Re [EXTERNAL] Re BOEM Gulf community outreach & engagement

Hey Kendall,

Quick update: the Director and | will be participating in an off-site retreat on Wednesday, July 20. The
Deputy Director and | can meet with you and Colette, any time after 3:00 p.m. ET on Tuesday, July 19.

Let me know if an hour is enough time, and if there is anyone else other than you and Colette planning to
attend so we can let security know and reserve a room.

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa Knodel@boem gov

From: Knodel, Marissa S Marissa Knodel@boem gov

Sent: Tuesday, July 12, 2022 12:46 PM

To: Kendall Dix kdix@taproot earth

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: BOEM-Gulf community outreach & engagement

Hello Kendall,



Great to hear from you, and yes, we're based in D C at the main Interior building (1849 C St NW,
gth floor). I'd love the opportunity to meet with you and Colette, and will extend the invite to the
Director and Deputy Director. | know that the Director will be in Boston July 18-19, so July 20 is best. Are

there preferable times that day for you and Colette?

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Kendall Dix <kdix@taproot.earth>

Sent: Tuesday, July 12, 2022 12:37 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: BOEM-Gulf community outreach & engagement

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Hi, Marissa.

My boss, Colette Pichon Battle, and I will be in DC from July 18 to 20 with our partners at NDN
Collective to introduce ourselves as an organization and discuss the importance of Black and Indigenous
solidarity to address the climate crisis.

Are you all in DC? We would also like to meet with folks at BOEM to talk about offshore oil, wind, and
CCS while we're in town.

Thanks,
Kendall Dix

On Wed, May 18, 2022 at 6:12 PM Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov> wrote:
Notes from internal debrief/discussion 5/18/2022:

Some key takeaways/action items:

Short term:

« Informational materials/one-pagers for dissemination within communities to better prepare
them for engagement in advance of meetings and comment periods
o Can we work with DOE to adapt existing materials? -- Chris DuFore
o Need to touch base with rulemaking team to develop specific questions and highlight how
their input/EJ impacts will be incorporated -- Marissa
» Accessible meetings (in-person, virtual, multiple languages, etc.) in multiple locations at multiple
times to accommodate schedules



« Incorporate socioeconomic/EJ studies to help communities and inform decision making
processes, reviews; partner with HBCUs

» For meetings regarding the CS rule in particular, but also applicable for the National OCS Program
and offshore wind as well, convene meetings with other relevant federal and state agencies that
have authority over potential impacts that we do not

Long term

» Explore big picture, systemic suggestion for a rulemaking or enforceable policy that details
principles of EJ outreach/engagement to which BOEM can be held accountable Marissa to
socialize with leadership

Action items

» Can we work with DOE to adapt existing materials? Chris DuFore

» Need to touch base with rulemaking team to develop specific questions and highlight how their
input/EJ impacts will be incorporated Marissa

» Follow up meeting with CS rule outreach team (Laura, Emily) Mark, Chris

« Schedule follow up meeting with Gulf EJ reps when we have actions/responses to report
Marissa

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202 538 2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Knodel, Marissa S
Sent: Friday, April 29, 2022 10 22 AM
To: Celata, Michael <Michael.Celata@boem.gov>; Robbins, Laura A <laura.robbins@boem.gov>; Filostrat,
John John Filostrat@boem gov ; DuFore, Chris M Chris DuFore@boem gov ; Reuther, Dustin J
<Dustin.Reuther@boem.gov>; dustin@healthygulf.org <dustin@healthygulf.org>; Belter, Mark S

Mark Belter@boem gov ; kendall@gcclp org kendall@gcclp org ; grace@gcclp org grace@gcclp org ;
moniqueh@dscej.org <moniqueh@dscej.org>; Matthews, Tershara N <Tershara.Matthews@boem.gov>;
Hammerle, Kelly K Kelly Hammerle@boem gov
Subject: BOEM-Gulf community outreach & engagement
When: Friday, May 13, 2022 1 30 PM 2 30 PM
Where:

Purpose To meet one another and discuss outreach and engagement strategies for underserved and
environmental justice communities in the Gulf region for BOEM programs and activities, specifically
the development of the next National OCS Oil and Gas Leasing Program, offshore wind, and carbon
sequestration rulemaking

Participants

» Kendall Dix, Policy Director, Gulf Coast Center for Law and Policy
» Grace Treffinger, Gulf Coast Center for Law and Policy
» Monique Hardin, Deep South Center for Environmental Justice



e Dustin Renaud, Communications Director, Healthy Gulf

« Mike Celata, Regional Director, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

« Laura Robbins, Deputy Regional Director, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

« John Filostrat, Public Affairs, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

« Chris DuFore, Resource Evaluation/Resource Studies/Regional Analysis Unit, BOEM Gulf of
Mexico

« Dustin Reuther, Social Sciences Unit, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

« Mark Belter, Marine Biologist, Environmental Assessment Division, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

o Tershara Matthews, Chief, Emerging Programs, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

« Kelly Hammerle, Chief, National Program Development Branch

+ Marissa Knodel, Senior Advisor, BOEM

Draft Agenda

 Introductions

« Review purpose and scope of meeting

« Overview of BOEM Gulf activities and need for underserved and EJ community outreach and
engagement

« [Additional agenda items from Healthy Gulf, GCCLP, and Deep South Center forthcoming]

« |dentify next steps and action items

Microsoft Teams meeting

Join on your computer or mobile app
Click here to join the meeting

Learn More | Meeting_options

Our new name, new website, and new logo mark how we are meeting the urgent climate demands of this moment. Follow Taproot
on social for the latest and to learn about our upcoming launch events!

Our new name, new website, and new logo mark how we are meeting the urgent climate demands of this moment. Follow Taproot on
social for the latest and to learn about our upcoming launch events!

P Kendall Dix
National Policy Director

Taproot Earth
he/him

g m‘g B (434) 442-0179
B kdix@taproot.earth



[ | taproot.earth

Our new name, new website, and new logo mark how we are meeting the urgent climate demands of this moment. Update your address
books with our new email addresses and follow Taproot on social for the latest and to learn about our upcoming launch events!



From: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

To: "Sanders, Ramona N." <Ramona.Sanders@bsee.gov>, "Celata, Michael"
<Michael.Celata@boem.gov>, "Robbins, Laura A" <laura.robbins@boem.gov>, "Filostrat,
John" <John.Filostrat@boem.gov>, "DuFore, Chris M" <Chris.DuFore@boem.gov>,
"Reuther, Dustin J" <Dustin.Reuther@boem.gov>, "dustin@healthygulf.org"
<dustin@healthygulf.org>, "Belter, Mark S" <Mark.Belter@boem.gov>,
"kendall@gcclp.org" <kendall@gcclp.org>, "grace@gcclp.org" <grace@gcclp.org>,
"moniqueh@dscej.org" <moniqueh@dscej.org>, "Matthews, Tershara N"
<Tershara.Matthews@boem.gov>, "Hammerle, Kelly K" <Kelly. Hammerle@boem.gov>

Subject: FW: BOEM-Gulf community outreach & engagement
Date: Thu, 29 Jun 2023 19:38:47 +0000
Importance: Normal
Attachments: unnamed

From: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Sent: Friday, April 29, 2022 9:22:39 AM (UTC-06:00) Central Time (US & Canada)

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>; Celata, Michael <Michael.Celata@boem.gov>; Robbins, Laura A
<laura.robbins@boem.gov>; Filostrat, John <John.Filostrat@boem.gov>; DuFore, Chris M <Chris.DuFore@boem.gov>;
Reuther, Dustin J <Dustin.Reuther@boem.gov>; dustin@healthygulf.org <dustin@healthygulf.org>; Belter, Mark S
<Mark.Belter@boem.gov>; kendall@gcclp.org <kendall@gcclp.org>; grace@gcclp.org <grace@gcclp.org>;
moniqueh@dscej.org <moniqueh@dscej.org>; Matthews, Tershara N <Tershara.Matthews@boem.gov>; Hammerle, Kelly K
<Kelly.Hammerle@boem.gov>

Subject: BOEM-Gulf community outreach & engagement

When: Friday, May 13, 2022 12:30 PM-1:30 PM.

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

o Monique Hardin, Deep South Center for Environmental Justice

o Dustin Renaud, Communications Director, Healthy Gulf

o Mike Celata, Regional Director, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

» Laura Robbins, Deputy Regional Director, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

« John Filostrat, Public Affairs, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

 Chris DuFore, Resource Evaluation/Resource Studies/Regional Analysis Unit, BOEM Gulf of Mexico
« Dustin Reuther, Social Sciences Unit, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

» Mark Belter, Marine Biologist, Environmental Assessment Division, BOEM Gulf of Mexico
« Tershara Matthews, Chief, Emerging Programs, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

o Kelly Hammerle, Chief, National Program Development Branch

« Marissa Knodel, Senior Advisor, BOEM

Draft Agenda



 Introductions

» Review purpose and scope of meeting

o Overview of BOEM Gulf activities and need for underserved and EJ community outreach and eng gement
» [Additional genda items from Healthy Gulf, GCCLP, and Deep South Center forthcoming]

« Identify next steps and action items

Microsoft Teams meeting

Join on your computer or mobile app
Click here to join the meeting

Learn More | Meeting_options




Event: FW: BOEM-Gulf community outreach & engagement

Start Date: 2022-05-13 17:30:00 +0000

End Date: 2022-05-13 18:30:00 +0000

Organizer: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Class: X-PERSONAL

Date Created: 2023-06-29 19:55:18 +0000

Date Modified: 2023-06-29 19:55:18 +0000

Priority: 5

DTSTAMP: 2022-05-09 16:58:33 +0000

Attendee: Sanders, Ramona N. <Ramona.Sanders@bsee.gov>; Celata, Michael
<Michael.Celata@boem.gov>; Robbins, Laura A <laura.robbins@boem.gov>; Filostrat, John
<John.Filostrat@boem.gov>; DuFore, Chris M <Chris.DuFore@boem.gov>; Reuther, Dustin |
<Dustin.Reuther@boem.gov>; dustin@healthygulf.org <dustin@healthygulf.org>; Belter, Mark S
<Mark.Belter@boem.gov>; kendall@gcclp.org <kendall@gcclp.org>; grace@gcclp.org
<grace@gcclp.org>; moniqueh@dscej.org <moniqueh@dscej.org>; Matthews, Tershara N
<Tershara.Matthews@boem.gov>; Hammerle, Kelly K <Kelly.Hammerle@boem.gov>

From: Knodel, Marissa S &lt;Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov&gt;

Sent: Friday, April 29, 2022 9:22:39 AM (UTC-06:00) Central Time (US &amp; Canada)

To: Knodel, Marissa S &lt;Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov&gt;; Celata, Michael
&lt;Michael.Celata@boem.gov&gt;; Robbins, Laura A &lt;laura.robbins@boem.gov&gt;; Filostrat,
John &lt;John.Filostrat@boem.gov&gt;; DuFore, Chris M &lt;Chris.DuFore@boem.gov&gt;;
Reuther, Dustin | &lt;Dustin.Reuther@boem.gov&gt;; dustin@healthygulf.org
&lt;dustin@healthygulf.org&gt;; Belter, Mark S &lt;Mark.Belter@boem.gov&gt;; kendall@gcclp.org
&lt;kendall@gcclp.org&gt;; grace@gcclp.org &lt;grace@gcclp.org&gt;; moniqueh@dscej.org
&lt;moniqueh@dscej.org&gt;; Matthews, Tershara N &lt;Tershara.Matthews@boem.gov&gt;;
Hammerle, Kelly K &lt;Kelly.Hammerle@boem.gov&gt;

Subject: BOEM-Gulf community outreach &amp; engagement

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
Grace Treffinger, Gulf Coast Center for Law and Policy
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
* Tershara Matthews, Chief, Emerging Programs, BOEM Gulf of Mexico
* Kelly Hammerle, Chief, National Program Development Branch
* Marissa Knodel, Senior Advisor, BOEM
Draft Agenda

* o ok F ok F *
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* Introductions

* Review purpose and scope of meeting

* QOverview of BOEM Gulf activities and need for underserved and EJ community outreach and
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
<Mark.Belter@boem.gov>, "kendall@gcclp.org" <kendall@gcclp.org>, "grace@gcclp.org'
<grace(@gcclp.org>, "moniqueh@dscej.org" <moniqueh@dscej.org>

Subject: BOEM-Gulf community outreach & engagement
Date: Fri, 29 Apr 2022 15:35:26 +0000
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

o Grace Treffinger, Gulf Coast Center for Law and Policy

» Monique Hardin, Deep South Center for Environmental Justice

o Dustin Renaud, Communications Director, Healthy Gulf

» Mike Celata, Regional Director, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

o Laura Robbins, Deputy Regional Director, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

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

o Overview of BOEM Gulf activities and need for underserved and EJ community outreach and engagement
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

Date Created: 2022-04-29 15:35:35 +0000

Date Modified: 2022-04-29 15:35:35 +0000

Priority: 5

DTSTAMP: 2022-04-29 15:35:25 +0000

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
<grace@gcclp.org>;, moniqueh@dscej.org <moniqueh@dscej.org>

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

* % ok ok o ok ok F ok



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

* Overview of BOEM Gulf activities and need for underserved and EJ community outreach and
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

Learn (X&)}




From: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
To: "Celata, Michael" <Michael.Celata@boem.gov>, "Robbins, Laura A"
<laura.robbins@boem.gov>, "Filostrat, John" <John.Filostrat@boem.gov>, "DuFore, Chris
M" <Chris.DuFore@boem.gov>, "Reuther, Dustin J" <Dustin.Reuther@boem.gov>,
"dustin@healthygulf.org" <dustin@healthygulf.org>, "Belter, Mark S"
<Mark.Belter@boem.gov>, "kendall@gcclp.org" <kendall@gcclp.org>, "grace@gcclp.org"
<grace@gcclp.org>, "moniqueh@dscej.org" <moniqueh@dscej.org>, "Matthews, Tershara
N" <Tershara.Matthews@boem.gov>, "Hammerle, Kelly K" <Kelly.Hammerle@boem.gov>
Subject: BOEM-Gulf community outreach & engagement
Date: Mon, 9 May 2022 16:58:34 +0000

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
Tershara Matthews, Chief, Emerging Programs, BOEM Gulf of Mexico

Kelly Hammerle, Chief, National Program Development Branch

Marissa Knodel, Senior Advisor, BOEM

Draft Agenda

Introductions

Review purpose and scope of meeting

Overview of BOEM Gulf activities and need for underserved and EJ community outreach and engagement
[Additional agenda items from Healthy Gulf, GCCLP, and Deep South Center forthcoming]

Identify next steps and action items

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

Date Created: 2022-05-09 16:58:40 +0000

Date Modified: 2022-05-09 16:58:40 +0000

Priority: 5

DTSTAMP: 2022-05-09 16:58:33 +0000

Attendee: Celata, Michael <Michael.Celata@boem.gov>; Robbins, Laura A
<laura.robbins@boem.gov>; Filostrat, John <John.Filostrat@boem.gov>; DuFore, Chris M
<Chris.DuFore@boem.gov>; Reuther, Dustin ] <Dustin.Reuther@boem.gov>;
dustin@healthygulf.org <dustin@healthygulf.org>; Belter, Mark S <Mark.Belter@boem.gov>;
kendall@gcclp.org <kendall@gcclp.org>; grace@gcclp.org <grace@gcclp.org>;
moniqueh@dscej.org <moniqueh@dscej.org>, Matthews, Tershara N
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

O T T S T



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

* ok ok F ok

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
To: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: COVID protocols for in-person meetings?
Date: Tue, 26 Jul 2022 16:55:20 -0400
Attachments: Taproot In-Person Protocols During COVID.pdf

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Hi, Marissa.

We're glad to hear that you all are considering an in-person meeting. We've attached our COVID protocols that
allowed us to safely hold an in-person meeting for 1,000 people in June.

There are two options we can provide for helping to facilitate a public meeting with BOEM, assuming that this
meeting will take place before the comment period ends on October 6:

1. On Wednesday September 14, we could co-host a deeply facilitated meeting that would be inclusive and
meaningful for community members. We would help set the agenda, invite key participants, and assist with the
logistical piece, including suggesting local interpreters. We would suggest making use of well-ventilated public
spaces, such as the University of New Orleans.

2. If September 14 doesn't work for BOEM or Taproot can't play an active role in planning the agenda and
facilitating, we can help coordinate the other local and national groups that would like to help drive engagement
for the meeting. We will already be preparing people to comment with our own popular education series that will
complement BOEM's virtual open houses, though not on 8/29, the anniversary of Katrina and Ida, which is an
important day of remembrance for the Gulf South.

We assume you are wanting this meeting to happen before October 6, but if you are open to a meeting the week
of February 6 or February 27, we have more flexibility. Would love to know your thoughts or answer any
questions.

Thanks,
Kendall

On Tue, Jul 26, 2022 at 10:07 AM Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov> wrote:
Hello again!

In addition to the COVID protocols, Director Lefton and | are interested in Colette's/Taproot Earth's offer to
potentially help convene a public meeting in the Gulf region to provide the opportunity for folks to provide
public testimony, with a court reporter, on BOEM-related issues, including the next five-year program.

Can you give me a sense of what the logistics for such a convening would entail and the time needed to make
one happen?



Thanks so much

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202 538 2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, July 26, 2022 9 19 AM

To: Kendall Dix <kdix@taproot.earth>

Subject: COVID protocols for in person meetings?

Hello Kendall,

During our meeting last week, Colette mentioned robust COVID protocols for in-person meetings that Taproot
Earth could help convene. Could you send those my way?

Thanks!

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



TRPROOT
EARTH

Taproot In-Person Protocols During COVID-19 Pandemic

Taproot takes very seriously the threat posed by the COVID-19 pandemic. We also recognize the

political issue that public health has become. As an organization, we believe in the collective-

including our collective health and well-being. We know that it is possible to have in-person

meetings and keep people safe. For every in-person gathering, the following procedures will be

strictly followed:

COVID Protocols

Proof of full vaccination required.

All participants will conduct a rapid self-test upon arrival. We ask people to arrive 15
minutes early to conduct this.

Masks are mandatory and may only be removed in short moments of eating or drinking
or speaking from far away with no one within 6 feet.

Hand sanitizer available and highly encouraged throughout the event.

During any health or emergency: Wear a face mask (even if outdoors) and alert any
medical professional on the scene of your vaccination status - then comply with medical
instruction on a case by case basis.

We will select sites that are either outdoors or have adequate ventilation.

We will offer hybrid options for people who cannot participate virtually.



From: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
To: Kendall Dix <kdix@taproot.earth>
Subject: Automatic reply: [EXTERNAL] Re: COVID protocols for in-person meetings?
Date: Mon, 8 Aug 2022 14:34:42 +0000

Hello and thank you for your e-mail. | am out of the office for work travel in Alaska Monday, August 8th through
Friday, August 12th, and may be slow to respond. If urgent, my cell is 202-538-2415.

Peace,
Marissa Knodel

Marissa Knodel



From: Kendall Dix <kdix@taproot.earth>
To: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: COVID protocols for in-person meetings?
Date: Mon, 29 Aug 2022 16:37:23 -0400

Hi, Marissa. Hope you had a good weekend.

Today on a frontline call, people were wondering whether BOEM will have a process to prioritize frontline
voices. For example, at some public meetings, people who live closest to proposed projects are given the first
opportunity to speak. Will you all have anything like this for the Sept. 12 hearing? It seems like just calling on
whoever raises their hand first will prioritize those who are most comfortable with zoom technology and fastest
on the draw, who might not be the most impacted community members.

Thanks,
Kendall

On Wed, Aug 17, 2022 at 1:13 PM Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov> wrote:
I should add that registration is encouraged so we can get a sense of numbers for participation, but is not

required and will not impact your ability to testify.

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Kendall Dix <kdix@taproot.earth>

Sent: Wednesday, August 17, 2022 1:03 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: COVID protocols for in-person meetings?

Thank you. That’s very helpful to know.

On Wed, Aug 17, 2022 at 1:03 PM Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov> wrote:
Hey Kendall,

My understanding is that once everyone has logged on, folks will be asked to use the "raise your hand"
feature, and the queue for speaking will be developed then, so not based on when you registered.

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Kendall Dix <kdix@taproot.earth>
Sent: Wednesday, August 17, 2022 12:47 PM



To: Knodel, Marissa S Marissa Knodel@boem gov
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: COVID protocols for in-person meetings?

Thanks for understanding, Marissa

By the way, I've gotten a few questions about how the queue for making verbal testimony at the September
12 virtual hearing will work. Some have wondered whether it will be first come, first served. We hope that it
is not the case because it seems to us that the people most likely to immediately RSVP for a BOEM hearing
might not be from frontline communities. We're still going through a public education process, and our sense
is that a lot of people still don't know about the virtual hearing yet

What's your thinking about this?

Thanks,
Kendall

On Tue, Aug 16, 2022 at 12:18 PM Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov> wrote:
Hello Kendall,

Thank you for following up, and | apologize that our internal decision process did not align with an in
person meeting on September 14th We really appreciate your efforts to drive comments on the
Proposed Program, and for participating in the open houses and virtual meeting

| continue to socialize ideas for a convening in the Gulf region, so will be in touch when | have any
updates

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202 538 2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Kendall Dix <kdix@taproot.earth>

Sent: Friday, August 12,2022 7 01 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Subject: Re [EXTERNAL] Re COVID protocols for in person meetings?

Hi, Marissa. I don't think I've directly said yet how much we appreciate that you all are hosting a virtual
meeting where people can give verbal testimony Thanks again for that

I also wanted to let you know that given our capacity and how close we are to mid September now, we're
going to have to pass on hosting an in-person meeting for the five-year plan on September 14. We still
support any in person meetings that you all may choose to host and will do what we can to get people to
participate in them if they happen. We will also be doing our part to educate people and drive people to
submit verbal and written comments throughout the comment period Thanks again for being so open to
our ideas on this, and I'm sure we'll be able to collaborate on something else soon.

Thanks,
Kendal

On Thu, Aug 11, 2022 at 11 44 AM Knodel, Marissa S Marissa Knodel@boem gov wrote




Totally understood, thanks Kendall

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202 538 2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Kendall Dix <kdix@taproot.earth>

Sent: Thursday, August 11, 2022 10 42 AM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Subject: Re [EXTERNAL] Re COVID protocols for in person meetings?

It's the only date where we can help facilitate the meeting. It could be that there are other groups who
can help pull off a meeting, but we're only available on 9/14 Sorry, it's a busy time for all of us, I know

On Thu, Aug 11, 2022 at 1 07 AM Knodel, Marissa S Marissa Knodel@boem gov wrote
Hey Kendall,

| apologize for how long the decision process is taking. | have stressed the urgency of timing and am
aiming to have a response for you by the end of the week.

| was wondering if September 14th is the only possible date during the comment period for the
Proposed Program (ending on October 6th)?

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa Knodel@boem gov

From: Kendall Dix kdix@taproot earth

Sent: Monday, August 8, 2022 10:34 AM

To: Knodel, Marissa S Marissa Knodel@boem gov

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: COVID protocols for in-person meetings?

Hi, Marissa I know you all have probably had a crazy couple of weeks with IRA, but I wanted to
follow up on the possibility of an in-person hearing on September 14 or in February. I just want to
make sure we have enough time to plan and can start getting to work on it

Thanks,
Kendall

On Tue, Jul 26, 2022 at 5:00 PM Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov> wrote:
Thanks very much, Kendall | will share this information with the Director and circle back

Peace,

Marissa Knodel



Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202 538 2415
Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Kendall Dix <kdix@taproot.earth>

Sent: Tuesday, July 26, 2022 4 55 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re COVID protocols for in person meetings?

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links,
opening attachments, or responding.

Hi, Marissa.

We're glad to hear that you all are considering an in-person meeting. We've attached our COVID
protocols that allowed us to safely hold an in person meeting for 1,000 people in June

There are two options we can provide for helping to facilitate a public meeting with BOEM,
assuming that this meeting will take place before the comment period ends on October 6:

1. On Wednesday September 14, we could co-host a deeply facilitated meeting that would be
inclusive and meaningful for community members We would help set the agenda, invite key
participants, and assist with the logistical piece, including suggesting local interpreters. We would
suggest making use of well ventilated public spaces, such as the University of New Orleans

2. If September 14 doesn't work for BOEM or Taproot can't play an active role in planning the
agenda and facilitating, we can help coordinate the other local and national groups that would like
to help drive engagement for the meeting. We will already be preparing people to comment with our
own popular education series that will complement BOEM's virtual open houses, though not on
8/29, the anniversary of Katrina and Ida, which is an important day of remembrance for the Gulf
South

We assume you are wanting this meeting to happen before October 6, but if you are open to a
meeting the week of February 6 or February 27, we have more flexibility. Would love to know your
thoughts or answer any questions

Thanks,
Kendall

On Tue, Jul 26, 2022 at 10:07 AM Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov> wrote:
Hello again!

In addition to the COVID protocols, Director Lefton and | are interested in Colette's/Taproot
Earth's offer to potentially help convene a public meeting in the Gulf region to provide the
opportunity for folks to provide public testimony, with a court reporter, on BOEM related issues,
including the next five year program

Can you give me a sense of what the logistics for such a convening would entail and the time
needed to make one happen?



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

During our meeting last week, Colette mentioned robust COVID protocols for in-person meetings
that Taproot Earth could help convene. Could you send those my way?

Thanks!

Peace,

Marissa Knodel
Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa Knodel@boem gov

Our new name, new website, and new logo mark how we are meeting the urgent climate demands of this moment. Update
your address books with our new email addresses and follow Taproot on social for the latest and to learn about our
upcoming launch events!

e Kendall Dix
National Policy Director

Taproot Earth

he/him
E D ﬂ B (434) 442 0179

B «dix@taproot.earth

[ | taproot.earth
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Our new name, new website, and new logo mark how we are meeting the urgent climate demands of this moment. Update your address
books with our new email addresses and follow Taproot on social for the latest and to learn about our upcoming launch events!

L

Join us for Climate on Tap, a 7-day virtual experience with frontline leaders, beginning August
29. Register here.



From: David Shadburn <dshadburn@]Icv.org>
To: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Checking in on Offshore Wind Vessel Crewing
Date: Tue, 26 Jul 2022 18:18:20 +0000

Thanks Marissa! Will call you in a few minutes then if that still works. We can keep this relatively brief, but appreciate
the opportunity to check in.

From: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, July 26, 2022 1:31 PM

To: David Shadburn <dshadburn@I|cv.org>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Checking in on Offshore Wind Vessel Crewing

Hey David,

| don't have too much to report, but am available today between 2:00-3:30 and after 4:30 if you want to give
me a call.

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: David Shadburn <dshadburn@]Icv.org>

Sent: Tuesday, July 26, 2022 9:26 AM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Checking in on Offshore Wind Vessel Crewing

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Hi Marissa,

Thanks again for chatting with me a few weeks ago about this offshore wind vessel crewing issue! I’'m wondering if we
can check in on this again sometime this week?

Thanks so much! Let me know if there are times that work particularly well for you. | know you mentioned your leg
affairs staff was working on this too — would be happy to chat with them too, or just with you, or whatever you think

makes the most sense. Really appreciate all your work on this.

-David



David Shadburn (he/him)

Government Affairs Advocate, Climate Change and Clean Energy
League of Conservation Voters

Cell: (917) 742-3078



From: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
To: Alex Taurel <Alex Taurel@lcv.org>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Coalition statement on SYP from Friday
Date: Mon, 18 Jul 2022 16:06:54 +0000

Thanks very much, Alex.

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa Knodel@boem gov

From: Alex Taurel Alex Taurel@Icv org

Sent: Monday, July 18, 2022 12:04 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S Marissa Knodel@boem gov ; Lefton, Amanda B Amanda Lefton@boem gov ; Alonso, Shantha
R <shantha_alonso@ios.doi.gov>; Feldgus, Steven H <steve_feldgus@ios.doi.gov>; Daniel-Davis, Laura E <laura_daniel-
davis@ios doi gov ; Kelly, Katherine P Kate Kelly@ios doi gov ;

Cc: Tiernan Sittenfeld <tiernan_sittenfeld@Icv.org>; Leah Donahey <ldonahey@Icv.org>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Coalition statement on 5YP from Friday

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Hi and hope folks got some time away this weekend after last week’s tough news. I wanted to share a statement that
LCV signed onto on Friday with regard to the 5 year plan

Thanks,
Alex

https //wwwlcvorg/article/as manchin pulls back on climate legislation groups urge biden administration to

uphold-climate-commitments-by-finalizing-a-five-year-plan-with-no-new-offshore-leases
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LEGISLATION, GROUPS



URGE BIDEN
ADMINISTRATION TO
UPHOLD CLIMATE
COMMITMENTS BY
FINALIZING A FIVE-YEAR
PLAN WITH NO NEW
OFFSHORE LEASES

July 15, 2022 Press Releases

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:

Friday, July 15, 2022

Contact: Jorja Rose, jorja@team-arc.com

As Manchin Pulls Back on Climate Legislation, Groups Urge Biden
Administration to Uphold Climate Commitments by Finalizing a Five-Year Plan
with No New Offshore Leases

(WASHINGTON, DC) - In light of yesterday’s news that Senator Joe Manchin (D-
West Virginia) is ready to walk away from a reconciliation package containing
historic investments in climate action, a key pillar of President Biden’s agenda,
groups from across the climate movement are calling on the Biden administration to
achieve protections for climate, communities, and public health through executive
action and federal agencies, including by ensuring the Department of Interior
finalizes a Five-Year Program that contains no new offshore drilling leases.

In response to the news, Earthjustice, Friends of the Earth, League of
Conservation Voters, Chispa LCV, Healthy Gulf, the Healthy Ocean Coalition,




Oceana, Rachel Carson Council, and Sierra Club released the following joint
statement:
“The unwillingness of Senator Manchin and every single Republican Senator to pass
a reconciliation package that includes needed climate action shows that they would
rather deliver for the fossil fuel industry than ensure a livable climate for ourselves
and future generations. Budget reconciliation is one critical component of President
Biden’s bold climate agenda. It's more important than ever for President Biden and
the Department of Interior to finalize a Five-Year Program that contains no new
offshore drilling leases. The climate impact of permanently ending new leasing could
be the equivalent of taking every car in the country off the road for 15 years.
Communities in the Gulf and Alaska see offshore drilling for what it is: a menace to
public health, a constant threat to their local economies and livelihoods, and a major
driver of the extreme heat, superstorms and flooding that are destroying the places
where they live. President Biden must make good on his campaign promises by
taking this first major step to put offshore drilling in the past. This is progress his
administration can make on its own, and we do not have any more time to waste
tackling the climate crisis.”

#H##

Alex Taurel

(He/Him/ His)

Conservation Program Director
League of Conservation Voters
alex taurel@lcvorg

(c) 202-669-1199




From: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
To: Kendall Dix <kdix@taproot.earth>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Colette's e-mail?
Date: Thu, 6 Oct 2022 19:24:47 +0000

So fast! Thanks so much, Kendall.

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Kendall Dix <kdix@taproot.earth>

Sent: Thursday, October 6, 2022 3:22 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Colette's e-mail?

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Hi, Marissa.
Colette’s email is cpichonbattle@taproot.earth and her phone number is 202.270.2460.
Director lefton called her yesterday about today’s announcement, which she really appreciated. Thank you.

On Thu, Oct 6, 2022 at 3:19 PM Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov> wrote:
Hey Kendall!

Amanda is asking for Colette's e-mail, and | realized | only have her GCCLP one. What is the best e-mail and
phone number for her?

Thanks!

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov




Kendall Dix
National Policy Director

Taproot Earth
he/him

B (434) 442-0179
B «kdix@taproot.earth
[ |

taproot.earth



From: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
To: "beverlyw(@dscej.org" <beverlyw@dscej.org>
Subject: Connecting BOEM with Gulf Coast EJ/Underserved communities
Date: Tue, 12 Apr 2022 20:39:05 +0000

Hello Dr. Wright,
| hope this e-mail finds you safe and healthy!

| know it's been a while -- we coordinated last March for your participation in the Department of the Interior's
oil and gas forum.

An important part of my role here at the Bureau of Ocean Energy Management (BOEM) is implementing the
Biden-Harris administration priorities, including delivering environmental justice and benefits to underserved
communities. A critical part of these efforts in ensuring that Gulf Coast communities have a seat at the table,
transparency, and participation in our decision-making processes regarding energy development offshore in the
Gulf of Mexico.

BOEM is embarking on some significant policy and rulemaking processes, and we want to be sure that environmental
justice and otherwise underserved communities have meaningful and equitable opportunities to learn what's going on
and participate. These processes relate to:

(1) the development of regulations to govern carbon sequestration offshore in the Gulf of Mexico (as ordered by
Congress),

(2) identification of wind energy areas for offshore wind development in the Gulf of Mexico, and

(3) development of the next five-year offshore oil and gas leasing program, as required under the Outer Continental
Shelf Lands Act.

All three may involve numerous meetings, and we are conscious that capacity and resources may be limited for the
time it will take to develop relationships and participate. That's why I'm reaching out in advance, to get advice on the
best ways to reach out and engage communities in ways that are inclusive, respectful, and valuable.

Let me know if you have time to connect in the next week or so by phone, e-mail, or video!

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov



From: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
To: Dustin Renaud <dustin@healthygulf.org>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNALT] Re: Connecting BOEM with Gulf Coast EJ/underserved communities
Date: Fri, 22 Apr 2022 19:51:54 +0000

Sounds great, thank you!

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Dustin Renaud <dustin@healthygulf.org>

Sent: Friday, April 22, 2022 3:43 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Connecting BOEM with Gulf Coast EJ/underserved communities

Marissa,
I think it would be fine if a couple of your other staffers joined.

I will share those dates and times with partners and line something up early next week. I would love to meet with
you all in person but understand if your schedule is too tight.

Stay tuned!
Dustin

On Thu, Apr 21, 2022 at 12:12 PM Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov> wrote:
Hello Dustin,

That sounds like a great and ideal plan. | may ask a few other BOEM staff to join, if that's all right?

Please let me know when works best for all of you. Next week I'm traveling April 25-28 for a conference, but
my Friday, April 29, is very open.

The week after next | will actually be in New Orleans with Director Lefton May 3-5 for another work trip. |
don't know our schedule for May 4 (May 5 we're fully booked), but can inquire if you're interested in a virtual
or in person meeting that day.

The week of May 9-13 I'll be back in D.C. with a more flexible schedule.
THANK YOU SO MUCH!

Peace,

Marissa Knodel
Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management



202.538.2415
Marissa Knodel@boem gov

From: Dustin Renaud dustin@healthygulf org

Sent: Thursday, April 21, 2022 12:41 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S Marissa Knodel@boem gov

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Connecting BOEM with Gulf Coast EJ/underserved communities

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Hi Marissa,

I would love to meet with you to discuss how BOEM can ensure that Gulf Coast communities have a seat at
the table and a voice in decision making After huddling with some colleagues, I wanted to propose a small
group meeting to discuss this. We were thinking me, Kendall Dix (GCCLP's policy director), and Monique
Hardin (Deep South Center for Environmental Justice) could best inform your path forward on reaching out to
engage communities.

Is that something you would be interested in?

Dustin

On Tue, Apr 12, 2022 at 3:42 PM Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov> wrote:
Hello Dustin,

| hope this e mail finds you safe and healthy!

An important part of my role here at the Bureau of Ocean Energy Management (BOEM) is implementing
the Biden Harris administration priorities, including delivering environmental justice and benefits to
underserved communities A critical part of these efforts in ensuring that Gulf Coast communities have a
seat at the table, transparency, and participation in our decision making processes regarding energy
development offshore in the Gulf of Mexico

BOEM is embarking on some significant policy and rulemaking processes, and we want to be sure that
environmental justice and otherwise underserved communities have meaningful and equitable opportunities to
learn what's going on and participate. These processes relate to:

(1) the development of regulations to govern carbon sequestration offshore in the Gulf of Mexico (as ordered by
Congress),

(2) identification of wind energy areas for offshore wind development in the Gulf of Mexico, and

(3) development of the next five year offshore oil and gas leasing program, as required under the Outer
Continental Shelf Lands Act.

All three may involve numerous meetings, and we are conscious that capacity and resources may be limited for
the time it will take to develop relationships and participate That's why I'm reaching out in advance, to get advice
on the best ways to reach out and engage communities in ways that are inclusive, respectful, and valuable.

Let me know if you have time to connect in the next week or so by phone, e-mail, or video!

Peace,



Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202 538 2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

L Healthy Gulf Dustin Renaud

Communications Director
|+, Healthy Gulf on

Facebook 504 525 1528 x214
@ 228 209 2194 (Cell)
PO BOX 2245

New Orleans, LA 70176
Protect What You Love

| Healthy Gulf Dustin Renaud

Communications Director
. Healthy Gulf on

Facebook 504 525 1528 x214
B & 228 209 2194 (Cell)
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
Date: Fri, 29 Apr 2022 15:08:25 +0000

Also, my Gulf trip was just cancelled with no explanation! | was looking forward to catching some of jazz
fest.

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Sent: Friday, April 29, 2022 11:06 AM

To: Dustin Renaud <dustin@healthygulf.org>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Connecting BOEM with Gulf Coast EJ/underserved communities

Thanks for the e-mails! What is Grace's surname?

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Dustin Renaud <dustin@healthygulf.org>

Sent: Friday, April 29, 2022 10:57 AM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Connecting BOEM with Gulf Coast EJ/underserved communities

Hey Marissa,

I got it. Looking at the invite list, Kendall, Grace, and Monique need to be added. Their emails are below. I'll
take a look at the agenda, and we will add in any topics we would like raised next week. Thank you for
coordinating this. I hope you have a great weekend, and I hope you have safe travels next week (and maybe
catch some Jazz Fest while in New Orleans!).

kendall@gcclp.org
grace(@gcclp.org (may be a placeholder for Colette Pichon Battle)
moniqueh(@dscej.org

In solidarity,
Dustin

On Fri, Apr 29, 2022 at 9:34 AM Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov> wrote:
Hey, | just sent the calendar invite for May 13, 12:30-1:30 p.m. Central. The invite has the list of attendees (for

now, let me know if | missed anyone), and a draft agenda with a holding place for anything you all want to
raise. Appreciate you, have a great weekend!



Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202 538 2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Dustin Renaud <dustin@healthygulf.org>

Sent: Thursday, April 28, 2022 4 21 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Subject: Re [EXTERNAL] Re Connecting BOEM with Gulf Coast EJ/underserved communities

We're going to meet next week to discuss what we'd like to see on the agenda. We're definitely watching the
CCS rulemaking, and Monique is somewhat of an expert on that topic at this point as she's taken the lead on a
group of about 20 Gulf leaders who are watching and responding to CCS right now. So, she should have some
good insight

I'll look forward to the calendar invite
Dustin

On Thu, Apr 28, 2022 at 2 26 PM Knodel, Marissa S Marissa Knodel@boem gov wrote
Thanks, Dustin. | will send you the calendar invite that includes the names of the BOEM participants and

the Microsoft Teams link.

Are there specific items you would like to see on an agenda?

In addition to the five year program, the BOEM team would like to discuss our approach to engagement
with Gulf underserved and EJ communities for other issues like renewable energy development and
rulemaking, particularly the rulemaking process we're undertaking for potential carbon sequestration in
the Gulf.

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa Knodel@boem gov

From: Dustin Renaud dustin@healthygulf org

Sent: Thursday, April 28, 2022 3:12 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S Marissa Knodel@boem gov

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Connecting BOEM with Gulf Coast EJ/underserved communities

Hi Marissa,
That sounds perfect. I will put a hold on everyone's calendar for that date and time.

We're excited that BOEM staff are so interested in how to authentically engage Gulf communities, especially
those that have seen the most onshore impacts from offshore drilling development

We're eager to see how we can ensure the 5 year plan is truly a plan that will show us a path forward that
considers community impacts and draws down our reliance on offshore drilling.



In solidarity,
Dustin

On Thu, Apr 28, 2022 at 10:36 AM Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov> wrote:
One other thing there's a lot of interest from BOEM, we're at 8 right now, representing those responsible
for community outreach and engagement, as well as leadership in the Gulf office My intention was for
this meeting to be friendly and informal, and | think everyone who asked to participate is important for
the discussion and excited to meet you all | just wanted to give you, Kendall, Grace, and Monique a
heads up in case there are any concerns about the size of the group and to make sure we're meeting
your expectations for the meeting as well

Thanks again,

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202 538 2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Sent: Thursday, April 28, 2022 10 52 AM

To: Dustin Renaud <dustin@healthygulf.org>

Subject: Re [EXTERNAL] Re Connecting BOEM with Gulf Coast EJ/underserved communities

Hello Dustin,

The 11:00 - 2:00 Central window works for me and the folks in our Gulf office that would like to meet you
all (virtually) and attend as well, including the Director of our Gulf office.

Let me know if you all have a preferred time, and | can help set up a virtual call. We use the Microsoft
Teams platform. Does that work? Also, does an hour sound okay for length?

Thanks again for your help coordinating!

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa Knodel@boem gov

From: Dustin Renaud dustin@healthygulf org

Sent: Tuesday, April 26, 2022 5:43 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S Marissa Knodel@boem gov

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Connecting BOEM with Gulf Coast EJ/underserved communities

Hi Marissa,

I've spoken with Kendall & Grace (Gulf Coast Center for Law and Policy) and Monique Hardin (Deep
South Center for Environmental Justice) It looks like Friday, May 13 between 11 am and 2 pm, as well as
4 pm central or later work best for all of us. Thanks for your patience to coordinate with these very busy
folks Do any of those times work for you and your team?

I'm also open to meeting up one on one when you're in New Orleans if you'd like



Thanks for prioritizing outreach with communities in the Gulf that these policies will affect. We look
forward to starting this conversation with BOEM

In solidarity,
Dustin Renaud

On Thu, Apr 21, 2022 at 12 12 PM Knodel, Marissa S Marissa Knodel@boem gov wrote
Hello Dustin,

That sounds like a great and ideal plan. | may ask a few other BOEM staff to join, if that's all right?

Please let me know when works best for all of you. Next week I'm traveling April 25-28 for a
conference, but my Friday, April 29, is very open.

The week after next | will actually be in New Orleans with Director Lefton May 3-5 for another work
trip. I don't know our schedule for May 4 (May 5 we're fully booked), but can inquire if you're
interested in a virtual or in person meeting that day.

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

I would love to meet with you to discuss how BOEM can ensure that Gulf Coast communities have a
seat at the table and a voice in decision making After huddling with some colleagues, I wanted to
propose a small group meeting to discuss this. We were thinking me, Kendall Dix (GCCLP's policy
director), and Monique Hardin (Deep South Center for Environmental Justice) could best inform your
path forward on reaching out to engage communities.

Is that something you would be interested in?

Dustin



On Tue, Apr 12, 2022 at 3:42 PM Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov> wrote:
Hello Dustin,

| hope this e mail finds you safe and healthy!

An important part of my role here at the Bureau of Ocean Energy Management (BOEM) is
implementing the Biden Harris administration priorities, including delivering environmental justice
and benefits to underserved communities A critical part of these efforts in ensuring that Gulf Coast
communities have a seat at the table, transparency, and participation in our decision making
processes regarding energy development offshore in the Gulf of Mexico

BOEM is embarking on some significant policy and rulemaking processes, and we want to be sure that
environmental justice and otherwise underserved communities have meaningful and equitable
opportunities to learn what's going on and participate. These processes relate to:

(1) the development of regulations to govern carbon sequestration offshore in the Gulf of Mexico (as
ordered by Congress),

(2) identification of wind energy areas for offshore wind development in the Gulf of Mexico, and

(3) development of the next five year offshore oil and gas leasing program, as required under the Outer
Continental Shelf Lands Act.

All three may involve numerous meetings, and we are conscious that capacity and resources may be limited
for the time it will take to develop relationships and participate That's why I'm reaching out in advance, to
get advice on the best ways to reach out and engage communities in ways that are inclusive, respectful, and
valuable

Let me know if you have time to connect in the next week or so by phone, e mail, or video!

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
Date: Fri, 29 Apr 2022 15:33:28 +0000

Thank you -- | updated the participant list and sent them the invitation.

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Dustin Renaud <dustin@healthygulf.org>

Sent: Friday, April 29, 2022 11:24 AM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Connecting BOEM with Gulf Coast EJ/underserved communities

Kendall Dix
Grace Treffinger
Monique Harden, Esq.

On Fri, Apr 29, 2022 at 10:08 AM Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov> wrote:
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




Hey, | just sent the calendar invite for May 13,12 30 1 30 p m Central The invite has the list of attendees
(for now, let me know if | missed anyone), and a draft agenda with a holding place for anything you all want
to raise Appreciate you, have a great weekend!

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
CCS rulemaking, and Monique is somewhat of an expert on that topic at this point as she's taken the lead on
a group of about 20 Gulf leaders who are watching and responding to CCS right now. So, she should have
some good insight

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

We're excited that BOEM staff are so interested in how to authentically engage Gulf communities,



especially those that have seen the most onshore impacts from offshore drilling development

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

On Thu, Apr 28, 2022 at 10 36 AM Knodel, Marissa S Marissa Knodel@boem gov wrote
One other thing: there's a lot of interest from BOEM, we're at 8 right now, representing those

responsible for community outreach and engagement, as well as leadership in the Gulf office. My
intention was for this meeting to be friendly and informal, and | think everyone who asked to
participate is important for the discussion and excited to meet you all. | just wanted to give you,
Kendall, Grace, and Monique a heads up in case there are any concerns about the size of the group and
to make sure we're meeting your expectations for the meeting as well.

Thanks again,

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa Knodel@boem gov

From: Knodel, Marissa S Marissa Knodel@boem gov

Sent: Thursday, April 28, 2022 10:52 AM

To: Dustin Renaud dustin@healthygulf org

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Connecting BOEM with Gulf Coast EJ/underserved communities

Hello Dustin,

The 11 00 2 00 Central window works for me and the folks in our Gulf office that would like to meet
you all (virtually) and attend as well, including the Director of our Gulf office

Let me know if you all have a preferred time, and | can help set up a virtual call We use the Microsoft
Teams platform Does that work? Also, does an hour sound okay for length?

Thanks gain for your help coordinating!

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202 538 2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Dustin Renaud <dustin@healthygulf.org>

Sent: Tuesday, April 26, 2022 5 43 PM

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
South Center for Environmental Justice). It looks like Friday, May 13 between 11 am and 2 pm, as well
as 4 pm central or later work best for all of us Thanks for your patience to coordinate with these very
busy folks. Do any of those times work for you and your team?

I'm also open to meeting up one-on-one when you're in New Orleans if you'd like.

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
trip. | don't know our schedule for May 4 (May 5 we're fully booked), but can inquire if you're
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

Is

that something you would be interested in?

Dustin

On Tue, Apr 12, 2022 at 3:42 PM Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov> wrote:

s, Healthy Gulf on

Hello Dustin,
| hope this e mail finds you safe and healthy!

An important part of my role here at the Bureau of Ocean Energy Man gement (BOEM) is
implementing the Biden Harris administration priorities, including delivering environmental justice
and benefits to underserved communities A critical part of these efforts in ensuring that Gulf
Coast communities have a seat at the table, transparency, and participation in our decision making
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

All three may involve numerous meetings, and we are conscious that capacity and resources may be
limited for the time it will take to develop relationships and participate That's why I'm reaching out in
advance, to get advice on the best ways to reach out and engage communities in ways that are inclusive,
respectful, and valuable

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
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Current offshore wind capacity
Date: Tue, 2 Aug 2022 18:47:40 -0400

Excellent, thank you so much. I know IRA probably put a wrench in your gears just like the rest of us. We're all
scrambling.

On Tue, Aug 2, 2022 at 6:00 PM Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov> wrote:
You're welcome, happy to help. | know that we owe you a response on the potential in-person meeting in the

Gulf for the Proposed Program. | am pushing for a response and should be able to circle back soon.

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Kendall Dix <kdix@taproot.earth>

Sent: Tuesday, August 2, 2022 5:54 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Current offshore wind capacity

OK, thanks so much for the clarification and for getting back to me so quickly!

On Tue, Aug 2, 2022 at 5:54 PM Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov> wrote:
That is total generating capacity assuming that all areas leased are actually developed and that the projects
developed on those leases actually meet that capacity. It's not quite accurate to say that we've leased that
amount as the number is theoretical and will depend on the projects submitted and approved.

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Kendall Dix <kdix@taproot.earth>

Sent: Tuesday, August 2, 2022 5:36 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Current offshore wind capacity

I was looking at the bottom of F-124 (p. 126 on my pdf reader). There's a figure that says "OCS total:
36,065 Generating Capacity (MW)."

On Tue, Aug 2, 2022 at 5:33 PM Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov> wrote:
Hey Kendall,

You may have to point me to the exact reference. Right now there is less than 0.5 GW of installed
capacity on the OCS for offshore wind. Since the beginning of the administration, we have approved two



projects (Vineyard Wind and South Fork), totaling 0 93 GW (800 MW for Vineyard Wind and 130 MW for
South Fork) We are currently reviewing another 10 projects which, if approved, could total 16 GW by
2025, with the goal of 30 GW by 2030

Peace,

Marissa Knodel
Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202 538 2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Kendall Dix <kdix@taproot.earth>

Sent: Tuesday, August 2, 2022 5 04 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Current offshore wind capacity

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Hi Marissa. I was looking at this report:
https //www boem gov/sites/default/files/documents/renewable energy/state activities/Ocean Wind1
DEIS-App-F-Planned-Activities-Scenario.pdf

Am I reading this correctly that BOEM has already leased 36 gigawatts of offshore wind capacity?

Thanks,
Kendall

e Kendall Dix

National Policy Director
Taproot Earth

he/him

P[P | e
[ | kdix@taproot.earth
[ | taproot.earth




Our new name, new website, and new logo mark how we are meeting the urgent climate demands of this moment. Update your
address books with our new email addresses and follow Taproot on social for the latest and to learn about our upcoming launch
events!

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
Subject: [EXTERNAL] David/Marissa Connect
Date: Fri, 8 Jul 2022 19:07:15 +0000
Importance: Normal
Attachments: unnamed

This email has been received from outside of DOI -Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Let me know if you’d rather use zoom or something, happy to set that up.



Event: [EXTERNAL] David/Marissa Connect

Start Date: 2022-07-11 16:00:00 +0000

End Date: 2022-07-11 16:30:00 +0000

Organizer: David Shadburn <dshadburn®@lcv.org>
Location: David call Marissa's cell, 202.538.2415

Class: X-PERSONAL

Date Created: 2022-07-08 19:07:27 +0000

Date Modified: 2022-07-08 19:07:27 +0000

Priority: 5

DTSTAMP: 2022-07-08 19:07:14 +0000

Attendee: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Alarm: Display the following message 15m before start

Reminder

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Let me know if you&#8217;d rather use zoom or something, happy to set that up.



From: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
To: David Shadburn <dshadburn@lcv.org>
Subject: Accepted: [EXTERNAL] David/Marissa Connect
Date: Fri, 8 Jul 2022 19:08:16 +0000
Importance: Normal
Attachments: unnamed




Event: Accepted: [EXTERNAL] David/Marissa Connect

Start Date: 2022-07-11 16:00:00 +0000

End Date: 2022-07-11 16:30:00 +0000

Location: David call Marissa's cell, 202.538.2415
Class: X-PERSONAL

Comment:

Date Created: 2022-07-08 19:08:19 +0000

Date Modified: 2022-07-08 19:08:19 +0000
Priority: 5

DTSTAMP: 2022-07-08 19:08:15 +0000

Attendee: David Shadburn <dshadburn@lcv.org>



From: "Hoskins, Diane" <Dhoskins@oceana.org>

To: "Lefton, Amanda B" <Amanda.Lefton@boem.gov>, "Knodel, Marissa S"
<Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] FW: BREAKING: President Biden Announces Offshore Leasing Proposal
Date: Fri, 1 Jul 2022 22:03:52 +0000
Inline-Images: image001.jpg

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

FYI

From: Matheny, Austin <amatheny@oceana.org>

Sent: Friday, July 1, 2022 6:02 PM

To: OceanaPressReleases <OceanaPressReleases@oceana.org>; offshore drilling <offshoredrilling@oceana.org>
Subject: BREAKING: President Biden Announces Offshore Leasing Proposal

OCEANA giectingthe

PRESS RELEASE 1025 Connecticut Ave., NW Suite 200 P +(202) 833-3900
Washington, DC 20036 F +(202)833-2070
OCEANA.ORG

For Inmediate Release: July 1, 2022

Contacts: Austin Matheny, amatheny@oceana.org, 858.395.5577
Dustin Cranor, dcranor@oceana.org, 954.348.1314

President Biden Announces Offshore Leasing Proposal
Oceana calls on President Biden to fulfill his promise to end new offshore drilling

WASHINGTON — Today, the Biden-Harris administration announced the proposal for the nation's Outer
Continental Shelf (OCS) Oil and Gas Leasing Program for 2023-2028. The Proposed Program calls for up to
ten potential sales in the Gulf of Mexico and one potential lease sale in the Cook Inlet Planning Area off
Alaska’s coast.

During his presidential campaign, President Biden pledged to end new leasing for offshore drilling. According to
the International Energy Agency, nations must stop developing_new oil and gas fields if global warming is to stay
within relatively safe limits.

In response to the president’s proposed five-year plan, Oceana campaign director Diane Hoskins issued the
following statement:

“It's disappointing that President Biden is still considering new lease sales, but we’re encouraged that the
president put forward a no-new-leasing option. The inevitable conclusion must be finalizing a program that ends
new leasing for offshore drilling. New leases are incompatible with efforts to address the climate crisis and won'’t



help lower gas prices. We know that more leasing for dirty and dangerous offshore drilling and spilling threatens
our ocean, climate, and economy.

“The oiland ga indu tryi lying when they aynewlea e will help ga price Even the previou

admini tration agreed that new lea e won't likely produce oil for more than 10 year It ridiculou to ell more
leases when oil companies are not even developing the leases they already have. Oil companies own over 8
million acres of unused leases, or 75% of the total leased acreage of public waters. Ending new leasing for
offshore drilling is a vital step to tackle the climate crisis and protect millions of jobs that rely on a healthy ocean.

“But our oceans can be a part of the clean energy solution through responsibly developed offshore wind. We
are counting on Pre ident Biden to keep hi promi e and finalize a plan with no new oilandga lea e ale ”

The Trump administration’s previous drilling_plan confirmed that new leases will not help gas prices, stating that
production “in newly available OCS areas will likely not occur for a decade or more,” and new leasing “cannot
provide resources to quickly mitigate the effects of a national energy emergency.”

Arecent Oceana analysis found that permanent offshore drilling protections for all unleased federal waters
could prevent over 19 billion ton of greenhou e ga emi ion Thati the equivalent to taking every car in the
United State off the road for the next 15 year The analy i al o found that permanent protection in all
unleased federal waters could prevent more than $720 billion in damages to people, property, and the
environment.

Earlier this year, the Department of the Interior canceled the Cook Inlet lease sale, citing_lack of industry
interest.

For more information about Oceana’s efforts to stop the expansion of offshore drilling, please click here.

Oceana is the largest international advocacy organization dedicated solely to ocean conservation. Oceana is
rebuilding abundant and biodiverse oceans by winning science-based policies in countries that control one-third
of the world’s wild fish catch. With more than 225 victories that stop overfishing, habitat destruction, pollution,
and the killing of threatened species like turtles and sharks, Oceana’s campaigns are delivering results A
restored ocean means that 1 billion people can enjoy a healthy seafood meal, every day, forever Together, we
can save the oceans and help feed the world. Visit www.usa.oceana.org to learn more.




From: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
To: David Shadburn <dshadburn@]Icv.org>, "Romero, John D." <John.Romero@boem.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] FW: LCV and California Environmental Voters Statements on Historic
California Offshore Wind Lease Sales

Date: Wed, 7 Dec 2022 20:44:27 +0000

Thanks very much, David!

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: David Shadburn <dshadburn@Icv.org>

Sent: Wednesday, December 7, 2022 3:42 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>; Romero, John D. <John.Romero@boem.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] FW: LCV and California Environmental Voters Statements on Historic California Offshore Wind
Lease Sales

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Hi Marissa and John,

Congrats on completing these historic offshore wind lease sales! Sharing statements from the League of Conservation
Voters and our state affiliate California Environmental Voters here.

Thank you for your continued commitment to offshore wind!
-David

David Shadburn (he/him)

Government Affairs Advocate, Climate Change and Clean Energy

League of Conservation Voters
Cell: (917) 742-3078

https://www.lcv.org/article/Icv-and-california-environmental-voters-statements-on-historic-california-
offshore-wind-lease-sales/

For Immediate Release
December 7, 2022
Contact: Emily Samsel, esamsel@]cv.org | Erika Guzman Cornejo, erika@genvirovoters.org




LCV and California Environmental Voters Statements on Historic California Offshore Wind
Lease Sales

Washington, D.C. and Los Angeles, CA In response to today’s historic $757 million offshore wind lease sales

off the coast of California, the first ever off of the West Coast, the League of Conservation Voters (LCV) and
California Environmental Voters issued the following statements:

LCV Government Affairs Advocate David Shadburn said:

“Today’s historic California offshore wind lease sales are a massive win for people and the planet it’s more
clear than ever that our future is in clean, renewable energy. Thanks to President Biden and the Bureau of Ocean
Energy Management, Californians can look forward to thousands of new, good paying union jobs and lower
energy costs in the years to come. We especially appreciate the administration’s thoughtful stakeholder
engagement and environmental review processes to ensure any potentially impacted communities are part of
their decision making.”

California Environmental Voters Political and Organizing Director, Mike Young said:

“California is making historic strides toward ending our dependence on fossil fuels and towards the necessary
pathway to carbon neutrality. Today’s offshore wind lease sales are a testament that hardworking people in the
construction trades are an essential part of achieving our goal of 100% clean energy by 2045 This effort will
complement the state’s solar energy resources, providing clean energy even after the sun goes down and bringing
us closer to a clean energy future

HHH



From: Katherine Tsantiris <ktsantiris@oceanconservancy.org>
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Good afternoon,

| just wanted to follow up to thank you all for taking the time to meet with us yesterday. We appreciated the discussion
and enjoyed having the opportunity to share more about our work on clean ocean energy. | wanted to follow up with a
few items that we mentioned yesterday. I've attached our comments on the Renewable Energy Modernization Rule,
which we submitted yesterday afternoon. In addition, | am attaching our comments on the Five Year Plan. As we
touched on, our high level ask — given the challenging connection between offshore wind and oil and gas —can be
summed up by the following statement from our comment letter: “If BOEM opts to include any oil and gas lease sales
in 2023—-2028 National Leasing Program, those lease sales should be the minimum required to sustain build-out of
responsibly sited offshore wind facilities pursuant to section 50265 of the Inflation Reduction Act of 2022.”

It was great to talk to you about the Global Offshore Wind Alliance as well. For reference, here is our press release on
joining: https://oceanconservancy.org/news/ocean-conservancy-first-ngo-join-global-offshore-wind-alliance/.

And Marissa, you also expressed interest in our ocean justice work. We would be happy to follow up to connect you
with our team or discuss our work on ocean justice further!

Thank you all again for a productive conversation yesterday and we look forward to being a resource to you moving
forward.

Best,
Kathy
. q\ Katherine Tsantiris
k she/her/hers
Associate Director, Government Relations
Ocean ?}k\ ;j 1300 19th Street NW, 8th Floor

Washington, DC 20036

Conservancy® 0:202.280.6259
M: 860.712.8946
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May 01, 2023

Kelley Spence

Office of Regulations

Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
Department of the Interior

45600 Woodland Road

DIR-BOEM, Sterling, VA 20166

RE: Comments on BOEM Renewable Energy Modernization Rule, Docket No. BOEM-2023-0005
Dear Ms. Spence:

On behalf of Ocean Conservancy?, thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Bureau of Ocean
Energy Management’s (BOEM) draft Renewable Energy Modernization Rule. Ocean Conservancy
supports a rapid, responsible, and just transition away from fossil fuels to a clean energy future.? Well-
planned, responsibly sited offshore wind is a critical part of the renewable energy mix needed to achieve
this transition.

We support the Biden Administration’s goal of deploying 30 gigawatts (GW) of offshore wind by 2030.
Regulatory changes proposed in BOEM’s Renewable Energy Modernization Rule will help ensure
offshore wind energy advances climate mitigation goals, provides benefits to communities, and
minimizes adverse environmental impacts.

Ocean Conservancy supports BOEM’s rulemaking proposal to:

e Eliminate unnecessary requirements for deployment of meteorological buoys;

e Codify the use of Project Design Envelopes in Construction and Operations Plan (COP)
submissions;

e Provide for increased flexibility with respect to required site surveys;

1 Ocean Conservancy is a honprofit marine conservation organization. Ocean Conservancy works to protect the
ocean from today’s greatest global challenges. We create knowledge-based solutions for a healthy ocean and the
wildlife and communities that depend on it.

2 Section 50265 of the Inflation Reduction Act links the issuance of future offshore wind permits to continued oil
and gas leasing. Ocean Conservancy opposes new OCS oil and gas lease sales. BOEM should offer additional OCS oil
and gas lease sale(s) only if it is absolutely necessary to facilitate a rapid, responsible and just build-out of offshore
wind capacity. If BOEM offers additional offshore oil and gas leases as a means to facilitate offshore wind
development, it should limit the number and size of the oil and gas lease sales to the minimum necessary under
the terms of Sec. 50265.



e Establish a Public Renewable Energy Leasing Schedule;

e Enhance BOEM’s authority to use multifactor bidding to increase stakeholder engagement
during planning; and

o Allow for a staged-funding approach towards offshore wind decommissioning activities.

We also outline other concepts BOEM should consider in the final rulemaking and other administrative
policies related to offshore renewable energy. We encourage BOEM to finalize the Renewable Energy
Modernization Rule by the end of 2023.

The sections that follow provide additional detail. Section | provides context for our support of BOEM’s
proposed rule changes. Sections Il through VIII address specific sections of the rulemaking and offer
additional related considerations and recommendations. Section IX raises other key issues BOEM should
consider in this rulemaking and future changes to policy or guidance.

I. Modernizing the permitting process for offshore renewable energy is a critical step on the path
toward a clean energy transition.

Meeting our clean energy goals will require a dramatic increase in the pace and scale of offshore wind
development and a rapid phase out of oil and gas operations. Ocean Conservancy is committed to a
rapid, responsible, and just transition to 100% Clean Ocean Energy by 2050. This means dramatically
accelerating and scaling up offshore wind development and other marine renewables while phasing out
offshore oil and gas production, in a way that protects the ocean and coastal communities.
Modernization of the offshore wind planning and permitting process will facilitate climate mitigation
targets by clarifying and advancing the process based on lessons learned and the increasing
technological advances of the industry.

Some of the most serious impediments to progress on offshore wind are driven by questions of
tradeoffs among current and proposed uses of ocean space and resources, and a variety of legal,
regulatory, and procedural obstacles that must be addressed through the planning and permitting
process. Regulations governing planning and permitting must be designed not only to facilitate progress
towards offshore wind and climate mitigation goals, but also to benefit communities, ensure workplace
safety, and minimize impacts to marine and coastal ecosystems.

Improving the efficiency and effectiveness of the planning, engagement, permitting and monitoring
framework—as proposed in this rulemaking and suggested in additional topics for current and future
agency action—will also provide the increased certainty developers need to successfully deploy offshore
wind at the scale and in the timeframe needed to meet our shared clean energy goals.

In addition, the transition to a clean energy economy provides an immense opportunity for communities
that did not benefit from previous economic transformations. This rulemaking allows for BOEM to
address these past injustices towards historically disadvantaged communities which are often
communities of color, and provide them with employment opportunities in the growing offshore wind
sector and its supply chain.



For all these reasons, we support the proposed rule changes advanced in BOEM'’s draft Renewable
Energy Modernization Rule. We offer more detailed comments on the proposed rule changes—along
with additional recommendations for the final rulemakings and any changes to future policy and
guidance—in Sections Il through VIII below.

Il. Site Assessment: Eliminating Site Assessment Plans for meteorological buoys

Ocean Conservancy endorses BOEM’s proposal to eliminate Site Assessment Plans (SAPs) for
meteorological (met) buoys. With the advancement of numerous offshore wind projects since the
original 2009 wind regulations and the substantial technological advancements that continue to occur
throughout the wind industry and ocean observing systems, experience has demonstrated the need for
BOEM to update its regulations. Instead of prescriptive standards for outdated meteorology towers, we
support the proposed regulation change. In general, we urge BOEM to move toward fewer technology-
specific requirements for applications, recognizing that technology advances faster than regulatory
revisions. The recommendation to move from SAPs toward site characterization, among others, was
highlighted in the Ocean Conservancy and Perkins Coie Policy to Power report. We are pleased to see
the recommendation reflected in BOEM’s rulemaking.

Additional Considerations and Recommendations for the Permitting Stage for the Final Rule:

As BOEM considers additions to this proposed rulemaking as well as changes to policy and guidance
regarding SAPs, we encourage the agency to focus on the process of how the applicant’s plans will be
reviewed by BOEM and other agencies with jurisdiction.

e Developing guidelines for site characterization: As BOEM moves away from prescriptive
standards related to technology, we encourage the development of site characterization
guidelines. Currently, the site characterization process occurs informally with multiple project-
specific elements coordinated by the project proponent and authorized by a variety of agencies.
For example, National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) authorization of low-level harassment of
marine mammals may be an essential element of the collection of geophysical and geotechnical
information in site characterization. Rather than leave this aspect of the authorization process
to developers to negotiate, we recommend that the proposed rule provide for coordination with
NMFS. Ideally, BOEM and NMFS should be able to rely on an Endangered Species Act (ESA)/
Marine Mammal Protection Act (MMPA) programmatic approach that advances species
conservation interests and thoughtful development of COPs. Explicit provisions for this
coordination may improve coordination now rather than await another rulemaking.

lll. Project Design Envelope

BOEM'’s proposed rule would codify the use of project design envelopes (PDE) and would clarify that
lessees and grant holders may submit plans using a PDE approach. Ocean Conservancy supports this



proposed change, with the understanding that the PDE will remain narrow enough to require
meaningful analysis of reasonably foreseeable impacts.

Additional Considerations and Recommendations for the Final Rule:

As BOEM formalizes the project design approach, the agency should advance mitigation and monitoring
commitments that move toward a programmatic framework for assessing the cumulative effects of
offshore wind power projects. Adaptive management is particularly appropriate where environmental
review and mitigation requirements are based on impact assessments that are likely to overestimate
impacts to allow for technological improvements during the permitting and construction processes.
Offshore wind project technology is rapidly evolving, and, as a result, adaptive management is
particularly relevant. BOEM is now allowing developers to describe their projects using general
parameters of a project- design envelope to address technological uncertainties at the time of submittal
of a COP. Left unchecked, the assumed cumulative effects of offshore wind development may require
project proponents and regulators to assume impacts that could be better informed by a program of
monitoring and adaptation of management actions. We have included additional recommendations on
the identification of Wind Energy Areas in Section IX.

IV. Geophysical and Geotechnical Surveys

BOEM proposes rule changes that would clarify COP data requirements and provide additional flexibility.
Existing regulations require lessees to conduct geotechnical surveys before COP submission. The
proposed change would shift from largely prescriptive standards toward performance-based standards
that allow lessees additional flexibility at the COP stage.

Ocean Conservancy supports this proposed rule change. Increased flexibility will better accommodate
technological changes and would allow for more nuanced siting decisions that will help balance and
accommodate other ocean uses and reduce conflicts. Experience in permitting so far has demonstrated
a need for developers to limit upfront survey work and investment. When developers are required to
invest too much at the front end of a project, they retain less ability and willingness to adapt project
designs. Offshore wind will be successful when a balance of climate mitigation potential, environmental
and cultural protection, and ocean use conflicts are found. This proposed change moves toward
achieving that balance.

Additional Considerations and Recommendations for the Final Rule:

e Guidance on best practice for geotechnical and geophysical surveys: BOEM notes its intention to
revise guidelines that recommend best practices for geotechnical and geophysical surveys. The
agency suggested that in doing so, it “could recommend, as a best practice, that developers
coordinate early with relevant agencies on applicable site characterization plans, before surveys
occur.” We support proposed updates to the guidelines and additional BOEM actions within the
final rule that advance early interagency coordination among states and federal agencies. At a
minimum, BOEM could include guidance in the preamble to the final rule that explains intent for
implementation of interagency coordination. BOEM should also implement a pre-application



approach to help frame a well-designed proposal before it is submitted for agency review.
Advancing a pre-application process would provide a common means for an authorizing agency
to work with a prospective applicant to help frame a well-designed proposal before it is
submitted for agency review. Pre-application processes could include the collection of
information, coordination with stakeholders, communities, and Tribes, and informally “scoping”
the environmental review process that is formalized through a public notice of intent to prepare
an environmental document.

e Archaeological resource surveys: BOEM’s proposed rule change would allow lessees to defer
subsea archaeological resource data submission. If BOEM makes this proposed change, we
encourage BOEM to work proactively with lessees to facilitate agreements or memoranda of
understanding among National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA) Section 106 consulting parties
to establish strong communication channels and to consider procedures and policies designed
to avoid or mitigate impacts to archaeological resources. Physical impacts to submerged historic
properties can typically be avoided by adjusting the locations of project facilities in the final
engineering design for the project prior to construction. We encourage appropriate avoidance
protocols incorporated into Programmatic Agreements governing project authorizations. For
example, participation of State Historic Preservation Officers and Tribal Historic Preservation
Officers may take the form of a Programmatic Agreement. At the pre-leasing stage, the essential
elements would include a commitment to compliance with the NHPA and related authorities,
identification of specific individuals tasked with reviewing and acting on information defined as
necessary for consultation, and an indicative schedule based on an expected date of BOEM’s
lease decision that would serve as a guide to the resources and timing necessary to conduct
consultation throughout the permitting process. Above all, a commitment to earlier
conversations and engagement with Tribes, communities, and other ocean users as Wind Energy
Areas are developed will ensure impacts to marine, historic, and cultural areas are reduced.

e Data sharing related to survey activities and research: BOEM solicits comments related to a
potential future rulemaking intended to regulate surveys associated with Outer Continental
Shelf (OCS) renewable energy activities. We urge BOEM to require OCS operators, to the
greatest extent possible, to share and make available to the public the survey data collected.
Coordination of survey activities and research as well as requirements to share all non-
proprietary biological and oceanographic data would significantly advance our understanding of
the ocean while providing the ability to better adaptively manage offshore wind development
(also noted above related to cumulative impacts and PDE). There are many existing frameworks
within BOEM and NOAA (Marine Cadastre), other federal agencies (Army Corps of Engineers),
and other regional entities (Regional Ocean Partnerships and the Integrated Ocean Observing
System) that offer models to build developer data sharing and associated platforms. Models
from the healthcare industry related to privacy as well as cultural resource data sharing subject
to protections under the National Historic Preservation Act Section 304 offer additional lessons
learned to advance public data sharing. Offshore wind energy companies that have been
granted leases are required to submit extensive survey data as part of site assessment and
development of COPs. Regulations allow for BOEM to publish such data as long as it does not
result in “substantial competitive harm or disclosure of trade secrets.”® For proprietary data, an
embargo of three years is applicable, after which BOEM can publish such data if the harm no

330 CFR 585.113(b).



longer persists.* As the work for the Regional Wildlife Science Collaborative for Offshore Wind,
Responsible Offshore Science Alliance, and other relevant entities advance, BOEM should
advance lease stipulations in the final rule requiring research coordination and, where feasible,
coordination of survey activities.

V. Public Renewable Energy Leasing Schedule

Existing regulations do not require or suggest that BOEM produce a renewable energy leasing schedule.
The draft rule currently proposes a commitment to a Public Renewable Energy Leasing Schedule that
includes a five-year time horizon, a commitment to adjust the schedule every two years, and a listing of
locations under consideration for leasing.

Ocean Conservancy supports inclusion of a Public Renewable Energy Leasing Schedule in the regulations.
Such a schedule would benefit coastal managers, communities, Tribes, and other stakeholders by
allowing them to better plan for offshore wind development in their local communities or in their
business operations.

A five-year leasing schedule will also assist with forecasting supply chain needs for the offshore wind
industry. According to the National Renewable Energy Laboratory (NREL) 2022 report, “The Demand for
a Domestic Offshore Wind Energy Supply Chain,” approximately 2,100 wind turbines will be needed in

U.S. waters to produce 30 GW of electricity by 2030. A robust supply chain will be necessary to facilitate
this growth. NREL estimates that 34 major component manufacturing facilities will be required, each of
which could take between three and five years to engage local stakeholders, plan operations, obtain
permits and complete construction. Understanding BOEM'’s vision for leasing will help advance the
planning needed and create certainty to facilitate commitments to manufacturing.

Workforce development is also a critical component needed to advance the buildout of offshore wind
and would benefit from the proposed leasing schedule. NREL produced another report in 2022 entitled
“U.S. Offshore Wind Workforce Assessment” estimating future workforce needs of between 15,000 and

58,000 full-time employees per year nationally for direct and indirect offshore wind jobs spanning from
2024 to 2030, depending on domestic content requirements. A five-year leasing schedule will assist with
planning these future job and workforce opportunities in an equitable and inclusive manner, and that
they can be efficiently sequenced across the country.

Additional Considerations and Recommendations for Leasing in the Final Rule:

e Inflation Reduction Act Requirements: As BOEM notes in the proposed rule, Section 50265 of the
Inflation Reduction Act links the issuance of future offshore wind permits to continued oil and
gas leasing. Ocean Conservancy opposes new OCS oil and gas lease sales. BOEM should offer

“1d.



additional OCS oil and gas lease sale(s) only if it is absolutely necessary to facilitate a rapid,
responsible and just build-out of offshore wind capacity. If BOEM offers additional offshore oil
and gas leases as a means to facilitate offshore wind development, it should limit the number
and size of the oil and gas lease sales to the minimum necessary under the terms of Sec. 50265.

VI. Lease Issuance Procedures: Multifactor Bidding

BOEM'’s rulemaking would continue to allow multiple-factor auctions that would allow consideration of
various priorities. Current regulations allow BOEM to use multifactor bidding to determine the winner of
auctions for OCS renewable energy leases. We support the use of multifactor bidding that seeks to
advance workforce training, supply chain development, community benefit agreements, and avoiding or
minimizing impacts to the marine environment. Under the proposed draft rule BOEM may take into
account one or more non-monetary factors. These include:

“(1) power purchase agreements; (2) eligibility for, or applicability of, renewable energy credits
or subsidies; (3) development agreements by a potential lessee that facilitate shared
transmission solutions and grid interconnection; (4) technical merit, timeliness, financing and
economics, environmental considerations, public benefits, or compatibility with State and local
needs; (5) agreements or commitments by the developer that would facilitate OCS renewable
energy development or other OCS Lands Act goals; or (6) any other factor or criteria to further
development of offshore renewable energy in a sustainable and environmentally sound manner,
as identified by BOEM in the PSN and FSN.”

Ocean Conservancy supports multifactor bidding being included in the final rule. BOEM should further
promote creditable stakeholder agreements as a means of avoiding conflicts, especially those that seek
to avoid conflicts, improve coordination in project approvals, recognize the value of developer
engagement with Tribes, communities, and stakeholders, and those that prioritize data sharing, local
needs, regional scale conservation, and/or the adoption of technological solutions that address wildlife
impacts.

BOEM should explore additional multifactor bidding credits to advance community investment, support
for domestic content, or investment in environmental research and monitoring that reduce critical
uncertainties or advance ocean and coastal conservation objectives.

Moving forward BOEM should revise its leasing process to provide a competitive advantage to those
project proponents that demonstrate their commitment to collaboration and conflict resolution with
governments and ocean-user groups early in the permitting process. BOEM should give greater credit to
binding agreements in advance of lease auction over promises to develop agreements based on an
awarded lease. To incentivize this stakeholder engagement, we recommend BOEM establish specific
criteria, and a facilitated process with communities and/or community groups that manages what could
otherwise be a heavy burden of engagement with multiple bidders, for attaining bidding credits. These
include agreements to consult with relevant labor unions, ocean user groups, community groups, and
industry representatives to ensure use of the bidding credit results in high-quality job creation and



accessible pathways to family-sustaining careers, minimize negative impacts to existing marine
economic activities such as fishing, and advance equity, civil rights, racial justice, and equal opportunity
goals of the federal government.

VII. Risk Management and Financial Assurance

Proposed revisions to decommissioning regulations that allow staged funding of decommissioning
accounts would facilitate a rapid deployment of offshore wind facilities by removing some of the upfront
burden on leaseholders. BOEM highlights important differences between offshore wind facilities and
conventional offshore oil and gas facilities, noting that offshore wind facilities are more predictable in
terms of production and revenue. BOEM also contends risks associated with this staged approach are
minimal when the agency retains the option to require full funding of a decommissioning account in
high-risk cases, when the industry has a demonstrated track record of solvency in other regions, and
when an insolvent lessee would likely be able to transfer functional assets to a different solvent
operator. Ocean Conservancy agrees with these assessments and supports the staged-funding
approach. That said, BOEM should monitor this approach carefully to ensure these assumptions hold
true and to ensure risks to taxpayers remain low. In all cases, BOEM must ensure that lessees fully fund
their decommissioning accounts in advance of the initiation of the decommission phase of the project.

VIII. Support for other Proposed Rule Changes

a. Certified Verification Agents:
Ocean Conservancy supports Certified Verification Agent review into the design and permitting

process to encourage safety and best engineering practices as well as efforts to further strengthen
safety within this process.

b. Civil Penalties:
Ocean Conservancy supports BOEM’s proposal to add a new paragraph (f)(2) to Section 585.400

that would explicitly authorize the agency to assess civil penalties for violations that “may
constitute, or constituted, a threat of serious, irreparable, orimmediate harm or damage to life
(including fish and other aquatic life), property, or the marine, coastal or human environment.”

IX. Considerations for Final Rulemaking Related to Offshore Renewable Energy

Ocean Conservancy encourages BOEM to address a number of additional issues in the final rulemaking.
Identification of Wind Energy Areas

Comprehensive planning ahead of the identification of Wind Energy Areas will be critical for offshore
wind to be successful in the long-term. Conflicts with fisheries, maritime interests, defense, cultural

areas, and conservation can be greatly reduced ahead of future Wind Energy Area identification. BOEM
should formally seek government-to-government consultations with Tribal sovereigns and should use



the regional ocean planning process to ensure informed siting decisions that balance the needs of
states, federal agency missions and objectives, ocean users, Tribal governments, communities, and the
Fishery Management Councils. Regional ocean planning and offshore renewable energy have largely
undergone separate processes until this point. We encourage BOEM to advance regional-scale planning
to identify and address Wind Energy Area conflicts upfront ahead of future lease sales and with those
Wind Energy Areas in various development stages to ensure the 30 GW by 2030 goal is met.

Coordination Framework

BOEM leadership to guide government and public coordination prior to required public comment
periods would create efficiencies that would benefit all participants in the environmental review and
authorization processes. For each Wind Energy Area, BOEM should identify the federal and state
agencies, Tribal governments, underserved communities, scientists, ocean users, and other stakeholders
that have a leading role to play in the permitting process. That list of recognized groups, including those
from ports and maritime interests, commercial and recreational fishing, conservation groups, historic
and cultural preservation groups, community leaders, and other non-governmental organizations, can
serve as the basis for the outreach by prospective bidders to develop an agreement for coordination of
environmental review and authorization processes. The core of any list would be BOEM’s
Intergovernmental Renewable Energy Task Forces, which are made up of representatives from federal,
state(s), and local agencies and Tribal governments. However, the list should be broadened to include
ocean users, communities, and other interests that have a stake in the planning process and will play an
important role in the siting, alternatives analysis, mitigation, and monitoring of offshore wind
development in the area under consideration.

A BOEM coordination framework can provide prospective developers and users with an efficient means
of establishing a well-defined relationship that is recognized by BOEM, commits the parties

to no more than efficient coordination in the event that the lease is awarded to the developer and
avoids the inefficiencies of identifying and negotiating with individual user groups. State, federal, Tribal,
and local governments with jurisdiction over aspects of the proposed development should use a
coordination agreement to identify terms and conditions for their authorization of the proposal,
including applicable legal standards, information needs, and specific commitments for timely
communications.

At the site assessment stage, this type of coordination framework established before the lease sale
would provide value by helping solidify working relationships that will be needed in formal scoping for
the COP Environmental Impact Statement (EIS). Early involvement in the data collection at the site
assessment stage can ensure that information needed for the COP EIS and related authorization
requirements have been addressed early and efficiently.



Cumulative Effects

While the scope of review for cumulative effects varies from law to law, on the federal side, cumulative
effects must be considered under NEPA, the ESA, and the MMPA. Thus, the approach used for
cumulative effects analysis should be useful for multiple purposes. The current approach looks at
cumulative effects for each project as it goes forward through permitting.

An alternative to the current approach would use regional ocean planning to develop a comprehensive,
stand-alone analysis of cumulative effects for all the proposed and anticipated projects within a defined
region. Such a review could take the form of a programmatic NEPA document, in support of specific
program-level decisions to restore and protect healthy ecosystems, or even a stand-alone impact
analysis that can be incorporated by reference in subsequent NEPA analyses but is not itself a decision
document that must be analyzed in an EA or EIS. This approach would be particularly appropriate in
areas that lack a substantial continental shelf, including the Gulf of Maine and Pacific, where the
deployment of floating wind power technology presents potential impacts and analysis of alternatives
that differ from previous experience. Preparing such a report would have the advantage of presenting a
single source of information and analysis that looks at the ecosystem-wide effects of multiple projects
occurring at essentially the same time within the same region. As needed, unique factors associated
with individual projects could then be considered in each site-specific EIS. While preparing such a report
would need to have a clear relationship to ongoing individual project reviews, it could save considerable
time in subsequent environmental impact reviews for individual projects and provide improved
information over what could be developed on a project-by-project basis. This trade-off of time
investment upfront is worthwhile from the perspective of a national offshore wind program that seeks
to authorize numerous projects while balancing environmental and biodiversity needs throughout a vast
area of U.S. offshore waters. This programmatic approach would also identify areas with the least
environmental impact while also providing greater transparency in the selection process.

Transmission

BOEM is soliciting comments on regulatory changes that could minimize impacts from, and maximize
the utility of, interconnection and transmission. (FR notice Part L). We urge BOEM to address
transmission planning in the final rulemaking and appreciate the inclusion of more comprehensive
transmission planning as part of the multifactor bidding section. Achieving public policy targets for
offshore wind capacity will require significant investment in electric transmission infrastructure. While
there are proven technological solutions for interconnecting offshore power generation to the onshore
grid, planning and executing transmission strategies entails unique challenges compared to siting
transmission lines onshore. Transmission infrastructure will impact the ocean environment as well as
the coastal environment where an interconnection line makes landfall and reaches the broader power
grid. Enhanced coordination and planning will improve opportunities for shared transmission
infrastructure, reducing the number of shore connections and associated environmental impacts
ultimately leading to maximizing our decarbonization potential. Through its rulemaking, BOEM should
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work to enhance the transmission planning process for offshore wind with improved environmental
outcomes at the siting stage.

As the pace of offshore wind power development has shown, a foundational problem not addressed by
the current planning and permitting process has been the lack of any connection in the BOEM
regulations to the transmission planning processes of the regional transmission organizations that
manage the electric grid. BOEM should revise its planning processes to identify specific contributions
from the Department of Energy, Federal Energy Regulation Commission, and Regional Transmission
Office/Independent System Operators as an integral part of the planning and authorization process.
Because offshore wind power will never be developed if it lacks a transmission system with the capacity
to manage this new source of power generation, the managers of the nation’s electric grid cannot be
included in environmental review and authorization processes as just another “agency with jurisdiction.”

BOEM should actively promote transmission planning in cooperation with the authorities that will
ultimately determine what power sources are added to the grid and at what rate.> Where development
of a backbone transmission system encounters financing impediments, BOEM could provide for flexible
terms, based on examples in oil and gas leasing terms (“so long as producing in __ quantities”) to
support financing, particularly transmission financing for High Voltage Direct Current lines that have
planning/environmental benefits that project-specific transmission financing cannot capture. BOEM
should also eliminate the distinction in its regulations between rights of way for generation transmission
and rights of use and easement for other transmission lines, as they are environmentally
indistinguishable, and both provide for construction of transmission lines.

As BOEM further advances transmission planning and offshore wind, it should consider lease
stipulations and other financial incentives to drive the shared use of cable corridors or other shared
transmission solutions, such as regional transmission systems, meshed systems, and the development of
an offshore grid. These more technical and innovative approaches likely have less environmental and
ocean user impacts leading to better outcomes for the marine environment. BOEM should use its
regulations to advance solutions that address environmental, cultural, and ocean use impacts where at
all possible.

5 One of the initiatives identified in DOE’s January 2022 Offshore Wind Strategies Report is to comprehensively
plan staged development of integrated transmission infrastructure and reduce transmission congestion. To
implement that initiative, DOE recommends “conven[ing] collaboration among FERC, DOE, RTOs/ISOs, utilities,
BOEM, states, industry, and other participants to plan long-term grid upgrades inclusive of prospective future
offshore wind projects, and to refine cost allocation to incentivize long-term coordinated transmission planning
across multiple projects.” Offshore Wind Strategies Report, Dept. of Energy (Jan. 12, 2022).
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Definition of Reasonable Uses of the EEZ

We encourage BOEM to use the final rule to resolve competing interpretations of OCSLA section 8(p) by
defining the agency’s approach to determining reasonable uses of the U.S. Exclusive Economic Zone and
the resolution of competing uses.

An update could resolve conflicting interpretations of subsection 8(p)(4)(l) of OCSLA, which requires
“prevention of interference with reasonable uses (as determined by the Secretary of the DOI) of the
exclusive economic zone, the high seas, and the territorial seas” to codify the current opinion of the
Solicitor’s Office (M-37067)18 regarding the Secretary of the DOI’s broad discretion in implementing this
authority.

In this respect, the BOEM regulations could support environmental collaboration and conflict resolution.
Such an approach would not only respond to public comment on draft decision documents but also
proactively manage known conflicts. Where warranted, the regulations should support the use of
mediation/conflict resolution including the use of third-party neutrals to balance competing ocean uses
and promote the conservation of ecosystems and biodiversity. Environmental Collaboration and Conflict
Resolution has been demonstrated to reduce the time and expense of decision-making processes, the
likelihood of litigation, and the issues in litigation.

We thank BOEM for the opportunity to provide comments on the Draft Renewable Energy
Modernization Rule in order to facilitate the rapid, responsible and just development of offshore wind.
Ocean Conservancy encourages BOEM to issue the final rule before 2023 ends in order to provide
certainty for all stakeholders and communities interested in offshore wind development. We look
forward to continuing to work with BOEM, and to hearing any updates offered to the public as well as
any additional engagement opportunities.

Sincerely,

Anna-Marie Laura
Senior Director, Climate Policy
Ocean Conservancy
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October 6, 2022

Ms. Kelly Hammerle

Chief, National OCS Oil and Gas Leasing Program
Development and Coordination Branch, Leasing Division
Office of Strategic Resources

Bureau of Ocean Energy Management

45600 Woodland Road

Sterling, VA 20166— 9216

Submitted via Federal eRulemaking Portal at https://www.regulations.gov.

Re: Docket No. BOEM-2022-0031, 2023—-2028 National Outer Continental Shelf Oil and Gas Leasing
Proposed Program and Draft Programmatic Environmental Impact Statement

Ms. Hammerle:

Ocean Conservancy® submits the following comments in response to the Bureau of Ocean Energy
Management’s (BOEM) notice of availability of the 2023—2028 National Outer Continental Shelf (OCS)
Oil and Gas Leasing Proposed Program and Draft Programmatic Environmental Impact Statement
(DPEIS) for the 2023-2028 Program.?

Oil and gas exploration, development and production on the OCS contribute to the global climate crisis
that threatens people, public health, the environment and the economy.? OCS oil and gas operations
create the risk of catastrophic oil spills that jeopardize marine and coastal ecosystems and the
communities and people who rely on them. Everyday operation of fossil fuel facilities—including
production platforms, transportation networks, refineries and coastal petrochemical plants—pollutes
the air and water, threatening human health and impacting communities. There is no place for
additional offshore drilling in a clean energy future. BOEM should select the No Action Alternative and
propose no new OCS oil and gas leases in the 2023-2028 National Program.

If BOEM opts to include any oil and gas lease sales in 2023-2028 National Leasing Program, those lease
sales should be the minimum required to sustain build-out of responsibly sited offshore wind facilities

1 Ocean Conservancy is a nonprofit marine conservation organization based in Washington, D.C. with regional
offices across the United States. Ocean Conservancy envisions a healthier ocean, protected by a more just world
and works to protect the ocean from today’s greatest global challenges. We create knowledge-based solutions for
a healthy ocean and the wildlife and communities that depend on it.

2 Bureau of Ocean Energy Management, Docket No. BOEM-2022-0031, National Outer Continental Shelf Oil and
Gas Leasing Proposed Program and Draft Programmatic Environmental Impact Statement, 87 Fed. Fed 40,859,
40,859-63 (July 8, 2022).

3 President Biden, Executive Order 14008: Tackling the Climate Crisis at Home and Abroad, Jan. 27, 2021.
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pursuant to section 50265 of the Inflation Reduction Act of 2022.* Any new oil and gas lease(s) should be
subject to the highest possible environmental protection standards, address long-standing
environmental justice concerns in the Gulf of Mexico and ensure that lessees are fully accountable for all
impacts, including impacts to climate, public health, ecosystem health, cultural heritage and economic
well-being. Under no circumstances should the 2023-2028 Leasing Program include proposed Lease Sale
267 in Alaska’s Cook Inlet.

I.  The 2023-2028 National Program Should Include No New QOil and Gas Lease Sales

Emissions from producing and burning oil and gas are driving the climate crisis and ocean acidification.
The continued viability of our ocean and our planet depends on reducing greenhouse gas emissions.
Scheduling additional OCS oil and gas leases contradicts President Biden’s climate commitments and
would prolong the adverse climate and environmental impacts of offshore drilling for decades.® BOEM
should adopt Alternative A, the No Action Alternative, and the 20232028 National OCS Leasing
Program should include no new oil and gas lease sales.

According to the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change, “human influence has warmed the
climate at a rate that is unprecedented in at least the last 2000 years.”® Sea levels are rising, Arctic ice
extent is diminishing, marine heat-waves are increasing and major cyclones are becoming more
frequent.’ Climate-related changes are having profound impacts on coastal communities and marine
wildlife, including species that support commercial fisheries.2 Warming will continue until at least mid-
century, and without rapid and “deep reductions in CO, and other greenhouse gas emissions” it will
exceed 2°C by the end of the century.®

President Biden called this situation a “profound climate crisis”*® and called on federal agencies to take
rapid and sweeping action and to do their utmost “to avoid the most catastrophic impacts” of climate
change.! President Biden’s Executive Order 13990 declares that it is the policy of the United States to
reduce greenhouse gas emissions and bolster resilience to the impacts of climate change.'? Executive
Order 14008 instructs federal agencies to use their “full capacity . .. to combat the climate crisis” and to
take an approach to governance “that reduces climate pollution” and “increases resilience to the

4 Inflation Reduction Act of 2022, Pub. L . No. 117-169, § 50265. Section 50265 prohibits BOEM from issuing leases
for offshore wind development unless the agency has offered at least 60 million acres of the OCS for oil and gas
leasing in the previous year.

5 See, e.g., BOEM, Draft Programmatic Environmental Impact Statement for 2023-2028 National OCS Oil and Gas
Leasing Program at 13 (hereinafter DPEIS) (noting that lease sales proposed for the Central and Western Gulf of
Mexico “would prolong the significant impacts that already exist” in the region. Id. at 19 (noting the OCS leasing
program would have a 40-70 year time horizon).

8 PCC, 2021: Summary for Policymakers. In: Climate Change 2021: The Physical Science Basis. Contribution of
Working Group | to the Sixth Assessment Report of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change, p. 7. Available
at https://www.ipcc.ch/report/ar6/wgl/downloads/report/IPCC AR6 WGI SPM.pdf.

"Id. at 9-11.

8 See, e.g., Megan Williams et al., The heat is on: Gulf of Alaska Pacific cod and climate-ready fisheries, ICES J. of
Marine Science (March 2021) (describing how a marine heatwave led to a decline in Pacific cod and subsequent
closure of a federal fishery in the Gulf of Alaska).

% |PCC, 2021, supra note 6, at 17.

10 president Biden, Executive Order 14008: Tackling the Climate Crisis at Home and Abroad, Jan. 27, 2021.

1.

12 Executive Order 13990 of January 20, 2021, Protecting Public Health and the Environment and Restoring Science
to Tackle the Climate Crisis, 86 Fed. Reg. 7037, 7037 (Jan. 25, 2021).
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impacts of climate change.” It further notes that “bold, progressive action” is needed to combat the
climate crisis.* Given the climate crisis and President Biden’s executive orders directing federal agencies
to combat the climate crisis, BOEM is obligated to adopt a 20232028 National Program that includes no
new oil and gas lease sales.

II. If the 2023-2028 National Program Includes New OCS Lease Sales, They Should Be the
Minimum Necessary to Support Issuance of New Offshore Wind Leases.

The Inflation Reduction Act of 2022 recently became law.® This legislation represents the biggest
investment in climate solutions in U.S. history, and includes provisions intended to incentivize and
accelerate the transition away from fossil fuels toward renewable forms of energy.

However, the Inflation Reduction Act also includes provisions that prop up the fossil fuel industry and
sustain unjust conditions in which communities along the Gulf of Mexico continue to be sacrifice zones
where human and environmental health are deemed less valuable than energy production and profits
for fossil fuel companies. One problematic section of the Inflation Reduction Act makes new offshore
renewable energy development contingent upon continued offshore oil and gas leasing. Specifically,
section 50265 prohibits BOEM from issuing leases for offshore wind development unless the agency has
offered at least 60 million acres of the OCS for oil and gas leasing in the previous year.'®

Congress should reconsider and repeal section 50265. In the meantime, if BOEM opts to include
offshore oil and gas lease sales in the 2023-2028 National Leasing Program, those lease sales should be
the minimum required to sustain build-out of responsibly sited offshore wind facilities under section
50265.1" For instance, in the year before the issuance of offshore wind leases, the total of acreage of
new oil and gas lease sale(s) should be no larger than 60 million acres in size—the minimum threshold
necessary to enable new offshore wind leases. If BOEM includes one or more lease sales in the 2023—
2028 National Program, those sales should be necessary to support continued build-out of offshore wind
development. Under no circumstances should BOEM schedule a new offshore oil and gas lease sale if
that sale is not required to enable the issuance of additional offshore wind leases.*®

13 Executive Order 14008 of January 27, 2021, Tackling the Climate Crisis at Home and Abroad, 86 Fed. Reg. 7619,
7622 (Feb. 1, 2021).

¥1d.

15 Inflation Reduction Act of 2022, Pub. L . No. 117-169.

161d. § 50265.

171d. Section 50265 prohibits BOEM from issuing leases for offshore wind development unless the agency has
offered at least 60 million acres of the OCS for oil and gas leasing in the previous year.

18 The Inflation Reduction Act requires BOEM to hold oil and gas lease sale 261 in the Gulf of Mexico no later than
September 30, 2023. Inflation Reduction Act of 2022, Pub. L. 117-169 8 50264(e). Assuming BOEM holds an oil and
gas lease sale that offers at least 60 million acres on September 30, 2023, the agency would be able to issue new
offshore wind leases through September 30, 2024. 1d. § 50265 (providing BOEM may offer new offshore wind
leases so long as it has offered at least 60 million acres of OCS lands for oil and gas within the previous year).
Because new offshore wind leases would be authorized until September 30, 2024, there is no reason for the 2023—
2028 National Program to schedule any new OCS oil and gas lease sale before September 30, 2024.



If Congress repeals or modifies section 50265 of the Inflation Reduction Act such that issuance of
offshore wind leases is no longer contingent upon new OCS oil and gas lease sales, the Secretary of the
Interior should exercise her discretion not to go forward with any new OCS oil and gas lease sales that
might be included in the final version of the 2023-2028 National Program. Moreover, if the 2023-2028
National Program includes one or more OCS oil and gas lease sales, and if section 50265 is repealed or
modified such that issuance of offshore wind leases is no longer contingent upon offshore oil and gas
lease sales, BOEM should develop and publish a new National Program that includes no new oil and gas
lease sales.

Il If the 2023-2028 National Program Includes New Lease Sales, Lessees Should be Held to the
Highest Standards.

If the 2023-2028 National Program includes one or more oil and gas lease sales, BOEM should do
everything in its power to enact and enforce the highest possible standards on potential lessees,
including addressing long-standing environmental justice concerns in the Gulf of Mexico and ensuring
lessees are fully accountable for impacts related to their operations on the OCS, including impacts to
climate, ocean acidification, coastal and marine environments, and human and community health.

The Inflation Reduction Act contains some provisions that impose higher fees on OCS operators. These
provisions make modest shifts toward providing a better rate of return for taxpayers and imposing
additional costs on operators for climate-related impacts. For instance, the Act raises the minimum oil
and gas royalty rate for certain offshore leases from 12.5% to 16.67%.° It also expands the existing gas
production royalties to include gas used or “lost by venting, flaring, or negligent releases through any
equipment during upstream operations.” While these legislative changes are welcome improvements,
BOEM can and should use its discretion under the OCS Lands Act®! to enact more sweeping regulatory
and policy changes that ensure OCS oil and gas lessees and operators pay their fair share and are held
accountable for their impacts to the environment and communities.

Environmental justice should be at the forefront of BOEM’s considerations. BOEM’s DPEIS notes that
“people living adjacent to Western and Central GOM Planning Areas have experienced OCS oil and gas
activity for nearly three-quarters of a century.”?2 BOEM should change regulations, policies and practices
to acknowledge and remedy longstanding environmental justice concerns—especially in the Gulf of
Mexico. For too long, low-income and communities of color in the Gulf have borne the brunt of impacts
from oil and gas development, refineries and petrochemical processing plants. BOEM should clarify and
improve its implementation of the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA)? and related mandates to
better consider and address environmental justice concerns. BOEM should also finalize its
methodologies and best practices related to environmental justice so it that it can better assess impacts
to historically marginalized communities.?*

19 Inflation Reduction Act of 2022, Pub. L. 117-169, § 50261.

20 |d. § 50263.

21 OCS Lands Act, 43 U.S.C. 88 1331 et seq.

22 DPEIS at 13.

2342 U.S.C. § 4321 et seq.

24 See DPEIS at 63 (noting “BOEM is currently developing methodologies and best practices to improve upon
current methods used to assess impacts to vulnerable communities.”).
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Overall, BOEM should revise its regulations and policies to prioritize healthy, productive ocean
ecosystems. The OCS Lands Act requires environmental safeguards.?® BOEM regulations should
underscore the primacy of ocean health and ensure that any extraction of mineral resources does not
create significant risks to marine and coastal environments.

Following the lead of the Inflation Reduction Act, BOEM should undertake regulatory processes to
update its rent and royalty provisions to better account for externalities, including climate change,
ocean acidification and other pollution impacts. Similarly, the agency should modernize regulations
governing five-year planning so they more effectively describe factors to be considered under OCS Lands
Act section 18(a)(2) and provide direction for the “balancing” under section 18(a)(3).2° Updated
regulations should also require BOEM to account for option value in the planning process, ensure it has
access to adequate baseline ecosystem information before including areas in a five-year program,
identify important marine areas, and recognize explicitly that exploration and development carries
different risks in different regions (e.g., oil spills behave differently and may present more risks in cold
waters). BOEM should also impose regulations or lease stipulations that require operators to
demonstrate their ability to effectively remove oil from marine and coastal environments in the event of
a worst-case discharge.

Updated regulations can also clarify NEPA requirements for each stage of the OCS Lands Act process and
identify appropriate uses of tiering and categorical exclusions. Regulatory changes can also better define
cumulative impacts analyses, require analysis of low-probability/high-risk events and ensure
environmental assessments are subject to meaningful public review and comment. Regulatory changes
can also promote transparency by requiring Interior Department agencies to post—on a public website
and in a timely manner—non-privileged information on exploration, permitting, inspections, monitoring
and enforcement. Regulations can also ensure information on OCS incidents and near-misses is available
to the public. BOEM can also use lease stipulations to advance information- and data-sharing. For
instance, the agency should develop a stipulation that requires lessees to share publicly non-proprietary
biological and oceanographic data.

If BOEM offers one or more OCS oil and gas leases in the 2023-2028 National Program, the agency
should make full use of its discretion to change regulations, policies and practices to ensure that lessees
pay for the significant health, social, climate and environmental costs they impose on coastal
communities and society.

IV. Under No Circumstances Should the 2023-2028 Program Include a New Lease Sale in Alaska’s
Cook Inlet.

If BOEM opts to include one or more oil and gas lease sales in the 2023-2028 National Program,
proposed Lease Sale 267 in Cook Inlet should not be among them. Federal waters of Cook Inlet are
relatively small in geographic extent, and a Cook Inlet oil and gas lease sale would not contribute
significantly to the 60-million-acre threshold—established under section 50265 of the Inflation
Reduction Act—that is required for BOEM to issue offshore wind leases. An oil and gas lease sale in Cook
Inlet would, however, have significant impacts. BOEM’s DPEIS concludes that oil and gas activities

25 0OCS Lands Act, 43 U.S.C. § 1332 (noting development of the OCS is “subject to environmental safeguards”).
26 1d. § 1344(a)(2) and (a)(3).



resulting from a Cook Inlet Lease Sale “would introduce new significant impacts.”?’ These impacts could
adversely affect wildlife—including birds, marine mammals and fish—as well as subsistence, commercial
and recreational fisheries. BOEM should abandon proposed Lease Sale 267.

V. BOEM'’s Five-Year Program and Other Work Should Support and Accelerate a Rapid, Just and
Equitable Transition Away from Fossil Fuels and Toward Renewable Sources of Energy.

This administration has recognized the “urgent need to tackle the climate crisis.”?® Doing so will require
arapid, just, and equitable transition away from fossil fuels and toward renewable energy sources. This
transition is needed to prevent catastrophic impacts from climate change and ocean acidification and to
ensure the continued vitality of coastal communities, Tribes and cultures.

Although such a transition cannot happen overnight, it must begin now. As steward of public lands and
waters, BOEM has a critical role in advancing a just transition. BOEM should start by adopting the No
Action Alternative for the 2023-2028 National Program. If BOEM proceeds with a Proposed Final
Program that includes one or more leases, it should take aggressive action to ensure that its regulations,
policies, and guidance require lessees to address environmental justice impacts, adhere to strict
environmental standards and pay their fair share for the costs OCS oil and gas activities impose on
coastal communities, society and our environment.

In transitioning away from fossil fuels, BOEM must ensure agency decision-making processes properly
account for all climate, ocean acidification, ecosystem, community and other impacts from oil and gas
activities. The agency must consider impacts from extraction and combustion of fossil fuels, as well as
the production and use of petrochemicals, which are derived from oil and gas. The production and
consumption of plastic, in particular, has substantial climate change impacts and results in pollution
causing other air, water, and health effects.

As noted above, BOEM must also account for the oil and gas industry’s disproportionate impacts to
disadvantaged communities and communities of color. As part of this process, it must provide support,
including funding and training, to enable a sustainable economic transition for individuals and
communities. In addition, BOEM must explicitly recognize Tribal sovereignty and find ways to work
collaboratively with Indigenous people, coastal communities, and others. Inclusion and meaningful
partnership, including recognizing Indigenous Knowledge as equal to western science, are vital to a fair
and just transition.

With its recent work on offshore wind, BOEM has started on a path toward a clean energy future. The
agency should continue to advance the Biden administration’s ambitious goal of achieving 30 gigawatts
of offshore wind by 2030—more than 700 times the amount of energy currently produced by offshore
wind in the United States. Responsible build-out of offshore wind is a critical part of our transition from
harmful fossil fuels toward a clean energy economy.

In addition to playing a key role in our response to climate change and ocean acidification, development
of offshore wind energy can reduce air and water pollution and support thousands of well-paying jobs.

2T DPEIS at 13.

28 See, e.g., U.S. Department of the Interior Press Release, “Secretary Haaland Delivers Remarks at Interior’s Public
Forum on the Federal Oil and Gas Program,” March 25, 2021 (noting Secretary of the Interior Halland’s remarks
emphasized the “urgent need to tackle the climate crisis”).
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For these and other reasons, the administration should continue to advance its broad goal of
accelerating offshore wind energy. To foster long-term success, BOEM must ensure all U.S. offshore
wind projects are responsibly sited, developed, operated and decommissioned.

As part of the transition to a clean energy future, BOEM’s offshore wind leases should include
stipulations and other innovative approaches that will direct benefits to underserved communities.
Without proactive efforts to ensure the benefits of clean energy infrastructure development accrue to
the most vulnerable communities, BOEM'’s offshore wind leasing efforts risk reinforcing pre-existing
social inequities and perpetuating inequitable outcomes for the same communities that have been most
heavily burdened by the costs of climate change and dirty energy.

Conclusion

To comply with the policies and priorities issued by President Biden and his administration to address
the climate crisis, BOEM should select the No Action Alternative and proposed no OCS oil and gas leases
in the 2023-2028 National Program. If BOEM opts to include any oil and gas lease sales in 2023-2028
National Leasing Program, those lease sales should be kept to the minimum required to sustain build-
out of responsibly sited offshore wind facilities pursuant to section 50265 of the Inflation Reduction Act
of 2022.% Any new oil and gas lease(s) should be subject to the highest possible environmental
protection standards, address long-standing environmental justice concerns in the Gulf of Mexico and
ensure that lessees are fully accountable for all impacts. Under no circumstances should the 2023-2028
Leasing Program include proposed Lease Sale 267 in Alaska’s Cook Inlet.

Respectfully,

Andrew Hartsig
Senior Director, Arctic Program
Ocean Conservancy

2 |nflation Reduction Act of 2022, Pub. L . No. 117-169, § 50265.
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From: "Eng, Lissa M" <Lissa.Eng@boem.gov>

To: "Lefton, Amanda B" <Amanda.Lefton@boem.gov>, "Knodel, Marissa S"
<Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>, "Moriarty, Tracey B" <Tracey.Moriarty@boem.gov>, "Gillette,
Connie S" <Connie.Gillette@boem.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: LCV Statement on New Offshore Wind Call Areas Announcement
Date: Wed, 27 Apr 2022 16:57:05 +0000

Thanks Marissa!

From: Lefton, Amanda B <Amanda.Lefton@boem.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, April 27, 2022 12:45:10 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>; Moriarty, Tracey B <Tracey.Moriarty@boem.gov>; Gillette, Connie
S <Connie.Gillette@boem.gov>; Eng, Lissa M <Lissa.Eng@boem.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: LCV Statement on New Offshore Wind Call Areas Announcement

Nice work

Get Outlook for iOS

From: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, April 27, 2022 12:44:09 PM

To: Lefton, Amanda B <Amanda.Lefton@boem.gov>; Moriarty, Tracey B <Tracey.Moriarty@boem.gov>; Gillette, Connie
S <Connie.Gillette@boem.gov>; Eng, Lissa M <Lissa.Eng@boem.gov>

Subject: Fw: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: LCV Statement on New Offshore Wind Call Areas Announcement

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: David Shadburn <dshadburn@I|cv.org>

Sent: Wednesday, April 27,2022 12:15 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: LCV Statement on New Offshore Wind Call Areas Announcement

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Making sure this gets to you! Big thanks to you, Director Lefton, and Secretary Haaland!
-David

Get Outlook for Android




From: Courtnee Connon <cconnon@]Icv.org>

Sent: Wednesday, April 27, 2022 12:11:42 PM

To: Courtnee Connon <cconnon@]Icv.org>

Subject: LCV Statement on New Offshore Wind Call Areas Announcement

https://www.lcv.org/article/Icv-statement-on-new-offshore-wind-call-areas-announcement/

For Imnmediate Release
April 27, 2022
Contact: Courtnee Connon, courtnee_connon@]lcv.org, 727-744-4163

LCV Statement on New Offshore Wind Call Areas Announcement

Washington, D.C. — The League of Conservation Voters (LCV) issued the following statement from Government
Affairs Advocate David Shadburn on today’s offshore wind announcements from Bureau of Ocean Energy
Management (BOEM) director Amanda Lefton:

“We are thrilled to see the Biden-Harris Administration continue to make aggressive moves toward achieving its
goal of deploying 30 gigawatts of offshore wind by 2030. These initial steps to leasing more than 5 million new
acres of offshore wind areas off the Central Atlantic and Oregon coasts will create good paying jobs up and
down the U.S. clean energy supply chain all while tackling the climate crisis. Thank you to BOEM Director
Amanda Lefton for prioritizing these deployment goals; we look forward to working with the administration to
accelerate the transition to clean energy independence.”

HHH#



From: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
To: Dustin Renaud <dustin@healthygulf.org>
Cc: Michelle Myers <MMyers@biologicaldiversity.org>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] RE: Gratitude
Date: Wed, 21 Apr 2021 17:01:47 +0000

Thanks, Dustin. | will absolutely convey that gratitude to Director Lefton. She told me she was truly honored to
join.

| know the process of building working relationships, if not trust, with the federal government will take time
and healing. That said, | share the hope and conviction that yesterday was just the first of many conversations
that will involve not just listening but actions that make a positive difference for Gulf communities.

Peace and SOLIDARITY,

Marissa Knodel

Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Dustin Renaud <dustin@healthygulf.org>

Sent: Wednesday, April 21, 2021 12:39 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Cc: Michelle Myers <MMyers@biologicaldiversity.org>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] RE: Gratitude

Marissa,
Thank you from the bottom of my heart for showing up when Gulf communities called on you. Send my utmost
respect and thanks to Director Lefton as well.

I hope we were able to provide you with a panel of folks with a wide range of backgrounds who adequately
represent Gulf communities. It feels like we have been beholden to oil for so long in the Gulf that it is sometimes
difficult to feel like we're being heard, and more importantly, listened to by the folks who are making decisions
that affect us. I've heard from several panelists that they were really impressed that BOEM would even show

up, much less speak and take questions. We know you can't do everything, but we do expect you to do
something.

Let's continue this conversation...
In solidarity,

Dustin

On Wed, Apr 21, 2021 at 10:44 AM Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov> wrote:
Thanks, Michelle. A compilation of the panelist contacts would be very helpful.




| believe | addressed all the questions directed towards BOEM in the Q&A box There were several specific for
BSEE that | wrote down, but am not sure how to follow up with those specific individuals (they weren't
panelists)

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202 538 2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Michelle Myers <MMyers@biologicaldiversity.org>

Sent: Wednesday, April 21, 2021 11 40 AM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>; dustin@healthygulf.org <dustin@healthygulf.org>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE Gratitude

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Also, because of time constraints we only got to a fraction of the questions from the Q &A. It looked like you
were answering some in real time Did you all see them, or should I compile those as well?

From: Michelle Myers

Sent: Wednesday, April 21, 2021 11:39 AM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>; dustin@healthygulf.org
Subject: RE: Gratitude

Hi Marissa,

Thank you for attending and coordinating other agency staff to attend. Please send our appreciation to Ms.
Lefton as well, and apologize for the slight tech problem that occurred when she arrived at the forum.

I think it meant a lot for the Gulf residents that you all where there to witness yesterday. While showing up is a
great first step, ongoing engagement, as well as consideration of the health, ecologic and climate concerns is
really where the community needs to see the outcomes of this report. The cumulative impacts from the fossil
fuel industry in the region, while may not all fall directly in the purview of the federal leasing program, must
be considered as the program is in review.

Would it be helpful if I created a contact sheet of the panelists yesterday so that you have them for any follow
up you’d like to do?

I will also be sending along a video of the forum from last night once it is formatted.

Best Regards,
Michelle



From: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, April 20, 2021 6:13 PM

To: Michelle Myers <MMyers@biologicaldiversity.org>; dustin@healthygulf.org
Subject: Gratitude

Hey Michelle and Dustin,

Thank you for organizing such a powerful forum. Both the Director and I were honored to be part of it, and
hope it's just the first of many engagements with the Gulf community.

Feel free to share my e-mail with panelists or others if additional questions come up and I'll be happy to
respond.

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

| %
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Healthy Gulf Dustin Renaud

. Communications Director
ls#»  Healthy Gulf on

Facebook 504 525 1528 x214
= 228 209 2194 (Cell)
PO BOX 2245

New Orleans, LA 70176
Protect What You Love




From: "Hoskins, Diane" <Dhoskins@oceana.org>

To: "Lefton, Amanda B" <Amanda.Lefton@boem.gov>, "Knodel, Marissa S"
<Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Hands Across the Sand - website & Oceana events Saturday
Date: Thu, 19 May 2022 14:18:25 +0000
Attachments: Hands_Across The Sand Advisory 2022.pdf
Inline-Images: image001.png

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Hi Amanda and Marissa,
Writing to share the website for events happening all over the coasts this weekend. The media advisory is attached and
includes the list of key events. The national website is: https://handsacrossthesand.org/

Below you will find a list of Oceana’s primary events.
Thank you, Diane

FLORIDA

Event 1 — South Florida

e Location:
5th Street & Oceanfront, Miami Beach, FL 33139

e Time:11la.m.

e Sponsoring organizations: Oceana, Surfrider, Urban Paradise Guild

e VIPs invited, including members of Congress: Congresswoman Wasserman Schultz, Congresswoman
Salazar, State Rep. Michael Grieco, State Senator Jason Pizzo, Miami Dade County Commissioner Eileen
Higgins, Miami Beach Commissioner David Richardson, Miami Dade County Chief Bay Officer Irela Bague,
Mayor of Miami Dade County Daniela Levine Cava, Miami Beach Mayor Dan Gelber, Jerry Libbin Miami
Beach Chamber of Commerce

Event 2 - FL Gulf Coast




e Location: 1700 Gulf Blvd, Indian Rocks Beach, FL 33785

e Time:11a.m.

e Sponsoring organizations: Oceana, Southern Alliance for Clean Energy, Sierra Club Florida, Friends of
the Earth, Suncoast Surfrider, Florida Conservation Voters

e VIPs invited, including members of Congress: Congressman Crist, Congresswoman Castor,
Congresswoman Demings (invited), Indian Rocks Beach Mayor Cookie Kennedy (confirmed)

Event 3 - NE Florida

e Location: Jacksonville Beach

e Time: 11:00

e Sponsoring organizations: Oceana, Surfrider Foundation

CALIFORNIA:

SoCal Event 1

e Location: Moonlight beach, Encinitas

e Time 9 00am 10 00am

e Sponsoring organizations: Oceana, Surfrider Foundation

e Confirmed speakers Congressman Mike Levin, Melissa Morris (Oceana), Alessandro Fraschetti and
Mark O’Connor (Surfrider)

e VIPs invited, including members of Congress: Mayor Blakespear (Encinitas), Assemblymember
Maienschein, Rob Machado (Pro Surfer), E2, BAPPC

SoCal Event 2



e Location: Huntington Beach State Beach

e Time: 10:00am

e Sponsoring organizations: Surfrider Foundation, Oceana, Business Alliance for Protecting the Pacific
Coast

e Confirmed speakers: Congresswoman Porter, Grant Bixby (biz leader), Lexi Hernandez (OC Climate
Equity Organizer and Advocate)

e VIPs invited, including members of Congress: Sen. David Min, ASM Petrie-Norris and a Huntington
Beach city council member

SoCal Event 3 (Melissa Morris helped organize/promoting)

e Location: Imperial Beach

e Time 9AM

e Sponsoring organizations: Oceana, Surfrider Foundation

GEORGIA:

Event

e Location: Tybee Beach Pier

e Time 11 00am

e Sponsoring organizations: Oceana, Surfrider Foundation, Keep Golden Isles Beautiful, Fight Dirty
Tybee, and Riverrat Productions

e Confirmed speakers: Tybee Mayor Shirley Session, Hermina Glass-Hill (Oceana), Kathryn Williams of
North Beach Bar & Grill (Business Owner)

e VIPs invited, including members of Congress: Sen. Jon Ossoff, Sen. Raphael Warnock, Congressman



Buddy Carter, State Sen. Ben Watson, State Rep. Al Williams, State Rep. Ron Stephens, State Rep. Carl
Gilliard, GA State Rep Derek Mallow

Diane Hoskins | Campaign Director

Protecting the
Gc EAN ".-'1.'5:.::' l!l.': O:J NS
1025 Connecticut Ave. NW, Suite 200
Washington, DC, 20036
D 202.467.1948 | € 301.672.0894
dhoskins@oceana.org | www.oceana.org




FOR PLANNING PURPOSES ONLY
May 20th, 2022
Press Contact: Abby Grehlinger, abbv@team-arc.com, (856) 340-6656

Event: 2022 Hands Across the Sand Day of Action
Activists Across the Globe Gather to Stand Against Offshore Drilling

Tomorrow, May 21st, Hands Across the Sand will hold its 12th annual event in which
participants will urge local, state and federal elected officials to permanently protect our coasts
from offshore drilling and adopt policies that encourage the growth of clean and renewable
energy that promotes new, well-paying jobs. Hands Across the Sand is an international day of
action on which activists and beachgoers alike draw a metaphorical line in the sand and create a
powerful visual statement against Big Oil.

WHAT: Local, national and international conservation groups and community activists are
organizing live events for the first time in two years, where they will stand together in silent
solidarity drawing lines in the sand against offshore drilling to raise awareness about the
dangers of dirty fuels and the need to accelerate the transition to clean energy solutions. Local
events will take place on May 21st.

WHO: Participants include: Oceana, Surfrider Foundation, Southern Alliance for Clean Energy,
Healthy Gulf, Bud and Alley’s, SoWal, Urban Paradise Guild, Save Greek Seas, Future Frogmen,
Natural Resources Defense Council, Earthjustice, Sierra Club and League of Conservation
Voters.

WHEN: Saturday, May 21st

WHERE:

Wrightsville Beach, North Carolina
Emerald Isle, North Carolina

Oak Island, North Carolina
Ocean View Avenue Norfolk Virginia

Strand Avenue, Tybee Island Georgia
1000 Bay Avenue, Columbus, Georgia

Stairwell 17 Ocean Beach, San Francisco, California
Newland Street, Huntington Beach, California

4th and 8th street Encinitas, California

Poplar Street Half Moon Bay, California

1228 Agate Street Pacific Beach San Diego, California
698 Ocean Lane Imperial Beach, California

Los Angeles, California

Waimanalo Beach Park Waimanalo Oahu, Hawaii
Kihei, Hawaii

Surf City, New Jersey




567th Street Shore Front Queens, New York
Southwick Beach Park Watertown, New York

5th Street and Ocean Miami, Florida
Satellite Beach, Florida

Indian Rocks Beach Tampa, Florida

Fort Myers Beach Fort Myers, Florida

503 First Street Jacksonville, Florida
Casino Beach Boardwalk Pensacola, Florida
New Smyrna Beach, Florida

Stage Fort Park, Gloucester, Massachusetts
Jenness Beach, New Hampshire

Baron Bliss Lighthouse Belize City, Belize
Dangriga Town, Belize

Hurghada, Egypt Red Sea

Hamawein, Egypt Red Sea

SPONSOR STATEMENTS:

“Coastal communities know that offshore drilling is dirty and dangerous. Toxic oil spills can
shut down beaches, devastate local economies that depend on tourism and recreation, and
poison our oceans. Ending new leasing for offshore drilling will protect the millions of jobs
that rely on a healthy ocean, and it is a vital step in tackling the climate crisis. We need a rapid
transition to clean, renewable energy, not more dirty and dangerous offshore drilling,” said
Randy Sturgill, Oceana Senior Field Representative, North Carolina.

“Now, more than ever before, the public voice in support of protecting our oceans needs to be
strong and clear. The combination of rapid climate change, industrial overfishing,
accumulating plastic debris, and literally, our ability to survive on this planet, are all at stake
right now. Joining together we can build the new world that we need to go forward,” said
Richard Charter, Director of the Coastal Coordination Program, with The Ocean
Foundation.

“For far too long, coastal communities have faced the dual threat of dangerous offshore
drilling and worsening extreme weather caused by fossil fuel-driven climate change. We must
prioritize environmental justice, a stable climate, and thriving coastal ecosystems and
economies over the demands of the fossil fuel industry and the politicians they fund," said
John Dunmore, with the Sierra Club's Lands Protection Program. "The Sierra Club
is proud to join Hands Across the Sand in urging the Biden administration to build on the
progress they've already made by prioritizing no new offshore drilling and leases in an effort
to conserve at least 30% of Lands and Waters by 2030.”

“Offshore oil drilling is a dirty and dangerous practice that threatens the health of our ocean,
as well as our coastal recreation and tourism industries that contribute billions of dollars to
our nation’s economy. We call upon our federal leaders to permanently prohibit new offshore
drilling and support a rapid transition to a clean energy economy," said Pete Stauffer,
Ocean Protection Manager, Surfrider Foundation.



"It really feels like this year's Pensacola Beach Hands event is the most important one ever.
That's because the Congressional moratorium that has protected the eastern Gulf of Mexico
from drilling for decades expires in less than two months. So we are calling on our elected
officials to pass a permanent moratorium. We have an economy that depends on clean water
and clean sand. We can't afford the many risks of drilling," said Christian Wagley,
Coastal Organizar for Healthy Gulf.

"It's clear that choosing clean energy and electric transportation over oil, gas, and coal can
save families money, improve our health, create good jobs, and protect the environment. Yet
the fossil fuel industry is using the pain families are currently feeling at the pump to push for
even more offshore drilling--a great risk with little benefit. It's time to put fossil fuels in the
rear view mirror. Policy makers must prioritize the transition to clean energy and pull all the
levers available to them to work for clean energy prosperity over fossil-fueled climate
disaster,” said Chris Carnevale, Coastal Climate and Energy Manager at Southern
Alliance for Clean Energy.

"From her mangrove infringed paradise beaches to her crystal blue waters bursting with
unparalleled ecosystems, there is not a single part of the Gulf of Mexico that doesn't breathe
life into her surrounding communities. We have betrayed our Gulf waters with crude,
makeshift, and rudimentary oil production and extraction. We cannot continue on this
destructive path and permit new leases in the Gulf or any of our coastal waters; the time to
transition to a clean energy future is now! Fort Myers Beach residents and visitors alike are
ready to unite to commemorate our losses but also to stand strong for a brighter, more
resilient, and just future for the waters we love," said Sierra Greene, Sierra Club Calusa
Group’s Outings Chair.

###

Floridian Dave Rauschkolb founded Hands Across the Sand/Land in October 2009. Hands Across the
Sand/Land is sponsored by national environmental organizations and others including; Bud and Alley,
Oceana, Surfrider Foundation, Southern Alliance for Clean Energy, Sierra Club, Natural Resources
Defense Council, League of Conservation Voters, Earthjustice, SoWal, Healthy Gulf, and Urban Paradise
Guild.
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This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening

attachments, or responding.

Hi all,

I am writing to give

you a heads up regarding an upcoming advertisement that will be visible around The White House

next week at various bus shelters. As you know, Oceana and our many partners are encouraging President Biden to
finalize a five year plan with no new leases for offshore oil and gas

Beginning February 6" there will be a graphic, calling on President Biden to keep his campaign promise, advertised in
bus shelters around The White House. The advertisements will be present around The White House until April 2",

Attached images for awareness and we hope the heads up is helpful.

All the best,
Diane

Diane Hoskins | Campaign Director

OCEANA

Protecting the
World's Oceans

1025 Connecticut Ave. NW, Suite 200
Washington, DC, 20036

D 202.467.1948 | C

301.672.0894

dhoskins@oceana.org | www.oceana.org







From: Alex Taurel <Alex Taurel@lcv.org>

To: Shantha Ready Alonso <shantha alonso@jios.doi.gov>, "Amanda.Lefton@boem.gov"
<Amanda.Lefton@boem.gov>, Marissa Knodel <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] ICYMI: NY, MA LCV affiliates weigh in on Biden offshore wind announcement
Date: Tue, 30 Mar 2021 11:59:51 +0000

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Hi-

| wanted to share the note we sent to press yesterday lifting up statements from some of our northeast state LCVs
praising the great offshore wind announcement!

Thanks,
Alex

https://www.lcv.org/article/icymi-ny-ma-lcv-affiliates-weigh-in-on-biden-offshore-wind-announcement/

Infrastructure week is finally here. Wanted to make sure you saw statements from our New York and
Massachusetts state affiliates praising the Biden administration’s all-of-government commitment to expanding
offshore wind development and creating good-paying, union jobs:

Statement from Julie Tighe, President of the New York League of Conservation Voters:

"With the new goal of 30 gigawatts of offshore wind by 2030, creating 80,000 jobs, and a multi-agency
program to support the timely, environmentally-sound development of this emerging industry, the Biden-
Harris Administration is showing that combating climate change and creating jobs go hand-in-hand.
Critical investments in port infrastructure and advancing new Wind Energy Areas in the NY Bight will
help New York meet its goal of attaining 9 gigawatts of power from offshore wind, make more space
available for offshore wind, and cultivate the supply chain in the U.S. Wind energy can power millions
of homes, contribute to our economic recovery, create green jobs, support our communities and slash
pollution. NYLCV applauds the Administration for making wind energy and green jobs a top priority and
we will continue working with stakeholders as more projects come online. We look forward to seeing the
Administration continue to prioritize a comprehensive climate agenda that incorporates renewable energy
and invests in our communities."

Statements from the Environmental League of MA:
“The Environmental League of MA celebrates the Biden-Harris Administration’s offshore wind

announcements. It takes an integrated, long-term approach to responsibly develop offshore wind. This
Administration has just pledged the talents and resources from across many Agencies to harness this



abundant, clean wind power,” said ELM President Elizabeth Henry “This is a great day for
Massachusetts, New England, and the planet ”

“Last year, we launched the New England for Offshore Wind Coalition in a similar spirit,” added
Susannah Hatch, ELM’s Clean Energy Coalition Director and New England for Offshore Wind Regional
Lead “Deep collaboration and long range planning are the foundation for responsible development and
for achieving our climate goals in ways that respect the ocean’s many uses. We are thrilled that the
Biden Harris Administration understands the promise of offshore wind and is prepared to embrace it ”

Emily Samsel

National Press Secretary
League of Conservation Voters
(0) 202 454 4573

(m) 828-713-9647

This email was sent to esamsel@]cv.org
LCV, 740 15th St NW, #700, Washington, DC 20005, USA
Unsubscribe




From: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
To: David Shadburn <dshadburn@lcv.org>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Just tried returning Director Lefton's call
Date: Thu, 26 May 2022 14:31:14 +0000

No worries, we are in meetings all morning, but may have a break before 11 to call back.

Get Outlook for i0S

From: David Shadburn <dshadburn@Icv.org>

Sent: Thursday, May 26, 2022 10:08:26 AM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Just tried returning Director Lefton's call

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

| missed her call a little before 10 but am around most of the day if she wants to try me again! Will try her again soon
too.

David Shadburn (he/him)

Government Affairs Advocate, Climate Change and Clean Energy
League of Conservation Voters

Cell: (917) 742-3078



From: America Fitzpatrick <afitzpatrick@lcv.org>
To: "elizabeth klein@boem.gov" <elizabeth.klein@boem.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: LCV and Chispa Texas Statement on Final 2024-2029 5-Year Offshore
Drilling Program

Date: Fri, 29 Sep 2023 16:40:27 +0000
Inline-Images: image001.png; image002.png

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Hi Liz,
Making sure this gets to the right email address.

Appreciate all that you do.
America

AMERICA FITZPATRICK (sherher

Conservation Program Director
League of Conservation Voters
Direct: 301-219-2323

Email: afitzpatrick@]cv.org

v LGV

Our Earth Is Worth Fighting For

From: America Fitzpatrick <afitzpatrick@Icv.org>

Date: Friday, September 29, 2023 at 12:24 PM

To: laura_daniel-davis@ios.doi.gov <laura_daniel-davis@ios.doi.gov>, Shantha R Alonso
<shantha_alonso@ios.doi.gov>, Katherine P Kelly <kate_kelly@ios.doi.gov>, Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov
<Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>, elizabeth_klein@ios.doi.gov <elizabeth_klein@ios.doi.gov>, Jessica A. Ennis
(b) (6)

Cc: Leah Donahey <ldonahey®@Icv.org>, Tiernan Sittenfeld <tiernan_sittenfeld@Icv.org>

Subject: LCV and Chispa Texas Statement on Final 2024-2029 5-Year Offshore Drilling Program

Hi all,
Sharing with you LCV and Chispa Texas statements on today’s announcement on the 5-year plan.

With appreciation for all that you do.
America

AMERICA FITZPATRICK  [sherner]



Conservation Program Director
League of Conservation Voters
Direct: 301-219-2323

Email: afitzpatrick@]cv.org

v LGV

Our Earth Is Worth Fighting For

https://www.lcv.org/media-center/lcv-and-chispa-texas-statement-on-final-2024-2029-5-year-offshore-drilling-

program/

For Immediate Release

September 29, 2023

Contact: Mika Hyer, mhyer@]lcv.org, 940-783-2230

LCV and Chispa Texas Statement on Final 2024-2029 5-Year Offshore Drilling Program

Washington, D.C. — In response to the Department of Interior’s announcement of the Program for the 2024-

2029 National Outer Continental Shelf Oil and Gas Leasing Program, the League of Conservation Voters and
Chispa Texas released the following statements:

“It’s disappointing that the Biden-Harris administration issued a final five-year plan that includes new leasing
that could lead to decades more fossil fuel dependency and climate pollution,” said America Fitzpatrick, LCV
Conservation Program Director. “While three lease sales is fewer than what was initially proposed and fewer
than previous five-year plans, LCV remains firmly opposed to Congress tying the expansion of offshore wind
development to more oil and gas leasing off our coasts. We stand with frontline and coastal communities in
calling on the Biden-Harris administration to do everything they possibly can to protect our coasts, our health,
and our climate”

koskosk

“Our country is feeling the impacts of increased costs as we continue the practice of exporting our natural
resources, while placing our coastal communities in harm’s way through more offshore drilling,” said Elida
Castillo, Chispa Texas Program Director. “We bear the brunt of the impacts to our health and environment. We
need more protections that will mitigate the warming of our oceans, rising sea levels, stronger hurricanes, and
the decimation of our aquatic ecosystems, which sustain our fishing and tourism economies. Public waters
belong to the public, and we should do more to protect our oceans and communities and prioritize investments in
proven renewable energies and conservation.”



H#



From: "Messmer, Michael" <mmessmer@oceana.org>

To: "walter.cruickshank@boem.gov" <walter.cruickshank@boem.gov>,
"isis.farmer@boem.gov" <isis.farmer@boem.gov>, "Bill Brown, Chief Environmental
Officer:" <william.brown@boem.gov>, "Megan Carr, Chief, Office of BOEM Strategic
Resources:" <megan.carr@boem.gov>, "Jill Lewandowski, Chief, Division of
Environmental Assessment:" <jill.lewandowski@boem.gov>, "Marissa Knodel, Advisor:"
<marissa.knodel@boem.gov>, "James Kendall, Regional Director, Alaska:"
<james.kendall@boem.gov>, "Douglas Boren, Regional Director, Pacific:"
<douglas.boren@boem.gov>, "Elizabeth.Klein@boem.gov" <elizabeth klein@boem.gov>,
"tracey.moriarty@boem.gov" <tracey.moriarty@boem.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Letter to the President from more than 100 elected officials re: Five-Year
Plan

Date: Tue, 25 Jul 2023 18:28:13 +0000
Attachments: 07-25-2023 LEO_Letter to President Biden FINAL.pdf
Inline-Images: image001.png

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Dear Hi Team BOEM,

Please find attached a letter from a bipartisan group of more than 100 state and local elected officials—transmitted to
the White House today—urging President Biden to prevent new offshore drilling leases in his upcoming National Outer
Continental Shelf Oil and Gas Leasing Program for 2023-2028. This group includes mayors, city council members, and
state representatives. Twenty-eight mayors and 12 state legislators from 15 states signed the letter.

Thank you for your consideration. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to let me know.

Sincerely,
Mike Messmer

Michael Messmer | Acting Campaign Director & Senior Federal Policy Manager

OCEANA “iimgte

1025 Connecticut Avenue NW, Suite 200
Washington, DC 20036 USA

D +1.202.467.1957 | M +1.202.286.0667

E mmessmer@oceana.org | W www.oceana.org




July 25, 2023

The President

The White House

1600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20500

Dear President Biden:

Thank you for the key actions you’ve taken on climate to date. We are state and local elected
officials who have come together to urge you to take the next step for our climate, oceans, and
frontline communities by issuing a final 2023-2028 National Outer Continental Shelf Oil and Gas
Leasing Program (“Five-Year Plan”) that prevents new lease sales. Dirty and dangerous offshore oil
drilling threatens our communities and our environment while exacerbating the climate crisis.

Climate change is threatening our oceans, our coasts, and our planet, and new leasing for offshore
drilling would lock in decades of climate-harming carbon emissions. An analysis by Oceana found
that protecting all unleased federal waters from offshore drilling in the United States could prevent
over 19 billion tons of greenhouse gas emissions. That is the equivalent of taking every car in the
nation off the road for 15 years and ending new leasing could prevent more than $720 billion in
damages to people, property, and the environment.

As you know, the devastating negative effects of oil and gas development on frontline communities
are well documented. Drilling pollutes our air with toxic emissions, causing asthma, lung cancer, and
other diseases. For too long, the Gulf Coast has been the nation’s sacrifice zone and Gulf
communities have borne the brunt of the fallout from U.S. oil and gas drilling. Worse, oil companies
already stockpiled millions of acres of our ocean for future offshore drilling. They are sitting on more
than 8 million acres of unused leases, or about 75 percent of the total leased acreage of public waters.
It’s time to stop new offshore drilling and instead invest in a just transition to clean energy sources.

The 2010 Deepwater Horizon oil spill disaster killed eleven people and resulted in more than 200
million gallons of oil spewing into the Gulf of Mexico. Oil from the spill tarred hundreds of miles of
Gulf coast shoreline stretching from Texas to Florida and devastated coastal economies. Losses to the
seafood industry alone were estimated at nearly $1 billion. The disaster had deadly impacts for
dolphins, whales, sea turtles, and more.

President Biden, your Five-Year Plan represents the best opportunity to bring the management of our
offshore federal resources into alignment with your climate goals. Preventing new dirty and
dangerous offshore drilling in your final Five-Year Plan will protect coastal communities from
devastating pollution, support healthy marine ecosystems, safeguard ocean wildlife, and encourage a
clean energy future. Please issue a final 20232028 National Outer Continental Shelf Oil and Gas
Leasing Program (“Five-Year Plan”) with no new lease sales.

Sincerely,
Susan Albright John Allen
Council President Alderman

City of Newton, Massachusetts City of Southport, North Carolina



Charles Allen
Councilmember
District of Columbia

Dr. Emily Anderson
Council Vice President
City of Eau Claire, Wisconsin

Jennifer Andreu
Councilmember
City of Plantation, Florida

Katie Atkins
Deputy Town Clerk

Town of Sunset Beach, North Carolina

Zac Bears
Council Vice President
City of Medford, Massachusetts

Kathleen Beckman
Councilmember
City of Clearwater, Florida

Ravinder Bhalla
Mayor
City of Hoboken, New Jersey

Rhonda Bolton
Council Member
City of Huntington Beach, California

Nancy Metayer Bowen
Commissioner
City of Coral Springs, Florida

Alicia Bowman
City Councilor
City of Newton, Massachusetts

Jennifer Brahier
Councilperson
City of Pensacola, Florida

Mark Bunker
Vice Mayor
City of Clearwater, Florida

Benjamin Cahoon
Mayor
Town of Nags Head, North Carolina

Dennis Carlone
City Councillor
City of Cambridge, Massachusetts

Linda Chaney
Representative
Florida House of Representatives

Levern Clancy, Jr.
Mayor
City of Midway, Georgia

Joy Cooper
Mayor
Hallendale Beach, Florida

Scott Crater
Councilmember
City of Sanibel, Florida

Lindsay Cross
Representative
Florida House of Representatives

Deborah Crossley
City Councilor
City of Newton, Massachusetts

Chance Cutrano
Mayor
Town of Fairfax, California

Lula Davis-Holmes
Mayor
City of Carson, California

Luke Diaz
Mayor
City of Verona, Wisconsin

Andreae Downs
City Councilor
City of Newton, Massachusetts



Gina Driscoll
Council Member
City of St. Petersburg, Florida

Mark Enmeier
Councilmember
City of San Clemente, California

Anna Eskamani
Representative
Florida House of Representatives

Dawn Euer
Senator
Rhode Island Senate

Patricia Farrar-Rivas
Councilmember
City of Sonoma, California

Kate Felton
Councilmember
City of Eau Claire, Wisconsin

Cobi Frongillo
Town Councilor
Town of Franklin, Massachusetts

Beam Furr
Commissioner
Broward County, Florida

Jeff Gow
Commissioner
City of Dunedin, Florida

Jeremy Gragert
Council Member
City of Eau Claire, Wisconsin

Mark Grill
Vice Mayor
City of St. Pete Beach, Florida

Stephanie Hansen
Senator
Delaware Senate

Rita Harris
Representative
Florida House of Representatives

Pam Hemminger
Mayor
Town of Chapel Hill, North Carolina

Wyatt Hoover
Mayor
Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida

Will Jawando
Councilmember
Montgomery County, Maryland

Van Johnson
Mayor
City of Savannah, Georgia

Teri Johnston
Mayor
City of Key West, Florida

Elizabeth Jolin
Council Member
Islamorada, Florida

Dan Kalmick
Councilmember
City of Huntington Beach, California

Ariel Kelley
Mayor
City of Healdsburg, California

Andrea Kelley
City Councilor
City of Newton, Massachusetts

Nicole LaChapelle
Mayor
City of Easthampton, Massachusetts

Brent Latham
Mayor
North Bay Village, Florida



Alison Leary
City Councilor
City of Newton, Massachusetts

Janeese Lewis George
Councilmember
District of Columbia

Michael Lilliquist
Council President
City of Bellingham, Washington

Donald Lovette
Commission Chairman
Liberty County, Georgia

Elizabeth Maglio
Town Councilor
Town of Braintree, Massachusetts

Matt Mahan
Mayor
City of San Jose, California

Kristina Martens
Councilperson
City of Bellingham, Washington

Andria McClellan
Councilmember
City of Norfolk, Virginia

Holly Merrill Raschein
Mayor Pro Tempore
Monroe County, Florida

Robert Mooney
Council Member
Town of Duck, North Carolina

Nicole Morell
Council President
City of Medford, Massachusetts

Elizabeth Morey
Mayor

Town of Southern Shores, North Carolina

Brianne Nadeau
Councilmember
District of Columbia

Eli Naffah
City Manager
City of Trinidad, California

Patricia Nolan
City Councillor
Cambridge, Massachusetts

Emily Norton
City Councilor
City of Newton, Massachusetts

Nan Orrock
Senator
Georgia Senate

Deborah Penrose
Mayor
City of Half Moon Bay, California

Shelly Petrolia
Mayor
City of Delray Beach, Florida

Constance Preston
City Councillor
City of Newburyport, Massachusetts

Freddy Puza
Councilmember
City of Culver City, California

Idelma Quintana
Commissioner
City of Hollywood, Florida

Estelle Rand
City Councilor
City of Beverly, Massachusetts

Michele Rayner-Goolshy
Representative
Florida House of Representatives



Arlis Reynolds
Councilmember
City of Costa Mesa, California

Lisa Rodvien
Council Member
Anne Arundel County, Maryland

Deborah Ruddock
Council Member
City of Half Moon Bay, California

Corey Runte
Commissioner
Town of Melbourne Beach, FL

Kevin Ryan
Representative
Connecticut House of Representatives

Holly Ryan
City Councilor
City of Newton, Massachusetts

Esther Sanchez
Mayor
City of Oceanside, California

Leslie Sandberg
Select Board Member
Town of Provincetown, Massachusetts

Maria Scibelli Greenberg
City Councilor
City of Newton, Massachusetts

Damon Seils
Mayor
Town of Carrboro, North Carolina

Cheryl Selby
Mayor
City of Olympia, Washington

Shirley Sessions
Mayor
City of Tybee Island, Georgia

Paula Sherlock
Councilperson
Town of Southern Shores, North Carolina

Sumbul Siddiqui
Mayor
City of Cambridge, Massachusetts

Nancy Sikes-Kline
Mayor
City of St. Augustine, Florida

Victoria Smalls
Executive Director
Gullah Geechee Cultural Corridor

Donnie Tuck
Mayor
City of Hampton, Virginia

Erica Stewart
Mayor
City of San Luis Obispo, California

David Vigliotti
Vice Mayor
City of Satellite Beach, Florida

Bobby Wagner
Mayor
City of Destin, Florida

Katherine Waldron
Representative
Florida House of Representatives

Jimmy Ward
Council Member
City of Isle of Palms, South Carolina

Jay Watts
Councilmember
Town of Edisto Beach, South Carolina

Stana Weisburd
Trustee
Village of New Paltz, New York



Andrew Werthmann
Councilmember
City of Eau Claire, Wisconsin

Michael Wildes
Mayor
City of Englewood, New Jersey

Madinah Wilson-Anton
Representative
Delaware House of Representatives

Robin Wilt
Councilmember
Town of Brighton, New York

Marie Woodson
Representative
Florida House of Representatives

Quinton Zondervan
City Councillor
City of Cambridge, Massachusetts



From: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
To: "Messmer, Michael" <mmessmer@oceana.org>, "Cruickshank, Walter"
<Walter.Cruickshank@boem.gov>, "Farmer, Isis U" <Isis.Farmer@boem.gov>, "Brown,
William Y" <William.Brown@boem.gov>, "Carr, Megan E" <megan.carr@boem.gov>,
"Lewandowski, Jill K" <Jill.Lewandowski@boem.gov>, "Kendall, James J."
<James.Kendall@boem.gov>, "Boren, Douglas" <Douglas.Boren@boem.gov>, "Klein,
Elizabeth A" <Elizabeth.Klein@boem.gov>, "Moriarty, Tracey B"
<Tracey.Moriarty@boem.gov>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Letter to the President from more than 100 elected officials re: Five-Year
Plan

Date: Tue, 25 Jul 2023 19:51:06 +0000
Inline-Images: image001.png

Thank you for sharing, Mike.

Peace,

Marissa Knodel (she/her/they)

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

Did you notice the font is large? This is done for accessibility purposes.
14pt font size with Arial or Verdana (sans serif) fonts are the most legible.

From: Messmer, Michael <mmessmer@oceana.org>

Sent: Tuesday, July 25, 2023 2:28 PM

To: Cruickshank, Walter <Walter.Cruickshank@boem.gov>; Farmer, Isis U <Isis.Farmer@boem.gov>; Brown, William Y
<William.Brown@boem.gov>; Carr, Megan E <megan.carr@boem.gov>; Lewandowski, Jill K
<Jill.Lewandowski@boem.gov>; Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>; Kendall, James J.
<James.Kendall@boem.gov>; Boren, Douglas <Douglas.Boren@boem.gov>; Klein, Elizabeth A
<Elizabeth.Klein@boem.gov>; Moriarty, Tracey B <Tracey.Moriarty@boem.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Letter to the President from more than 100 elected officials re: Five-Year Plan

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

Michael Me mer | Acting Campaign Director & Senior Federal Policy Manager

Protecting the
OCEANA 7ie.
1025 Connecticut Avenue NW, Suite 200
Washington, DC 20036 USA
D +1 202 467 1957 | M +1 202 286 0667
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

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Letter to the President from business owners re: Five-Year Plan
Date: Fri, 22 Sep 2023 20:12:36 +0000
Attachments: Businesses Urge No New Leases in the SYP Letter.pdf
Inline-Images: image001.png

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Hi Team BOEM,

Please find attached a letter from more than 50 business owners and business coalition leaders to the President
expressing their strong support for no new offshore lease sales in the final Five-Year Plan.

Thank you for your consideration. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to let me know.

Sincerely,
Mike Messmer

Michael Messmer | Acting Campaign Director & Senior Federal Policy Manager

OCEANA "ot
1025 Connecticut Avenue NW, Suite 200
Washington, DC 20036 USA

D +1.202.467.1957 | M +1.202.286.0667
E mmessmer@oceana.org | W www.oceana.org




September 20, 2023

The President

The White House

1600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20500

Dear Mr. President:

As outdoor retailers and associated business leaders, we are increasingly concerned about the impacts
of climate change on the wilderness, oceans, and waters that are critical to our successful businesses
and our future. Expanded offshore oil and gas drilling not only puts marine wildlife, jobs, and
communities at risk, but continues us down a path of ignoring some of the largest causes of the climate
crisis. Accordingly, we are writing to you to express our strong support for no new offshore lease sales in
the final five-year plan for offshore oil and gas drilling.

With sea levels rising and devastating extreme weather accelerating, it is crucial that we move to a clean
energy economy and away from offshore drilling that threatens everything we hold dear. We call on you
to keep your promise to end new leasing for offshore drilling. Finalizing an offshore drilling plan with no
new leases is a vital step in tackling the climate crisis and protecting millions of jobs that rely on a
healthy ocean.

We urge you to take action on climate now by protecting our coasts and closing the chapter on any new
oil and gas leasing before it is too late. Ending new leasing is necessary to meet your goal of reducing
greenhouse gas emissions by 50 percent by 2030, all while creating good-paying, clean energy jobs. New
offshore oil and gas lease sales would lock in production for decades, resulting in hundreds of millions
more metric tons of carbon dioxide emissions that are driving climate change.

Businesses and communities are facing the impacts of warming oceans, rising seas, and increasingly
disastrous weather patterns. In 2021 alone, the U.S. experienced 20 separate billion-dollar weather and
climate disasters, and in total natural disasters caused $145 billion in damages last year. People living
along the Gulf of Mexico, coastal Alaska, and elsewhere have shouldered the burdens imposed by the
fossil fuel industry for far too long—from toxic oil spills that foul our beaches and trigger loss of
confidence in seafood safety, to the long-term human health impacts from spills felt years later. Though
we live and work in places across the nation, we all believe that that these injustices should not be
perpetuated anywhere, and that none of the 3.3 million American jobs in fishing, tourism, and
recreation and the $250 billion in GDP our clean coast economy generates should be placed in jeopardy
by drilling.

Preventing new offshore leases would not negatively affect oil and gas production. The industry
currently holds more than 2,000 leases for offshore drilling, about 11 million acres of federal waters. Of
that area, 8 million acres, approximately 75 percent, are currently unused. Additionally, increasing
leasing will not lower gas prices for the public. If development on new leases started immediately, it
would still take many years before the product makes it to the consumer. Alternatively, protecting
federal waters would prevent over $720 billion in damages to people, property and the environment,
letting our businesses prosper long into the future.



As you finalize this five-year plan, we urge you to uphold your promise to end new offshore oil and gas
leasing. Ending new leasing will protect our coasts, marine life, and the millions of jobs and businesses

that rely on a healthy ocean. It is a vital step in tackling the climate crisis. We are counting on your

leadership at this critical time.

Sincerely,

Isabel Llopart
Surf Inn
Hollywood, FL

Jeffrey Cinciripino
Scuba Shack Diving
Rocky Hill, CT

David Smith
Senior Express USA
Columbia, SC

MF Kite
Aurora Wellness Services
Mt Pleasant, SC

Marina White
Fun Surf LA
Los Angeles, CA

Jodi Ascherman
Ignite Om LLC
Daytona Beach, FL

Fabiano Taborda

Luxyplay
Sheridan, WY

Joe Digirolamo
Thermore
Orchard Park, NY

Kai Paul
Indosole
San Francisco, CA

Kit Hendrickson
Kit Hendrickson Design
Seattle, WA

Dave Burden
Coastal Kayaks, Southeast Expeditions
Cape Charles, VA

Coley Faircloth
The Grateful Diver
Key West, FL

Ashley Jeziorski
Ash Wood Creative LLC
Hoboken, NJ

Abby Brown
H20M
San Diego, CA

Alya Hopkins
Salt Lake E-Bikes
Salt Lake City, UT

Clark Eising
Hi-Tec Enterprises
Oxnard, CA

Vipe Desai
Surf Industry Members Association
Huntington Beach, CA

Lorena Azocar-Ahern
Vane Brothers Marine Safety & Services
Baltimore, MD

Grant Bixby

Business Alliance for Protecting the Pacific
Coast

Newport Beach, CA

Matias Requena
Buena Onda Empanadas
Santa Barbara, CA



Jennifer Valentine

Business Alliance for Protecting the Pacific
Coast

Massapequa, NY

Jerry Rivers

North American Climate, Conservation and
Environment (NACCE)

Roosevelt, NY

Charlie Clingman
Forever Stoked
Morro Bay, CA

Bill Hamilton
Southern Horticulture, LLC
St. Augustine, FL

Robin Miller
Tampa Bay Beaches Chamber of Commerce
St. Pete Beach, FL

Colleen Gnos
Gnos Art
San Luis Obispo, CA

Susan Sherod
Architect
Encinitas, CA

Jaz Kaner
Banzai Surf Co, LLC
Huntington Beach, CA

Monica Thibodeau
Carolina Designs Realty, Inc.
Duck, NC

Barbara Stafford Jones
Cape May County Chamber of Commerce
Cape May, NJ

Charlie Garlow
DEEVA
Rehoboth Beach, DE

Alexandra Merlino
Bee Wild Outside
Santa Fe, NM

Niki Mazaroli
Open Water
Chicago, IL

Autumn Blum
Stream2Sea LLC
Bowling Green, FL

Andrew Fischer

Jason & Fischer, attorneys at law

Brookline, MA

Eileen Wheeler Sheehan
ABLE Associates
Fall River, MA

Ron Durgin
The Bike Center LLC
Santa Monica, CA

Kathleen Dibona
77 wolfman, inc.
Hollywood, FL

Ashley Besecker
Premier Catch
Seattle, WA

Elizabeth Johnson
Tybee Island Charters
Tybee Island, GA

Timothy Arnold
Tybee Clean Beach
Tybee Island, GA

Stephanie Richardson
Bahamas Scuba Adventures
Raleigh, NC



Richard Brendel
Flipper finders
Folly Beach, SC

Matt Walker
Outer Banks Milepost
Kill Devil Hills, NC

Israel Golasa
Beach Mart Inc
Kitty Hawk, NC

Karen Forget
Lynnhaven River NOW
Virginia Beach, VA

Heidi Oleszczuk
Heidi Rain Art
Sag Harbor, NY

Peter Penniman
Penniman Property Management
Ithaca, NY

Mark Collins
Blue Wave Adventures
Murrells Inlet, SC

Deanna Reiniger
Mindful Food Chef
Little River, SC

Tom Kies

Business Alliance for Protecting the Atlantic
Coast

Morehead City, NC



From: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
To: "Messmer, Michael" <mmessmer@oceana.org>
Subject: Automatic reply: [EXTERNAL] Letter to the President from business owners re: Five-Year Plan
Date: Fri, 22 Sep 2023 20:13:37 +0000

Hello!

| am out of office traveling Friday, September 22 through Sunday, September 24, and will have limited access to
e-mail. In case of an emergency, please call 202-538-2415.

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

Subject: [EXTERNAL] OCEANA press release on the 2024-2029 Proposed Final Program
Date: Fri, 29 Sep 2023 20:06:22 +0000
Inline-Images: image001.png

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Hi Team BOEM,

Please find here Oceana’s press release on the issuance today of the Proposed Final OCS Oil and Gas Leasing
Program for 2024-2029.

Wishing all of you good luck in managing the likely government shutdown.

Sincerely,
Mike Messmer

Michael Messmer | Acting Campaign Director & Senior Federal Policy Manager

OCEANA 7
1025 Connecticut Avenue NW, Suite 200
Washington, DC 20036 USA

D +1.202.467.1957 | M +1.202.286.0667
E mmessmer@oceana.org | W www.oceana.org




From: "Carr, Megan E" <megan.carr@boem.gov>
To: "Messmer, Michael" <mmessmer@oceana.org>

Subject: Automatic reply: [EXTERNAL] OCEANA press release on the 2024-2029 Proposed Final
Program

Date: Fri, 29 Sep 2023 20:06:38 +0000

| am currently out of the office and not available to monitor emails regularly, which may result in a delayed
response. For urgent needs, please use the dates and contact information below to identify who is acting on my
behalf at any point in time. For all things, please also 'cc Jenn Golladay, OSR Chief of Staff, at
Jennifer.Golladay@boem.gov for additional monitoring.

Thank you for your patience.
September 25-29: Troy Ezell, at Troy.Ezell@boem.gov or (703) 787-1564

October 2-3: Beth Wenstrom, at Beth.Wenstrom@boem.gov or (703) 996-6939
October 4-6: Eric Turner, at Eric.Turner@boem.gov or (703) 787-1735



From: David Shadburn <dshadburn@]Icv.org>
To: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Maritime crewing?
Date: Fri, 8 Jul 2022 19:05:44 +0000

Monday at noon ET would work for me! Happy to just give you a call on your cell at that time if that works, otherwise |
can set up a Zoom — let me know what’s best for you. Will send you a calendar appointment in the meantime.

Talk to you then and have a great weekend!
-David

From: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Sent: Friday, July 8, 2022 3:00 PM

To: David Shadburn <dshadburn@Icv.org>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Maritime crewing?

Hello David,

Yes, indeed we are! Happy to chat. | have a work trip next week so am a bit busy, but have some time on
Monday, July 11 from noon-1:30, and Friday, July 15 from noon-1:00 or 2:00-3:00.

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: David Shadburn <dshadburn@Icv.org>

Sent: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 9:43 AM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Maritime crewing?

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Hi Marissa,

Hope you had a nice July 4t m wondering if you all are working on this offshore wind maritime crewing issue in the
coast guard authorization bill at all and if we could chat about it sometime soon.

Let me know! Thanks again for all you do,
-David



David Shadburn (he/him)

Government Affairs Advocate, Climate Change and Clean Energy
League of Conservation Voters

Cell: (917) 742-3078



From: David Shadburn <dshadburn@]Icv.org>
To: "Vang, Kathy" <Kathy.Vang@boem.gov>

Cc: Leah Donahey <ldonahey@lcv.org>, "Farmer, Isis U" <Isis.Farmer@boem.gov>, "Foreman,
Jennafer (Jenna)" <Jennafer.Foreman@boem.gov>, America Fitzpatrick <afitzpatrick@lcv.org>,
"wendy.money@boem.gov" <wendy.money@boem.gov>, "Knodel, Marissa S"
<Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Meeting Request: Elizabeth Klein, Director, Bureau of Ocean Energy
Management - League of Conservation Voters Fly-in

Date: Tue, 7 Mar 2023 14:42:12 +0000

Here is a bio for Sam Bleicher

SAM BLEICHER Chair, VALCV

Sam Bleicher serves as an adjunct professor with the Georgetown Law School and is a

former member of the Virginia State Air Pollution Control Board.

This is the only planet we have, and Sam believes strongly that climate change, mineral
and energy extraction, and agricultural land use threaten to make it uninhabitable for the
population we have and expect. We need to create ecologically sustainable economic and

social systems in which we and our descendants can not merely survive, but thrive.

As a Virginia LCV board member, Bleicher enjoys working to achieve our mutual goals with

others who are committed to the same cause.

From: David Shadburn

Sent: Tuesday, March 7, 2023 9:22 AM

To: Vang, Kathy <Kathy.Vang@boem.gov>

Cc: Leah Donahey <ldonahey@Icv.org>; Farmer, Isis U <Isis.Farmer@boem.gov>; Foreman, Jennafer (Jenna)
<Jennafer.Foreman@boem.gov>; America Fitzpatrick <afitzpatrick@Icv.org>; wendy.money@boem.gov; Knodel,
Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Meeting Request: Elizabeth Klein, Director, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management - League
of Conservation Voters Fly-in

Hi Kathy (adding Wendy here who | know is the day-of contact),

I’'m so sorry for this last minute ask. A board member from our Virginia state league is here for our fly-in who did not
RSVP ahead of time. Is there any chance he can join us for the meeting? His name is Sam Bleicher.

We're looking forward to the meeting and will see you very soon!



David
917 742 3078

From: David Shadburn <dshadburn@Icv.org>
Sent: Friday, March 3, 2023 9:17 PM
To: Vang, Kathy <Kathy.Vang@boem.gov>

Cc: Leah Donahey <ldonahey@Icv.org>; Farmer, Isis U <Isis.Farmer@boem.gov>; Foreman, Jennafer (Jenna)

<Jennafer.Foreman@boem.gov>; America Fitzpatrick <afitzpatrick@Icv.org>

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Meeting Request: Elizabeth Klein, Director, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management - League

of Conservation Voters Fly-in

Hi Kathy,

Sharing an updated attendee list below, with a few additional names removed (none have been added). This should be

the final list, pending any surprises from our fly-in attendees.

I’'m also sharing a few background materials ahead of our meeting:

e LCV Priorities for Executive Action (attached)

o Coalition Letter from December 2022 led by LCV “encouraging the Biden administration to take actions to
accelerate the deployment of clean renewable energy and associated grid modernization and transmission
expansion in ways that support community input and environmental review.”

o A Proposal to Advance Climate and Conservation Goals in Public Waters by the Outer Continental Shelf (OCS)
Coalition (related to the 5-Year Plan for Offshore Qil and Gas) (attached).

Thank you again! Our fly-in attendees are really looking forward to this meeting. We really appreciate you all making

the time.
-David

CVM Attendees

America  Fitzpatrick Conservation Program Director National LCV
David Shadburn Government Affairs Advocate National LCV
Aaron McCall Craddolph Federal Advocacy Coordinator California
Mattea Pechter Campaign and Organizing Manager  California

Mike Young Political & Organizing Director California

Carol Davey Federal/Local Advocacy Manager Florida
Kathleen Meil Senior Director of Policy & Partnerships Maine

Margaret Somer Program and Event Coordinator Maine

Kelt Wilska Energy Justice Manager Maine
Susannah Hatch Director of Clean Energy Policy Massachusetts
Meghan  Hoskins Field Organizer New Hampshire
Rob Werner New Hamp hire State Director New Hamp hire
Allison McLeod Policy Director New Jersey

Ed Potosnak Executive Director New Jersey
Matt Salton Federal Campaigns Manager New York
Stacey Freeman Lead Regional Field Organizer North Carolina
Luther Hemby Director of Civic Engagement North Carolina
Mark Robertson CVSC Board Member South Carolina
John Tynan Executive Director South Carolina
Colin Arnold Field Organizer Virginia



Catherine Setaro Hampton Roads Organizer Virginia
Jordan Seurattan Northern Virginia Organizer Virginia

From: Vang, Kathy <Kathy.Vang@boem.gov>

Sent: Thursday, March 2, 2023 5 55 PM

To: David Shadburn <dshadburn@I|cv.org>

Cc: Leah Donahey ldonahey@Icvorg ; Farmer, Isis U Isis Farmer@boem gov ; Foreman, Jennafer (Jenna)
<Jennafer.Foreman@boem.gov>; America Fitzpatrick <afitzpatrick@Icv.org>

Subject: RE [EXTERNAL] Re Meeting Request Elizabeth Klein, Director, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management League
of Conservation Voters Fly-in

David,

Updated Arrival Instructions

Please plan to arrive 15 minutes prior to allow time to go through our security screening and ensure everyone has an
unexpired government-issued photo ID on their person.

Guests should arrive at our C St entrance (1849 C St NW)
- When checking in with security, please let them know the meeting POC is Wendy Money at 703-397-7230.

Guests will be escorted by Wendy to the Rachel Carson room after the security screening

Kathy Vang

Executive A i tant

Office of the Director

Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
U.S. Department of the Interior

From: Vang, Kathy

Sent: Wednesday, March 1, 2023 10 23 AM

To: 'David Shadburn' <dshadburn@]Icv.org>

Cc: Leah Donahey ldonahey@Icvorg ; Farmer, Isis U Isis Farmer@boem gov ; Foreman, Jennafer (Jenna)
<jennafer.foreman@boem.gov>; America Fitzpatrick <afitzpatrick@lcv.org>

Subject: RE [EXTERNAL] Re Meeting Request Elizabeth Klein, Director, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management League
of Conservation Voters Fly-in

Hi David,

Thank you. Please send me an updated attendees list if/when available, most importantly if any new attendees are
added to the list

Arrival Instructions
- Please bring a mask/face covering
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

Sent: Tuesday, February 28, 2023 6:01 PM

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

Thanks again for setting up this meeting for us! Sharing a proposed agenda below, as well as an updated attendee list
(still long but a handful of names have come off it). It’s possible more will drop off as we get closer — will be sure to let
you know if that happens. I've attached bios for all current attendees to this email.

Thank you again! Will be sure to share any materials we may want to provide at least 2 business days ahead of time.
-David

Proposed Agenda

e Introductions, Thank Yous, and About Our Fly In

« Director Klein and BOEM staff share agency priorities, latest updates
o How can LCV and our state leagues be helpful?

« State leagues raise specific issues, including:
o Maximizing equitable offshore wind deployment and counteracting misinformation
o Addressing offshore wind transmission
o QOil and Gas, The Five Year Plan, local impacts

Current Attendees

America  Fitzpatrick Conservation Program Director National LCV
David Shadburn Government Affair Advocate National LCV
Aaron McCall Craddolph Federal Advocacy Coordinator California
Mattea Pechter Campaigns and Organizing Manager  California

Mike Young Political & Organizing Director California

Carol Davey Federal/Local Advocacy Manager Florida

Aliki Moncrief Executive Director Florida
Kathleen Meil Senior Director of Policy & Partnerships Maine

Margaret Somers Program and Events Coordinator Maine

Kelt Wil ka Energy Ju tice Manager Maine
Susannah Hatch Director of Clean Energy Policy Massachusetts
Meghan  Hoskins Field Organizer New Hampshire
Rob Werner New Hampshire State Director New Hampshire
Alli on McLeod Policy Director New Jer ey

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
Catherine Setaro Hampton Road Organizer Virginia
Jordan Seurattan Northern Virginia Organizer Virginia

From: Vang, Kathy KathyVang@boem gov
Sent: Tuesday, February 28, 2023 1:12 PM
To: David Shadburn dshadburn@Icv org
Cc: Leah Donahey <ldonahey@Icv.org>; Farmer, Isis U <Isis.Farmer@boem.gov>; Foreman, Jennafer (Jenna)
Jennafer Foreman@boem gov ; America Fitzpatrick afitzpatrick@lcv org
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Meeting Request: Elizabeth Klein, Director, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management - League
of Conservation Voters Fly in

Thanks, David

Kathy Vang

Executive A i tant

Office of the Director

Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
U.S. Department of the Interior

From: David Shadburn dshadburn@Icv org
Sent: Tuesday, February 28, 2023 9:10 AM
To: Vang, Kathy KathyVang@boem gov
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

Thanks Kathy our fly in participants are all submitting their bios by today, which we’re aiming to submit alongside an
agenda by the end of the day today.

From: Vang, Kathy <Kathy.Vang@boem.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, February 28, 2023 1:02 PM

To: David Shadburn <dshadburn@Icv.org>

Cc: Leah Donahey <ldonahey@Icv.org>; Farmer, Isis U <Isis.Farmer@boem.gov>; Foreman, Jennafer (Jenna)
<Jennafer.Foreman@boem.gov>; America Fitzpatrick <afitzpatrick@lcv.org>

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Meeting Request: Elizabeth Klein, Director, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management - League
of Conservation Voters Fly-in

Hi David,

Please confirm attendees list as soon as possible as | will need to coordinate a large conference room for this meeting.
Thank you.

Kathy Vang

Executive Assistant
Office of the Director



Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
U.S. Department of the Interior

From: David Shadburn <dshadburn@Icv.org>

Sent: Friday, February 24, 2023 1:51 PM

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

Apologies for the late Friday email. Pasting below a list of likely attendees and which states they are coming from. It is
very likely that not 100% of the people on this list will attend the actual meeting as we are balancing logistics of
scheduling Hill and other Admin meetings over a two-day fly-in, but wanted to be sure you had the full universe of who
is possible. We will be sure to update you all as soon as we can, including sending bios next week.

Thank you again!

-David

David Shadburn Government Affairs Advocate National LCV
America Fitzpatrick Conservation Program Director National LCV
Aaron McCall Craddolph Federal Advocacy Coordinator California
Mike Young Political & Organizing Director California
Mattea Pechter Campaigns and Organizing Manager California

Aliki Moncrief Executive Director Florida

Carol Davey Federal/Local Advocacy Manager Florida
Margaret  Somer Program and Event Coordinator Maine
Kathleen Meil Senior Director of Policy & Partnerships Maine

Kelt Wilska Energy Justice Manager Maine

David Melly Legislative Director, Environmental League of MA Massachusetts
Su annah Hatch Director of Clean Energy Policy Ma achu ett
Rob Werner New Hampshire State Director New Hampshire
Meghan Hoskins Field Organizer New Hampshire
Allison McLeod Policy Director New Jersey
Ed Poto nak E ecutive Director New Jer ey
Joshua Klainberg Senior Vice President New York

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
Dane Levis Field Director - Climate Action Virginia Virginia

Colin Arnold Field Organizer Virginia
Christopher Leyen Policy Director Virginia
Jordan Seurattan Northern Virginia Organizer Virginia
Catherine  Setaro Hampton Roads Organizer Virginia



From: Vang, Kathy <Kathy.Vang@boem.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, February 22, 2023 1:11 PM

To: David Shadburn <dshadburn@Icv.org>

Cc: Leah Donahey <ldonahey@Icv.org>; Farmer, Isis U <Isis.Farmer@boem.gov>; Foreman, Jennafer (Jenna)
<Jennafer.Foreman@boem.gov>

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Meeting Request: Elizabeth Klein, Director, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management - League
of Conservation Voters Fly-in

Can you please send me the list of attendees by this Friday, Feb 24th?
One week in advance for agenda and short bios.

Thank you.

Kathy Vang

Executive Assistant

Office of the Director

Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
U.S. Department of the Interior

From: David Shadburn <dshadburn@Icv.org>

Sent: Wednesday, February 22, 2023 9:02 AM

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

Can do. When do you need the agenda and attendees + short bios by? Is that also 2 business days early or do you need
those sooner?

From: Vang, Kathy <Kathy.Vang@boem.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, February 22, 2023 12:59 PM

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

Thanks, David!

Can you please provide an agenda and a list of attendees + short bios?
We do ask that you provide any materials you plan to show during the meeting to us 2 business days ahead of the
meeting (no later than the business day before).

Kathy Vang

Executive Assistant

Office of the Director

Bureau of Ocean Energy Management



U.S. Department of the Interior

From: David Shadburn <dshadburn@Icv.org>

Sent: Wednesday, February 22, 2023 8:56 AM

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

Thank you, Kathy! We can meet then! Let us know what you need from us to confirm.

-David

From: Vang, Kathy <Kathy.Vang@boem.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, February 22,2023 12:13 PM

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

Moving Director Klein and Marissa to bcc as | work on getting this scheduled.
There’s availability on Tuesday, March 7th, 10:30-11a ET.

Kathy Vang

Executive Assistant

Office of the Director

Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
U.S. Department of the Interior

From: David Shadburn <dshadburn@Icv.org>

Sent: Wednesday, February 15, 2023 9:35 AM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>; Klein, Elizabeth A <Elizabeth.Klein@boem.gov>; Farmer, Isis U
<Isis.Farmer@boem.gov>; Foreman, Jennafer (Jenna) <Jennafer.Foreman@boem.gov>; Vang, Kathy
<Kathy.Vang@boem.gov>

Cc: Leah Donahey <ldonahey@Icv.org>

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Meeting Request: Elizabeth Klein, Director, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management - League
of Conservation Voters Fly-in

Thank you, Marissa! Let us know if it would be helpful to provide you all with any additional information.

-David

From: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, February 15, 2023 10:50 AM
To: David Shadburn <dshadburn@Icv.org>; Klein, Elizabeth A <Elizabeth.Klein@boem.gov>; Farmer, Isis U




<Isis.Farmer@boem.gov>; Foreman, Jennafer (Jenna) <Jennafer.Foreman@boem.gov>; Vang, Kathy
<Kathy.Vang@boem.gov>

Cc: Leah Donahey <ldonahey@Icv.org>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Meeting Request: Elizabeth Klein, Director, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management - League
of Conservation Voters Fly-in

Thanks, David!
I'm looping in Isis, Jenna, and Kathy in our Chief of Staff office to assist with review and potential scheduling.

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: David Shadburn <dshadburn@Icv.org>

Sent: Wednesday, February 15, 2023 9 16 AM

To: Klein, Elizabeth A <Elizabeth.Klein@boem.gov>

Cc: Knodel, MarissaS Marissa Knodel@boem gov ; Leah Donahey Ildonahey@Icvorg

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Meeting Request: Elizabeth Klein, Director, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management - League of
Conservation Voters Fly in

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Resending to your new email address!

Get OQutlook for Android

From: David Shadburn

Sent: Wednesday, February 15, 2023 9:14:30 AM

To: elizabeth klein@ios doi gov elizabeth klein@ios doi gov

Cc: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>; Leah Donahey <ldonahey@Icv.org>

Subject: Meeting Request Elizabeth Klein, Director, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management League of Conservation
Voters Fly-in

Dear Director Klein,

My name is David Shadburn, and | am a Government Affairs Advocate at the League of Conservation Voters focused on
climate and clean energy. The League of Conservation Voters (LCV) along with and our 30 affiliated state organizations
will be hosting an advocacy week in Washington, D C in early March As part of this important week of climate action,
we respectfully request a meeting with you on either Tuesday, March 7th or Wednesday, March 8™,



We are grateful for your leadership centering climate and environmental justice at the heart of the actions you have
led at BOEM The actions you’ve already taken are unprecedented; however, more progress is needed since we are not
yet on a path to address the climate crisis at the scale that science and justice require. The Biden-Harris administration
has made transformational investments in climate action and clean energy, and equitably and swiftly administering
those investments must be paired with accelerated, bold executive action to reduce climate and other pollution and
deploy clean energy That is why we are meeting with members across the Hill and the Biden Harris administration to
deliver on commitments to act on climate, advance environmental justice, create good jobs, and lower costs as quickly
as possible

BOEM has a lot of key decisions it needs to make in the year ahead on both oil and gas and offshore wind. We would
like to meet to discuss these upcoming decisions, including the release of the 5 year plan for offshore oil and gas and
the pending sale of offshore wind lease areas. We had a great opportunity to meet with your predecessor during our
fly in last year and would love to introduce you to our network of state leagues as well

We are happy to come to the Department of the Interior or host the meeting at the Hamilton Hotel DC. Senior
leadership from LCV and our state affiliates that traveled to D C for this meeting will be in attendance

Thank you, and please let me know if there is any more information you need!
Best,

David Shadburn

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

Cec: "moniqueh@dscej.org" <moniqueh@dscej.org>, "grace@gcclp.org" <grace@gcclp.org>,
"kendall@gcclp.org" <kendall@gcclp.org>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Meeting with BOEM on Friday
Date: Fri, 13 May 2022 14:49:20 +0000

Thanks Dustin, that's very helpful and important for the BOEM team to hear. | will add that to the agenda.

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Dustin Renaud <dustin@healthygulf.org>

Sent: Friday, May 13, 2022 10:31 AM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Cc: moniqueh@dscej.org <moniqueh@dscej.org>; grace@gcclp.org <grace@gcclp.org>; kendall@gcclp.org
<kendall@gcclp.org>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Meeting with BOEM on Friday

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Hi Marissa,

I am looking forward to speaking with you all in a few hours. After meeting with our team yesterday, I think the
only other agenda piece that we would add is "questions and concerns from impacted communities". I
understand this call is to really guide outreach and engagement of environmental justice communities, and we
see policy as the real driver of community involvement. So, if we're better able to share with community
members the importance of engagement for enhancing policy outcomes, we will be better able to engage folks to
get involved.

In solidarity,
Dustin Renaud

On Mon, May 9, 2022 at 12:41 PM Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov> wrote:
Hello Monique, Grace, Kendall, and Dustin!

| hope you all are doing well and staying safe and healthy. | want to thank you all so much for participating in Friday's
meeting with BOEM staff who represent leadership from our Gulf of Mexico office, as well as the leads for key
program areas related to carbon sequestration, the development of the next five-year offshore leasing program, and
offshore wind.

From our perspective, the purpose of this meeting is to meet one another and discuss how we work
together, and best practices for outreach and engagement with underserved and environmental justice




communities in the Gulf region for BOEM programs and activities.

I'm sharing a draft agenda here and welcome your thoughts, questions, or additional topics you all want to
cover, recognizing that we only have an hour but that this is hopefully just the first of an ongoing dialogue.

e Welcome and overview of meeting purpose -- Marissa
e Round of introductions -- Everyone
e Overview of BOEM programs and activities in the Gulf -- Mike Celata, Gulf of Mexico Regional Director
e Priorities/topics of interest for your organization
¢ Dialogue about best practices for outreach and engagement
¢ |dentify next steps for keeping the conversation going
Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

l».Healthy Gulf Dustin Renaud

. Communications Director
|+,  Healthy Gulf on

Facebook 504 525 1528 x214
e e 228 209 2194 (Cell)
PO BOX 2245

New Orleans, LA 70176
Protect What You Love




From: Andrew Hartsig <ahartsig@oceanconservancy.org>
To: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Meeting with Tommy B. next week
Date: Tue, 19 Apr 2022 20:47:41 +0000
Inline-Images: image001.jpg

Ooh--exciting. I'll look forward to seeing you on the computer screen!

From: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Sent: Monday, April 18, 2022 5:17 AM

To: Andrew Hartsig <ahartsig@oceanconservancy.org>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Meeting with Tommy B. next week

CAUTION: This e-mail originated from outside of Ocean Conservancy. Do not click on links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know that the content is safe.

Well, as it turns out, Director Lefton has a schedule conflict so you're stuck with me representing BOEM!

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, April 12, 2022 3:41 PM

To: Andrew Hartsig <ahartsig@oceanconservancy.org>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Meeting with Tommy B. next week

Thanks for the notice! It's not on my schedule, I'm assuming because they wanted to keep the group
manageable. Hope it goes well!

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Andrew Hartsig <ahartsig@oceanconservancy.org>
Sent: Tuesday, April 12, 2022 2:51 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Meeting with Tommy B. next week

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.




Hi Marissa,

Hope you're doing well. | just wanted to give you a quick heads-up that a few of us from Ocean Conservancy have a
meeting with ome DOI folk ne t Wedne day at 1pm ea tern to talk about OCS oil and ga and off hore wind On our
side, we’re bringing Mike, Kathy T., Amy Trice and me. | think (?) we’ll be meeting with Tommy Beaudreau, Amanda Lefton,
Laura Daniel-Davis, Kenzie Landa and Steve Feldgus.

I’'m gue ing you already know about thi (and maybe you’re even planning to join?) but wanted to give you ome notice
justin case.

Let me know if you have questions.

Take good care,
Andrew

Andrew Hart ig

I\ he/him/his
Vo ,; A Director, Arctic Program
== * 750 W. 2nd Avenue, Suite 206

/]
Ay

‘ ..-

= W=/ Anchorage, AK 99501
Ocean &Y 0: 907.885.3057

Conservancy® M:907.229.1690
ahartsig@oceanconservancy.org

Web | Facebook | Twitter




From: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
To: Andrew Hartsig <ahartsig@oceanconservancy.org>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Meeting with Tommy B. next week
Date: Wed, 20 Apr 2022 18:22:14 +0000
Inline-Images: image001.jpg

| thought the meeting went great, thank you!
Yes, hopefully next time in can be in person (I'm hoping for Alaska rather than D.C.).

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Andrew Hartsig <ahartsig@oceanconservancy.org>
Sent: Wednesday, April 20, 2022 2:09 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Meeting with Tommy B. next week

Hi Marissa,

Just a quick follow-up to thank you (and Tommy, Laura and Kenzie) for your time earlier today. It was really good
to see you on the computer screen; it seems like it has been forever. Not to count chickens, but maybe next
time we meet, it can be in person.

Hope you're doing well, and thanks again.

-Andrew

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
Sent: Tuesday, April 12,2022 3 41 PM

To: Andrew Hartsig <ahartsig@oceanconservancy.org>
Subject: Re [EXTERNAL] Meeting with Tommy B next week

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

From: Andrew Hartsig ahartsig@oceanconservancy org
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

w,-: he/him/his
O . ;S k Director, Arctic Program
" ,j!; 750 W. 2nd Avenue, Suite 206
~ W/ Anchorage, AK 99501
Ocean ¥ 0: 907.885.3057

Conservancy® M:907.229.1690
ahartsig@oceanconservancy.org

Web | Facebook | Twitter




From: "Messmer, Michael" <mmessmer@oceana.org>
To: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: New email & heads up about O&G review announcement
Date: Mon, 8 Mar 2021 22:30:24 +0000
Inline-Images: image001.png

Thank you!

Michael Messmer | Federal Policy Manager

OCEANA 7
1025 Connecticut Avenue NW, Suite 200
Washington, DC 20036 USA

D +1.202.467.1957 | M +1.202.286.0667
E mmessmer@oceana.org | W www.oceana.org

From: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Sent: Monday, March 8, 2021 5:29 PM

To: Messmer, Michael <mmessmer@oceana.org>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] RE: New email & heads up about O&G review announcement

Correct, this is just part of implementing Section 208 of the EO.

From: Messmer, Michael <mmessmer@oceana.org>

Sent: Monday, March 8, 2021 4:36 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: New email & heads up about O&G review announcement

Hi Marissa,

Dumb question for you. It’s my understanding that this just part of the review as mandated by the EO. This isn’t part of
an SO that may be coming down the road, is it? | just have some folks internally asking, and | want to be sure I'm
classifying this right.

Many thanks!

Mike

Michael Messmer | Federal Policy Manager
Protecting the

Gc EAN ".-'1"-.IJ r l!l'x C':l'l L

1025 Connecticut Avenue NW, Suite 200

Washington, DC 20036 USA

D +1.202.467.1957 | M +1.202.286.0667
E mmessmer@oceana.org | W www.oceana.org

From: Messmer, Michael

Sent: Monday, March 8, 2021 3:07 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: New email & heads up about O&G review announcement




Will do!

Michael Messmer | Federal Policy Manager

OCEANA “iiirgie

1025 Connecticut Avenue NW, Suite 200
Washington, DC 20036 USA

D +1.202.467.1957 | M +1.202.286.0667

E mmessmer@oceana.org | W www.oceana.org

From: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Sent: Monday, March 8, 2021 3 04 PM

To: Messmer, Michael <mmessmer@oceana.org>

Subject: Re [EXTERNAL] RE New email & heads up about O&G review announcement

Thanks! Yes, typo in the first one. If you could make sure that Dustin with Healthy Gulf is looped into that group,
I'd really appreciate it.

From: Messmer, Michael <mmessmer@oceana.org>

Sent: Monday, March 8, 2021 3:01 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>; mmessmer@ocean.org <mmessmer@ocean.org>
Cc: Knodel, Marissa S <marissa knodel@ios.doi.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: New email & heads up about O&G review announcement

This email has been received from outside of DOl Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Hi Marissa,

Thanks so much! I'll keep it to the small group of OCS lobbyists and defense folks. | see one of the e-mails you used for
me above says “mmessmer@ocean.org,” leaving out the “a” in “oceana.” It still got to me, however. Thanks!

All the best to you and your colleagues.
Mike

Michael Messmer | Federal Policy Manager

OCEANA “iiirzte

1025 Connecticut Avenue NW, Suite 200
Washington, DC 20036 USA

D +1.202.467.1957 | M +1.202.286.0667

E mme mer@oceana org | W www oceana org

From: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Sent: Monday, March 8, 2021 2:47 PM

To: mmessmer@ocean.org

Subject: New email & heads up about O&G review announcement




Hello Mike!

| hope all is well with you. | want to 1) share my new BOEM e-mail with you, and 2) share some news about the
comprehensive oil and gas review of DOI's leasing and permitting activities as mandated by the E.O. 14008:
Tackling the Climate Crisis, Section 208.

Please keep this information embargoed from press until after noon tomorrow. This notification is to allow
you to share the information among key OCS Defense and OCS Lobby folks in case you all want to prepare
statements.

Tomorrow morning, likely around 11:00 a.m., DOI will send a press release to announce that BLM and BOEM
will be holding a forum on March 25th as an initial step for this review. The day-long forum will feature several
panels to highlight perspectives from industry representatives, labor and environmental justice organizations,
natural resource advocates, and other experts (to be invited directly by DOI). The information gathered at the
forum, which will be livestreamed, will help inform an interim report from the Department that will be
completed in early summer. The report will include initial findings on the state of the federal conventional
energy programs, as well as outline next steps and recommendations for the Department and Congress to
improve stewardship of public lands and waters, create jobs, and build a just and equitable energy

future. Members of the public will be able to offer written comments to inform the interim report. Details on
how to view the forum or submit comments will be forthcoming.

| really look forward to engaging with you and the OCS Defense coalition during this review process. Please
don't hesitate to reach out if you have questions.

Peace,

Marissa
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

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
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: No cell phone found
Date: Wed, 20 Jul 2022 10:21:03 -0400

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Ok, thanks for checking!

On Wed, Jul 20, 2022 at 9:49 AM Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa. Knodel@boem.gov> wrote:
Hello Kendall,

I did not find a cell phone in the meeting room. You can call the front desk security which has a lost and found,
or I can check later today.

Peace,
Marissa

Get Outlook for 10S

o2 Kendall Dix
National Policy Director

Taproot Earth

he/him

@@ § oeeman
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
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] OCS Review March 25 event
Date: Thu, 11 Mar 2021 13:18:25 +0000
Inline-Images: image001.jpg

Thanks, Marissa!

Katherine Tsantiris

she/her/hers

Senior Manager, Government Relations
Ocean Conservancy

Phone: 202.280.6259

From: Knodel, Marissa S [mailto:Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, March 10, 2021 12:16 PM

To: Katherine Tsantiris

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] OCS Review March 25 event

Hello Kathy,

Great to hear from you, and thank you for the offer to help. We are currently discussing the forum and means
of participation and will make a public announcement when final decisions are made. | can't speak to timing
right now. In addition to the forum, there will also be an opportunity for anyone to submit comments to inform
the interim report.

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Katherine Tsantiris <ktsantiris@oceanconservancy.org>
Sent: Wednesday, March 10, 2021 10:06 AM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] OCS Review March 25 event

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Hi Marissa,

| hope that you are doing well, and that you are enjoying your new role at BOEM! Must have been a very busy and
exciting last few months for you.



| am reaching out in regards to the oil and gas review event that will be taking place on March 25t to see if there was
any information that you could share about a process for potential participation from the environmental community
As you know, Andrew Hartsig has a breadth of OCSLA knowledge and we think he could be a great value-add to the
conversation It would be great to see him participate if that is a possibility!

Totally understand if you are still figuring things out for the event, but just wanted to reach out to see if you had any
insights you could share at this point.

Let us know how we can be helpful.

Thanks!
Kathy
Katherine Tsantiris
o, she/her/hers
,;f;'?ﬂ);\& Senior Manager, Government Relation
- f 1300 19th Street NW, 8th Floor

T Washington, DC 20036
Ocean €Y 0: 202.280.6259

Conservancy® F 2028720619
ktsantiris@oceanconservancy.org

Web | Facebook | Twitter




From: Andrew Hartsig <ahartsig@oceanconservancy.org>
To: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] OCS bonding regulations?
Date: Tue, 30 Nov 2021 01:13:40 +0000

Got it. Thanks Marissa.

From: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Sent: Monday, November 29, 2021 1:01 PM

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

Hey Andrew,

My interpretation of the E&E article is that they are referencing the proposed rule from last year that was never
finalized. We are still in the process of reviewing the comments received during that comment period and have
not released anything publicly yet about our next steps.

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Andrew Hartsig <ahartsig@oceanconservancy.org>
Sent: Monday, November 29, 2021 4:29 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] OCS bonding regulations?

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Hi Marissa,
Happy belated Thanksgiving--hope you're doing well.

| was reading an E&E story about last week's oil and gas report, and noticed it said BOEM and BSEE "have
already begun a rulemaking to update bonding regulations offshore." | did a quick scan on the agency websites
and regs.gov, but didn't see anything. Do you know any more about the rulemaking? Can you point me in the
right direction to learn more?

Thanks in advance!




Take good care,
Andrew

Andrew Hart ig

Director, Arctic Program

Ocean Conservancy

750 W. 2nd Avenue, Suite 206
Anchorage, AK 99501

0: 907.885.3057
ahartsig@oceanconservancy.org
Web | Facebook | Twitter




From: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
To: Andrew Hartsig <ahartsig@oceanconservancy.org>
Cc: Michael LeVine <mlevine@oceanconservancy.org>, Amy Trice <atrice(@oceanconservancy.org>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: OCSLA and benefits for underserved communities
Date: Tue, 3 Aug 2021 22:14:29 +0000

Andrew, Mike, and Amy,

Thank you all SO MUCH for this very helpful feedback. It was personally validating for me that we are thinking
along similar lines when it comes to OCSLA authority for this strategy to benefit underserved communities. As
I'm sure is clear, part of our challenge is finding evidence to support the legal connection, which will be project-
and location-specific.

| also very much appreciate the thoughtful comment about unintended consequences, which gets at the
additional challenge of what form "benefits" should take and how to administer them.

Lots to think about! Please don't hesitate to reach out if anything else comes to you.
Also, THANK YOU for submitting comments for the New York Bight PSN. Much appreciated!

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Andrew Hartsig <ahartsig@oceanconservancy.org>

Sent: Tuesday, August 3, 2021 2:00 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Cc: Michael LeVine <mlevine@oceanconservancy.org>; Amy Trice <atrice@oceanconservancy.org>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: OCSLA and benefits for underserved communities

Hi Marissa,

We've thought a bit more about the questions you raised concerning bidding credits for investments that
benefit underserved communities. I’'m not sure there is a clear-cut answer, but, then again, you probably
wouldn’t have asked if there were. Here are a few thoughts (and one concern at the end), for whatever they're
worth

In terms of legal authority, it seems clear BOEM has discretion to consider this sort of thing under the
regulations that govern multiple-factor bidding (30 C.F.R. § 585.220). Bidding credits for underserved
communities certainly seem to fall under factors like "public benefits" and "compatibiity with State and local
needs," and the regulation gives BOEM discretion to consider factors that aren't explicitly listed. Guessing, of
course, that you all have that base covered already.



Backing up to the statute itself, things aren't quite as straightforward, but as you mentioned § 1337(p)(4)
factors require BOEM to provide for protection of the environment, which certainly includes human
communities & therefore underserved communities The "safety" and "fair return" requirements are broad
enough to encompass these sorts of bidding credits (even if they don't require them) Also, we’d note that it is
our understanding, from many of the communities with whom we work in Alaska, that Indigenous perspectives
don’t differentiate between human communities and the broader ecosystem/environment they are all
together So, in some situations it might be appropriate to consider community support as conservation Don’t
think that’s what you're after here, but it is something to consider in other circumstances

In terms of showing how bidding credits actually advance or stimulate OCS wind development, it seems like
that's less of a legal authority question and more of a factual question that will depend on the circumstances of
the affected communities It might be possible to argue that investing in affected underserved communities will
help ensure that development is more "orderly," which would be one way to tie it to the statutory language In
addition, this seems like the kind of situation in which an gency guidance document might be useful

One other semi related thought we're 100% supportive of the idea of investing in underserved communities

At the same time, it will be important to ensure that in the process of incentivizing those sorts of investments,
BOEM doesn't create unintended consequences for those communities, like meeting fatigue, creating confusion
as multiple would be developers propose different plans, or encouraging would be developers to
overpromise/over commit (and underperform) It would also seem wise to ensure that whatever model or
interpretation is used doesn’t create unintended momentum toward expanded revenue sharing for offshore oil
and gas activities

Happy to noodle more on this if that would be useful By the way, Ocean Conservancy will be submitting
comments on the Proposed Sale Notice, too

Andrew, Amy and Mike

From: Knodel, Marissa S Marissa Knodel@boem gov

Sent: Thursday, July 29, 2021 9:24 AM

To: Andrew Hartsig ahartsig@oceanconservancy org ; Michael LeVine mlevine@oceanconservancy org
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: OCSLA and benefits for underserved communities

CAUTION: This e mail originated from outside of Ocean Conservancy Do not click on links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know that the content is safe.

Great, thanks again!

Marissa Knodel

Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Andrew Hartsig <ahartsig@oceanconservancy.org>
Sent: Thursday, July 29, 2021 1:21 PM



To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>; Michael LeVine <mlevine@oceanconservancy.org>
Subject: Re [EXTERNAL] Re OCSLA and benefits for underserved communities

Got it--that's helpful. I'll put my head together with Amy and see if we can come up with anything useful.

From: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Sent: Thursday, July 29, 2021 5 47 AM

To: Andrew Hartsig <ahartsig@oceanconservancy.org>; Michael LeVine <mlevine@oceanconservancy.org>
Subject: Re [EXTERNAL] Re OCSLA and benefits for underserved communities

CAUTION: This e-mail originated from outside of Ocean Conservancy. Do not click on links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know that the content is safe

Hello Andrew,
Yes, please feel free to pass this along to Amy, thank you!

After a conversation with the Solicitor's office yesterday, I'll put a finer point on what we need to answer:

» It seems clear to me that OCSLA allows for, even requires, consideration of impacts of BOEM-authorized
activities on the human and coastal environments, which | would argue includes impacts to underserved
communities.

» What we're considering is slightly different that mitigating impacts, though. To justify offering a bidding
credit to developers for investments that directly benefit underserved communities, we need to
demonstrate that such investments advance offshore wind development (or, in statutory language, the
orderly and expeditious development of offshore wind on the OCS).

Thanks again!

Marissa Knodel

Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Andrew Hartsig <ahartsig@oceanconservancy.org>

Sent: Wednesday, July 28, 2021 7:31 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>; Michael LeVine <mlevine@oceanconservancy.org>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: OCSLA and benefits for underserved communities

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Hi Marissa,

Sorry to be slow getting back to you. And worse, | don't have a good answer. | haven't looked into that at all.
Mike is out on vacation, but as far as | know, it's not something he's delved into, either. (Although you never
know with Mike...).



Anyway, with your permission, I'd like to pass along this query to Amy Trice She works on offshore wind issues
for Ocean Conservancy and, while not an attorney herself, has worked with a bunch of lawyers on sticky OCS
wind issues It's possible this has come up for her, so she might have some good ideas

Any issues with me forwarding your question to Amy?
Hope you're doing well and staying cool in the DC summertime

Andrew

From: Knodel, Marissa S Marissa Knodel@boem gov

Sent: Wednesday, July 28, 2021 7:23 AM

To: Andrew Hartsig ahartsig@oceanconservancy org ; Michael LeVine mlevine@oceanconservancy org
Subject: OCSLA and benefits for underserved communities

CAUTION: This e mail originated from outside of Ocean Conservancy Do not click on links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know that the content is safe.

Hello Andrew and Mike!
| hope you both are doing well and staying safe and healthy.

I'm reaching out with a question that I'm hoping you can help me address. As I'm sure you're aware, BOEM
published a Proposed Sale Notice for the New York Bight, with a comment period that goes until August
13th: https://www.boem.gov/sites/default/files/documents/renewable-energy/state-activities/86-FR-
31524.pdf.

In the PSN, we asked for feedback on a proposal to award bidding credits to developers that directly invest in
underserved community benefits. In addition to learning more about how to identify those communities and
what those benefits might be, | am researching how we connect those bidding credits to our OCSLA authority,
both the general purpose of the statute and our 43 USC 1337(p)(4) renewable energy factors specifically.

I'm curious whether you or others you know have researched this question, particularly the legal justification?
Any thoughts are greatly appreciated!

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov



From: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
To: Rachael DeWitt <rdewitt@oceanconservancy.org>
Subject: Automatic reply: [EXTERNAL] Ocean Conservancy Ocean Justice Meeting Request
Date: Thu, 7 Sep 2023 15:18:58 +0000

Hello!

| am out of the office Thursday, September 7 through Sunday, September 10 and will be slow to respond to e-
mail. In case of an emergency, please call 202-538-2415.

Peace,

Marissa Knodel



From: Rachael DeWitt <rdewitt@oceanconservancy.org>
To: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Ocean Conservancy Ocean Justice Meeting Request
Date: Fri, 15 Sep 2023 14:03:49 +0000
Inline-Images: image001.jpg

Apologies, realizing | had not sent the invite yet. Sending over now. Thank you for your patience.

Best,
Rachael

From: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Sent: Thursday, September 7, 2023 2:21 PM

To: Rachael DeWitt <rdewitt@oceanconservancy.org>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Ocean Conservancy Ocean Justice Meeting Request

CAUTION: This e-mail originated from outside of Ocean Conservancy. Do not click on links or open attachments unless
you recognize the sender and know that the content is safe.

Thank you! I can forward the invite to a few others.

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

Sent: Thursday, September 7, 2023 1:52 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Ocean Conservancy Ocean Justice Meeting Request

Hi Marissa,

Great! Yes, those times were for Eastern. Let’s go with Tuesday from 10-10:30am. I'll send a calendar invite. Is there
anything you need ahead of time or anyone else on your team you would like me to include in the invite? Thank you!



Best,
Rachael

From: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Sent: Thursday, September 7, 2023 1:35 PM

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

Hello Rachael,

Are those times Eastern? If so, then I can do 10:00-10:30 on Monday,
Tuesday, or Thursday of that week.

Peace,

Marissa Knodel (she/her/they)

enior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415
Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

Did you notice the font is large? This is done for accessibility purposes.
14pt font size with Arial or Verdana (sans serif) fonts are the most legible.

From: Rachael DeWitt rdewitt@oceanconservancy org

Sent: Thursday, September 7, 2023 11:18 AM

To: Knodel, Marissa S Marissa Knodel@boem gov

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Ocean Conservancy Ocean Justice Meeting Request

Hi Marissa,

Our sincerest apologies for our delay in finding a time to schedule a meeting with you. We would love to find a time to
meet with you the week of September 18™. We are available for a meeting between 9:00am — 12:00pm Monday
through Thursday (Monday and Wednesday could even be an in-person meeting). We look forward to talking to you in
the near future We can send further availability if you are not available that week Thank you so much for your
patience.

Best,
Rachael

From: Rachael DeWitt <rdewitt@oceanconservancy.org>
Sent: Friday, August 25, 2023 5:32 PM




To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Subject: Re [EXTERNAL] Ocean Conservancy Ocean Justice Meeting Request

Hi Marissa,

Apologies for the delayed response | have been working internally to find a time when our team can meet, but | think
some of our colleagues are OO0 at the moment. I'll try to get an answer for you about meeting next week, but we
might need to look to the first or second week of September, if that’s ok with you Thank you so much for your
patience, and I'll keep you posted about a meeting time.

Best,
Rachael

From: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, August 22, 2023 12:45:48 PM

To: Rachael DeWitt <rdewitt@oceanconservancy.org>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Ocean Conservancy Ocean Justice Meeting Request

CAUTION: This e mail originated from outside of Ocean Conservancy Do not click on links or open attachments unless
you recognize the sender and know that the content is safe.

Hello Rachael,

Thank you for reaching out, I'm very interested in meeting with the Ocean
Justice Team, and may loop in a few others here at BOEM that also
contributed to the Ocean Justice Strategy. I have availability next Monday,
August 28, from noon :00 p.m. ET or Tuesday, August 29, after 2: 0 p.m.
ET.

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

Sent: Monday, August 21, 2023 3:04 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Ocean Conservancy Ocean Justice Meeting Request




This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Hi Marissa,

| hope you are doing well. | heard you and Andrew were able to meet up recently. I’'m glad you both could connect
while he was in town

Andrew mentioned that it would be ok if | emailed you directly to coordinate a meeting about ocean justice | know we
chatted about it briefly during our in-person meeting with you and Director Klien a few months ago, and to follow up
on that topic, our Ocean Justice team would like to set up a meeting with you at your convenience Additionally, we
recently submitted a comment on the Ocean Justice Strategy to OSTP and CEQ, and | wanted to send that along to you
for your reference and awareness

Please let me know if there is a time that works best for you, and | am happy to coordinate scheduling with staff on our
side. Thank you for your time and consideration.

Best,
Rachael

o, Rachael DeWitt
ﬁr};‘; Manager, Government Relations
- & 1300 19th Street NW, 8th Floor

=l .
PO, Y Washington, DC 20036
Ocean €Y O 202 351 0486

CDHSEi’UEnC}F rdewitt@oceanconservancy.org
Web | Facebook | Twitter




From: Rachael DeWitt <rdewitt@oceanconservancy.org>
To: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Cc: Bray Beltran <bbeltran@oceanconservancy.org>
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Ocean Conservancy Ocean Justice Meeting Request
Date: Tue, 19 Sep 2023 15:09:50 +0000
Attachments: OC Ocean Justice Strategy CEQ Comment Letter 7.24.23.pdf
Inline-Images: image001.jpg

Hi Marissa,

Thank you so much for the conversation today. We really enjoyed connecting with you around the ways that BOEM is
integrating ocean justice and the thoughts you have for progress in the future. Please feel free to reach out as
guestions or opportunities arise. I've cc’ed Bray on this email should you want to reach out directly. We’d love to stay
connected and work with you more. We'll continue to reach out as we create products that are relevant and/or hear of
ways we think BOEM could engage in the ocean justice space. Thank you again for the opportunity to share our
thoughts.

Best,
Rachael

From: Rachael DeWitt

Sent: Tuesday, September 19, 2023 10:13 AM

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

Sent: Thursday, September 7, 2023 1 35 PM

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

Sent: Thursday, September 7, 2023 11 18 AM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Subject: RE [EXTERNAL] Ocean Conservancy Ocean Justice Meeting Request




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

Apologies for the delayed response. | have been working internally to find a time when our team can meet, but | think
some of our colleagues are OO0 at the moment. I'll try to get an answer for you about meeting next week, but we
might need to look to the first or second week of September, if that’s ok with you. Thank you so much for your
patience, and I'll keep you posted about a meeting time.

Best,
Rachael

From: Knodel, Marissa S Marissa Knodel@boem gov

Sent: Tuesday, August 22, 2023 12:45:48 PM

To: Rachael DeWitt rdewitt@oceanconservancy org

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
August 28, from noon-3:00 p.m. ET or Tuesday, August 29, after 2:30 p.m.
ET.

Peace,

Marissa Knodel (she/her/they)
Senior Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.5 8.2415



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

Sent: Monday, August 21, 2023 3 04 PM

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

Rachael DeWitt

o,
u”?};.;\,k Manager, Government Relations
¥ 1300 19th Street NW, 8th Floor

i

ay

E .
i, Washington, DC 20036
Ocean €™ O 202 351 0486
CDHSEWEHC? rdewitt@oceanconservancy.org
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July 24, 2023

Dr. Arati Prabhakar

Director, Office of Science and Technology Policy
1650 Pennsylvania Avenue NW

Washington, DC 20502

Brenda Mallory

Chair, Council on Environment Quality
730 Jackson Place NW

Washington, DC 20506

Dear Director Prabhakar and Chair Mallory,

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the development of the Biden administration’s first
Ocean Justice Strategy. Ocean Conservancy' is encouraged to see the continued public
engagement and advancement of ocean justice from the Ocean Policy Committee (OPC).

If developed with rigor and inclusivity, the Ocean Justice Strategy (hereafter referred to as ‘the
Strategy’) will help the United States address the disproportionate impacts of the climate crisis
on vulnerable coastal and ocean-dependent populations. As sea level rises, storms become
stronger, and the ocean becomes more acidic, underserved communities often stand to lose the
most, including their culture, physical communities, and food security. As climate change harms
those who most depend on the natural environment and are least resilient to its impacts, the
need for ocean justice becomes ever greater and more complex. Persistent inequalities—which
manifest as unequal access to the ocean and its resources, benefits and burdens—are an
inherent threat to the well-being of the ocean and the communities who depend upon it. Such
inequalities fragment people’s relationships to the ocean, limit innovation in addressing
ocean-climate impacts and obstruct our ability to effectively advocate for the most impactful
solutions.

Ocean Conservancy encourages OPC to adopt a transparent, knowledge-based, and practical
the Strategy which results in greater ability of the federal government to respond to the needs
and aspirations of a wide range of fenceline communities and other marginalized and
disadvantaged coastal communities. An equitable and just Ocean Justice Strategy should abide
by the United Nations Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples and respect Tribal
sovereignty, and it should embody principles described by Indigenous scholar Kyle Whyte
(Potawatami) of consent, trust, accountability, and reciprocity, which are critical to maintain good
relationships with and among human and non-human entities (Whyte, 2019).

The Strategy should build upon the Biden administration’s commitments and initiatives on
environmental justice, natural resource conservation, Indigenous knowledge, and climate action.
It can also build upon existing lessons learned from ocean- and justice-focused programs,
including designated Justice40 programs and the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) and

" Ocean Conservancy works to protect the ocean from today’s greatest global challenges. We create
evidence-based solutions for a healthy ocean and the wildlife and communities that depend on it.
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Inflation Reduction Act (IRA) priorities. The actions in the Strategy will require multi-agency
coordination and consistent engagement with environmental justice communities, ocean users,
states and territories, Regional Fishery Management Councils, and other interested groups.
The Strategy should identify lead Departments or Agencies for strategy items with clearly
defined priorities and a well-developed plan for interagency coordination.

We recommend that the principles of the Strategy should be applied not just to federal agencies,
but also their partners, grantees and collaborators, such as the Regional Fishery Management
Councils.

Many Ocean Justice priorities were put forward in the Ocean Justice Strateqy Sign-on Letter
which Ocean Conservancy has endorsed. Our comments supplement and provide additional
context for areas where Ocean Conservancy sees opportunities for systemic action.

Ocean Conservancy’s Ocean Justice definition:

“The fair and equitable distribution of both the benefits of the ocean’s bounty and the burdens of
its complex care.”

Because of the myriad ways in which inequality impacts the ocean and the degradation of
ocean health exacerbates inequality, the Strategy must be thoughtful, agile, intentional and
always oriented toward a vision of a healthier ocean, protected by a more just world.

Communication and Collaboration

An effective and impactful Ocean Justice Strategy requires systemic changes in the ways in
which the federal government approaches management choices and internal and external
communication and coordination. The following list includes ideas for meeting this challenge:

1. Improving the style and accessibility of communication between federal agencies and
community organizations is essential for fostering collaboration and maximizing the
impact of government initiatives. Federal agencies can enhance efficiency by
customizing their communication approaches, partnering with trusted Ocean Justice
liaisons (e.g. Ocean Justice Advocacy Group (OJAG)), and sharing best practices.
Recognizing that various groups have distinct priorities, languages, and cultural
sensitivities, agencies should employ tailored messaging and engagement strategies.

2. Federal agencies should prioritize transparency and accessibility in their communication
methods. This can be achieved by establishing clear, consistent (both within and
between Departments and Agencies) and user-friendly channels of communication, such
as long-term dedicated liaisons, where community organizations can easily access
information, updates, and resources. Additionally, regular town hall meetings or virtual
roundtables with accessible features (e.g., language translation and ASL interpretation)
and at accessible times (e.g. outside of business hours) should be organized to allow
agencies to engage directly with community representatives, share their goals and plans,
and gather feedback and suggestions.
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By conducting thorough research and understanding the specific requirements of unique
community archetypes, agencies can demonstrate their commitment to inclusivity and
ensure that their initiatives reach those who need them the most. This can be achieved
by hiring trained social scientists and cultural liaisons to conduct research and provide
advice to agencies (e.g. NOAA Sea Grant Programs DEIJ Community of Practice). This
approach can lead to stronger partnerships and more effective use of resources.

Federal agencies should seek regular input and evaluations from community
organizations regarding the effectiveness of their communication efforts. By actively
seeking feedback, identifying missing voices, and making space for constructive
criticism, agencies can continuously improve their outreach strategies. Moreover,
creating forums or platforms for community organizations to share their success stories,
challenges, and best practices can lead to mutual learning and the development of
innovative solutions. By maintaining a two-way communication approach through
liaisons acting as conduits between agencies and communities, federal agencies can
build trust and strengthen relationships with community organizations, ultimately driving
positive change with greater efficiency.

Agencies should meaningfully and genuinely engage with affected communities by
addressing past harms and histories by taking responsibility for past harms and coming
up with joint solutions. Assess conceptualizations of ocean justice from communities,
identify the communities that this Strategy impacts, work collaboratively with Tribes and
engage in meaningful consultation with Tribes (e.g. Southeast Alaska Sustainability
Strategy), conduct outreach and information exchange sessions with communities, and
fairly pay communities for their labor.

a. We agree with the definition of Meaningful Consultation with Tribes that the

Ocean Justice Strategy Sign-on Letter uses.

The Strategy can help ensure respect for and enhancement of the unique relationship
between the federal government and Tribal governments. Government-to-government
consultation processes can be improved to ensure that Tribal communities are resilient
in the face of climate crises and other pressing issues. Federal agencies can strengthen
collaboration and consultation processes with Tribal governments, ensuring that their
perspectives, traditional knowledge, and concerns are integrated into all agency actions
and policy decisions. Active engagement and a co-production approach will help in the
development and implementation of plans that address the unique challenges faced by
Indigenous communities.

Agencies should concretely develop strong connections between the Strategy’s barriers,
goals, and outcomes via robust implementation plans, establish clear benchmarks and
metrics to evaluate the Strategy’s impact on its ocean justice goals, ensure equity in the
employment pipeline, and dedicate essential funds to carry out this Strategy.

Proactive communication and engagement are the foundation for responsive
decision-making that reflects the interests and needs of all ocean users, communities,
and Tribal governments. We encourage the OPC to define the Strategy actions that
advance collaborative planning that advances priorities for communities. Meaningful
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co-planning and consultation with Tribes are critical. Tribes and underserved
communities do not have unlimited resources and capacity. OCAP priority actions should
work to advance and support the ability to access funding and boost technical,
community-centered capacity necessary to adapt to climate change.

Accessibility and Technical Assistance

System changes within the Federal government should reduce barriers and support increased
accessibility and technical assistance for communities. By simplifying the application process,
providing targeted support, and fostering collaboration, federal funds can become more
accessible to community organizations and individuals, ensuring a more inclusive and diverse
approach to ocean justice.

1.

Ensuring accessibility of federal funds to community organizations and individuals with
non-conventional, environmental justice, or non-Western science conservation
backgrounds is crucial in fostering inclusive and equitable environmental initiatives. To
achieve this, the first step is to streamline the application process. Government agencies
should simplify the language and requirements in grant applications, making them more
accessible to a broader audience. Utilizing plain language and clearly describing
evaluation criteria, providing funding for application preparation, and avoiding jargon will
empower community-based organizations and individuals from various backgrounds to
confidently apply for funding. For example, increase the number of communities who
receive technical assistance and energy planning support from DOE’s Energy
Transitions Initiative Partnership Project (ETIPP) beyond the 10-12 communities it
supports every 12-18 months.

Promoting collaboration and partnership is key in making federal funds more accessible.
Government agencies should actively engage with community groups, local
stakeholders, and grassroots organizations to foster relationships and encourage joint
project proposals. By promoting collective efforts, federal funds can be utilized more
effectively to address environmental challenges in diverse communities, allowing
individuals without a conservation background to play an active role in environmental
justice initiatives.

Millions of dollars have been made available to address these resilience needs through
grants, direct assistance, and other means via the IRA (e.g., Sections 80001 and
80002). Living on islands, citizens and residents of U.S. territories also find themselves
vulnerable to climate change and should also benefit from the IRA funds and assistance
(Section 50241). While these people, groups, and the climate challenges they face did
receive some funds and attention from this legislation, the OPC needs to ensure these
benefits are deployed, monitored, and coordinated with other aspects of the IRA and
Justice40.

Disadvantaged communities along the coast, particularly those of color, often find
themselves less likely to recover after a climate disaster or even live with ongoing
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pollution impacts. For instance, those near ocean ports are often subjected to high levels
of harmful diesel emissions from ships and trucks. Federal efforts to decarbonize and
reduce these emissions received a boost from the IRA (e.g., Sections 60102-60105) as
well as specific funds to reduce these threats through the IRA's EPA Environmental and
Climate Justice Block Grants (Section 60201). The Strategy, in addition to OCAP, can
help guide these resources by requiring justice considerations from the inception of
programmatic planning.

In order to boost opportunities for technical assistance that addresses unique regional
and local ocean and environmental injustices, the OPC should support the establishment
of a coastal technical assistance network, spanning diverse coastal states and regions,
inspired by the model of the EPA’s Environmental Justice Thriving Communities
Technical Assistance Centers (TC-TAC) Program. The TC-TAC Program equips local
communities organizations and their trusted allies to “provide training and other
assistance to build capacity for navigating federal grant application systems, writing
strong grant proposals, and effectively managing grant funding” to those in their
communities who seek federal resources. This model empowers local groups to have
ownership over the services they offer to surrounding communities and supports them in
ensuring that they can prioritize addressing issues that impact their regions, as they
understand and experience such challenges first hand.

Financial and technical assistance from federal agencies can significantly bolster the
capacity of these communities to adapt to climate change and mitigate its impacts. This
support may include funding for infrastructure upgrades, renewable energy projects, and
sustainable agriculture practices. Moreover, capacity-building initiatives that empower
Tribal members with the skills and knowledge to respond effectively to climate
challenges can be implemented. By investing in the development of local expertise and
resources, federal agencies enable Tribal communities and fence line residents to take
ownership of their protection strategies and make informed decisions that align with their
cultural values.

Representation and Capacity Building

1.

Investment in workforce development and job training to support a just transition through
the Strategy actions planned around coastal conservation and access, renewable
energy, green shipping, and the transition away from oil and gas development could all
prioritize partnerships and investment that advance well-paying jobs for communities
who have been unduly burdened with the impacts of fossil fuel development and climate
change. The Strategy should prioritize policies and investment in workforce development
such as through the NOAA Climate-ready workforce program, NOAA's youth
engagement and John A. Knauss fellowship programs, and the Hispanic Access
Foundation’s MANO Project.

Providing targeted training and support is essential in breaking down barriers. The
government should invest in educational programs and workshops specifically designed
to guide non-traditional applicants through the grant application process and provide
financial compensation for participants. By offering technical assistance, mentorship, and
capacity-building resources, community organizations and individuals can better
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understand the complexities of environmental funding opportunities and enhance their
proposals. For example, the DOE’s ETIPP could include workforce development and
training for electricity management and infrastructure maintenance by locals.

3. NOAA should ensure that management decisions reflect equity and environmental
justice principles, including via the Regional Fishery Management Council process and
that underserved communities have meaningful representation throughout the
management and decision-making process. This must include improving diversity in
Council membership, including dedicated Indigenous representation, and that these
members are offered compensation for their time and effort. We suggest an added action
to the Strategy committing the Secretary of Commerce to such in the Council
appointments process, and ultimately working toward seeking Congressional
authorization or mandate to modify the requirements for the nomination and appointment
process to require representation from Tribes and underserved communities.

4. Use existing best practices and guides, such as the suite of actions under Environmental
Justice Staff Training and Support found on page 15 of the California Coastal
Commission’s Environmental Justice Policy, as support for the Strategy. Training should
include hiring and building internal champions, and mandating diversity, equity, justice,
unconscious bias and related training across the agency, advisory bodies and Councils.

Conclusion

We are excited about the potential for positive change that the Strategy, shaped by this public
comment period offers, and we encourage OPC to foster a transparent and inclusive process
and provide relevant updates on the progress of the Strategy.

We thank OPC for the opportunity to comment on the first Ocean Justice Strategy and for your
commitment to the well-being of the ocean and the communities that depend on it. We eagerly
anticipate your involvement and look forward to collectively shaping an impactful Ocean Justice
Strategy

Sincerely,

Bray Beltran

Director, Ocean Justice
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
Date: Tue, 19 Sep 2023 16:18:28 +0000
Attachments: Ocean Justice Strategy RFI Comment BOEM 7.26.23.docx
Inline-Images: image001.jpg

Hello Rachael and Bry,

Thank you both so much for today's conversation, I hope it's the first of
more on this topic, and next time I'd love to loop in the staff leading this
work at BOEM.

Attached are the comments BOEM submitted directly, so please do not
circulate outside of Ocean Conservancy.

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

Sent: Tuesday, September 19, 2023 11:09 AM

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
you recognize the sender and know that the content is safe

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

Are those times Eastern? If so, then I can do 10:00 10: 0 on Monday,
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
the near future. We can send further availability if you are not available that week. Thank you so much for your
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
some of our colleagues are OO0 at the moment I'll try to get an answer for you about meeting next week, but we
might need to look to the first or second week of September, if that’s ok with you. Thank you so much for your
patience, and I'll keep you posted about a meeting time

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
while he was in town.

Andrew mentioned that it would be ok if | emailed you directly to coordinate a meeting about ocean justice. | know we
chatted about it briefly during our in-person meeting with you and Director Klien a few months ago, and to follow up




on that topic, our Ocean Justice team would like to set up a meeting with you at your convenience. Additionally, we
recently submitted a comment on the Ocean Justice Strategy to OSTP and CEQ, and | wanted to send that along to you
for your reference and awareness.

Please let me know if there is a time that works best for you, and | am happy to coordinate scheduling with staff on our
side Thank you for your time and consideration

Best,
Rachael

T, Rachael DeWitt
= ";'ﬁ Manager, Government Relations
= L 1300 19th Street NW, 8th Floor

i .
N, =Y Washington, DC 20036
Ocean €Y 0: 202.351.0486

Conservancy rdewitt@oceanconservancy.org
Web | Facebook | Twitter




Department of the Interior
Ocean Environmental Justice Strategy Comments

BUREAU OF OCEAN ENERGY MANAGEMENT

The mission of the Bureau of Ocean Energy Management (BOEM) is to manage development of
U.S. Outer Continental Shelf (OCS) energy and mineral resources and sequester carbon dioxide
in an environmentally and economically responsible way. BOEM’s management responsibilities
include resource assessments; leasing and permitting to provide appropriate access to energy,
mineral, and geological resources; environmental, economic, technical, and fiscal reviews;
scientific research; and lease management throughout the lifecycle of OCS energy, mineral, and
sequestration projects. BOEM directly supports energy security, environmental protection, and
economic development through rigorous environmental reviews and decision-making informed
by the best available science and knowledge.

In carrying out these responsibilities, BOEM aims to be an environmental justice leader by
advancing policies, programs, activities, and decision-making processes in an accessible and
inclusive manner that involves the fair treatment and meaningful involvement of all people
regardless of race, color, gender, national origin, or income. BOEM is glad to inform and
participate in development of the Ocean Justice Strategy through an all-of-government approach
with both Federal and non-Federal entities, and in partnership with impacted groups and
communities.

Definitions. What is ocean justice? How do you define ocean justice in the context of your
community and your work?

BOEM welcomes the opportunity to define ocean justice in partnership with impacted groups
and communities. In the context of BOEM’s mission and authorities, ocean justice has both
procedural and substantive aspects. Procedurally, ocean justice occurs when all people
potentially impacted by BOEM-authorized activities have meaningful opportunities to participate
in decision-making processes where their input is given due consideration and there is reciprocal
communication about whether or how their input influenced the ultimate decision. Substantively,
ocean justice occurs when the benefits and burdens of BOEM-authorized activities are equitably
distributed (e.g. income is broadly distributed and risks are sufficiently mitigated for all ocean
users and stakeholders).

Barriers to Ocean Justice. What are the barriers to realizing ocean justice? What key
challenges do you face in achieving ocean justice? What ocean justice challenges do you see
as central to Federal Government action?



e Resources to provide for meaningful participation

e Accessibility of information and communication practices

e Meeting and engagement fatigue

e Equitable distribution of benefits resulting from BOEM-authorized activities

e Managing for and addressing impacts across jurisdictions and differing authorities

o BOEM’s mission and authority is for the OCS, which ends at state waters. However,

there are nearshore and onshore impacts of OCS projects related to supporting
industries and facilities, downstream processes, and indirect effects that are difficult
to connect to specific projects. Offshore energy products are often untraceable (via
proprietary industry information) once they go onshore for processing or distribution.
For example, there is abundant literature exploring the environmental justice concerns
of the petrochemical corridor of the Mississippi river between New Orleans and
Baton Rouge known as “Cancer Alley.” While it is known that many of these
petrochemical facilities connect to OCS facilities or use OCS-derived products, this
area is outside of BOEM’s jurisdiction. These facilities also incorporate other
domestic and international inputs, making downstream-minded policymaking and
decision-making difficult.

e Multi-user marine spatial planning

o Sociocultural considerations, such as viewshed and recreational experience, become

challenging to manage for because their definition and expectation can change from
one ocean user and stakeholder to another. Proactively identifying communities that
have been historically marginalized in federal ocean decision-making, giving them a
meaningful opportunity for participation in decision-making, and amplifying their
voices is necessary.

Opportunities for Ocean Justice. What elements, activities, and components should the
Ocean Justice Strategy include? What injustices related to the ocean should the Federal
Government better address? What successful regional or local efforts to remedy past
harms or advance ocean justice should be applied nationwide? What examples do you have
of instances when the Federal Government made a just decision related to the ocean, and
how might that be scaled up or broadened? What does ocean justice in Federal actions and
decision-making look like in practice?

e Value and integrate the input heard from impacted groups and communities throughout
decision-making processes, and consistently follow-up with how input was addressed
e Streamline and make accessible information relevant to communities



e Ensure engagements are accessible and respect community complexities (like linguistic and
cultural complexities) by using multiple languages, being culturally sensitive, and creating
opportunities that are both written and spoken

e Develop relationships and engage one-on-one with impacted ocean users and stakeholders to
learn about their experiences, interests, priorities, and potential impacts

e Investment in social science research and equity assessments co-designed with impacted
groups and communities

Research and Knowledge Gaps. What are the research and knowledge gaps that we need to
address for the Federal Government to create and advance an effective Ocean Justice
Strategy and take equitable and ambitious action?

In general, there are research and knowledge gaps about cumulative impacts in the short- and
long-term, effective mitigation measures, and benefits from BOEM-authorized activities that an
Ocean Justice Strategy could help fill through collaborative engagement and information- and
knowledge-sharing. Some specific research questions that relate to an effective Ocean Justice
Strategy include:

e How will offshore wind change local fishing environments for all fisherfolk (subsistence,
commercial, recreational)?

e How has oil and gas development in the Gulf of Mexico OCS impact the baseline health of
the Gulf of Mexico? This would help to better quantify the future and cumulative impacts
from this type of development.

e Will offshore wind and offshore carbon sequestration benefit the communities that they
impact?

e How have offshore sediments been utilized and managed regarding environmental justice
communities? These finite resources can be used to mitigate cumulative impacts from
climate change, anthropogenic landscape modifications, and state and federal policies, all of
which might disproportionately impact environmental justice populations on or near
vulnerable coastlines.

Tools and Practices. How can the Federal Government harness existing environmental
justice tools and practices, such as the Climate and Economic Justice Screening Tool
(CEJST),I4EJ Screen,!'3 and EnviroAtlas,!'% to answer questions about justice in ocean
policy? What new tools and practices are necessary to advance ocean justice?

e The federal government does not have a unified or standard approach for receiving and
tracking input from impacted groups and communities; distributing information to
responsible agencies; tracking how inputs are incorporated; and providing feedback to
communities.



e Given the broad scope and multi-jurisdictional nature of ocean activities, there are a variety
of tools each with their own variables and indicators that can result in agencies coming to
different justice impact conclusions. This disparity in evaluation tools and interpretations
should be a consideration for the Ocean Justice Strategy.

e Most tools are based on American Community Survey (ACS) data to screen populations.
This data is not accurate below the county level for rural areas, especially in the Gulf of
Mexico coastal communities. Margins of error are often obscured, and in some cases
compounded as tools add in computed indexes based off multiple inputs of unreliable data.
This data uncertainty at the smaller scale—the level needed for identifying ocean justice
communities—could result in these same communities being overlooked. Tools and
practices that improve data precision at local levels, such as on-the-ground primary research
and surveys, are important to ensure that impacted groups or communities are not missed.
The inclusion of income/poverty status on the decennial census, as it has a larger sampling
coverage than the ACS, can provide higher quality data from which to better base decisions.

Partnerships and Collaboration. What ocean justice solutions can or should be led by non-
Federal entities? Where and how can the Federal Government partner with Tribal,
Territorial, State, and local governments, as well as external stakeholders across regions
and sectors, to effectively remedy past harms and advance ocean justice?

e The Ocean Justice Strategy should support the collaborative development of ocean justice
solutions between Federal, Tribal, territorial, State, and local governments, and impacted
ocean users and stakeholders across regions and sectors. An organizing and facilitating entity
would be helpful to ensure there is robust interagency coordination where there are
interconnected activities or impacts that span across multiple jurisdictions and authorities.
For example, having BOEM staff coordinate with onshore agencies and State governments
with jurisdiction through the lens of ocean justice would allow BOEM’s technical and
experiential knowledge to inform onshore environmental justice activities. Such a
coordinated approach could have the additional benefit of reducing the meeting and input
burden on impacted communities.

e The Strategy could help facilitate discussion on principles of diversity in data collection
methods informed by researchers, scientists, and knowledge-holders from diverse
backgrounds, including data transparency, ethical protection of information, and integration
of local and traditional knowledge from communities with environmental justice concerns
into decision-making.

e A potential ocean justice solution that could benefit from collaborative discussion between
Federal and non-Federal entities across regions and sectors, particularly on the topic of
remedying past harms, is the potential development of principles and the identification of
opportunities for ocean co-stewardship.

e Resources, including funding, for ocean justice solutions should be leveraged from multiple
public and private sources, including the federal government. The Ocean Justice Strategy



could help track and create accountability for the use, management, and application of
federal funds and programs aimed at ocean justice.

Additional Considerations. What else would you like considered in the development of the
Ocean Justice Strategy?

Offshore oil spill analyses and response plans: BOEM recognizes that accidental releases of oil
in the ocean environment may disproportionately impact overburdened and underserved
communities and communities with unique dependencies on marine resources. A number of
Federal agencies have responsibilities around oil spill prevention, preparedness, and response in
U.S. offshore waters. Regulatory requirements specify what oil and hazardous substance spills
information must accompany plans submitted to BOEM including oil spill response planning
information and a modeling report.! BOEM also requires industry to provide evidence of oil spill
financial responsibility. The bureau's Oil-Spill Risk Analysis (OSRA) modeling program
supports BOEM’s environmental impact assessments.> The Ocean Justice Strategy could help
incorporate equity and justice considerations more fully in oil spill analyses and spill response
plans, potentially pulling from ocean-based disaster prevention and recovery best practices.

1 https://www.boem.gov/sites/default/files/boem-
newsroom/Library/Publications/2019/2019 0404 OSPRR Final.pdf
2 https://www.boem.gov/environment/oil-spill-modeling/oil-spill-modeling-program




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
Date: Tue, 19 Sep 2023 16:35:28 +0000
Inline-Images: image001.jpg

Hi Marissa,

Thank you for sharing your comments. We will absolutely keep them internal and not share outside of Ocean
Conservancy. We look forward to continuing to work with you and your colleagues on ocean justice.

Best,
Rachael

From: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, September 19, 2023 12:18 PM

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

Sent: Tuesday, September 19, 2023 11 09 AM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Cc: Bray Beltran bbeltran@oceanconservancy org

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Ocean Conservancy Ocean Justice Meeting Request

Hi Marissa,

Thank you so much for the conversation today. We really enjoyed connecting with you around the ways that BOEM is
integrating ocean justice and the thoughts you have for progress in the future Please feel free to reach out as
guestions or opportunities arise. I've cc’ed Bray on this email should you want to reach out directly. We'd love to stay
connected and work with you more We’'ll continue to reach out as we create products that are relevant and/or hear of
ways we think BOEM could engage in the ocean justice space. Thank you again for the opportunity to share our
thoughts

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

Sent: Thursday, September 7, 2023 2 21 PM

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
meet with you the week of September 18 We are available for a meeting between 9:00am — 12:00pm Monday
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
some of our colleagues are 000 at the moment. I'll try to get an answer for you about meeting next week, but we
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

This email has been received from outside of DOI
attachments, or responding.

Use caution before clicking on links, opening

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

Manager, Government Relation
1300 19th Street NW, 8th Floor
Washington, DC 20036

0: 202.351.0486
rdewitt@oceancon ervancy org
Web | Facebook | Twitter




From: Bray Beltran <bbeltran(@oceanconservancy.org>

To: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>, Rachael DeWitt
<rdewitt@oceanconservancy.org>

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Ocean Conservancy Ocean Justice Meeting Request
Date: Thu, 21 Sep 2023 19:43:23 +0000
Inline-Images: image001.jpg

Hello Marissa,

Thank you very much for taking the time yesterday! | really enjoyed our conversation and like you | look forward to
many more and to meet the other staff at BOEM working on justice.

Best,
Bray.

Bray Beltran

he/him/el

Director of Ocean Justice
Ocean Conservancy

O: 771-200-4502

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

Thank you so much for the conversation today We really enjoyed connecting with you around the ways that BOEM is
integrating ocean justice and the thoughts you have for progress in the future. Please feel free to reach out as
guestions or opportunities arise I've cc’ed Bray on this email should you want to reach out directly We’d love to stay
connected and work with you more. We’ll continue to reach out as we create products that are relevant and/or hear of
ways we think BOEM could engage in the ocean justice space Thank you again for the opportunity to share our
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

Our sincerest apologies for our delay in finding a time to schedule a meeting with you We would love to find a time to
meet with you the week of September 18t We are available for a meeting between 9:00am — 12:00pm Monday
through Thursday (Monday and Wednesday could even be an in person meeting) We look forward to talking to you in
the near future. We can send further availability if you are not available that week. Thank you so much for your

patience

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
ﬁr};\k Manager, Government Relations
*;'!-r_ ,_5; . 1300 19th Street NW, 8th Floor
e w7 Washington, DC 20036
Ocean €% O 202 351 0486

Conservancy rdewitt@oceanconservancy.org
Web | Facebook | Twitter




From: Andrew Hartsig <ahartsig@oceanconservancy.org>
To: "marissa.knodel@boem.gov" <marissa.knodel@boem.gov>

Cc: Michael LeVine <mlevine@oceanconservancy.org>, Katherine Tsantiris
<ktsantiris@oceanconservancy.org>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Ocean Conservancy comments on comprehensive review
Date: Thu, 15 Apr 2021 22:48:15 +0000
Attachments: 2021.04.15 Ocean Conservancy DOI Comp Review Oil and Gas.pdf

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Hello Marissa,

| hope you're doing well. For your awareness, I'm passing along the comments Ocean Conservancy submitted
for DOI's comprehensive review of federal oil and gas programs.

As you might imagine, we focused on offshore issues that might be of particular interest to you and others at
BOEM.

As always, we're happy to answer questions and provide additional information. I've copied Mike and Kathy on
this message. Please don't hesitate to reach out to any of us if we can be helpful.

Take good care,
Andrew

Andrew Hartsig

Director, Arctic Program

Ocean Conservancy

750 W. 2nd Avenue, Suite 206
Anchorage, AK 99501

0: 907.885.3057
ahartsig@oceanconservancy.org

Web | Facebook | Twitter
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The Honorable Deb Haaland, Secretary
U.S. Department of the Interior

1849 C Street, N.W.

Washington DC 20240

Submitted via email at energyreview@ios.doi.gov

April 15, 2021
Re: Comprehensive review of the federal oil and gas program
Dear Secretary Haaland:

Ocean Conservancy welcomes the Department of the Interior’s comprehensive review of the federal oil
and gas program, as called for in President Biden’s Executive Order 14008. Thank you again for the
opportunity to present our perspectives—focused on offshore oil and gas activities—during the virtual
public forum on March 25. The comments that follow expand on those remarks and reference additional
resources that may be useful as the Bureau of Ocean Energy Management (BOEM) develops plans to
update and reform management of oil and gas activities on the Outer Continental Shelf (OCS).

The Interior Department must lead a rapid, just and equitable transition away from fossil fuels.

This administration has recognized the “urgent need to tackle the climate crisis.” Doing so will require a
rapid, just, and equitable transition away from fossil fuels and toward renewable energy sources. This
transition is needed to prevent catastrophic impacts from climate change and ocean acidification and to
ensure the continued vitality of coastal communities, Tribes and cultures. Although such a transition
cannot happen overnight, it must begin now. As steward of public lands and waters, the Department of
the Interior has a significant role to play in furthering a just transition. An important starting point is for
the Department to take aggressive action to ensure its regulations, policies and guidance set the stage
for a time when we no longer allow extraction of fossil fuels from public lands, either on- or offshore.

In transitioning away from fossil fuels, the Department of the Interior must:

- Ensure agency decision-making processes properly account for all climate, ocean acidification
and other impacts from oil and gas activities. The agency must consider impacts from
extraction and combustion of fossil fuels, as well as the production and use of petrochemicals,
which are derived from oil and gas. The production and consumption of plastic, in particular, has
substantial climate change impacts and results in other air, water and health effects.

- Account for the oil and gas industry’s disproportionate impacts to Black, Indigenous and other
communities of color. As part of this process, the Department of the Interior must find ways,
including funding and training, to ensure a sustainable economic transition for individuals and
communities.



- Explicitly recognize Tribal sovereignty and find ways to work collaboratively with Indigenous
people, coastal communities, and others. Inclusion and meaningful partnership, including
recognizing Indigenous Knowledge as equal to western science, are vital to a fair and just
transition.

BOEM should initiate a rulemaking process to modernize and reform OCS regulations.

The Department of the Interior finalized the rules governing OCS oil and gas planning, leasing and
exploration in the early 1980s. The planning and leasing rules have not been updated in any substantive
way since that time. As a result, regulations governing OCS oil and gas activities have not kept pace with
industry’s push to drill in deeper and more remote waters, technological advances or changes in policy
priorities.

Congress gave the Interior Department considerable flexibility to interpret and implement the OCS
Lands Act. BOEM and the Bureau of Safety and Environmental Enforcement (BSEE) can and should take
advantage of this flexibility by updating regulations to reflect current priorities, including climate change
and ocean acidification, consultation with Tribes and consideration of environmental justice issues.

BOEM and BSEE should launch a comprehensive effort to modernize and reform OCS regulations. In
updating OCS regulations, BOEM and BSEE can focus on the following categories of changes:

- Prioritize healthy, productive ocean ecosystems: The OCS Lands Act requires environmental
safeguards; BOEM and BSEE regulations should underscore the importance of ocean health and
ensure that any extraction of mineral resources is consistent with that priority.

- Clarify and improve implementation of the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA): Changes
should mandate proper consideration of climate change, ocean acidification and environmental
justice impacts. Updated regulations can also clarify NEPA requirements for each stage of the
OCS Lands Act process, and identify appropriate uses of tiering and categorical exclusions.
Regulatory changes can also better define cumulative impacts analyses; require analysis of low-
probability, high-risk events; and ensure environmental assessments are subject to meaningful
public review and comment.

- Ensure effective consultation with Tribes and incorporation of Indigenous Knowledge: The
agency can establish procedures to ensure robust and meaningful consultation with affected
Tribes and the solicitation and incorporation of Indigenous Knowledge on equal footing with
western science.

- Modernize regulations governing five-year planning: Existing regulations provide little guidance
for agency staff and decision-makers. BOEM should revise regulations so they more effectively
describe factors to be considered under OCS Lands Act section 18(a)(2) and provide direction for
“balancing” under section 18(a)(3). Updated regulations should also require BOEM to account
for option value in the planning process, ensure it has access to adequate baseline ecosystem
information before including areas in a five-year program and identify important marine areas.
They should also recognize explicitly that exploration and development carry different risks in
different regions (e.g., oil spills behave differently and may present more risks in cold waters)
and that the assessment of risks must be tailored and cannot be one-size-fits all. These changes
could also make clear the OCS Lands Act does not require that a five-year program include lease
sales, as long as holding no sales best meets other statutory obligations.

- Update regulations governing lease sales: BOEM should reconsider area-wide leasing, ensure
leasing targets only those areas where the benefits of leasing outweigh risks and take steps to
ensure the government is receiving fair market value for leases. Regulations governing the lease
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sale processes should also include updated rent and royalty provisions to account for
externalities, including climate change, ocean acidification and other pollution impacts.

- Address issues with regulations governing exploration: BOEM should change its approach to
the 30-day timeline for approval of exploration plans. Regulations should clarify that an EIS is
possible at the exploration stage and that an exploration plan should not be deemed submitted
until the NEPA process is complete. Regulations should also prohibit the use of “conditional
approvals.” If an operator cannot meet established standards, its exploration plan should be
denied. Regulations should also be changed to ensure oil spill response plans are subject to
public review and comment. In addition, BOEM and BSEE should discard proposed changes to
the 2016 Arctic Drilling Rule.! This rule, put in place after the Deepwater Horizon disaster and
Shell’s failed attempts to discover oil in the Beaufort and Chukchi seas, are commonsense
provisions and should remain in place.

- Regulations should require increased transparency: Regulatory changes can require Interior
Department agencies to post—on a public website and in a timely manner—non-privileged
information on exploration, permitting, inspections, monitoring and enforcement. Regulations
can also ensure information on OCS incidents and near-misses is available to the public. We
encourage the administration to consider re-starting efforts to join the Extractive Industries
Transparency Initiative.

The Biden Administration should work with Congress to reform the OCS Lands Act.

The Department of the Interior can accomplish a tremendous amount by modernizing and updating the
regulations that govern OCS oil and gas activities. It should launch a comprehensive regulatory reform
effort as soon as possible. At the same time, the Biden-Harris administration should work with Congress
on legislation that permanently overhauls the nation’s OCS energy policy to address threats posed by
climate change and ocean acidification, issues of Tribal sovereignty, disproportionate impacts to Black,
Indigenous and other communities of color, and other challenges.

Legislation can be more ambitious than regulatory reform. While new legislation could tackle several of
the issues raised in the regulatory reform section above, it could also explicitly recognize and account
for the need to transition away from fossil fuels; permanently prohibit the issuance of new OCS leases in
all or most OCS planning areas; modernize OCS policy to prioritize protection of healthy, functioning
ocean, and coastal ecosystems; and end tax subsidies. In addition to changes to the OCS Lands Act,
needed revisions would require amendments to the Oil Pollution Act of 1990 (OPA 90), the Clean Water
Act and tax laws.

Additional detail about needed statutory changes can be found in the selected resources compiled in
Appendix A and in the offshore oil and gas reform concepts detailed in Appendix B.

1 Requirements for Exploratory Drilling on the Arctic Outer Continental Shelf; Final Rule, 81 Fed. Reg.
46,478, 46,478-46,566 (July 15, 2016).



Conclusion

The changes suggested above were compiled from recommendations made by the National Commission
on the Deepwater Horizon and Offshore Drilling, legislation that was proposed but not passed,
legal/scientific scholarship and other sources. More detailed information on these many of these
recommendations can be found in Appendix A. Please do not hesitate to contact us if you have
guestions or need additional information.

Sincerely,

Andrew Hartsig Michael LeVine
Director, Arctic Program Senior Arctic Fellow
Ocean Conservancy Ocean Conservancy



Appendix A: Selected Resources

Deepwater Horizon Reports:

U.S. Chemical Safety and Hazard Investigation Board, Investigation Report Vol. I: Explosion and Fire at
the Macondo Well, Report No. 2010-10-1-0S (June 5, 2014). Available at:
https://www.dco.uscg.mil/Portals/9/OCSNCOE/OCS%20Investigation%20Reports/Macondo%20-
%20DWH%20Reports/CSHIB%20Report%20Vol%201%20Final.pdf?ver=2017-10-05-072747-303

U.S. Chemical Safety and Hazard Investigation Board, Investigation Report Vol. Il: Explosion and Fire at
the Macondo Well, Report No. 2010-10-1-0S (June 5, 2014). Available at:
https://www.dco.uscg.mil/Portals/9/OCSNCOE/OCS%20Investigation%20Reports/Macondo%20-
%20DWH%20Reports/CSHIB%20Report%20Vol%202%20Final.pdf?ver=2017-10-05-072749-633

U.S. Coast Guard, Report of Investigation into the Circumstances Surrounding the Explosion, Fire,
Sinking and Loss of Eleven Crew Members Aboard the MOBILE OFFSHORE DRILLING UNIT DEEPWATER
HORIZON in the GULF OF MEXICO, April 20 — 22, 2010. Volume |

MISLE Activity Number: 3721503 (Undated). Available at:
https://www.dco.uscg.mil/Portals/9/OCSNCOE/OCS%20Investigation%20Reports/Macondo%20-
%20DWH%20Reports/DWH%20R01%20USCG%20V0l%201%20Redacted%20Final.pdf?ver=2017-10-05-
072821-053

U.S. Department of the Interior, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management, Regulation and Enforcement,
Report Regarding the Causes of the April 20, 2010 Macondo Well Blowout (September 14, 2011).
Available at:
https://www.dco.uscg.mil/Portals/9/OCSNCOE/OCS%20Investigation%20Reports/Macond0%20-
%20DWH%20Reports/DWH%20D01%20V0l%2011%20Final.pdf?ver=2017-10-05-072747-303

National Commission on the BP Deepwater Horizon Qil Spill and Offshore Drilling, Deep Water: The
Gulf Oil Disaster and the Future of Offshore Drilling, Report to the President (January 2011). Available
at:

https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/GPO-OILCOMMISSION/pdf/GPO-OILCOMMISSION.pdf

On Scene Coordinators, On Scene Coordinators Report, Deepwater Horizon Qil Spill, Submitted to the
National Response Team (September 2011). Available at:
https://repository.library.noaa.gov/view/noaa/283




Academic Articles and Reports:

Robert T. Anderson, Protecting Offshore Areas from Qil and Gas Leasing: Presidential Authority under
the Outer Continental Shelf Lands Act and the Antiquities Act, 44 Ecology Law Quarterly 727 (2018).
Available at:
https://www.ecologylawquarterly.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/03/Protecting-Offshore-Areas-
from-Qil-and-Gas-Leasing-Presidential-Authority-under-the-Outer-Continental-Shelf-Lands-Act-and-
the-Antiquities-Act.pdf

Jayni Foley Hein, Harmonizing Preservation and Production: How Modernizing the Department of the
Interior’s Fiscal Terms for Qil, Gas, and Coal Leases Can Ensure a Fair Return to the American Public.
Institute for Policy Integrity, New York University School of Law (June 2015). Available at:
https://policyintegrity.org/publications/detail/harmonizing-preservation-and-production/

Michael LeVine, Peter Van Tuyn and Layla Hughes, Oil and Gas in America's Arctic Ocean: Past
Problems Counsel Precaution, 37 Seattle U. Law Review 1271 (2014). Available at:
https://digitalcommons.law.seattleu.edu/sulr/vol37/iss4/7/

Michael LeVine, Andrew Hartsig and Maggie Clements, What About BOEM? The Need to Reform the
Regulations Governing Offshore Qil and Gas Planning and Leasing, 31 Alaska Law Review 231 (2014).
Available at:
https://alr.law.duke.edu/article/what-about-boem-the-need-to-reform-the-regulations-governing-
offshore-oil-and-gas-planning-and-leasing-levine-vol31-iss2/

Michael LeVine and Andrew Hartsig, Modernizing Management of Offshore Qil and Gas in Federal
Waters, 49 Environmental Law Reporter 10452 (2019). Available at:
https://oceanconservancy.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/LeVine-and-Hartsig-Modernizing-OCS-

Qil-and-Gas.pdf

Andrew Hartsig, Michael LeVine, Jayni Foley Hein and Peter Schwartz, Next Steps to Reform the
Regulations Governing Offshore Qil and Gas Planning and Leasing, 33 Alaska Law Review 1 (2016).
Available at:
https://alr.law.duke.edu/article/next-steps-to-reform-the-regulations-governing-offshore-oil-and-gas-
planning-and-leasing-hartsig-vol33-iss1/

Andrew Hartsig, Shortcomings and Solutions: Reforming The Outer Continental Shelf Oil and Gas
Framework in the Wake of the Deepwater Horizon Disaster, 16 Ocean & Coastal Law Journal (2011).
Available at:

https://digitalcommons.mainelaw.maine.edu/oclj/vol16/iss2/4/




David S. Hilzenrath and Nicholas Pacifico, Drilling Down: Big Qil's Bidding, Project on Government
Oversight (February 22, 2018).

Available at:

https://www.pogo.org/investigation/2018/02/drilling-down-big-oils-bidding/

Congressional Research Service and Government Accountability Office Reports:

Congressional Research Service, Five-Year Program for Offshore Oil and Gas Leasing: History and
Program for 2017-22 (updated Aug. 23, 2019). Available at:
https://fas.org/sgp/crs/misc/R44504.pdf

U.S. Government Accountability Office, Federal Oil and Gas Royalties: Additional Actions Could
Improve ONRR's Ability to Assess Its Royalty Collection Efforts, GAO-19-410 (May 2019). Available at:
https://www.gao.gov/assets/gao-19-410.pdf

U.S. Government Accountability Office, Offshore Qil and Gas: Opportunities Exist to Better Ensure a
Fair Return on Federal Resources, GAO-19-531 (Sept. 2019). Available at:
https://www.gao.gov/assets/gao-19-531.pdf

U.S. Government Accountability Office, High Risk Series: Dedicated Leadership Needed to Address
Limited Progress in Most High-Risk Areas, GAO-21-119SP (March 2021). Available at:
https://www.gao.gov/assets/gao-21-119sp.pdf

Arctic Region Reports:

Department of the Interior, Report to the Secretary of the Interior: Review of Shell’s 2012 Offshore Qil
and Gas Exploration Program (March 8, 2013). Available at:
https://www.doi.gov/sites/doi.gov/files/migrated/news/pressreleases/upload/Shell-report-3-8-13-

Final.pdf

Nuka Research & Planning Group, LLC and Pearson Consulting, LLC, Oil Spill Prevention and Response
in the U.S. Arctic Ocean: Unexamined Risks, Unacceptable Consequences. Report Commissioned by
U.S. Arctic Program, Pew Environment Group (November 2010). Available at:
https://www.pewtrusts.org/-/media/legacy/oceans north legacy/page attachments/oil-spill-

prevention.pdf

Pew Charitable Trusts, Arctic Standards: Recommendations on Qil Spill Prevention, Response, and
Safety in the U.S. Arctic Ocean (September 2013). Available at:
https://www.pewtrusts.org/-/media/legacy/oceans north legacy/page attachments/arctic-

7



standards--finalweb.pdf

Frozen Future: Shell’s Ongoing Gamble in the U.S. Arctic (February 2014). Available at:
https://oceana.org/reports/frozen-future-shell’s-ongoing-gamble-us-
arctic? ga=2.157714361.222840498.1617913188-842606494.1612921210

U.S. Coast Guard, Report of Investigation into the Circumstances Surrounding the Multiple Related
Marine Casualties of the MODU KULLUK on December 31, 2012 (December 2013). Available at:
https://www.dco.uscg.mil/Portals/9/DC0O%20Documents/5p/CG-
5PC/INV/docs/documents/Kulluk.pdf




Appendix B: Offshore Oil and Gas Reform Concepts

The Outer Continental Shelf Lands Act (OCSLA) governs management of offshore oil and gas activities in
federal waters. The statute was enacted in 1953 and amended substantially in 1978. Since that time, the
statute has retained its core structure and elements. The Oil Pollution Act of 1990, passed in the wake of
the Exxon Valdez spill, provides additional guidance for response and remediation. Current management
was imported largely from land-based extraction schemes and takes a single-sector approach to
management. A more holistic approach to managing ocean resources would help improve sustainability,
resilience and ocean health. Short of such fundamental change, there are significant opportunities to
improve the management of offshore oil and gas activities within the existing framework.

Some of the problems with the current regime and the potential solutions were made evident in the
wake of the Deepwater Horizon tragedy. Though some progress has been made by the Department of
the Interior and industry, Congress has taken no action to address the shortcomings of OCSLA and
related legislation.

Congress should take action to improve the management of offshore oil and gas activities. The list below
has been compiled from recommendations made by the National Commission on the Deepwater
Horizon and Offshore Drilling, legislation that has been introduced but never passed, and legal/scientific
scholarship. The concepts for reform tier to the existing structure of OCSLA and are grouped according
to the manner in which they would affect that process: general/structural, planning/leasing,
exploration/development, and response/liability. Some of the proposed revisions listed below would
require amendments to the Oil Pollution Act of 1990 (OPA 90); others would require small changes to
the Clean Water Act or tax laws.

General/Structural

There are some fundamental problems with the current management regime, including its priority for
development over sustainable management, lack of direction/opportunity for research and
preparedness, and failure to require consideration of climate change impacts and the need to transition
to renewable energy. Some of these challenges could be addressed through the following changes:

e Establish protection, maintenance, and restoration of coastal and ocean ecosystems as the
paramount OCS policy objective and specify that extraction of mineral resources should be
permitted only when consistent with that priority.

e Use some portion of the revenue generated from leasing and production to create a trust that
would fund ocean research, monitoring and observing. This work could be used to facilitate
planning, establish baselines, and promote protection, restoration and resilience of coastal and
Great Lakes ecosystems.

e Require the Department of the Interior to consider the climate change impacts of decisions,
including the cost of CO, emissions from both authorized activities and downstream activities
(e.g., burning extracted oil and gas).

e Require a full review—akin to the one started under the Obama administration for the coal
leasing program—of the costs and benefits of the existing offshore oil and gas program. Such a
review should include (among other things) climate change impacts, effects on the energy
market, and impacts to the ocean.



Codify the divisions of MMS into BOEM, BSEE and ONRR.

Codify the requirement the four stages of OCSLA are a one-way ratchet, such that areas
excluded in a preceding phase may not be considered in later stages.

Strengthen and clarify National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) practices in the OCS context,
including ensuring appropriate use of tiering (reliance on previous NEPA analyses) and
categorical exclusions (a way of bypassing NEPA analysis for actions that do not have significant
impacts) and clarification of NEPA requirements for each stage of the OCSLA process (including
explaining that an Environmental Impact Statement may be necessary at all four stages of the
process).

Amend the provision describing allowable uses of the Qil Spill Liability Trust Fund (OSLTF) to
o explicitly allow for OSLTF monies to be used for spill preparedness, including scientific
research, monitoring and observing;
o increase funding for Coast Guard operations; and
o add NOAA to the list of agencies eligible to receive funding from OSTLF.

Reinstitute the per-barrel tax at 10 cents per barrel with no sunset provision.

Planning/Leasing

A series of improvements should be made to the five-year planning and leasing stages of the OCSLA
process. Deficiencies in the current process have been made clear by a series of lawsuits and the most
recent draft plan, which reflects a waste of resources and unwillingness to respect the wishes of coastal
states.

Eliminate area-wide leasing unless there is compelling reason to use it. Make the default smaller
sales in high-value areas to increase competition and facilitate environmental analyses.

Codify the requirement to charge rent for leases for the period of time they are unused and to
increase the amount of rent as an incentive to develop or relinquish leases.

Direct a wholesale revision of planning and leasing regulations, which are inadequate and have
not changed substantively since being implemented in the early 1980s.

Clarify the Section 18 balancing process by:

o Establishing standards for the net-benefits calculation;

o Providing guidance on the interaction between the set of three broad factors described
in 43 USC § 1344(a)(1) and the eight more specific factors enumerated in 43 USC §
1344(a)(2);

o Requiring more robust consideration and prioritization of environmental factors and
clarifying that the health of marine ecosystem should be a priority consideration;

o Requiring explicit recognition that exploration and development carries different risks in
different regions (e.g., oil spills behave differently and may present more risks in cold
waters) and that the assessment of risks must be tailored and cannot be one-size-fits all.
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e Prohibit leasing or other activities in specific portions of the OCS either permanently or for a
time certain and/or prohibit the Secretary of Interior from issuing leases on OCS lands that are
adjacent to states that have prohibited OCS oil and gas activities.

e Require a specific level of baseline science, monitoring and observing in areas before
exploration or development can proceed.

e Require a threshold level of infrastructure (e.g., ports, response assets) before leasing is allowed
in OCS areas.

e Ensure appropriate analysis of low probability, high risk events.
Exploration/Development

At the exploration and development stages, changes should focus on improving safety and preparedness
and ensuring that operators pay their fair share and fund needed inspections and science.

e Codify safety regulations developed and finalized during the Obama administration: the 2010
Drilling Safety Rule, SEMS | (2010), SEMS Il (2013), Well Control Rule, Arctic Standards Rule.

e Direct a revision of the regulations governing exploration, which do not provide sufficient
guidance.

e Eliminate the thirty-day window for approval of exploration plans; clarify that an EIS is possible
at the exploration stage and that an exploration plan should not be deemed submitted until the
NEPA process is complete.

e Lower the threshold at which the Secretary of the Interior is required to disapprove an
exploration or development plan such that disapproval is required if the plan would probably
cause unwarranted damage to the marine, coastal, or human environment or if there is not
enough information to determine possible damage.

e Raise royalty rates to ensure that operators pay the true cost of operations including
externalities like the cost of greenhouse gas emissions.

e Implement specific requirements for monitoring, protection of marine mammal populations,
and data availability in areas in which seismic testing is allowed.

e Add public right of action for enforcement of MMPA'’s incidental take provisions.

e Increase funding, including fees on operators, to better provide for:
o necessary safety inspections;
o development of spill prevention and response technologies; and
o hiring, training, and deployment of agency (BOEM, BSEE, NOAA) safety inspectors,
scientists, engineers, etc.
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e Establish regional advisory bodies to provide citizen oversight of oil and gas activities (such as
the Prince William Sound Regional Citizens’ Advisory Committee —http://www.pwsrcac/org/)

Response/Liability

The Deepwater Horizon was the first big spill to occur under the OPA 90 regime put in place after the
Exxon Valdez disaster. The spill made apparent some very significant problems. To address them, the
following steps could be taken:

e Increase or eliminate the $75 million limit on damages for oil spills and consider higher liability
limits for frontier areas and increased penalties for damage or loss of National Wildlife Refuge
assets.

e Impose greater financial responsibility requirements, including insurance requirements, for OCS
operations and facilities.

e Mandate public review and comment on oil spill response plans and ensure that oil spill
response plans are available to the public after they are approved.

e Create substantive spill response requirements for offshore oil and gas operations that include:
o proven response capacity under real-world conditions;
o preparation of a response gap analysis;
o realistic assessment of recovery and remediation; and
o planning for a worst-case discharge (very large oil spill).

e Direct a comprehensive evaluation of oil spill risks and response capacity, including response
gaps and the efficacy and other impacts of existing methods like in situ burning and dispersants.

e Clarify that BSEE has the authority to disapprove inadequate spill response plans and that the
agency may evaluate alternative response mechanisms and the efficacy of proposed response
requirements (this would address the problem made apparent by a Ninth Circuit holding that
the existing requirements are a mere checklist and that the agency lacks discretion to examine
the proposed plan or options to it).

e Establish Arctic-specific standards (akin to those in place for exploration) to ensure that
companies address unique challenges of operating in the Arctic.

e Amend the National Contingency Plan to provide for more opportunities for state and local
input.

e Require public review of preliminary assessments, injury assessments and restoration planning
funded through the Natural Resource Damage Assessment process.

e Eliminate (or raise significantly) the cap on one-time, per-incident payouts under OSLTF.
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

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Ocean Conservancy comments on comprehensive review
Date: Thu, 15 Apr 2021 23:22:13 +0000

Andrew, Mike, and Kathy,

Thank you all so much for the submission. | look forward to reading the comments and will reach out if we have
any questions!

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Andrew Hartsig <ahartsig@oceanconservancy.org>

Sent: Thursday, April 15, 2021 6:48 PM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Cc: Michael LeVine <mlevine@oceanconservancy.org>; Katherine Tsantiris <ktsantiris@oceanconservancy.org>
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




From: "Downes, Nancy" <ndownes@oceana.org>
To: "Knodel, Marissa S" <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Oceana Business Roundtable event - May 25 - 3pm Dress Rehearsal
(optional)
Date: Mon, 24 May 2021 16:00:56 +0000
Inline-Images: image001.png

Excellent, thank you.

From: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Sent: Monday, May 24, 2021 11:49 AM

To: Downes, Nancy <ndownes@oceana.org>

Cc: Hoskins, Diane <Dhoskins@oceana.org>; Davis, Ben <bdavis@oceana.org>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Oceana Business Roundtable event - May 25 - 3pm Dress Rehearsal (optional)

Thank you, Nancy. | should be able to attend, | appreciate you setting it up.

Peace,

Marissa Knodel

Advisor, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
202.538.2415

Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov

From: Downes, Nancy <ndownes@oceana.org>

Sent: Monday, May 24, 2021 11:38 AM

To: Knodel, Marissa S <Marissa.Knodel@boem.gov>

Cc: Hoskins, Diane <Dhoskins@oceana.org>; Davis, Ben <bdavis@oceana.org>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Oceana Business Roundtable event - May 25 - 3pm Dress Rehearsal (optional)

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Ms. Knodel,

My name is Nancy Downes, | am the Field Rep. for Oceana in MA and | am overseeing the June 15t

Business Coalition

roundtable event. Tomorrow, Tuesday, May 25 at 3PM we are having a dress rehearsal to give panelists an opportunity

to meet the other panelists, test out technology and do an abbreviated run-through of the event.

Your presence is welcome, but also optional. Pasted below, for your convenience, is your unique Zoom webinar
panelist link.



Quick question - Do you plan on sharing slides during your presentation?
Please do not hesitate to reach out with any questions or concerns.
Thank you,

Nancy Downes
c. 310-995-7873

Hi Marissa Knodel,
You are invited to a Zoom webinar.

Date Time: Jun 1, 2021 02:00 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada)
Topic National Business Coalition Roundtable Protecting Our Coast and Creating a Thriving Clean Coastal Economy

Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone or Android device

Please click this URL to

Note: This link should not be shared with others; it is unique to you.

Passcode [(YNE)

Description Join us along with Congressman Mike Levin, Senator Ed Markey, and ocean advocacy business leaders for a
roundtable discussion via Zoom that will include an update from local and federal officials, including a representative
from the Biden Administration, on plans regarding the future of offshore oil and gas drilling

Business owners from across the country will share personal stories and discuss the importance of protecting the
national clean coast economy.

Speakers:

* Congressman Mike Levin

* Senator Ed Markey

* Biden Administration advisor to BOEM

* Mayor Everett "Rett" Newton

* BAPAC President, Tom Kies

* BAPPC - Founding member, Vipe Desai

* FGCBC Chair, Robin Miller

* OCEANA - Campaign Director - Offshore Drilling, Diane Hoskins
* OCEANA Field Rep in MA, Nancy Downes

*Qceana is a nonpartisan organization The participation of any political candidate in this event should not be viewed
as a statement endorsing or opposing any candidate. This event is Closed Press.

Or One tap mobile

US +13126266799,,92155205333# or +16468769923,,92155205333#

Or Telephone:



Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):

e —

Webinar ID: (X&)
Participant ID: [()NE)]
Passcode: (NG

International numbers available (X&)

Nancy Downes | Field Representative, Massachusetts

OCEANA e,

¢. (310) 995-7873

ndownes(@oceana.org | usa.oceana.org

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.



From: "Brogan, Gilbert" <GBrogan@oceana.org>
To: "elizabeth. klein@boem.gov" <elizabeth.klein@boem.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Oceana Petition to Reinitiate ESA section 7 Consultations for Vineyard Wind
Date: Fri, 26 May 2023 18:07:32 +0000

Attachments: Oceana Petition to Reinitiate ESA Section 7 Consultations for Vineyard Wind 5-26-
2023.pdf

Inline-Images: image001.png

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Director Klein:

Please accept the attached petition from Oceana for the National Marine Fisheries Service to reinitiate
consultation under Section 7 of the Endangered Species Act for the Vineyard Wind Offshore Energy Project
based on new information published since the current Biological Opinion was published.

A new Biological Opinion must include a new jeopardy opinion on the effects of the Vineyard Wind project on
the continued existence of North Atlantic right whales and Reasonable and Prudent Measure/Alternatives and
Terms and Conditions that include additional avoidance and mitigation measures consistent with the advice
provided in a letter from Dr. Sean Hayes at the NEFSC and more recently by the Fisheries Service in its
comments on the nearby SouthCoast Wind Draft Environmental Impact Statement.

You may also be interested in a related opinion piece Oceana has published
today: https://thehill.com/opinion/energy-environment/4019486-whales-and-offshore-wind-can-coexist-if-we-
give-them-space/

Thank for your prompt attention to this matter.

I look forward to your response.

Gib Brogan

Gib Brogan | Campaign Director

4 Parkland Drive

Wayland, MA 01778 USA

D +1.508.545.0942| M +1.860.961.2482

E gbrogan@oceana.org | W www.oceana.org
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1025 Connecticut Ave., NW Suite 200
Washington, DC 20036

+1.202.833.3900
OCEANA.ORG
May 26, 2023
Michael Pentony Elizabeth Klein
Regional Administrator Director
National Marine Fisheries Service Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
Department of Commerce Department of the Interior
55 Great Republic Drive 45600 Woodland Road
Gloucester, MA 01930 Sterling, VA 20166

RE: Petition to Reinitiate Consultation Under Section 7 of the Endangered
Species Act for Vineyard Wind

Dear Mr. Pentony and Ms. Klein:

Oceana petitions the National Marine Fisheries Service and the Bureau of Ocean Energy
Management, under the First Amendment of the Constitution and the Administrative Procedure
Act,! to reinitiate consultation under Section 7 of the Endangered Species Act for the Vineyard
Wind Offshore Energy Project.

Since the Fisheries Service finalized the current biological opinion for Vineyard Wind in
October 2021, two significant developments occurred that require the Fisheries Service and the
Bureau to reinitiate consultation. First, new studies show that offshore wind turbine presence
affects oceanography and ecosystems in a manner not previously considered. These studies raise
concerns about the potential impacts on North Atlantic right whales and their forage base.
Second, the Fisheries Service recommended new avoidance and mitigation measures, including
asking for a conservation buffer zone for projects adjacent to Nantucket Shoals and expressed
concern that vessel strike mitigation measures like those included for Vineyard Wind may not be
sufficient for a nearby project, SouthCoast Wind.

Based on these developments, the Fisheries Service and the Bureau must reinitiate consultation
and prepare a new biological opinion.

In the updated biological opinion, the Fisheries Service must include a new jeopardy opinion on
the effects of the Vineyard Wind project on the continued existence of North Atlantic right
whales and Reasonable and Prudent Measure/Alternatives and Terms and Conditions that
include additional avoidance and mitigation measures consistent with the advice provided in a

15US.C. § 553(e).
BELIZE BRAZIL CANADA CHILE EUROPEANUNION MEXICO PERU PHILIPPINES UNITED KINGDOM UNITEDSTATES
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letter from Dr. Sean Hayes? and by the Fisheries Service in its comments on the SouthCoast
Wind Draft Environmental Impact Statement.?

This process should proceed immediately to avoid any major delays for Vineyard Wind.

While the Fisheries Service reinitiates and completes consultation, the agencies must require
interim measures to prevent any further irreversible or irretrievable commitment of resources,
including measures necessary to sufficiently guarantee right whales will not be struck by
construction vessels and instituting a moratorium on construction in the conservation buffer zone
until consultation is complete.

BACKGROUND
Oceana’s Campaigns

Oceana is the largest international conservation organization solely focused on protecting the
world’s oceans, with over 1.2 million members and supporters in the United States, including
over 340,000 members and supporters on the East Coast. For over twenty years, Oceana has
campaigned to win strategic, directed campaigns that achieve measurable outcomes to help make
our oceans more biodiverse and abundant.

Addressing climate change is important for oceans, wildlife, and our future. By shifting from
fossil fuel energy to clean, renewable energy sources, the United States can help address this
crisis. Oceana was pleased to see the Biden Administration’s goal to deploy 30 GW of offshore
wind power by 2030 while protecting biodiversity and cultural resources, including imperiled
marine life such as the critically endangered North Atlantic right whale.

Oceana participates in the management of U.S. fisheries, with a particular interest in effective
bycatch minimization and reduction, if not elimination, of fishing gear entanglement-related
death, injury, and harm to protected species, including the North Atlantic right whale. Oceana
also seeks the reduction, if not elimination, of vessel strike-related death, injury, and harm to
right whales. For these reasons, in 2019, Oceana launched a binational campaign in the United
States and Canada to urge the respective governments to effectively enforce environmental laws
to protect this critically endangered species, and Oceana currently campaigns to protect these
whales from their two biggest threats—entanglement in fishing gear and vessel strikes.

For over 15 years, Oceana has also campaigned to oppose expanded offshore oil and gas
exploration and development. Offshore drilling can cause dangerous oil spills and perpetuates
energy development based on fossil fuels. The United States must shift from fossil fuel-based
energy sources to clean energy. Offshore wind can help bridge the transition to our clean energy
future.

2 Letter from Sean A. Hayes, PhD, Chief of Protected Species, NOAA Northeast Fisheries Science Center, to Brian
Hooker, Lead Biologist, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management (May 13, 2022) [hereinafter “Letter from Dr.
Hayes”].

3 Letter from Michael Pentony, Regional Administrator, Greater Atlantic Regional Fisheries Office at the National
Marine Fisheries Service, to Karen J. Baker, Chief, Renewable Energy Programs at the Bureau of Ocean Energy
Management (April 18, 2023) [hereinafter “Letter from Michael Pentony™].
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Oceana supports responsibly sited, built, and operated offshore wind. Proposed offshore wind
projects need to consider, avoid, and mitigate effects to protected species, particularly the
critically endangered North Atlantic right whale, to ensure that wind development will not come
at the expense of the species. Right whales spend most of the year in the waters of New England
and Eastern Canada with mothers migrating south to calve in the U.S. Southeast region. Wind
development in persistent aggregation habitats and calving grounds poses the greatest concern.
Areas where right whales spend less time are likely more appropriate because of the reduced
frequency, intensity, and duration of interactions with potential offshore wind development.

Status of North Atlantic Right Whales

The North Atlantic right whale is one of the most critically endangered large marine mammals in
the world. Since 2010, the right whale population has declined at an alarming rate, and the most
recent population estimate is that approximately 340 whales remain,* with only around 80
reproductively active females remaining.® Since 2017, right whales have been suffering an
Unusual Mortality Event.® As of this petition, 36 right whales were killed, 33 were seriously
injured, and 29 were otherwise injured during the Unusual Mortality Event,” but the real number
impacted by human interactions is likely much larger. Scientists estimate that only about one
third of right whale mortalities are detected.® To have a chance at survival and recovery, less
than one right whale can be lost every year due to human-caused threats.®

Right whale migration routes and foraging areas overlap with some offshore wind leasing areas
along the east coast, making vessel strikes a particular concern. Vessel strikes cause severe
blunt trauma and bleeding, and disproportionately affect right whale mothers, calves, and
juveniles.'® Calves and their mothers, particularly lactating mothers, spend most of their time at
surface depths in close striking range of speeding vessels.

4 Pettis et al., North Atlantic Right Whale Consortium 2022 Annual Report Card (2023), www.narwc.org; Peter
Corkeron, et al., The recovery of North Atlantic right whales, Eubalaena glacialis, has been constrained by human-
caused mortality, R. Soc. OPEN Sci. 5:180892 (Nov. 7, 2018), https://doi.org/10.1098/rs0s.180892.

° Reed et al., Multi-event modeling of true reproductive states of individual female right whales provides new
insights into their decline, FRONT. MAR. ScCl. 9:994481, https://doi.org/10.3389/fmars.2022.994481 (Oct. 6, 2022).

6 NOAA Fisheries, 2017-2023 North Atlantic Right Whale Unusual Mortality Event,

https://www.fisheries noaa.gov/national/marine-life-distress/2017-2023-north-atlantic-right-whale-unusual-
mortality-event (last visited May 1, 2023).

"1d.

8 Pace et al., Cryptic mortality of North Atlantic right whales, Conservation Science and Practice, doi:
10.1111/csp2.346 (Nov. 19, 2020).

® The Potential Biological Removal (PBR) level for NARWS is 0.7 per year. See NAT’L OCEANIC & ATMOSPHERIC
ADMIN., NAT’L MARINE FISHERIES SERV., Draft North Atlantic Right Whale (Eubalaena glacialis): Western
Atlantic Stock, at 17 (2022), https://www fisheries.noaa.gov/national/marine-mammal-protection/marine-mammal-
stock-assessment-reports.

10 Endangered Fish and Wildlife; Final Rule To Implement Speed Restrictions to Reduce the Threat of Ship
Collisions With North Atlantic Right Whales, 73 Fed. Reg. 60,173, 60,174 (October 10, 2008).

11 Dombroski et al., Dive behavior of North Atlantic right whales on the calving ground in the Southeast USA:
implications for conservation, ENDANG. SPECIES RES. 46:35-48 at 43 (2021); Hain et al., Swim speed, behavior, and
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Right whales are also impacted by climate change, which is causing changes in the abundance
and distribution of zooplankton species, including the calanoid copepod.!? Even a moderate
change in right whale prey can negatively impact right whale fitness.*® Since at least 2011, right
whales have been venturing into new areas in search of food, increasing entanglement and vessel
strike risks in areas without protections.'*

The waters of Southern New England have become core year-round habitat for right whales,
establishing a consistent seasonal abundance in the waters south of Cape Cod in the last
decade.® The seasonal abundance has continued, in large part due to climate change, as it has
“led to abundance and distribution changes in the right whale’s primary prey species, [the lipid-
rich zooplankton] C. finmarchicus.”°

THE FISHERIES SERVICE AND THE BUREAU MUST REINITIATE
CONSULTATION FOR VINEYARD WIND

The Bureau and the Fisheries Service must reinitiate consultation to account for significant new
developments. The Fisheries Service must revise the biological opinion to evaluate the new
science on oceanographic and ecosystem impacts and reevaluate its jeopardy conclusion for
North Atlantic right whales or their habitat. The Fisheries Service must also reevaluate the
Reasonable and Prudent Alternatives, Reasonable and Prudent Measures, and Terms and
Conditions in light of its recommendations to the Bureau.

The Bureau first requested Endangered Species Act consultation in December 2018 after finding
in its Biological Assessment that the Vineyard Wind project may affect listed species.?” After
completion of the initial consultation in September 2020, the Bureau requested reinitiation on

movement of North Atlantic right whales (Eubalaena glacialis) in coastal waters of northeastern Florida, USA,
PLOS ONE 8:€54340 (2013); Cusano et al., Implementing conservation measures for the North Atlantic right
whale: considering the behavioral ontogeny of mother-calf pairs, ANIM. CONSERV. 22:228-237 (2019). See also
2008 Vessel Speed Rule, 73 Fed. Reg. at 60,174 (Oct. 10, 2008).

2 Meyer-Gutbrod et al., Climate-associated changes in prey availability drive reproductive dynamics of the North
Atlantic right whale population, Marine Ecology Progress Series 535: 243-258 (Sept. 15, 2015),
https://doi.org/10.3354/meps11372; Erin L. Meyer-Gutbrod, et al., Uncertain recovery of the North Atlantic right
whale in a changing ocean, Global Change Biology 24: 455-464 (Sept. 25, 2017),
https://doi.org/10.1111/gch.13929.

13 van der Hoop et al, Foraging rates of ram-filtering North Atlantic right whales, Functional Ecology 33(3) (May
2019),

https://www.researchgate net/publication/333027464 Foraging rates of ram filtering North Atlantic right whale
S.

14 Meyer-Gutbrod et al., Marine Species Range Shifts Necessitate Advanced Policy Planning: The Case of the North
Atlantic Right Whale, Oceanography 31(2): 19-23 (June 2018), https://doi.org/10.5670/ocean0g.2018.209; Record et
al., Rapid Climate-Driven Circulation of Changes Threaten Conservation of Endangered North Atlantic Right
Whales, Oceanography (June 2019), https://tos.org/oceanography/assets/docs/32-2 record.pdf.

15 O’Brien et al., Repatriation of a historical North Atlantic right whale habitat during an era of rapid climate
change, 12 Sci. Rep. 12407, at 2-3 (July 20, 2022) [hereinafter O’Brien et al.]; Roberts et al., Final Project Report:
Marine Species Density Data Gap Assessments and Update for AFTT Study Area (Nov. 22, 2021).

16 d.

1 BUREAU OF OCEAN ENERGY MANAGEMENT, VINEYARD WIND OFFSHORE WIND ENERGY PROJECT BIOLOGICAL
ASSESSMENT (Dec. 2018).
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May 7, 2021, to consider the effects of surveys added to the project after the consultation.*® The
Fisheries Service finalized the new BiOp on October 18, 2021.%°

The Fisheries Service’s regulations require agencies to reinitiate consultation if any one of four
factors are met.?° The factor relevant to this request is the second, “[i]f new information reveals
effects of the action that may affect listed species or critical habitat in a manner or to an extent
not previously considered.”*

Two developments since the most recent BiOp rise to the level of new information for which the
agencies must reinitiate consultation. First, new studies raised concerns about the potential
impacts of offshore wind on oceanography and ecosystems. The Fisheries Service and its
scientific experts have highlighted these new studies in letters to the Bureau. The studies present
significant new information showing that Vineyard Wind may affect right whales to an extent
not previously considered, and the potential oceanographic and ecosystem effects must be fully
considered in a reinitiated consultation by the agency.

Second, the Fisheries Service recommended the inclusion of a buffer zone around core right
whale habitat and raised concerns about the effectiveness of mitigation measures for vessel
strikes for a nearby project, SouthCoast Wind. The conservation buffer zone recommendation
and the Fisheries Service’s views on the effectiveness of SouthCoast’s mitigation measures
present new information not considered in the current biological opinion. The agencies must
harmonize the Fisheries Service’s views on offshore wind turbines in the area and the
conclusions reached in the current biological opinion by reinitiating consultation.

A. New Studies on the Effects of Offshore Wind Development Must Be
Analyzed in a Revised Biological Opinion

Studies published after the publication of the current biological opinion raise significant concerns
about the potential oceanographic and ecosystem impacts from the presence of offshore wind
turbines. The Fisheries Service highlighted these concerns to the Bureau for effects to North
Atlantic right whales from projects near Nantucket Shoals. The Fisheries Service must include
these studies in a revised biological opinion, as they present new information about the impacts
of Vineyard Wind on North Atlantic right whales that were not considered in the current
biological opinion.

According to a February 2022 study by Nils Christiansen et al. modeling the effects of offshore
wind turbines in the North Sea, offshore wind farms create changes to stratification strength and
currents, and the effects are stronger in clustered wind farms like in the German Bight.?? The
authors found that large-scale dipoles with spatial dimensions of up to hundreds of kilometers

18 4.

¥ .

2050 C.F.R. § 402.16(a).

2150 C.F.R. § 402.16(a)(2).

22 Christiansen et al., Emergence of Large-Scale Hydrodynamic Structures Due to Atmospheric Offshore Wind Farm
Wakes, Front. Mar. Sci. (Feb. 3, 2022), https://www.frontiersin.org/articles/10.3389/fmars.2022.818501/full.
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were formed particularly in the German Bight because wake effects were amplified.?® This is a
large increase over the studies used in the October 2021 BiOp, which found that wake effects
would be limited to within 300 meters of turbines.

The same authors released another study in October 2022 finding that tides play an important
role in the hydrodynamic changes from wind farm wakes, so “it is not only atmospheric
conditions that determine the impact of atmospheric offshore wind farm wakes on the ocean, but
also the regional hydrodynamic conditions in the respective environment.”?* The authors found
that “periodic tidal currents can mitigate the impact of wind speed reduction over time.”?

As to the ecosystem effects, the Fisheries Service noted in the current biological opinion that
planktonic prey could be dispersed around turbines but that there could also be aggregations of
prey in wakes from eddies or if prey are caught in convergent currents.?® The Fisheries Service
nonetheless found that these effects would be “limited spatially and will be patchy throughout
the project footprint.”?” The Fisheries Service noted, however, that as the scale of offshore wind
development increases and more area is occupied by turbines, the impacts may also increase and
affect environmental baselines for future projects.?®

In contrast to the biological opinion, a study by Dorrell et al. from 2022 found that offshore wind
activities would increase mixing in seasonally stratified areas, with the mixing leading to
differences in the functioning of shelf sea ecosystems.?® The study noted that ecosystem changes
would need to be assessed over several years to fully understand the effects. The study noted that
it is unclear whether the changes would result in positive or negative net benefits for regional
ecology.® The study also expressed caution, noting that there will be regional differences based
on oceanography and the build out of offshore wind.!

A study by Ute Daewel and others in the North Sea found that wind wake can lead to large
changes in annual primary production of up to 10 percent near wind farm clusters and in the
broader regions around wind farms.%?

In its letters to the Bureau, the Fisheries Service expressed concern about the potential impacts to
North Atlantic right whales based on the conclusions of these studies. The agencies must

2 d.

24 Christiansen et al., Tidal mitigation of offshore wind wake effects in coastal seas, Front. Mar. Sci. (Oct. 3, 2022),
https://www.frontiersin.org/articles/10.3389/fmars.2022.1006647/full.

% d.

2% BiOp at 299.

271d. at 300.

2 d. at 301.

2 Dorrell et al., Anthropogenic Mixing in Seasonally Stratified Shelf Seas by Offshore Wind Farm Infrastructure,
Front. Mar. Sci. (March 22, 2022), https://www frontiersin.org/articles/10.3389/fmars.2022.830927/full.

0d.

311d. (“The density of offshore wind farms and the regional distribution of mixing and wake-wake interactions
between wind farms will be of critical importance in determining shelf sea response to offshore wind
development.”).

32 Daewel et al., Offshore wind farms are projected to impact primary production and bottom water deoxygenation
in the North Sea, Communications: Earth & Environment (2022), https://doi.org/10.1038/s43247-022-00625-0.
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reinitiate consultation to ensure that this new information is considered in a revised biological
opinion.

B. The Fisheries Service Asked the Bureau to Consider and Include a
Conservation Buffer Zone and Additional Mitigation Measures to Protect
Right Whales from Vessel Strikes

The Fisheries Service’s new position on the adequacy of avoidance and mitigation measures for
offshore wind projects abutting Nantucket Shoals is also significant new information. The
Fisheries Service’s letters raise serious concerns about the adequacy of the avoidance and
mitigation measures included for Vineyard Wind and therefore require the agencies to reinitiate
consultation.

In May of 2022, Dr. Sean Hayes, the Chief of the Protected Species Division of the Northeast
Fisheries Science Center, wrote a letter to the Bureau expressing concern with the potential
effects of offshore wind development on right whales relying in part on the new science
discussed above.® The letter noted that “[d]isturbance to right whale foraging could have
population-level effects on an already endangered and stressed species.”®* The letter went on to
say that “[a]dditional noise, vessel traffic, and habitat modifications due to offshore wind
development will likely cause added stress that could result in additional population
consequences to a species that is already experiencing rapid decline (30% in the last 10 years).”%

Summarizing the new science, much of which was published since the 2021 BiOp, Hayes noted
that the “presence of structures such as wind turbines are likely to result in both local and
broader oceanographic effects, and may disrupt the dense aggregations and distribution of
zooplankton prey through altering the strength of tidal currents and associated fronts, changes in
stratification, primary production, the degree of mixing, and stratification in the water column.”3®
The letter noted that the “scale of impacts is difficult to predict and may vary from hundreds of
meters for local individual turbine impacts to large-scale dipoles of surface elevation changes
stretching hundreds of kilometers.”%’

Relying on the Dorrell study, the Hayes letter found that oceanographic changes from offshore
wind production “may disrupt the dense aggregations and distribution of zooplankton prey
through altering the strength of tidal currents and associated fronts, changes in stratification,
primary production, the degree of mixing, and stratification in the water column.”® In order to
reduce “the potential for negative consequences,” the letter proposed a 20 kilometer conservation
buffer zone between wind development and the Nantucket Shoals 30 meter isobath.*

33 Letter from Dr. Hayes.
3 1d.(emphasis added)

% d.

3 d.

37 1d.

% d.

% d.
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On April 18, 2023, the Fisheries Service reiterated these and other concerns in comments on the
SouthCoast Wind Draft Environmental Impact Statement. The Fisheries Service stated:

[w]ithout the implementation of robust and effective mitigation measures, it is our
view that significant impacts on North Atlantic right whales may occur from
project construction and operation due to direct impacts on North Atlantic right
whales during construction, long-term impacts to foraging as a result of project
operations, and potential mortality or serious injury from vessel strikes over the
life of the project.*°

The Fisheries Service discussed the importance of Nantucket Shoals as primary foraging habitat
for right whales and the Bureau’s lack of analysis of a 20 kilometer conservation buffer.*! After
raising these concerns, the Fisheries Service stated that it is “concerned about [their] ability to
reach a ‘no jeopardy’ conclusion in the pending [Endangered Species Act] consultation for this
project without incorporating mitigation measures designed to avoid and minimize impacts of
construction and operation on North Atlantic right whales.”*?

These concerns are translatable to Vineyard Wind. The Vineyard Wind project abuts Nantucket
Shoals as does SouthCoast and uses similar turbines. And the mitigation measures for Vineyard
Wind to avoid vessel strikes with right whales are similar to those proposed by SouthCoast. For
example, both projects require that all vessels keep a 500 meter distance from right whales, that
all vessels comply with mandatory or voluntary speed restrictions, and that vessels greater than
65 feet, or 19.8 meters operate at 10 knots or less from November 1 through April 30.%3

If the conservation buffer zone is needed as Dr. Hayes pointed out and the avoidance and
mitigation measures for SouthCoast are insufficient as pointed out by the Fisheries Service, then
the agency must reassess the avoidance and mitigation measures for Vineyard Wind. The
agency’s position on other projects is, therefore, significant new information requiring the
Bureau and the Fisheries Service to reinitiate consultation.

ADDITIONAL AVOIDANCE AND MITIGATION MEASURES MUST BE ADOPTED
IN A REVISED BIOLOGICAL OPINION

As discussed above, new information shows that offshore wind projects near Nantucket Shoals
may have effects not anticipated in the current Vineyard Wind Biological Opinion. The agencies
should proceed under a precautionary approach and determine what additional avoidance
measures, like the buffer zone recommended in Dr. Hayes’ letter and in the NMFS comment
letter on SouthCoast, would achieve the goal of reducing risk to right whales. The agencies

40 etter from Michael Pentony.

“d.

42d.

43 BUREAU OF OCEAN ENERGY MANAGEMENT, MAYFLOWER WIND PROJECT DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
STATEMENT: APP’X G, G-15 to G-16 (Feb. 2023) https://www.boem.gov/sites/default/files/documents/renewable-
energy/state-activities/Mayflower DEIS AppG Mitigation Monitoring 508.pdf; NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES
SERVICE, INCIDENTAL HARASSMENT AUTHORIZATION: VINEYARD WIND 1 (July 21, 2021),

https://media.fisheries noaa.gov/2021-07/VW1 20211HA lIssued OPR1.pdf?null=.
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should also include additional vessel strike mitigation measures as highlighted by the Fisheries
Service’s comments on SouthCoast.

As the Supreme Court said, Congress adopted “a policy which it described as ‘institutionalized
caution’” when passing the Endangered Species Act.** The continued decline of the right whale
shows that this policy is just as relevant today as it was 50 years ago when the Act became law.
Even if the effects on right whales from offshore wind turbine presence near Nantucket Shoals
are not certain, uncertainty should weigh in favor of a critically endangered species.

Oceana calls on the agencies to include additional avoidance and mitigation measures, like a
buffer zone in line with the following map, in the Reasonable and Prudent Measures or
Alternatives and the Terms and Conditions of the new biological opinion for Vineyard Wind.

Proposed Conservation

Buffer off Nantucket Shoals

¥... for North Atlantic

S Right Whales

Sound

Locator OCEANA .

4 Tenn. Valley Auth. v. Hill, 437 U.S. 153, 194 (1978).
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The Fisheries Service and the Bureau must also include additional vessel strike mitigation in
light of the Fisheries Service’s comments on the SouthCoast Wind DEIS that the Bureau “should
require additional mitigation measures that would minimize risk of vessel strike.”*® As noted
above, the mitigation measures proposed by SouthCoast are very similar to those required of
Vineyard Wind. If the mitigation measures are not sufficient for SouthCoast, the measures are
likely not enough for Vineyard Wind either. This must be reflected in an updated biological
opinion.

THE AGENCIES MUST IMPLEMENT INTERIM MEASURES TO PREVENT ANY
FURTHER IRREVERSIBLE OR IRRETRIEVABLE COMMITMENT OF RESOURCES
THAT WILL PREVENT NECESSARY AVOIDANCE OR MITIGATION MEASURES

Once the Bureau and the Fisheries Service reinitiate consultation, they must also implement at
least two interim measures to prevent potential harm to North Atlantic right whales: (1) prevent
construction in the conservation buffer zone, and (2) require additional vessel strike mitigation
measures.

Under the Endangered Species Act, federal agencies and permit applicants cannot “make any
irreversible or irretrievable commitment of resources . . . which has the effect of foreclosing the
formulation or implementation of any reasonable and prudent alternative measures.”*® The
agencies should consider both economic and natural resources when looking at the irreversible or
irretrievable commitment of resources.

For the consideration of economic resources, if the agency allows construction to proceed in the
conservation buffer zone during reinitiation, Vineyard Wind will have put significant resources
towards that course of action, and it will take significant economic resources to require the
removal of those turbines within the conservation buffer zone. This could foreclose the
implementation of the conservation buffer zone, which is the exact action the Fisheries Service
needs to assess in an updated biological opinion.

For the consideration of natural resources, the death of a single right whale is irreversible, and
the Fisheries Service has made clear that less than one right whale can die from human related
causes every year in order for the species to have a chance at recovery. If the agencies allow
construction to proceed without interim vessel strike mitigation measures, the agency will be
allowing potential irreversible effects to right whales. And if the agency allows for construction
in the conservation buffer zone during consultation, it may lead to negative ecosystem effects to
right whales that may not reverse quickly enough to prevent effects on the species.

CONCLUSION

North Atlantic right whales are critically endangered, and new studies raise serious concerns
about the effects of projects adjacent to Nantucket Shoals on the species. The Fisheries Service

45 |etter from Michael Pentony.
%16 U.S.C. § 1536(d).
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and its scientific experts have made clear expert recommendations for other projects adjacent to
Nantucket Shoals that are equally applicable to Vineyard Wind. For these reasons, Oceana files
this petition to request that the Fisheries Service and the Bureau reinitiate section 7 consultation
for Vineyard Wind. In the revised biological opinion, the Fisheries Service should include
additional avoidance and mitigation measures, such as a buffer zone and vessel strike mitigation,
in the RPMs/RPAs and terms and Conditions of the Biological Opinion. The agencies should
move forward with this process quickly to avoid major delays to the project, and until
consultation is complete, the agencies should require interim measures to prevent potential harm
to right whales.

Oceana believes the development of renewable energy at scale is critical to the fight against
climate change and supports the Biden Administration’s efforts to responsibly develop the U.S.
Atlantic offshore wind resource. Oceana firmly believes that offshore wind and North Atlantic
right whales can coexist in much of the U.S. Atlantic if — and only if — mitigation is applied
early, often, and correctly. The agencies involved must take a precautionary approach informed
by the latest information and science to protect this species in steep decline.

* * *

Thank you for your time and consideration of this petition for reinitiation of consultation for
Vineyard Wind. If you have any questions about this petition, you may contact me, Gib
Brogan, at gbrogan@oceana.org.

We will continue to be engaged in this process moving forward.

Sincerely,

LA N S

Gib Brogan
Campaign Director
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Subject: [EXTERNAL] Oceana USMCA Art. 24.27 Revised Submission on Enforcement Matters -
North Atlantic Right Whales

Date: Wed, 5 Jan 2022 04:26:07 +0000
Attachments: Oceana - Revised SEM (01-04-2022).pdf
Inline-Images: image001.png

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
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Dear CEC Secretariat:

On behalf of Oceana and Whitney Webber, Oceana’s Campaign Director for Responsible Fishing, please find
Oceana’s USMCA Art. 24.27 Revised Submission on Enforcement Matters (SEM) in the attachment.

As detailed in Oceana’s Revised SEM, the United States is failing to effectively enforce its environmental laws to
adequately protect the critically endangered North Atlantic right whale. Oceana requests that the CEC
Secretariat develop a factual record, as contemplated by Article 24.28, on an expedited basis. A factual record
will clarify the many ways that the U.S. government has failed to effectively enforce its environmental laws
specifically designed to protect these endangered marine mammals, including from the primary human threats
of vessel strikes and fishing gear entanglement. A factual record will also allow all Parties, especially the United
States and Canada, and the CEC to develop a successful North Atlantic right whale conservation strategy that
encompasses the full range of the species along the Atlantic coast. Considering the dire status of North Atlantic



right whales and the legal requirement based on best available science that less than one North Atlantic right
whale can be killed or seriously injured per year if the species is to recover, we urge the US Government to
immediately and effectively comply with, implement, and enforce all applicable environmental laws, including
the requirement to implement interim emergency management measures

In addition to the attached Revised SEM, please find all accompanying documents (exhibits, courtesy copies of
hyperlinked documents, and courtesy copies of statutory and regulatory provisions) at the following link

« https //oceanaorg_
my sharepoint com/ f /g/personal/acate oceana org/EvixvS5xEd1GgFrtapZHTwWMBwWb5xbEIGH9eTEmMHL
B4pYCA?e igyhA3

Should you have any questions or any difficulty accessing any of these materials, please do not hesitate to email
Whitney Webber at wwebber@oceana org, cc’'ing me acate@oceana org

Thank you for your time and careful consideration of Oceana’s Revised SEM

Sincerely,
Alicia Cate

PS Please direct any/all media inquiries to Megan Jordan at mjordan@oceana org, cc’ing Dustin Cranor at
dcranor@oceana org Thank you!

Alicia Cate | Senior Counsel

OCEANA 7.
1025 Connecticut Ave. NW, Suite 200
Washington, DC 20036 USA
D +1.202.467.1977 | M +1.202.459.3916 | T +1.202.833.3900 | F +1.202.833.2070
E acate@oceana.org | W www.oceana.org
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Protecting the World’'s Oceans

OCEANA

1025 Connecticut Ave., NW Suite 200
Washington, DC 20036
+1.202.833.3900

OCEANA.ORG

January 4, 2022

Submitted via email

Commission on Environmental Cooperation (CEC) Secretariat
Legal Affairs and SEM

700, rue de la Gauchetiére, Bureau 1620

Montreal, Quebec

Canada H38 5M2

Email: sem@cec.org
Re: SEM-21-003 (North Atlantic right whale)—Oceana’s Supplemental Submission
Dear CEC Secretariat:

This supplemental submission clarifies certain parts of Oceana’s USMCA Article 24.27 Submission on Enforcement
Matters dated October 4, 2021, further demonstrating that the United States is failing to effectively enforce its
environmental laws to adequately protect the critically endangered North Atlantic right whale (NARW).

In accordance with the Secretariat’s Determination dated November 4, 2021, this supplemental submission identifies
specific provisions of U.S. environmental law that the United States has failed to effectively enforce, focusing on those
related to collisions between NARWSs and ships and the entanglement of NARWs in commercial fishing gear. Further,
Annex | of this supplemental submission explains that remedies available under U.S. law have been pursued, and that
related pending proceedings either address distinct issues or will not adequately remedy the matters raised herein.

Oceana respectfully requests your reconsideration of the eligibility of Oceana’s submission, as revised. If you have any
questions, please do not hesitate to reach out to me at the email address below.

Sincerely,

Ut

Whitney Webber

Campaign Director, Responsible Fishing
Oceana

1025 Connecticut Ave., NW, Suite 200
Washington, DC 20036

Email: wwebber@oceana.org
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NOAA Office of Law Enforcement
U.S. Department of Commerce
1315 East-West Highway

Silver Spring, MD 20910

Phone: 301-427-2300

Email: james.landon@noaa.gov

Walker B. Smith

General Counsel

NOAA Office of General Counsel
U.S. Department of Commerce
1401 Constitution Ave., NW
Washington, DC 20230

Phone: 202-482-4080

Email: walker.smith@noaa.gov
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United States — Department of Homeland Security

Alejandro Mayorkas

Secretary of Homeland Security
Department of Homeland Security
2707 Martin Luther King Jr Ave., SE
Washington, DC 20528

Phone: 202-282-8000 (main phone line)

Email:[(JX@®) (Office of Public Affairs)

Admiral Karl L. Schultz

Commandant

United States Coast Guard

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
2703 Martin Luther King Jr. Ave., SE
Washington, DC 20593-7318

Phone: 202-372-3100 (main phone line)

Email: (X))

Vice Admiral Steven D. Poulin

Atlantic Area Commander

United States Coast Guard

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
2703 Martin Luther King Jr. Ave., SE
Washington, DC 20593-7318

Phone: 202-372-3100 (main phone line)

Email: [(YXE)

Rear Admiral Thomas G. Allan, Jr.
Commander First Coast Guard District
408 Atlantic Avenue

Boston, MA 02110

Phone: 617-223-8515

Email: (X))

Rear Admiral Lara M. Dickey
Commander Fifth Coast Guard District
431 Crawford Street

Portsmouth, VA 23704

Phone: 757-398-6441

Email: [(YXE)
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Rear Admiral Eric C. Jones

Commander Seventh Coast Guard District
Brickell Plaza Federal Building

909 SE 1% Avenue

Miami, FL 33131-3050

Phone: 305-415-6670

Email: [(YXE)

United States — Department of Interior

Deb Haaland

Secretary of Interior

U.S. Department of Interior

1849 C Street, NW

Washington, DC 20240

Phone: 202-208-3100 (main phone line)

Email: feedback@ios.doi.gov

Email2: Interior Press@ios.doi.gov (Office of Public Affairs)

Amanda Lefton

Director

Bureau of Ocean Energy Management (BOEM)
U.S. Department of Interior

1849 C Street, NW

Washington, DC 20240

Phone: 202-208-3100 (main phone line)
Email: amanda.lefton@boem.gov

Walter Cruickshank, Ph.D.

Deputy Director

Bureau of Ocean Energy Management
U.S. Department of Interior

1849 C Street, NW

Washington, DC 20240

Phone: 202-208-3100 (main phone line)
Email: walter.cruickshank@boem.gov
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United States — Office of the United States Trade Representative

Katherine Tai

U.S. Trade Representative
Office of the United States Trade Representative
Executive Office of the President

600 17th Street, NW

Washington, DC 20508

Phone: 202-395-2870 (main phone line)

Email: (X))
Email2: (KO
Kelly Milton
Assistant U.S. Trade Representative for Environmental and Natural Resources
Office of the United States Trade Representative
Executive Office of the President
600 17th Street, NW

Washington, DC 20508
Phone: 202-395-2870 (main phone line)

Email: [(YXE)

Amanda Mayhew

Deputy Assistant U.S. Trade Representative for Environmental and Natural Resources
Office of the United States Trade Representative

Executive Office of the President

600 17th Street, NW

Washington, DC 20508

Phone: 202-395-2870 (main phone line)

Email: (X))
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About this form

This form guides you on how to prepare a Submission on Enforcement Matters (SEM) under Article
24.27 of the new USMCA/CUSMA Trade Agreement, effective July 1, 2020. The SEM procedures are
similar to the procedures contained in the North American Agreement for Environmental
Cooperation (NAAEC), but there are some differences of which Submitters should be aware. The
NAAEC procedures in Articles 14 and 15 no longer apply to new submissions filed on or after July 1,

2020.

To prepare your submission, read carefully the instructions on how to fill-out this form. Once

Reference number and submission name (to be assigned by the Secretariat):

Submission Form
Part I-Identification

this form again as well.

Important: If your submission is incomplete,
you will receive a determination according to
Article 24.27(3) of the Agreement detailing the
missing information, in which case, you will
need to resubmit your submission. You may use

completed, send it by email to sem@cec.org along with any attachments or links to download them.

You may also send your submission and attachments without using this form via email or to the

following postal address:

CEC Secretariat, Legal Affairs and SEM
700, rue de la Gauchetiére, Bureau 1620

AA i Lo Jo L. da ll20 CAAD

[J 1 want my personal information to remain confidential.

X You may disclose my personal information. If you are an individual, your email and postal addresses will not be made public.

Identification of the Person of a Party filing the submission.

individual. If you are an enterprise, use section B.

1. Last name:

2. First name:

3. Citizenship (or country of permanent residency):

4. Address:

5. Telephone:

6. E-mail:

A. Submitter(s) (individual). Fill this section if you are an

B. Submitter(s) (enterprise). Fill this section if you are

an enterprise of a Party, including a NGO.

7. Name of the entity:

Oceana, Inc. (Oceana)
8. Represented by:

Whitney Webber

Campaign Director, Responsible Fishing
9. Place of incorporation, date and/or registration number:

Oceana, Inc. is a nonprofit organization incorporated
under the laws of the District of Columbia
on March 1, 2001.

10. Address:
1025 Connecticut Ave., NW, Suite 200

Washington, DC 20036
11. Telephone:

202-833-3900
12. E-mail:

wwebber@oceana.org

If there are more submitters, click here to download another Part | form.
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Part lI-Representative(s)

If the Submitter(s) has no representative or no leading organization, please go to Part Ill.

C. Leading organization. Fill below if the Submission is
led by one or more organizations.

D. Representative of the Submitter(s). Fill below if you
have a legal representative

13. Name:

14. Represented by:

15. Place of Incorporation, date and or registration:

16. Address:

17. Telephone:

18. E-mail:

19. Is the representative also one of the Submitters?
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20. Last name:

21. First name:

22. Citizenship (or country of permanent residency):

23. Address:

24. Telephone:

25. E-mail:

If there is more than one leading organization, click here to download Part Il of this form.
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Part llI-Your Submission

E. Party of Concern. Please identify the location of the issues and environmental laws raised in your submission. Your
submission could address more than one party and its environmental laws.

26. To which Party(s) are you addressing your submission?
[] Canada.

[J Mexico.
United States.

F. Environmental law.

27. The Submitter must identify the applicable provision of the statute or regulation, as defined in Article 24.1 of the
Agreement. Prepare a numbered list of the statute(s) or regulation(s) and include the applicable provisions.

1. Marine Mammal Protection Act
a. 16US.C.§1371
i. 16U.S.C.§1371(a)
ii. 16U.S.C. § 1371(a)(5)(E)(i)
b. 16U.S.C. §1375
i. 16 U.S.C. §1375(a)(1)
ii. 16U.S.C. § 1375(b)(1)
c. 16U.S.C.§1377(a)
. 16 U.S.C. §1382(a)
e. 16U.S.C.§1387
i. 16 U.S.C. §1387(a)(1)
ii. 16U.S.C. § 1387(b)(1)
iii. 16 U.S.C. § 1387(c)(3)(A)
iv. 16 U.S.C. §1387(f)(2)
v. 16 U.S.C. § 1387(g)(1)(A)i)

2. Endangered Species Act
a. 16U.S.C. §1533(b)(7)
b. 16 U.S.C. §1536(a)(2)
c. 16U.S.C.§1538
i. 16 U.S.C. § 1538(a)(1)
ii. 16 U.S.C. §1538(a)(1)(B)
d. 16U.S.C. §1540
i. 16 U.S.C. § 1540(a)(1)
ii. 16 U.S.C. §1540(b)
iii. 16 U.S.C. §1540(e)(1)

3. National Environmental Policy Act
a. 42U..C.§4332(2)(C)

4. National Environmental Policy Act Regulations (1978)
a. 40C.F.R.§15014
i. 40C.F.R. §1501.4(b)
ii. 40C.F.R.§1501.4(c)
iii. 40C.F.R. §1501.4(e)
b. 40C.F.R.§1501.7
c. 40C.F.R.§1502.14
i. 40C.F.R. §1502.14(a)
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ii. 40 C.F.R. § 1502.14(b)
d. 40C.F.R.§1502.16(b)
e. 40C.F.R.§1502.24
f. 40 C.F.R. § 1508.25(c)

5. National Environmental Policy Act Regulations (2020)
a. 40C.F.R.§1501.2(a)

40 C.F.R. § 1501.5(a)

40 C.F.R. § 1501.6(a)

40 C.F.R. § 1501.9(a)

40 C.F.R. § 1502.3

40 C.F.R. § 1502.5

ho Qoo o

6. Marine Mammal Protection Act Regulations
a. 50C.F.R.§224.105
b. 50C.F.R. §229.3(a)
c. 50C.F.R.§&229.9(a)

7. Endangered Species Act Regulations
a. 50C.F.R.§402.14
i. 50C.F.R.§402.14(a)
ii. 50C.F.R. §402.14(c)(1)
iii. 50 C.F.R. §402.14(d)
b. 50C.F.R.§424.20
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G. Statement of facts.

28. Make sure that you make reference to the elements listed in this checklist.

Please ensure that the information you enter in this section does not exceed the 15-page limit. Review your text
accordingly. Use the space below to include a succinct account of facts. Please number each paragraph for ease of
reference. You may use hyperlinks to reference supporting information.

1. Please see attached Statement of Facts.
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H. List of accompanying documents.

29. Include full and legible copies of documents referred in your submission. Hyperlinks to download the documents are
admissible too. Use the space below to list the documents in the order cited in your submission. Do not include statutes
or regulations cited in your submission.

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.

15.

Ex. 1, Whale and Dolphin Conservation et al., Petition for Rulemaking to Prevent Deaths and
Injuries of Critically Endangered NARWSs from Vessel Strikes (Aug. 6, 2020)

Ex. 2, United States Coast Guard, Port Access Route Study: Seacoast of New Jersey Including
Offshore Approaches to the Delaware Bay (2021)

Ex. 3, United States Coast Guard, Draft Port Access Route Study: Northern New York Bight
(2021)

Ex. 4, Oceana, Comment on Notice of Availability of Draft Report on the Port Access Route
Study: Northern New York Bight (Aug. 30, 2021)

Ex. 5, Oceana, Comments on Taking of Marine Mammals Incidental to Commercial Fishing
Operations; Atlantic Large Whale Take Reduction Plan Regulations; Atlantic Coastal Fisheries
Cooperative Management Act Provisions; American Lobster Fishery; 85 Fed. Reg. 86,878
(December 31, 2020); Dkt. No. 201221-0351; RIN 0649-BJ09 and the related Draft
Environmental Impact Statement (March 1, 2021)

Ex. 6, Oceana Comment Letter on Atlantic Large Whale Take Reduction Plan Scoping (Sept. 16,
2019)

Ex. 7, Complaint, Whale and Dolphin Conservation, et al. v. National Marine Fisheries Service, et
al., No. 21-cv-112 (D.D.C.), ECF No. 1 (Jan. 13, 2021)

Ex. 8, Oceana, Comment Letter on Vessel Speed Rule Assessment (Mar. 26, 2021)

Ex. 9, Oceana, Comment Letter on Port Access Route Study: Seacoast of New Jersey Including
Offshore Approaches to the Delaware Bay (Nov. 10, 2020).

Ex. 10, Amended Complaint, Center for Biological Diversity, et al. v. Gina Raimondo, et al., No.
18-cv-112 (D.D.C.), ECF No. 170 (Sept. 17, 2021)

Ex. 11, Complaint, Center for Biological Diversity, et al. v. Gina Raimondo, et al., No. 18-cv-112
(D.D.C.), ECF No. 1 (Jan. 18, 2018)

Ex. 12, Complaint, Maine Lobsterman’s Association v. National Marine Fisheries Service, et. al,
No. 21-cv-2509 (D.D.C), ECF No. 1 (Sept. 21, 2021)

Ex. 13, Oceana, Comment Letter on Draft BiOp (Feb. 19, 2021)

Ex. 14, Oceana, Notice Letter to U.S. Government Regarding USMCA Article 24.27 Submission
on Enforcement Matters Due to Failures to Effectively Comply with, Implement, or Enforce
Environmental Laws (Aug. 18, 2021)

Please also see hyperlinks in footnotes to the Statement of Facts and Annex I
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1. This revised USMCA Article 24.27 Submission on Enforcement Matters (Revised SEM) clarifies Oceana’s USMCA
Article 24.27 Submission on Enforcement Matters dated October 4, 2021 (Initial SEM). This Revised SEM identifies
specific provisions of U.S. environmental law that the United States has failed to effectively enforce with respect to the
critically endangered North Atlantic right whale (NARW). Annex | demonstrates that remedies available under U.S. law
have been pursued, and also explains that pending proceedings related to the enforcement matters discussed in this
Revised SEM either address distinct issues or will not remedy the matters addressed herein.

2. This Revised SEM has two parts. Part | discusses the U.S. Government’s failure to effectively enforce its
environmental laws with respect to collisions between NARWSs and ships, typically called “vessel strikes.” Part Il
discusses the U.S. Government’s failure to effectively enforce its environmental laws with respect to the entanglement
of NARWSs in commercial fishing gear.

l. FAILURE TO ENFORCE ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS RELATED TO VESSEL STRIKES

A. The U.S. Government Has Failed to Effectively Enforce the Vessel Speed Rule

3. In 2008, the U.S. Fisheries Service promulgated the Vessel Speed Rule, codified at 50 C.F.R. § 224.105. The Vessel
Speed Rule imposes a 10-knot speed limit on vessels 65 feet or greater in length in certain areas and at certain times
where NARWSs were once known to congregate.? Because the Vessel Speed Rule is barely enforced, however, vessel
strikes remain the single leading cause of NARW deaths, accounting for over half of the known or suspected causes of
NARW mortalities since 2017.3

4. This inadequate enforcement effort constitutes a failure by the U.S. Government to effectively enforce its
environmental laws. The CEC determined that the Vessel Speed Rule qualifies as environmental law under the USMCA.*
Separately, 16 U.S.C. 1540(e)(1) and 16 U.S.C. § 1377(a) require the U.S. Government to enforce regulations, such as the
Vessel Speed Rule, that implement the Endangered Species Act’s (ESA’s) prohibition of “taking” endangered species and
the Marine Mammal Protection Act’s (MMPA’s) moratorium on “taking” marine mammals.®

5. The ESA and the MMPA give U.S. federal agencies a clear mandate to enforce the Vessel Speed Rule. The Fisheries
Service promulgated the Vessel Speed Rule by invoking its authority under the ESA and the MMPA.® 16 U.S.C. §
1540(e)(1) provides that regulations issued pursuant to the ESA “shall be enforced” by the relevant U.S. Government

! Final Rule to Implement Speed Restrictions to Reduce the Threat of Ship Collisions with NARWSs, 73 Fed. Reg. 60173 (Oct. 10, 2008)
(promulgating the Vessel Speed Rule), https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2008/10/10/E8-24177/endangered-fish-and-
wildlife-final-rule-to-implement-speed-restrictions-to-reduce-the-threat-of-ship; Final Rule to Remove the Sunset Provision of the
Final Rule Implementing Vessel Speed Restrictions to Reduce the Threat of Ship Collisions with NARWSs, 78 Fed. Reg. 73726 (Dec. 9,
2013) (making the Vessel Speed Rule permanent), https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2013-12-09/pdf/2013-29355.pdf; 50
C.F.R. § 224.105 (codifying the Vessel Speed Rule).

2 See generally 50 C.F.R. § 224.105.

3 NMFS, 2017-2020 NARW Unusual Mortality Event (Dec. 6, 2021), https://www.fisheries.noaa.gov/national/marine-life-distress/2017-
2021-north-atlantic-right-whale-unusual-mortality-event.

4 Commission for Environmental Cooperation [CEC], Secretariat Determination in Accordance with Articles 24.27(2) and (3) of the
United States-Mexico-Canada Agreement, SEM-21-003 (Nov. 4, 2021) [hereinafter, “CEC Determination”], 9 28(c).

516 U.S.C. § 1540(e)(1) (“The provisions of this chapter and any regulations or permits issued pursuant thereto shall be enforced by
the Secretary [of Commerce], the Secretary of the Treasury, or the Secretary of the Department in which the Coast Guard is operating,
or all such Secretaries.”); 16 U.S.C. § 1377(a) (“Except as otherwise provided by [the MMPA], the Secretary [Of Commerce] shall
enforce the provisions of [the MMPA]”).

® Final Rule to Implement Speed Restrictions to Reduce the Threat of Ship Collisions with NARWSs, 73 Fed. Reg. 60173, 60182.
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agency or agencies (e.g., Commerce, Treasury, and/or Homeland Security).” Similarly, 16 U.S.C. § 1377(a) provides that
the Secretary of Commerce “shall enforce” the MMPA.2

6. The ESA and the MMPA also authorize federal agencies to impose penalties for violating the Vessel Speed Rule. For
civil penalties under the ESA, 16 U.S.C. § 1540(a)(1), as amended by 15 C.F.R. § 6.3(f)(14) (Jan. 15, 2021), authorizes up
to $54,524 for each violation of “any regulation issued in order to implement” the ESA’s prohibition on “taking”
endangered species.’ Criminal penalties under the ESA, laid down in 16 U.S.C. § 1540(b) (as amended by 18 U.S.C. §
3571(b)(5)), include fines of up to $100,000 and imprisonment for up to one year.° Similarly, 16 U.S.C. § 1375(a)(1), as
amended by 15 C.F.R. § 6.3(f)(11) (Jan. 15, 2021), authorizes civil penalties of up to $30,107 for violations of the
MMPA.X Criminal penalties under the MMPA, set out in 16 U.S.C. § 1375(b)(1) (as amended by 18 U.S.C. § 3571(b)(5)),
include up to $100,000 or up to one year of imprisonment for each violation of any regulation issued under the MMPA.*?

7. The U.S. Government has failed to effectively enforce the Vessel Speed Rule. Collectively, the Fisheries Service, the
National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration Office of Law Enforcement and Office of General Counsel, and the
U.S. Coast Guard prosecuted fewer than ten civil enforcement actions arising out of violations of the Vessel Speed Rule
in any year since 2010 with the exception of 2013 and 2014, which had 13 and 17 enforcement actions respectively.:
U.S. federal agencies undertook no enforcement actions whatsoever in 2016, and they undertook no actions throughout
several seasons in other years as well, including January-June 2020, July-December 2018, July-December 2017, July-
December 2015, and January-June 2011.%

8. This utter lack of enforcement was not for lack of violations. Violations of the Vessel Speed Rule are rampant.
When Oceana analyzed non-compliance with the Vessel Speed Rule between 2017 and 2020, it found that compliance in
Seasonal Management Areas (SMAs) ranged from 67.3% to 10.4% and cooperation in Dynamic Management Areas
(DMAs) ranged from 51.5% to 16.4%.® These rates represent thousands of violations per year.'” Several of these

716 U.S.C. § 1540(e)(1) (“The provisions of this chapter and any regulations or permits issued pursuant thereto shall be enforced by
the Secretary [of Commerce], the Secretary of the Treasury, or the Secretary of the Department in which the Coast Guard is operating,
or all such Secretaries.”).

816 U.S.C. § 1377(a) (“Except as otherwise provided by [the MMPA], the Secretary [of Commerce] shall enforce the provisions of [the
MMPA]”).

916 U.S.C. § 1540(a)(1), as amended by 15 C.F.R. § 6.3(f)(14) (Jan. 15, 2021). The CEC determined that 16 U.S.C. § 1540(a)(1) qualifies
as environmental law under the USMCA. CEC Determination, 9 33(e)(i). Amending provisions to update penalty amounts may, at a
minimum, be considered “relevant legal instruments and may be referenced in the enforcement review.” Id. at 9 58-61.

1016 U.S.C. § 1540(b)(1), as amended by 18 U.S.C. § 3571(b)(5). The CEC determined that 16 U.S.C. § 1540(b)(1) qualifies as
environmental law under the USMCA. CEC Determination, 9 33(e)(ii).

116 U.S.C. §1375(a)(1), as amended by 15 C.F.R. § 6.3(f)(11) (Jan. 15, 2021). The CEC determined that 16 U.S.C. § 1375(a)(1) qualifies
as environmental law under the USMCA. CEC Determination, § 25(b).

1216 U.S.C. § 1375(b) (providing criminal penalties). The CEC determined that 16 U.S.C. § 1375(b) qualifies as environmental law
under the USMCA. CEC Determination, 9 25(c).

13 nitial SEM, 99 39-40.

14 nitial SEM, 9 39.

15 See Oceana, Speeding Toward Extinction: Vessel Strikes Threaten NARWs (July 2021) [hereinafter, “Speeding Toward Extinction”], 4—
5, 21-37, https://usa.oceana.org/wp-content/uploads/sites/4/4046/narw-21-

0002 narw ship speed compliance report m1 digital singlepages doi web.pdf. The Oceana report describes rates of non-
compliance.

16 d. at 21, 32.

71d. at 25, 32.
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violations are flagrant, with top speeds reaching 40 knots—four times the Vessel Speed Rule’s limit. 18

9. Ships that violate the Vessel Speed Rule pose grave risks to NARWSs. As the Fisheries Service itself recognizes, the
probability of a vessel strike killing a NARW “increase[s] rapidly and in a non-linear manner as vessel speed
increase[s].”*® A vessel strike will kill a whale 60 to 80 percent of the time when the ship is travelling at 14 knots, and a
vessel strike is certain to kill a whale when the ship is travelling at 20 knots.?

10. Despite a statutory mandate to enforce the Vessel Speed Rule, and despite rampant violations of it, U.S. federal
agencies have failed to effectively enforce the Vessel Speed Rule. Their neglect qualifies as a failure to effectively
enforce U.S. environmental laws.

B. The U.S. Government Has Failed to Effectively Enforce the MIMIPA and the ESA by Failing to Update the
Vessel Speed Rule

11. The U.S. Government has also failed to effectively enforce its environmental laws by failing to update the Vessel
Speed Rule. Section 9 of the ESA, codified at 16 U.S.C. § 1538, and Section 101 of the MMPA, codified at 16 U.S.C. §
1371, prohibit vessel strikes with NARWSs.?! Additionally, 16 U.S.C. § 1382(a) requires (and 16 U.S.C. § 1540(f) grants
ample authority for) the U.S. Government to issue regulations to protect and prevent vessel strikes. Despite these
statutory mandates—and ample evidence that the Vessel Speed Rule is outdated and overly narrow—the U.S.
Government has failed to update the Vessel Speed Rule since making that rule permanent in 2013. This regulatory
neglect constitutes a failure by the U.S. Government to effectively enforce its environmental laws.

12. 16 U.S.C. § 1538(a)(1)(B), a provision of the ESA, prohibits vessel strikes with NARWSs. That section makes it unlawful
to “take any [endangered species] within the United States or the territorial sea of the United States.”?? Since the ESA
defines “take” broadly—meaning to “harass, harm, pursue, hunt, shoot, wound, kill, trap, capture, or collect, or to
attempt to engage in any such conduct”2—and since NARWs are listed as endangered under the ESA,?* any vessel strike
of NARWSs in U.S. waters constitutes a “take” of an endangered species in violation of 16 U.S.C. §1538(a)(1)(B).

13. The ESA directs the U.S. Government to promulgate regulations to enforce the ESA, including its prohibition of

8 d. at 33.

¥ Final Rule to Implement Speed Restrictions to Reduce the Threat of Ship Collisions with NARWS, 73 Fed. Reg. 60173, 60176 (Oct.
10, 2008), https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2008/10/10/E8-24177/endangered-fish-and-wildlife-final-rule-to-implement-
speed-restrictions-to-reduce-the-threat-of-ship.

20 d.,

21 See 16 U.S.C. § 1538(a)(1)(B) (making it illegal to “take” endangered species within the United states or the territorial seas of the
United States); 16 U.S.C. § 1371(a) (establishing a moratorium on the “taking” of marine mammals). The Endangered Species Act
defines “take” as “to harass, harm, pursue, hunt, shoot, wound, kill, trap, or collect, or attempt to engage in any such conduct.” 16
U.S.C. § 1532(19). Similarly, the MMPA defines “take” as “to harass, hunt, capture, or kill, or attempt to harass, hunt capture, or kill
any marine mammal.” 16 U.S.C. § 1362(13). “Take” is defined in the MMPA regulations to include “the negligent or intentional
operation of an aircraft or vessel, or the doing of any other negligent or intentional act which results in disturbing or molesting a
marine mammal.” 50 C.F.R. § 216.3. NARWs are listed as endangered species under the ESA and are marine mammals under the
MMPA. See 50 C.F.R. § 17.11 (listing the NARW as an endangered species under the ESA); 16 U.S.C. § 1362(6) (defining “marine
mammal” under the MMPA to include “members of the order Cetacea”).

2216 U.S.C. § 1538(a)(1)(B). The CEC determined that 16 U.S.C. § 1538(a)(1) qualifies as environmental law under the USMCA. CEC
Determination, 9§ 33(c).

2 See 16 U.S.C. § 1532(19).

24 See 50 C.F.R. § 17.11 (listing the NARW as an endangered species).
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vessel strikes.?> When crafting these regulations, the U.S. Government must prioritize the protection of endangered
species, “whatever the cost.”?® As the U.S. Supreme Court observed in Tennessee Valley Authority v. Hill, the ESA is the
“most comprehensive legislation for the preservation of endangered species ever enacted by any nation.”?” Through the
ESA, the U.S. Congress “has spoken in the plainest of words, making it abundantly clear that the balance has been struck
in favor of affording endangered species the highest of priorities . .. .”?®

14. The first paragraph of 16 U.S.C. § 1371(a), a provision of the MMPA, also prohibits vessel strikes with NARWs. That
section establishes a moratorium—*“a complete cessation”?—on the “taking”3’ of marine mammals.3! As members of
the order Cetacea, NARWSs are “marine mammals” under the MMPA.3? Moreover, to “take” under the MMPA includes
“to harass, hunt, capture, or kill, or attempt to harass, hunt capture, or kill any marine mammal,”3? as well as “the
negligent or intentional operation of an aircraft or vessel, or the doing of any other negligent or intentional act which
results in disturbing or molesting a marine mammal.”** Thus, each vessel strike of a NARW constitutes a “take” of an
endangered marine mammal in violation of the first paragraph of 16 U.S.C. § 1371(a).

15. 16 U.S.C. § 1382(a), a provision of the MMPA, requires the U.S. Government to issue regulations that enforce the
MMPA’s moratorium. Specifically, 16 U.S.C. § 1382(a) states that the Secretary of Commerce “shall prescribe such
regulations as are necessary and appropriate to carry out the purposes of [the MMPA].”3> Such regulations must reflect
the MMPA'’s policy that that marine mammals “should be protected and encouraged to develop to the greatest extent
feasible . ..."%

16. Despite petitions filed by Oceana and other non-profit organizations that amply document how revisions to the
Vessel Speed Rule could prevent collisions with NARWSs, which are discussed in Annex I, the Fisheries Service has not
updated the Vessel Speed Rule since making the rule permanent in 2013.3 More specifically, the Fisheries Service has
failed to: (1) expand and establish new SMAs, in which covered vessels must comply with the Vessel Speed Rule; (2)
make compliance with the Vessel Speed Rule mandatory in DMAs; (3) expand the Vessel Speed Rule so that it covers
vessels under 65 feet in length; (4) mandate that vessels under 65 feet in length use automatic identification systems;
and (5) narrow federal agencies’ exemptions from the Vessel Speed Rule. By failing to update the Vessel Speed Rule in

2516 U.S.C. §1540(f) (“The Secretary [of Commerce] . . . [is] authorized to promulgate such regulations as may be appropriate to
enforce [the ESA].”)

26 Tennessee Valley Auth. v. Hill, 437 U.S. 153, 184 (1978).

27 |d. at 184.

28 |d. at 194.

2216 U.S.C. § 1362(8) (defining “moratorium”).

30 See 16 U.S.C. § 1362(13) (defining “taking).

31 See 16 U.S.C. § 1371(a) (establishing the moratorium). The CEC determined that 16 U.S.C. § 1371(a) qualifies as environmental law
under the USMCA. CEC Determination, 9 25(a).

32 See 16 U.S.C. § 1362(6) (defining “marine mammal” to include “members of the order Cetacea”).

%16 U.S.C. § 1362(13).

3450 C.F.R. §216.3.

3516 U.S.C. § 1382(a). The CEC determined that 16 U.S.C. § 1382(a) qualifies as environmental law under the USMCA. CEC
Determination, 9 25(d).

3616 U.S.C. § 1361(6) (emphasis added).

37 Since the 2013 amendment to the Vessel Speed Rule merely made the rule permanent, the Vessel Speed Rule in place today is
substantially identical to the Vessel Speed Rule as enacted in 2008 —over 13 years ago. See Final Rule to Remove the Sunset Provision
of the Final Rule Implementing Vessel Speed Restrictions to Reduce the Threat of Ship Collisions with NARWSs, 78 Fed. Reg. 73,726
(Dec. 9, 2013) (making the Vessel Speed Rule permanent), https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2013-12-09/pdf/2013-29355.pdf
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these ways, the Fisheries Service has failed to effectively enforce 16 U.S.C. §§ 1538(a)(1)(B), 1371(a), and 1382(a).

17. First, the Fisheries Service has failed to expand the Vessel Speed Rule’s SMAs. Since 2008, new evidence has come to
light that shows that NARWSs are prevalent in areas and at times that are not protected by the current SMAs. This
evidence calls for expanding SMAs in four different ways. First, studies have shown that the NARW’s range has shifted in
response to climate change, such that NARWs live year-round in the waters east of the entrance to the Port of New
York/New Jersey and south of Martha’s Vineyard and Nantucket.3 The SMAs outside of the Ports of New York/New
Jersey and the Block Island SMA should be expanded accordingly. Second, new data shows that NARWSs use the area off
the Port of Virginia year-round, and shipping traffic in that area has increased. The SMA off the Port of Virginia should be
made effective year-round, and it should be expanded by an additional nautical 25 miles so that it covers the locations at
which vessel strikes are most likely.?® Third, additional studies have confirmed that 30 nautical miles from shore is the
minimally protective distance for an SMA.*® All SMAs that do not meet this range, including several SMAs in the mid-
Atlantic and southeast regions of the United States, should be expanded to meet it.*! Finally, new data shows that
NARWs are present in the SMA off Race Point, Massachusetts through May 15.%2 Accordingly, the duration of the SMA
off Race Point should be expanded so that NARWSs are protected between January 1 and May 15.

18. Second, the Fisheries Service has failed to make compliance with the Vessel Speed Rule mandatory in DMAs.
Because compliance with the Vessel Speed Rule in DMAs is voluntary, mariners routinely disregard it. In 2012, the
Fisheries Service found that DMAs “had only modest, if any” impact on the rate of vessel strikes, since the Vessel Speed
Rule was so routinely disregarded within them.*® Similarly, in 2017, the agency found that compliance within DMAs was
“poor.”* A 2019 Fisheries Service study pinpointed why: “conservation measures without consequence [are] not
effective.”®

19. Third, the Fisheries Service has failed to make the Vessel Speed Rule applicable to vessels that are under 65 feet in
length. Vessels under 65 feet in length have caused a majority of the observed collisions between NARWSs and ships. 4
Thus, almost certainly, vessels under 65 feet in length have killed several NARWs. The Vessel Speed Rule will not prevent

38 N. Record et al., Rapid Climate-Driven Circulation Changes Threaten Conservation of Endangered NARWSs 32 OCEANOGRAPHY 162
(2019), https://tos.org/oceanography/assets/docs/32-2 record.pdf; see also Ex. 1, Whale and Dolphin Conservation et al., Petition for
Rulemaking to Prevent Deaths and Injuries of Critically Endangered NARWs from Vessel Strikes (Aug. 6, 2020) [hereinafter, “2020
Petition”], 15-21.

3% Whale and Dolphin Conservation, 2020 Petition, 21-22.

40 See G.K. Silber and S. Bettridge, An Assessment of the Final Rule to Implement Vessel Speed Restrictions to Reduce the Threat of
Vessel Collisions with NARWSs, U.S. Department of Commerce, NOAA Technical Memorandum NMFS-OPR-48 (Feb. 2012), at 42
[hereinafter, “2012 Ship Speed Rule Analysis”], https://repository.library.noaa.gov/view/noaa/4207; D.W. Laist et al., Effectiveness of
Mandatory Vessel Speed Limitations for Protecting NARWS, 23 ENDANG. SPECIES RES. 133—47, 144 (2014), http://www.int-
res.com/articles/esr o0a/n023p133.pdf.

41 Whale and Dolphin Conservation, 2020 Petition, 22—-23.

421d. at 24.

43 Silber and Bettridge, 2012 Ship Speed Rule Analysis, 36.

4 Fisheries Service, North Atlantic Right Whale (Eubalaena glacialis) 5-Year Review: Summary and Evaluation 18 (Oct. 2017),
https://repository.library.noaa.gov/view/noaa/17809; see also Fisheries Service, North Atlantic Right Whale (Eubalaena glacialis):
Vessel Speed Rule Assessment 35 (June 2020) (noting “discrete areas of poor compliance”),
https://www.fisheries.noaa.gov/national/endangered-species-conservation/reducing-vessel-strikes-north-atlantic-right-whales.

4 Tim Cole et al., Ships Do Not Comply with Voluntary Whale Protection Measures in Northeast USA Waters, Presentation at the 2019
World Marine Mammal Conference, Dec. 9-12, 2019, https://www.wmmconference.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/02/WMMC-Book-
of-Abstracts-3.pdf.

46 \Whale and Dolphin Conservation, 2020 Petition, 7.
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mortality and serious injury to NARWs in the future if it is not expanded to cover vessels under 65 feet in length.

20. Fourth, the Fisheries Service has failed to require vessels under 65 feet in length to use an automatic identification
system under the Vessel Speed Rule. Automatic identification systems would help the agency and external observers
such as Oceana monitor whether vessels comply with the Vessel Speed Rule.?

21. Fifth, the Fisheries Service has failed to narrow the Vessel Speed Rule’s exemptions for federal agencies. According
to a 2004 review of the Large Whale Ship Strike Database, U.S. Navy and Coast Guard vessels were responsible for 17.1%
and 6.7% of collisions with whales, respectively.*® Currently, the Vessel Speed Rule provides a blanket exemption to
federal vessels, an exemption that holds regardless of the federal agency, the vessel’s type, or the vessel’s activities.*
This exemption is overly broad. It covers not only vessels that are responding to active emergencies, but countless other
vessels as well. Moreover, as the Vessel Speed Rule itself shows, a more tailored exemption is workable. Under the
current Vessel Speed Rule, state law enforcement vessels are exempt only if they are engaged in law enforcement or
search-and-rescue activities.*®

22. Without these updates to the Vessel Speed Rule, the United States will continue to fail to prevent deaths and
serious injuries to NARWs from vessel strikes. 16 U.S.C. §§ 1538(a)(1)(B), 1371(a), and 1382(a) prohibit such vessel
strikes and require the Fisheries Service to issue regulations preventing them. The Fisheries Service’s failure to update
the Vessel Speed Rule thus qualifies as a failure of the U.S. Government to effectively enforce its environmental laws.

C. The U.S. Government Has Failed to Effectively Enforce the ESA and NEPA by Failing to Adequately
Consider Consequences for NARWS in the U.S. Coast Guard’s Port Access Route Studies

23. U.S. environmental law imposes procedural requirements on federal agencies to ensure that they take a “hard look”
at the environmental consequences of their actions.>! One such requirement is the ESA’s consultation requirement,
codified at 16 U.S.C. § 1536(a)(2), which mandates that each federal agency must consult with the Fisheries Service
and/or the Fish and Wildlife Service (FWS) to ensure that each of its actions “is not likely to jeopardize the continued
existence of any endangered species or threatened species.”>? A second procedural requirement is established by the
primary operational provision of the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), codified at 42 U.S.C. § 4332(2)(C).*3 This
provision of NEPA requires every federal agency to prepare what has come to be known as an environmental impact
statement (EIS) for “major Federal actions significantly affecting the quality of the human environment.”> In developing
the Port Access Route Studies (PARS) for the Seacoast of New Jersey Including Offshore Approaches to the Delaware Bay

47 Oceana, Speeding Toward Extinction, at 41.

48 |d. Navy and Coast Guard vessels might report strikes at a higher rate than other vessels. /d.

49 See 50 C.F.R. § 224.105(a) (“These restrictions shall not apply to U.S. vessels owned or operated by, or under contract to, the
Federal Government.”).

0d.

51 Robertson v. Methow Valley Citizens Council, 490 U.S. 332, 350 (1989) (“The sweeping policy goals announced in § 101 of NEPA are
thus realized through a set of ‘action-forcing’ procedures that require that agencies take a ““hard look” at environmental
consequences’ .. ..”) (quoting Kleppe v. Sierra Club, 427 U.S. 390, 410 n.21 (1976)).

5216 U.S.C. § 1536(a)(2). The CEC determined that the ESA’s consultation requirement qualifies as environmental law under the
USMCA. CEC Determination, 9 33(b).

53 See 42 U.S.C. § 4332(2)(C); see also Jayni Foley Hein & Natalie Jacewicz, Implementing NEPA in the Age of Climate Change, 10 MICH J.
ENVTL. & ADMIN. L. 1, 10 (2020) (labelling 42 U.S.C. § 4332(2)(C) as “the primary operational provision of [NEPA]”),
https://repository.law.umich.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=1113&context=mjeal.

S d.
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and the PARS for the Northern New York Bight, the U.S. Coast Guard has violated both the ESA’s consultation
requirement and NEPA’s primary operational provision, as well as related regulatory requirements.>> Such violations
constitute a failure of the United States to effectively enforce its environmental laws.

24. First, the ESA’s consultation requirement, codified at 16 U.S.C. § 1536(a)(2), provides that:

Each Federal agency shall, in consultation with and with the assistance of the Secretary [of the Interior,
or the Secretary of Commerce with respect to certain marine life], insure that any action authorized,
funded, or carried out by such agency . .. is not likely to jeopardize the continued existence of any
endangered species or threatened species . . . .>®

25. The ESA’s consultation requirement is strict. The agency “must identify any potential effect, however small, on listed
species and consult with the relevant agencies about the proposed action.”®’

26. Regulations promulgated under the ESA’s consultation requirement, codified at 50 C.F.R. § 402.14, provide a specific
procedure by which it is to be implemented.>® They mandate that “[e]ach Federal agency shall review its actions at the
earliest possible time to determine whether any action may affect listed species or critical habitat.”> If such a
determination is made, “formal consultation is required.”®® To initiate formal consultation, the agency must send a
request to the Fisheries Service and/or the FWS, including detailed information about the agency’s proposed action
along with “the best scientific and commercial data available” to enable the Fisheries Service and/or the FWS to assess
the proposed action’s effects on any listed species.5!

27. Second, the main operative provision of NEPA, codified at 42 U.S.C. § 4332(2)(C), enacts an additional process
designed to ensure that federal agencies carefully consider the effects of their actions on the environment.®? NEPA
requires all agencies of the U.S. Government to prepare an EIS when they take “major Federal actions significantly
affecting the quality of the human environment.”® This obligation is expansive. As relevant here, “Federal actions”
include “new or revised agency rules, regulations, plans, policies, or procedures,” as well as the “adoption of formal
plans, such as official documents prepared or approved by federal agencies which guide or prescribe alternative uses of
Federal resources, upon which future agency actions will be based.”% Meanwhile, NEPA’s implementing regulations

% See 16 U.S.C. § 1536(a)(2); 50 C.F.R. § 402.14(a); 50 C.F.R. § 402.14(c)(1); 50 C.F.R. §402.14(d); 42 U.S.C. § 4332(2)(C); 40 C.F.R.

§ 1508.18(a)—(b) (1978); 40 C.F.R. § 1508.11 (1978); 40 C.F.R. § 1501.4(b) (1978); 40 C.F.R. § 1501.4(c) (1978); 40 C.F.R. § 1501.4(e)
(1978).

%616 U.S.C. § 1536(a)(2).

57 Inst. for Fisheries Res. v. United States Food & Drug Admin., 499 F. Supp. 3d 657, 668 (N.D. Cal. 2020).

%850 C.F.R. § 402.14. The CEC determined that 50 C.F.R. § 402.14 qualifies as environmental law under the USMCA. CEC
Determination, 9 36(b).

%950 C.F.R. § 402.14(a).

&0 /d.

6150 C.F.R. § 402.14(c)(1) (establishing the requirement to send a written request to the Fisheries Service); 50 C.F.R. §402.14(d)
(requiring the agency to include the best scientific and commercial data available).

242 U.S.C. §4332(2)(C).

3 d.

6 40 C.F.R. § 1508.18(a)—(b) (1978); see also 40 C.F.R. § 1508.1(q)(2), (3)(ii) (defining “Federal actions” similarly under NEPA
regulations applicable after September 14, 2020). The NEPA regulations were initially enacted in 1978 and were amended as of
September 14, 2020. See 40 C.F.R. § 1506.13 (providing that the new NEPA regulations apply to “any NEPA process begun after
September 14, 2020”). Since the PARS for the Seacoast of New Jersey Including Offshore Approaches to the Delaware Bay and the
PARS for the Northern New York Bight were begun before September 14, 2020, the 1978 NEPA regulations apply to them. See Port
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proclaim that “the human environment” “shall be interpreted comprehensively to include the natural and physical
environment and the relationship of people with that environment.”®°

28. Since an EIS, by statute, must be “detailed,” and since an EIS is required only for “major Federal actions significantly
affecting” the environment, agencies must initially determine whether a particular action triggers NEPA's primary
operative provision.®® If the agency is unsure of whether its action requires an EIS, the agency must complete an
“environmental assessment” (EA), a shorter and less resource-intensive evaluation of the environmental effects of its
action.®” If the environmental assessment indicates that a proposed action will significantly affect the human
environment, the agency must prepare an EIS.%® Otherwise, the agency must make a “finding of no significant impact”
(FONSI).®®

29. The U.S. Coast Guard has violated both of these procedural requirements—the ESA’s consultation requirement and
NEPA’s primary operative provision—in its development of the PARS for the Seacoast of New Jersey Including Offshore
Approaches to the Delaware Bay and the PARS for the Northern New York Bight.”® PARS are studies that the U.S. Coast
Guard uses to designate offshore fairways and traffic separation schemes. In developing the PARS for the Seacoast of
New Jersey Including Offshore Approaches to the Delaware Bay and the PARS for the Northern New York Bight—both of
which will be used to establish sea lanes through the habitat of the NARW—the U.S. Coast Guard failed to consult with
the Fisheries Service and failed to prepare either an EIS or an EA and FONSI, in violation of 16 U.S.C. § 1536(a)(2), 42
U.S.C. § 4332(2)(C), and related regulatory requirements.”*

30. The U.S. Coast Guard violated the ESA’s consultation requirement by failing to consult with the Fisheries Service

Access Route Study: Seacoast of New Jersey Including Offshore Approaches to the Delaware Bay, Delaware 85 Fed. Reg. 26695 (May
5, 2020), https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-05-05/pdf/2020-09538.pdf; Port Access Route Study: Northern New York
Bight, 85 Fed. Reg. 38907 (June 29, 2020), https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-06-29/pdf/2020-13901.pdf. Nonetheless,
as this Revised SEM shows, the Coast Guard’s failure to prepare either an environmental impact statement or an environmental
assessment and a finding of no significant impact would violate the new NEPA regulations as well.

6540 C.F.R. § 1508.11 (1978); see also 40 C.F.R. § 1508.1(m) (defining “human environment” similarly under NEPA regulations
applicable after September 14, 2020).

6642 U.S.C. §4332(2)(C).

740 C.F.R. § 1501.4(b) (1978); see also 40 C.F.R. § 1501.5(a) (“An agency shall prepare an environmental assessment for a proposed
action that is not likely to have significant effects or when the significance of the effects is unknown unless the agency finds that a
categorical exclusion (§ 1501.4) is applicable or has decided to prepare an environmental impact statement.”); Hein & Jacewicz, supra
note 53, at 10 (describing environmental assessments as “shorter and less resource-intensive” than environmental impact
statements).

68 40 C.F.R. § 1501.4(c) (1978); see also 40 C.F.R. § 1502.3 (“[E]nvironmental impact statements are to be included in every Federal
agency recommendation or report on proposals for legislation and other major Federal actions significantly affecting the quality of the
human environment.”).

940 C.F.R. § 1501.4(e) (1978) (requiring an agency to “[p]repare a finding of no significant impact (§ 1508.13), if the agency
determines on the basis of the environmental assessment not to prepare a statement”); see also 40 C.F.R. § 1501.6(a) (“An agency
shall prepare a finding of no significant impact if the agency determines, based on the environmental assessment, not to prepare an
environmental impact statement because the proposed action will not have significant effects.”).

70 See Ex. 2, United States Coast Guard, Port Access Route Study: Seacoast of New Jersey Including Offshore Approaches to the
Delaware Bay (2021) [hereinafter, “New Jersey PARS”]; Ex. 3, United States Coast Guard, Port Access Route Study: Northern New York
Bight (2021) [hereinafter, “New York PARS"].

71 See 16 U.S.C. § 1536(a)(2); 50 C.F.R. § 402.14(a); 50 C.F.R. § 402.14(c)(1); 50 C.F.R. §402.14(d); 42 U.S.C. § 4332(2)(C); 40 C.F.R. §
1508.18(a)—(b) (1978); 40 C.F.R. § 1508.11 (1978); 40 C.F.R. § 1501.4(b) (1978); 40 C.F.R. § 1501.4(c) (1978); 40 C.F.R. § 1501.4(e)
(1978).
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about the PARS for the Seacoast of New Jersey Including Offshore Approaches to the Delaware Bay and the PARS for the
Northern New York Bight. The ESA’s consultation requirement applies to these PARS, since the NARW is an endangered
species, and the development of PARS is an agency action (as defined under the ESA’s consultation requirement).”?
Indeed, in Oceana’s comments on the draft report on the PARS for the Northern New York Bight, Oceana requested that
the Coast Guard consult with the Fisheries Service to assess the effect of the proposed project on NARWs.”® But there is
no evidence that the U.S. Coast Guard consulted either the Fisheries Service or the FWS about how the sea lanes
discussed in the PARS would affect NARWs. The U.S. Coast Guard’s final report on the PARS for the Northern New York
Bight does not address impacts on NARWSs at all, nor does it respond to Oceana’s comments.”

31. The U.S. Coast Guard also violated NEPA’s primary operational requirement by failing to prepare either an EIS or an
EA and FONSI for the PARS for the Seacoast of New Jersey Including Offshore Approaches to the Delaware Bay and the
PARS for the Northern New York Bight. This requirement applies to PARS, since PARS are “official documents prepared
or approved by federal agencies which guide or prescribe alternative uses of Federal resources, upon which future
agency actions will be based” and are therefore “Federal actions” within the meaning of NEPA.”® Thus, at a minimum,
the U.S. Coast Guard was required to prepare an environmental assessment to determine whether an EIS would be
necessary. In the PARS for the Seacoast of New Jersey Including Offshore Approaches to the Delaware Bay and the PARS
for the Northern New York Bight, however, the U.S. Coast Guard prepared neither an EIS nor an EA and a FONSI.”®
Instead, the Coast Guard stated that it would review environmental impacts “in subsequent rulemaking actions to
establish fairways or routing measures.””” NEPA, however, requires the U.S. Coast Guard to review environmental
effects during the development of its PARS, before its plans are too settled for environmental impacts to make a
difference.”

32. Statutory and regulatory provisions for the ESA and NEPA require federal agencies to perform key procedures to
account for the environmental impacts of their actions. In its development the PARS for the Seacoast of New Jersey
Including Offshore Approaches to the Delaware Bay and the PARS for the Northern New York Bight, the U.S. Coast Guard
has failed to follow these procedures. This neglect qualifies as a failure of the United States to effectively enforce its
environmental laws.

72 See 50 C.F.R. § 17.11 (listing the NARW as an endangered species); 50 C.F.R. § 402.02 (defining “action” to mean “all activities or
programs of any kind authorized, funded, or carried out, in whole or in part, by Federal agencies in the United States or upon the high
seas”).

3 Ex. 4, Oceana, Comment on Notice of Availability of Draft Report on the Port Access Route Study: Northern New York Bight (Aug. 30,
2021), at 28.

74 See Ex. 3, New York PARS, at 60 (acknowledging but not addressing Oceana’s comments).

7540 C.F.R. § 1508.18(b)(2).

76 See New Jersey PARS; New York PARS.

7 New Jersey PARS, at 17.

78 See 42 U.S.C. § 4332(2)(C) (requiring the development of an environmental impact statement for any major Federal action
significantly affecting the quality of the human environment); 40 C.F.R. § 1508.18(b)(2) (1978) (defining “Federal actions” to include
the “[a]doption of formal plans, such as official documents prepared or approved by federal agencies which guide or prescribe
alternative uses of Federal resources, upon which future agency actions will be based”); 40 C.F.R. § 1501.2(a) (“Agencies should
integrate the NEPA process with other planning and authorization processes at the earliest reasonable time .. ..”); 40 C.F.R. § 1502.5
(“The [environmental impact statement] shall be prepared early enough so that it can serve as an important practical contribution to
the decision-making process and will not be used to rationalize or justify decisions already made.”).
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L. FAILURE TO ENFORCE ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS RELATED TO FISHING GEAR ENTANGLEMENT

33. The U.S. Government has failed to protect NARWs from mortality and serious injury due to entanglements in
commercial fishing gear, in violation of the NEPA, the MMPA, and the ESA. Per the Secretariat’s request in the CEC
Determination regarding Oceana’s Initial SEM, Part Il provides citations to the specific statutory and regulatory
provisions violated by the conduct described in Oceana’s Initial SEM.

A. The U.S. Government Has Failed to Effectively Enforce NEPA’s EIS Requirements

34. The Fisheries Service’s EIS for the Proposed Risk Reduction Rule to amend the Take Reduction Plan for NARWSs
violates NEPA in multiple respects.” As discussed in Oceana’s Initial SEM,® NEPA and its implementing regulations set
forth specific procedures and requirements for the creation of an EIS, but the Fisheries Service failed to comply with
those requirements.8!

35. First, the Fisheries Service failed to give proper consideration to reasonable alternatives to the risk reduction
measures outlined in the Proposed Risk Reduction Rule. Under 40 C.F.R. § 1502.14(a)—(b), an agency crafting an EIS was
required to “[rligorously explore and objectively evaluate” reasonable alternatives to the proposed action and discuss
each of these alternatives in detail.8? As Oceana pointed out in its comments on the Draft EIS, “[t]he existence of
reasonable but unexamined alternatives renders an EIS inadequate.”®

36. During the scoping process that informed the Draft EIS, Oceana submitted comments recommending several proven
and effective fisheries management strategies to strengthen the Proposed Risk Reduction Rule, including the use of
focused dynamic management areas, expanded use of static management areas, enhanced monitoring of whale
locations, fishing effort, catch, bycatch and entanglement, and broader use of satellite technology.®* The Fisheries
Service refused to conduct a meaningful evaluation of Oceana’s proposals. The agency refused to evaluate certain
alternatives offered by Oceana, including trap reductions, enhanced weak line requirements, static area closures, and
gear marking requirements, on grounds that such strategies were “unpopular with stakeholders.”8 But whether an

7® The Proposed Risk Reduction Rule can be found at: Nat’'| Marine Fisheries Serv., Taking of Marine Mammals Incidental to
Commercial Fishing Operations; Atlantic Large Whale Take Reduction Plan Regulations; Atlantic Coastal Fisheries Cooperative
Management Act Provisions; American Lobster Fishery (Proposed Rule), 85 Fed. Reg. 86,878, 86,880 (Dec. 31, 2021),
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-12-31/pdf/2020-28775.pdf.

80 |nitial SEM, § 19

81 Although the NEPA regulations were amended in 2020, this EIS was prepared using the prior version of the regulations, initially
implemented in 1978. See Final Environmental Impact Statement, Regulatory Impact Review, and Initial Regulatory Flexibility Analysis
for Amending the Atlantic Large Whale Take Reduction Plan: Risk Reduction Rule (“Final EIS”) (June 2021), Vol. 1, at 61,
https://www.greateratlantic.fisheries.noaa.gov/public/nema/apsd/2021FEIS Volume%20l.pdf. (“This EIS is being prepared using the
1978 CEQ NEPA Regulations.”). As such, the 1978 regulations are cited in this section.

82 40 C.F.R. § 1502.14(a)—(b) (1978).

8 Ex. 5, Oceana, Comments on Taking of Marine Mammals Incidental to Commercial Fishing Operations; Atlantic Large Whale Take
Reduction Plan Regulations; Atlantic Coastal Fisheries Cooperative Management Act Provisions; American Lobster Fishery; 85 Fed.
Reg. 86,878 (December 31, 2020); Dkt. No. 201221-0351; RIN 0649-BJ09 and the related Draft Environmental Impact Statement
(March 1, 2021), at 2 (citing lio’ulaokalani Coal. v. Rumsfeld, 464 F.3d 1083, 1095 (9th Cir. 2006)).

84 See Ex. 6, Oceana Comment Letter on Atlantic Large Whale Take Reduction Plan Scoping (Sept. 16, 2019).

8 Draft Environmental Impact Statement, Regulatory Impact Review, and Initial Regulatory Flexibility Analysis for Amending the
Atlantic Large Whale Take Reduction Plan: Risk Reduction Rule (“Draft EIS”) (Nov. 2020), Vol. I, at 3-78 to 3-82,
https://www.greateratlantic.fisheries.noaa.gov/public/nema/PRD/DEIS RIR ALWTRP RiskReductionRule Volumel.pdf; Final EIS, Vol.
1,at117-122.
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alternative is reasonable is not properly determined based on popularity. Further, the Fisheries Service rejected the use
of dynamic area management strategies to reduce risks to NARWSs, despite the successful use of this approach in the
past,® stating vaguely that the alternative was “[n]ot currently feasible with regulatory process.”®” The Fisheries
Service’s refusal to evaluate Oceana’s suggested alternatives based on popularity and summary dismissal of a proven
strategy violate NEPA’s requirement to evaluate reasonable alternatives and discuss them in detail.®

37. Second, the Fisheries Service violated NEPA's public participation requirement by holding closed-door meetings with
fishing industry representatives during the scoping process for the EIS. Under 40 C.F.R. § 1501.7, “[a]gencies shall use an
early and open process to determine the scope of issues for analysis in an EIS[.]”% The Draft and Final EIS, however,
state that “most of the measures in the Alternative Two (preferred) come from New England states and after frequent
meetings and close collaboration with trap/pot fishermen.”*® The Fisheries Service’s participation in meetings closed to
the public—which, as indicated by the Fisheries Service’s own statements, significantly influenced its selection of
alternatives—violates NEPA’s requirement to maintain an open process.

38. Third, the EIS violates NEPA by falling short of NEPA’s standard of scientific integrity. Under 40 C.F.R. § 1502.24
“[algencies shall ensure the professional integrity, including scientific integrity, of the discussions and analyses” in an
EIS.°* The EIS, however, fundamentally undermined this requirement by measuring alternatives against a Potential
Biological Removal level (PBR) of 0.9, which fails to account for injuries to NARWs in Canadian waters. The Fisheries
Service acknowledged that the U.S. PBR should be reduced to account for injuries to whales in Canadian waters, but
concluded that because the Fisheries Service could not precisely apportion the time spent in U.S. and Canadian waters,
it would ignore injuries in Canadian waters when setting the PBR.%2 Thus, the EIS is fundamentally flawed, and therefore
lacks integrity in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 1502.24, because it fails to evaluate alternatives for reducing NARW deaths and
injuries using the proper goalpost.

39. In addition, the Fisheries Service relied on outdated data from 2017 regarding the number of buoy lines in the
water.?® The Fisheries Service simply failed to update the data, and it is not reasonable assume that this number has not
changed significantly since 2017. Because buoy line data are fundamental to the evaluation of alternatives for reducing
NARW mortality and serious injury, the Fisheries Service’s use of outdated data undermines the integrity of the EIS in
violation of 40 C.F.R. § 1502.24.

8 See, e.g., Nat’'| Marine Fisheries Serv., Taking of Marine Mammals Incidental to Commercial Fishing Operations; Atlantic Large Whale
Take Reduction Plan Regulations (Final Rule), 67 Fed. Reg. 1133 (Jan. 9, 2002), https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2002-01-
09/pdf/02-272.pdf; Nat'l Marine Fisheries Serv., Taking of Marine Mammals Incidental to Commercial Fishing Operations; Atlantic
Large Whale Take Reduction Plan Regulations (Interim Final Rule), 67 Fed. Reg. 1142 (Jan. 9, 2002),
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2002-01-09/pdf/02-272.pdf; Nat’'| Marine Fisheries Serv., Taking of Marine Mammals
Incidental to Commercial Fishing Operations; Atlantic Large Whale Take Reduction Plan (Final Rule), 72 Fed. Reg. 34,632 (June 25,
2007), https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2007-06-25/pdf/E7-12251.pdf.

87 Draft EIS, Vol. |, at 3-79; Final EIS, Vol. |, at 118.

88 See 40 C.F.R. § 1502.14(a)—(b) (1978).

8940 C.F.R. § 1501.7 (1978). The CEC found that the 2020 version of this regulation, which includes identical language, meets the
definition of environmental law under the USMCA. See CEC Determination at 9] 45(a).

% Draft EIS Vol. | at 1-23; Final EIS, Vol. I, at 39.

9140 C.F.R. § 1502.24 (1978).

92 Nat’l Marine Fisheries Serv., Taking of Marine Mammals Incidental to Commercial Fishing Operations; Atlantic Large Whale Take
Reduction Plan Regulations; Atlantic Coastal Fisheries Cooperative Management Act Provisions; American Lobster Fishery (Proposed
Rule), 85 Fed. Reg. 86,878, 86,880 (Dec. 31, 2021), https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2020-12-31/pdf/2020-28775.pdf.

93 See Draft EIS, Vol. |, at 3-66, Final EIS, Vol. |, at 73.
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40. Further, the EIS’s evaluation of alternatives relies heavily on a model known as the Decision Support Tool (DST).%*
That model, in turn, relies on other models, including the Fisheries Service Vertical Line/Co-occurrence Model developed
by Industrial Economics, Inc.®® These models use information about whale distribution, buoy line numbers, and
configurations of trap/pot gear to estimate risks to NARWSs. As described in an expert opinion by Dr. Sean Brillant of the
Dalhousie University Department of Oceanography, these models rely on an estimate of gear threat that significantly
overemphasizes the contribution of rope strength to entanglement risk, thereby overestimating the number of death
and serious injuries that can be prevented through use of weak rope inserts, as required by the Final Rule.®® The
Fisheries Service’s reliance on deficient data and models violates the scientific integrity requirement of 40 C.F.R. §
1502.24.%7

41. Fourth, the Fisheries Service failed to consider the cumulative impact and indirect effects of all human activities on
NARWSs. Under 40 C.F.R. § 1508.25(c), an EIS must consider the cumulative impact of the proposed agency action.%®
Cumulative impact “is the impact on the environment which results from the incremental impact of the action when
added to other past, present, and reasonably foreseeable future actions regardless of what agency (Federal or non-
Federal) or person undertakes such other actions.”*® Likewise, under 40 C.F.R. § 1502.16(b), the EIS must discuss
indirect effects and their significance.'® Indirect effects “are caused by the action and are later in time or farther
removed in distance, but are still reasonably foreseeable.”% As noted above, the EIS ighored the impact of human
impact on whales while they are in Canadian waters. The Fisheries’ Service failure to account for harm to NARWs in
Canadian waters violated sections 1508.25(c) and 1502.16(b).

42. These deficiencies undermine the EIS and represent a failure by the U.S. Government to enforce domestic
environmental law. As described further in Annex |, Oceana sought to obtain a remedy for the above-described issues,
by submitting comments during the EIS scoping process and by submitting comments on the Draft EIS, yet the Fisheries
Service failed to correct the issues described. Oceana’s arguments under NEPA described above are not the subject of
any pending litigation.

B. The U.S. Government Has Failed to Effectively Enforce Multiple MMPA and ESA Rules to Reduce
Incidental Takings

43. As explained in Oceana’s Initial SEM,2 the Fisheries Service’s failure to protect NARWSs from fishing entanglements
violates the MMPA and the ESA in multiple respects. Per the Secretariat’s request in the CEC Determination, additional
citations to specific statutory and regulatory provisions violated by the conduct described in Oceana’s Initial SEM are
included below.

44. First, the Fisheries Service has failed to comply with the MMPA’s mandate to reduce mortality and serious injury
(M/SI) of NARWS to insignificant levels. Under 16 U.S.C. § 1387(a)(1), “it shall be the immediate goal that the incidental

9 Draft EIS Vol. |, at 1-21, 3-65; Final EIS, Vol. |, at 180.

% See id.

% Ex. 5 at Appendix |, Dr. Sean Brillant, Evaluation of National Marine Fisheries Service’s Proposed Amendment to the ALWTRP, at 5
(Feb. 26, 2021).

9740 C.F.R. § 1501.24 (1978).

% 40 C.F.R. § 1508.25(c) (1978).

940 C.F.R. § 1508.7 (1978).

10040 C.F.R. § 1502.16(b) (1978).

10140 C.F.R. § 1508.8 (1978).

102 See Initial SEM at §§16—18, 20-29.
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mortality or serious injury (M/SI) of marine mammals occurring in the course of commercial fishing operations be
reduced to insignificant levels approaching a zero mortality and serious injury rate within 7 years after April 30, 1994”103
Further, 16 U.S.C. § 1387(b)(1) provides that, “[cJommercial fisheries shall reduce incidental mortality and serious injury
of marine mammals to insignificant levels approaching a zero mortality and serious injury rate within 7 years after April
30, 1994.”1% The Fisheries Service’s failure to reduce M/SI resulting from fishing gear entanglements to insignificant
levels violates these provisions of the MMPA.

45. Second, the Final Risk Reduction Rule amending the Take Reduction Plan for NARWs fails to meet statutory
requirements. Under 16 U.S.C. § 1387(f)(2), “the immediate goal of a take reduction plan for a strategic stock shall be to
reduce, within 6 months of its implementation, the incidental mortality or serious injury of marine mammals incidentally
taken in the course of commercial fishing operations to levels less than the potential biological removal level established
for that stock under section 1386 of this title.”2% The Final Rule fails to meet this requirement. By the agency’s own
admission, it will take until 2025 to reduce M/SI to 1.04—a level that still exceeds the PBR—and M/SI will not approach
zero until 2030, if at all.1%®

46. Third, the Fisheries Service has failed to issue emergency regulations to protect NARWSs, as required by the MMPA
and ESA. Under the MMPA, 16 U.S.C. § 1387(g)(1)(A)(i), “[ilf the Secretary finds that the incidental mortality and serious
injury of marine mammals from commercial fisheries is having, or is likely to have, an immediate and significant adverse
impact on a stock or species,” the Fisheries Service “shall prescribe emergency regulations to reduce such incidental
mortality and serious injury in that fishery.”%” This requirement is reiterated in MMPA’s implementing regulations at 50
C.F.R. § 229.9(a).1®® The ESA and its implementing regulations, 16 U.S.C. § 1533(b)(7) and 50 C.F.R. § 424.20, allow the
Fisheries Service to implement regulations to take immediate effect and to bypass certain procedural requirements, if
necessary to address a significant risk posed to a species.’® The Fisheries Service has not issued any emergency
regulations to protect NARWS, as required by the statutes and regulations.

47. Fourth, the Fisheries Service has allowed incidental takings without an authorization, in violation of the MMPA. The
MMPA, 16 U.S.C. § 1371(a) creates a moratorium on the taking of marine mammals but creates an exception for takes
pursuant to incidental take authorizations issued by the agency.'® The prohibition on taking without an authorization is

1316 U.S.C. § 1387(a)(1).

10416 U.S.C. § 1387(b)(1). The CEC found that this provision meets the definition of environmental law under the USMCA. See CEC
Determination at 9§ 25(e)(ii).

10516 U.S.C. § 1387(f)(2). The CEC found that this provision meets the definition of environmental law under the USMCA. See CEC
Determination at § 25(e)(iv)(1).

106 National Marine Fisheries Service, Endangered Species Act Section 7 Consultation Biological Opinion on the: (a) Authorization of
the American Lobster, Atlantic Bluefish, Atlantic Deep-Sea Red Crab, Mackerel / Squid / Butterfish, Monkfish, Northeast Multispecies,
Northeast Skate Complex, Spiny Dogfish, Summer Flounder / Scup / Black Sea Bass, and Jonah Crab Fisheries and (b) Implementation
of the New England Fisheries Management Council’s Omnibus Essential Fish Habitat Amendment 2 [Consultation No. GARFO-2017-
00031] (May 27, 2021), Appendix A: NARW Conservation Framework for Federal Fisheries in the Greater Atlantic Region at 475-79,
https://repository.library.noaa.gov/view/noaa/30648.

19716 U.S.C. § 1387(g)(1)(A)(i). The CEC found that this provision meets the definition of environmental law under the USMCA. See
CEC Determination at §125(e)(v).

198 50 C.F.R. § 229.9(a). The CEC found that this provision meets the definition of environmental law under the USMCA. See CEC
Determination at 9128(e).

10916 U.S.C. § 1533(b)(7); 50 C.F.R. § 424.20. The CEC found that these provisions meet the definition of environmental law under the
USMCA. See CEC Determination at 99 33(a), 36(d).

11016 U.S.C. § 1371(a) (flush text) creates the moratorium, while section 1371(a)(2) provides for incidental take authorizations.
Section 1371(a) also creates other exceptions not relevant here; for example, for scientific research, see 16 U.S.C. § 1371(a)(1).
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reiterated in the MMPA regulations at 50 C.F.R. § 229.3(a).?*! Per 16 U.S.C. § 1387(c)(3)(A), a commercial fishing vessel
must have an authorization to engage in the lawful incidental taking of marine mammals.'*? Under 16 U.S.C.

§ 1371(a)(5)(E)(i), before issuing an incidental take permit for an endangered or threatened marine mammal, such as the
NARW, the Fisheries Service must go through a public notice and comment process and make particular findings
regarding the impact of the incidental M/SI on the species.!®® The Fisheries Service acknowledges that incidental takes
are occurring, yet the agency has not undergone a public notice-and-comment process nor authorized any commercial
fishing vessels for incidental take of endangered NARWSs as required under the Marine Mammal Authorization Program
for Commercial Fisheries. The Fisheries Service has therefore violated and failed to effectively enforce 16 U.S.C. §
1371(a)(5)(E)(i), 50 C.F.R. § 229.3(a), and 16 U.S.C. § 1387(c)(3)(A).

48. Fifth, the Fisheries Service has allowed incidental takings without a permit, in violation of the ESA. The ESA, at

16 U.S.C. § 1538(a)(1)(B), prohibits the taking of endangered species unless an incidental take permit has been issued
under 16 U.S.C. § 1539.1** As such, state fisheries should request incidental take permits from the Fisheries Service
under the ESA when the state fisheries interact with threatened or endangered species.!*® The Fisheries Service has not
issued any incidental take permits for NARWs, despite the Final Risk Reduction Rule’s acknowledgement that NARWSs
have been and will continue to be taken.

49. These violations constitute a failure to effectively enforce environmental law. As described further in Annex |, a
coalition of environmental organizations sought to remedy these issues by petitioning the Fisheries Service to issue
emergency regulations to protect NARWs from M/S|.116

M. CONCLUSION

50. For the foregoing reasons, Oceana respectfully requests that the CEC Secretariat develop, on an expedited basis, a
factual record under Article 24.28 on the failure of the U.S. Government to effectively enforce its environmental laws to
protect North Atlantic right whales. A factual record will clarify the many ways in which the U.S. Government has failed
to effectively enforce domestic environmental laws specifically designed to protect these endangered marine mammals
from the primary human threats of vessel strikes and fishing gear entanglement. A factual record will also allow all
Parties, especially the United States and Canada, and the CEC to develop a successful North Atlantic right whale
conservation strategy that encompasses the full range of the species along the Atlantic coast.

1150 C.F.R. §229.3(a).
11216 U.S.C. § 1387(c)(3)(A)
11316 U.S.C. § 1371(a)(5)(E)(i). The CEC found that this provision meets the definition of environmental law under the USMCA. See
CEC Determination at § 25(a)(iv).

11416 U.S.C. § 1538(a)(1)(B). The CEC found that this provision meets the definition of environmental law under the USMCA. See CEC
Determination at 4 33(c). Section 1538(a)(1) also creates an exception, not relevant here, for management agreements carried out in
cooperation with states, see 16 U.S.C. § 1535.

115 See 16 U.S.C. § 1539(a)(1)(B).

116 The U.S. Government’s failure to enforce U.S. environmental law to protect NARWSs from M/SI from entanglement in commercial
fishing gear is also the subject of pending litigation, as described in Annex I.
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This Annex sets forth remedies sought by U.S. environmental organizations to address the failures to enforce U.S.
environmental law described in Oceana’s statement of facts, and also identifies pending proceedings that relate to
similar issues.

l. REMEDIES AND PROCEEDINGS RELATED TO VESSEL STRIKES

U.S. environmental organizations have pursued private remedies under U.S. law to urge the United States to
enforce its environmental laws to protect North Atlantic Right Whales (NARWSs) from mortality and serious injury (M/SI)
caused by vessel strikes, but those attempts have fallen on deaf ears. In 2012, three environmental organizations
petitioned the National Marine Fisheries Service (Fisheries Service) to update and expand the Vessel Speed Rule to
incorporate additional safeguards against vessel strikes.* The Fisheries Service never responded to the petition. In
August 2020, following reports of an alarming increase in NARW mortalities, a group of environmental organizations
again petitioned the Fisheries Service to strengthen the Vessel Speed Rule.? The Fisheries Service again failed to respond
to the petition. In January 2021, the authors of the petitions filed suit in the U.S. District Court for the District of
Columbia to compel a response.® Oceana has also submitted comments on several occasions asking the government to
strengthen protections for NARWSs against vessel strikes.? Thus, the U.S. government has been on notice for nearly a
decade that it needs to reexamine the impact of vessel strikes on NARWs and to implement measures to effectively
enforce the mandates of the Marine Mammal Protection Act and Endangered Species Act. In light of the Fisheries
Service’s complete inaction in response to the petitions, it is clear that these remedies have not sufficiently addressed
the Fisheries Service’s failures to enforce U.S. environmental law.

While environmental organizations have sought domestic remedies regarding the Fisheries Service’s failures to
enforce, these actions should not foreclose development of a factual record by the Secretariat. Under USMCA Art.
24.27 .4(a), if “the matter at issue is the subject of a pending judicial or administrative proceeding . . . the Secretariat
shall proceed no further.” However, for the existence of a pending judicial or administrative proceeding to halt the SEM
process, “there must be a reasonable expectation that the pending judicial or administrative proceeding invoked by the
Party will address and potentially resolve the matters raised in the submission.”> As for the above-described petitions,
the U.S. government has declined to take any action in response for nine years; it is clear they do not plan to do so. As
for the litigation, it will not resolve the issues described in Oceana’s statement of facts because the sole remedy sought
by the plaintiffs is a court order requiring the Fisheries Service to respond to their petition. As such, even if the plaintiffs
prevail, the Fisheries Service may simply respond to the petition while refusing to take further action to enforce U.S.

! See The Humane Society of the United States, Center for Biological Diversity, Defenders of Wildlife, & Whale and Dolphin
Conservation Society, Petition for Rulemaking to Prevent Deaths and Injuries of Critically Endangered North Atlantic Right Whales
from Ship Strikes (June 28, 2012), https://www.biologicaldiversity.org/campaigns/boat _strikes/pdfs/NARWShipSpeedPetition 6-28-
12.pdf.

2 See Whale and Dolphin Conservation, Center for Biological Diversity, Conservation Law Foundation, Defenders of Wildlife, Humane
Society of the United States, & Humane Society Legislative Fund, Petition for Rulemaking to Prevent Deaths and Injuries of Critically
Endangered North Atlantic Right Whales from Vessel Strikes (Aug. 6, 2020),
https://www.biologicaldiversity.org/species/mammals/North Atlantic right whale/pdfs/NARW-Ship-Speed-Petition-08-06-2020.pdf.
3 See Ex. 7, Complaint, Whale and Dolphin Conservation, et al. v. National Marine Fisheries Service, et al., No. 21-cv-112 (D.D.C.), ECF
No. 1 (Jan. 13, 2021).

4 See Ex. 4, Oceana, Comment on Notice of Availability of Draft Report on the Port Access Route Study: Northern New York Bight (Aug.
30, 2021), at 28.; Ex. 8, Oceana, Comment Letter on Vessel Speed Rule Assessment (Mar. 26, 2021); Ex. 9, Oceana, Comment Letter on
Port Access Route Study: Seacoast of New Jersey Including Offshore Approaches to the Delaware Bay (Nov. 10, 2020).

5 Secretariat of the Commission for Environmental Cooperation of North America, Article 15(1) Notification to Council that
Development of a Factual Record is Warranted, Submission No. SEM-01-001/Cytrar Il, at 5-6 (July 29, 2002), http://www.cec.org/wp-
content/uploads/wpallimport/files/01-1-adv-e.pdf.
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environmental law to protect NARWs from vessel strikes. Therefore, because the pending litigation will not resolve the
failures to enforce, the Secretariat should proceed with development of a factual record.

Il REMEDIES AND PROCEEDINGS RELATED TO FISHING GEAR ENTANGLEMENT

Environmental organizations have also sought private remedies for the failures of the United States to enforce
domestic environmental law to protect NARWs from M/SI related to entanglement in commercial fishing gear, but
again, those attempts have been unsuccessful.

In December 2020, a coalition of environmental nonprofit organizations submitted an emergency petition to the
Fisheries Service, requesting emergency action under the Marine Mammal Protection Act (MMPA) to protect NARWSs
from M/SI related to fishing gear entanglement.® Specifically, the petition requested that the Fisheries Service use its
authority to implement emergency measures to promulgate emergency regulations prohibiting trap/pot and gillnet
fishing that uses static vertical lines in certain areas; and that the Fisheries Service expand and extend two existing area
closures.” The Fisheries Service failed to respond to the petition.® On December 9, 2021, the Center for Biological
Diversity petitioned the Fisheries Service to require trap/pot fisheries to transition to ropeless-only methods of fishing
within the next five years to protect marine life, including NARWSs.® These petitions put the Fisheries Service on notice of
its failures to enforce U.S. environmental law and demonstrate that environmental organizations have implored the
Fisheries Service to strengthen protections to protect NARWSs from M/SI from fishing gear entanglement. The Fisheries
Service, however, has continually failed to implement adequate protections. The same organizations that filed the 2020
petition are also engaged in litigation against the Fisheries Service in federal court, bringing claims under the MMPA and
the ESA.X° The Maine Lobsterman’s Association has also filed suit against the Fisheries Service, seeking to weaken the
protections for NARWs, !

Oceana has also submitted comments imploring the government to strengthen protections for NARWs against
entanglement in fishing gear by submitting comments on the Biological Opinion'? and Proposed Risk Reduction Rule.?
Further, Oceana has twice sought to remedy the flaws in the Fisheries Service’s Environmental Impact Statement (EIS)

6 See Center for Biological Diversity, Conservation Law Foundation, Defenders of Wildlife, & The Humane Society of the United States,
Emergency Petition to the National Marine Fisheries Service to Take Emergency Action Under the Marine Mammal Protection Act to
Protect Critically Endangered North Atlantic Right Whales from Death and Serious Injury in Commercial Fishing Gear (Dec. 2, 2020),
https://www.biologicaldiversity.org/species/mammals/North Atlantic right whale/pdfs/2020-12-02-Center-et-al-NARW-MMPA-
Emergency-Petition.pdf.

7 Id. at 12-30.

8 Ex. 10, Amended Complaint, Center for Biological Diversity, et al. v. Gina Raimondo, et al., No. 18-cv-112 (D.D.C.), ECF No. 170 at § 70
(Sept. 17, 2021).

9 Center for Biological Diversity, Petition to Require Transition to Ropeless Fishing (Dec. 9, 2021),
https://www.biologicaldiversity.org/campaigns/fisheries/pdfs/2021-12-Center-Ropeless-Petition.pdf.

10 See id.; see also Ex. 11, Complaint, Center for Biological Diversity, et al. v. Gina Raimondo, et al., No. 18-cv-112 (D.D.C.), ECF No. 1
(Jan. 18, 2018).

11 See Ex. 12, Complaint, Maine Lobsterman’s Association v. National Marine Fisheries Service, et. al, No. 21-cv-2509 (D.D.C), ECF No. 1
(Sept. 21, 2021).

12 See Ex. 13, Oceana, Comment Letter on Draft BiOp (Feb. 19, 2021).

13 See Ex. 5, Oceana, Comments on Taking of Marine Mammals Incidental to Commercial Fishing Operations; Atlantic Large Whale
Take Reduction Plan Regulations; Atlantic Coastal Fisheries Cooperative Management Act Provisions; American Lobster Fishery; 85
Fed. Reg. 86,878 (December 31, 2020); Dkt. No. 201221-0351; RIN 0649-BJ09 and the related Draft Environmental Impact Statement
(March 1, 2021).
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for the Final Rule amending the Take Reduction Plan for NARWSs. During the scoping process for the EIS, Oceana offered
comments setting forth alternatives to the mitigation measures outlined in the Rule,'* but the Fisheries Service chose
not to implement those measures in the Draft EIS. Oceana then commented on the Draft EIS,*® but when the Fisheries
Service issued the Final EIS, it again failed to make the majority of the changes proposed by Oceana. Oceana’s
arguments under NEPA described in the revised Submission on Enforcement Matters are not the subject of any pending
litigation.

On August 19, 2021, Oceana submitted a letter to the Secretaries of Commerce, Homeland Security, and Interior
detailing Oceana’s claims in its Initial Submission on Enforcement Matters.® Although receipt was acknowledged, the
U.S. government has not provided a substantive response.

14 See Ex. 6, Oceana Comment Letter on Atlantic Large Whale Take Reduction Plan Scoping (Sept. 16, 2019).

15 See Ex. 5, Oceana, Comments on Taking of Marine Mammals Incidental to Commercial Fishing Operations; Atlantic Large Whale
Take Reduction Plan Regulations; Atlantic Coastal Fisheries Cooperative Management Act Provisions; American Lobster Fishery; 85
Fed. Reg. 86,878 (December 31, 2020); Dkt. No. 201221-0351; RIN 0649-BJ09 and the related Draft Environmental Impact Statement
(March 1, 2021).

16 See Ex. 14, Oceana, Notice Letter to U.S. Government Regarding USMCA Article 24.27 Submission on Enforcement Matters Due to
Failures to Effectively Comply with, Implement, or Enforce Environmental Laws at 8-25 (Aug. 18, 2021).
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From: "Cate, Alicia" <acate@oceana.org>
To: "sem(@cec.org" <sem(@cec.org>

Cc: "Webber, Whitney" <wwebber@oceana.org>, "rmorgan@cec.org" <rmorgan@cec.org>,
"psolano(@cec.org" <psolano@cec.org>, "regan.michael@epa.gov"
<regan.michael@epa.gov>, "nishida.jane@epa.gov" <nishida.jane@epa.gov>, "ec.ministre-
minister.ec(@canada.ca" <ec.ministre-minister.ec@canada.ca>,
"catherine.stewart2(@canada.ca" <catherine.stewart2(@canada.ca>,
"c.secretaria@semarnat.gob.mx" <c.secretaria@semarnat.gob.mx>,
"Ivan.rico@semarnat.gob.mx" <ivan.rico@semarnat.gob.mx>, "docexecsec@doc.gov"
<docexecsec@doc.gov>, "publicaffairs@doc.gov" <publicaffairs@doc.gov>,

"rick.spinrad@noaa.gov" <rick.spinrad@noaa.gov>, "janet.coit@noaa.gov"

<janet.coit@noaa.gov>, "james.landon@noaa.gov" <james.landon@noaa.gov=>,

"walker.smith@noaa.gov" <walker.smith@noaa.gov>, "'

"feedbac
<Interior Press(@1os.do1.gov>, "amanda.lefton@boem.gov" <amanda.lefton@boem.gov>,
"walter.cruickshank@boem.gov" <walter.cruickshank@boem.gov>,

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Oceana USMCA Art. 24.27 Submission on Enforcement Matters - North
Atlantic Right Whales

Date: Mon, 4 Oct 2021 12:48:35 +0000
Importance: High
Attachments: Oceana USMCA Art. 24.27 Submission on Enforcement Matters (10-04-2021).pdf
Inline-Images: image001.png

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Dear CEC Secretariat

On behalf of Oceana and Whitney Webber, Oceana’s Campaign Director for Responsible Fishing, please find
Oceana’s USMCA Art 24 27 Submission on Enforcement Matters (SEM) in the attachment

As detailed in Oceana’s SEM, the United States is failing to effectively enforce its environmental laws to
adequately protect the critically endangered North Atlantic right whale Oceana requests that the CEC
Secretariat develop a factual record, as contemplated by Article 24 28, on an expedited basis A factual record
will clarify the many ways that the U S government has failed to effectively enforce its environmental laws
specifically designed to protect these endangered marine mammals from the primary human threats of fishing
gear entanglement and vessel strikes, as well as the additional stressors of climate change, ocean noise, and
offshore energy development A factual record will also allow all Parties, especially the United States and



Canada, and the CEC to develop a successful North Atlantic right whale conservation strategy that encompasses
the full range of the species along the Atlantic coast Considering the dire status of North Atlantic right whales
and the legal requirement based on best available science that less than one North Atlantic right whale can be
killed or seriously injured per year if the species is to recover, we urge the US Government to immediately and
effectively comply with, implement, and enforce all applicable environmental laws, including the requirement
to implement interim emergency management measures

In addition to the attached SEM, please find accompanying documents at the following link

« https://oceanaorg-
my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/acate oceana org/EtytKwfezRVLmpoygd nKzABeVISHdCwYwVuvKx0j
vimiw?e=xIrINH

Should you have any questions or any difficulty accessing any of these materials, please do not hesitate to email
Whitney Webber at wwebber@oceana.org, cc’ing me: acate@oceana.org.

Thank you for your time and careful consideration of Oceana’s SEM.

Sincerely,
Alicia Cate

P.S. Please direct any/all media inquiries to Megan Jordan at mjordan@oceana.org, cc’ing Dustin Cranor at
dcranor@oceana.org. Thank you!

Alicia Cate | Senior Counsel

Protecting ti
OCEANA s,
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

October 4, 2021

Submitted via email

Commission on Environmental Cooperation (CEC) Secretariat
Legal Affairs and SEM

700, rue de la Gauchetiére, Bureau 1620

Montreal, Quebec

Canada H38 5M2

Email: sem@cec.org

Re: USMCA Article 24.27 Submission on Enforcement Matters Due to Failures of the United States to
Effectively Enforce Environmental Laws to Protect Critically Endangered North Atlantic Right Whale

Dear CEC Secretariat:

As detailed in Oceana’s USMCA Article 24.27 Submission on Enforcement Matters (SEM) (attached), the United States is
failing to effectively enforce its environmental laws to adequately protect the critically endangered North Atlantic right
whale. Oceana requests that the CEC Secretariat develop a factual record, as contemplated by Article 24.28, on an
expedited basis. A factual record will clarify the many ways that the U.S. government has failed to effectively enforce its
environmental laws specifically designed to protect these endangered marine mammals from the primary human
threats of fishing gear entanglement and vessel strikes, as well as the additional stressors of climate change, ocean
noise, and offshore energy development. A factual record will also allow all Parties, especially the United States and
Canada, and the CEC to develop a successful North Atlantic right whale conservation strategy that encompasses the full
range of the species along the Atlantic coast.

Oceana is the largest international ocean conservation organization solely focused on protecting the world’s oceans,
with more than 1.2 million members and supporters in the United States, including over 365,000 members and
supporters on the U.S. Atlantic seaboard. For twenty years, Oceana has campaigned to win strategic, directed campaigns
that achieve measurable outcomes to help make our oceans more biodiverse and abundant. Oceana has engaged as a
stakeholder in the management of U.S. fisheries and interactions with endangered species, with a particular interest in
effective bycatch minimization and reduction, if not elimination of, fishing gear entanglement-related death, injury, and
harm to protected species, including critically endangered North Atlantic right whales (NARWs). In addition, Oceana is
interested in seeing the reduction, if not elimination, of vessel strike-related death, injury, and harm to NARWs.
Additional human-caused factors that hinder NARW recovery, such as climate change, ocean noise, and offshore energy
development, are also sources of great concern. In 2019, Oceana launched a binational campaign in the United States
and Canada to urge the respective governments to protect the species.

Due to the many failures to effectively enforce the environmental laws and regulations of the United States detailed in
the Statement of Facts and supporting documents, Oceana is filing this SEM to urge immediate action by the U.S.
Government to adequately protect NARWs. Relevant federal agencies and sub-agencies or offices of the U.S.
Government that have failed to uphold their legal obligations to protect North Atlantic right whales include: the National
Marine Fisheries Service (Fisheries Service), National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) Office of Law
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Enforcement, and NOAA Office of General Counsel, within the U.S. Department of Commerce, the U.S. Coast Guard,
within the U.S. Department of Homeland Security, and the Bureau of Ocean Energy Management (BOEM), within the
U.S. Department of Interior. An abundance of evidence, much of which is contained in Oceana’s August 18 Notice Letter
to the U.S. Government,! comment letters, a prior legal brief,®> and Oceana’s July 2021 vessel speed report,*
demonstrates that the U.S. Government is not effectively enforcing its environmental laws and regulations to protect
NARWSs from the primary threats caused by commercial fishing and vessel traffic and the additional stressors of climate
change, ocean noise, and offshore energy development.

Thank you for your serious consideration of this matter. Oceana looks forward to receiving the CEC Secretariat’s
confirmation of receipt of this SEM as well as the response of the U.S. Government. If you have any questions, please do
not hesitate to reach out to me at the email address below.

Sincerely,

Ut

Whitney Webber

Campaign Director, Responsible Fishing
Oceana

1025 Connecticut Ave., NW, Suite 200
Washington, DC 20036

Email: wwebber@oceana.org

1 Oceana, Notice Letter to U.S. Government Regarding USMCA Article 24.27 Submission on Enforcement Matters Due to Failures to Effectively Comply with, Implement,
or Enforce Environmental Laws (Aug. 18, 2021) (provided as supporting document).

2 Oceana, Comment Letter on Notice of Availability of Draft Report on the Port Access Route Study: Northern New York Bight (Aug. 30, 2021); Oceana, Comment Letter
on Vessel Speed Rule Assessment (Mar. 26, 2021); Oceana, Comment Letter on Proposed Risk Reduction Rule and Draft EIS (Mar. 1, 2021); Oceana, Comment Letter on
Draft BiOp (Feb. 19, 2021); Oceana, Comment Letter on Port Access Route Study: Seacoast of New Jersey Including Offshore Approaches to the Delaware Bay (Nov. 10,
2020); Oceana and IFAW, Comment Letter on Five Proposed Incidental Harassment Authorizations for Seismic Airgun Blasting (July 21, 2017) (provided as supporting
documents).

3 South Carolina Coastal Conservation League et al. v. National Marine Fisheries Service, Memorandum in Support of Plaintiff’s Motion for a Preliminary Injunction
(Feb. 20, 2019) (provided as supporting document).

4 Oceana, Speeding Toward Extinction: Vessel Strikes Threaten North Atlantic Right Whales (July 21, 2021), https://usa.oceana.org/sites/default/files/4046/narw-21-
0002 narw_ship speed compliance report m1 digital singlepages doi web.pdf.
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cc:
CEC Secretariat

Richard Morgan

Executive Director

CEC Secretariat

700, rue de la Gauchetiére, Bureau 1620
Montreal, Quebec

Canada H38 5M2

Email: rmorgan@cec.org

Paulo Solano Tovar

Director of Legal Affairs and Submissions on Enforcement Matters (SEM)

CEC Secretariat

700, rue de la Gauchetiére, Bureau 1620
Montreal, Quebec

Canada H38 5M2

Email: psolano@cec.org

CEC Council — United States Representatives

Michael S. Regan

Administrator

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Ronald Regan Building, Mail Code 1101A
1300 Pennsylvania Ave., NW
Washington, DC 20460

Phone: 202-564-4700

Email: regan.michael@epa.gov

Jane Nishida,

Principal Deputy Assistant Administrator
Office of International Affairs

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Ronald Regan Building, Mail Code 2610R
1300 Pennsylvania Ave., NW
Washington, DC 20460

Phone: 202-564-6400

Email: nishida.jane@epa.gov
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CEC Council — Canada Representatives

The Honourable Jonathan Wilkinson
Minister of Environment and Climate Change
Fontaine Building

200 Sacré-Coeur Blvd

Gatineau QC K1A OH3Phone: 819-938-3813
Email: ec.ministre-minister.ec@canada.ca

Catherine Stewart

Acting Assistant Deputy Minister, International Affairs Branch
Fontaine Building

200 Sacré-Coeur Blvd

Gatineau QC K1A OH3

Phone: 819-938-3784

Email: catherine.stewart2@canada.ca

CEC Council — Mexico Representatives

Secretary Maria Luisa Albores Gonzdlez

Secretaria de Medio Ambiente y Recursos Naturales (SEMARNAT)
Av. Ejército Nacional 223 Col. Andhuac

11320 Ciudad de México

Phone: (52 55) 5628-3906

Email: c.secretaria@semarnat.gob.mx

Ivan Rico

Secretaria de Medio Ambiente y Recursos Naturales (SEMARNAT)
Av. Ejército Nacional 223 Col. Anahuac

11320 Ciudad de México

Phone: (52 55) 5628-3906

Email: ivan.rico@semarnat.gob.mx
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United States — Department of Commerce

Gina Raimondo

Secretary of Commerce

U.S. Department of Commerce

1401 Constitution Ave., NW

Washington, DC 20230

Phone: 202-482-2000 (main phone line)

Email: docexecsec@doc.gov

Email2: publicaffairs@doc.gov (Office of Public Affairs)

Richard W. Spinrad, Ph.D.

Under Secretary of Commerce for Oceans and Atmosphere and NOAA Administrator
U.S. Department of Commerce

1401 Constitution Ave., NW

Washington, DC 20230

Phone: 202-482-2000 (main phone line)

Email: rick.spinrad@noaa.gov

Janet Coit

Acting Assistant Secretary of Commerce for Oceans and Atmosphere and Deputy NOAA Administrator
and NOAA Fisheries Assistant Administrator

U.S. Department of Commerce

1315 East-West Highway

Silver Spring, MD 20910

Phone: 301-427-8000 (main phone line)

Email: janet.coit@noaa.gov

Jim Landon

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

Phone: (YK (main phone line)
Email [(X(®)] (Office of Public Affairs)

Admiral Karl L. Schultz

Commandant

United States Coast Guard

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
2703 Martin Luther King Jr. Ave., SE
Washington, DC 20593-7318

Phone: [(YXE)] (main phone line)
Email: (@)

Vice Admiral Steven D. Poulin

Atlantic Area Commander

United States Coast Guard

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
2703 Martin Luther King Jr. Ave., SE
Washington, DC 20593-7318

Phone: (X))} (main phone line)
Email:[(JXE)]

Rear Admiral Thomas G. Allan, Jr.
Commander First Coast Guard District
408 Atlantic Avenue

Boston, MA 02110

Phone: [()X(®)]
Email: [()R(®))

Rear Admiral Lara M. Dickey
Commander Fifth Coast Guard District
431 Crawford Street

Portsmouth, VA 23704

Phone: (X))}
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
Email2: [(9)N(S)]
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

Email:[(QXE)

Amada Mayhew

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
Part I-ldentification

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

AA i Lo Jo L. dall20 LAY

O 1 want my personal information to remain confidential.

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

Form| 1




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

O Yes ONo

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
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Part lll-Your Submission

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

1. Marine Mammal Protection Act, 16 U.S.C. §§ 1361-1383b, 1401-1406, 1411-1421h, including, but not limited to:
a. 16US.C.§1361
i. 16 U.S.C.§1361(2)
b. 16U.S.C. §1362
i. 16 U.S.C.§1362(1)
ii. 16U.5.C. §1362(2)
iii. 16 U.S.C. §1362(9)
iv. 16 U.S.C. §1362(13)
v. 16 U.S.C. §1362(19)
vi. 16 U.S.C. § 1362(20)
c. 16US.C.§1371
i. 16 U.S.C.§1371(a)
1. 16U.S.C. §1371(a)(3)(A)
2. 16 U.S.C. § 1371(a)(5)(A), (D)
3. 16U.S.C. §1371(a)(5)(E)
4. 16 U.S.C. § 1371(a)(5)(E)(iii)
d. 16U.S.C. §1373
i. 16U.S.C.§1373(a)
e. 16U.S.C. §1375
i. 16U.S.C. §1375(a)
ii. 16U.S.C. § 1375(a)(1), as amended by 15 C.F.R. § 6.4(11) (Jan. 15, 2021)
iii. 16 U.S.C. § 1375(b), as amended by 18 U.S.C. § 3571(b)(5)
f. 16U.S.C. §1382
i. 16U.S.C. §1382(a)
i. 16U.5.C. §1382(e)
g. 16US.C. §1386
i. 16U.S.C. §1386(c)(1)(A)
h. 16U.S.C. §1387
i. 16U.S.C. §1387(a)(2)
ii. 16U.S.C. § 1387(b)
iii. 16 U.S.C. §1387(c)
1. 16 U.S.C. § 1387(c)(1)(A)(i)
2. 16 U.S.C. §1387(c)(1)(A)ii)
iv. 16 U.S.C. §1387(f)
1. 16 U.S.C. § 1387(f)(5)(A)
v. 16 U.S.C. §1387(g)
1. 16U.S.C. §1387(g)(1)(A)
2. 16U.S.C. §1387(g)(3)(B)
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3. 16 U.S.C. §1387g(4)
i. 16U.S.C.§1421h
j. 16 U.S.C. 1421c
2.  Marine Mammal Protection Act Regulations, 50 C.F.R. Ch. Il, Subch. C, Parts 215-229, including, but not limited to:
a. 50C.F.R.§216.11
b. 50C.F.R.§216.103
c. 50C.F.R.§216.105
i. 50C.F.R.§216.105(c)
d. 50C.F.R.§222.307
i. 50C.F.R.§222.307(c)(1)
ii. 50C.F.R.§222.307(c)(2)
iii. 50C.F.R.§222.307(e)
e. 50C.F.R.§224.105
i. 50C.F.R.§224.105(d)
f. 50C.F.R.§229.9
3. Endangered Species Act, 16 U.S.C. §§ 1531 et seq., including, but not limited to:
a. 16U.S.C.§1531
i. 16 U.S.C. §1531(c)(1)
b. 16 U.S.C. §1532
i. 16U.S.C. §1532(3)
ii. 16 U.S.C.§1532(5)
iii. 16 U.S.C. §1532(6)
iv. 16 U.S.C. §1532(8)
v. 16 U.S.C. § 1532(19)
vi. 16 U.S.C. § 1532(20)
c. 16U.S.C.§1533
i. 16 U.S.C. § 1533(a)(3)(A)
ii. 16 U.S.C. §1533(b)
iii. 16 U.S.C. § 1533(b)(7)
iv. 16 U.S.C. §1533(d)
v. 16 U.S.C. § 1533(f)
d. 16 U.S.C. §1536.
i. 16 U.S.C. §1536(a)
ii. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(b)
1. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(b)(3)(A)
2. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(b)(4)
iii. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(c)
e. 16U.S.C.§1538
i. 16 U.S.C. §1538(a)
ii. 16 U.S.C. §1538(a)(1)
iii. 16 U.S.C. §1538(a)(1)(B)
f. 16 U.S.C. §1539
i. 15U.5.C. §1539(a)(1)(B)
g. 16 U.S.C. §1540
i. 16 U.S.C. § 1540(a)(1), as amended by 15 C.F.R. § 6.3(14) (Jan. 15, 2021)
ii. 16 U.S.C. § 1540(b)(1)
ii. 16 U.S.C. § 1540(f)
4. Endangered Species Act Regulations, 50 C.F.R. Ch. |, Subch. B, Part 17; Ch. IV, Subch. A, Parts 402, 424; and Subch. C,
Parts 450-543, including, but not limited to:
a. 50C.F.R.§17.11
b. 50C.F.R. §402.02
c. 50C.F.R.§402.14
i. 50C.F.R.§402.14(g)(2)-(3)
ii. 50C.F.R. §402.14(g)(8)
iii. 50 C.F.R. §402.14(h)(2)
iv. 50 C.F.R. §402.14(i)
d. 50C.F.R.§424.20
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5. National Environmental Policy Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4321-4370m, including, but not limited to:
a. 42U.S.C.§4331
i. 42U.S.C.§4331(a)
b. 42U..C. §4332
i. 42U.S.C.§4332(A)
ii. 42U.S.C. §4332(C)
6. National Environmental Policy Act Regulations, 40 C.F.R. Ch. V., Subch. A, Parts 1500-1508 (1978 version, as
amended in 1986 and 2005), including, but not limited to:
a. 40C.F.R.§1500.1
i. 40C.F.R.1500.1(b)
b. 40C.F.R. §1501.7
40 C.F.R. §1502.1
d. 40C.F.R.§1502.9
i. 40C.F.R.§1502.9(c)
e. 40C.F.R.§1502.14
i. 40 C.F.R. §1502.14(a), (b)
f. 40C.F.R. §1502.16
i. 40C.F.R. §1502.16(a), (b)
40 C.F.R. § 1506.6
40 C.F.R. § 1508
i. 40C.F.R. §1508.7
ii. 40C.F.R. §1508.8
iii. 40 C.F.R. § 1508.25
7. Coast Guard Authorization Act of 2018, as amended, 14 U.S.C. §§ 101 et seq; 46 U.S.C. § 70001 et seq., including,
but not limited to:
a. 46U.S.C. §70001
i. 46 U.S.C. §70001(a)(1)
b. 46 U.S.C. § 70003
i. 46 U.S.C. § 70003(a)
c. 46U.S.C. § 70005
i. 46 U.S.C. §70005(d)
8. Coast Guard Regulations, 33 C.F.R. Part 169, including, but not limited to:
a. 33C.F.R.§169.100
9. Outer Continental Shelf Lands Act, 43 U.S.C. §§ 1331 et seq., including, but not limited to:
a. 43U.S.C.§1332
b. 43US.C.§1344
i. 43 U.S.C.§1344(a)(2)
ii. 43 U.S.C. §1344(a)(3)
10. Outer Continental Shelf Lands Act Regulations, 30 C.F.R. Ch. Il, Subch. B, Parts 250, 251, 254 and Ch. V, Subch. B,
Parts 550 and 551
11. Civil Penalties, 15 C.F.R. Part 6, including, but not limited to:
a. 15C.F.R.§6.3
i. 15C.F.R. §6.3(14)
b. 15C.F.R.§6.4
i. 15C.F.R. §6.4(11)
12. Criminal Penalties
a. 18 U.S.C. §3571(b)
i. 18 U.S.C. §3571(b)(5)
b. 18 U.S.C. § 3559(a)(6)
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

1. Please see endnotes following the Statement of Facts.

Form| 1




Protecting the World's Oceans

OCEANA

1025 Connecticut Ave., NW Suite 200
Washington, DC 20036
+1.202.833.3900

OCEANA.ORG

STATEMENT OF FACTS
(Part I1l.G of Submission Form)

USMCA Article 24.27 Submission on Enforcement Matters

U.S. Government Failures to Effectively Enforce Environmental Laws
to Protect Critically Endangered North Atlantic Right Whales

BELIZE BRAZIL CANADA CHILE EUROPEANUNION MEXICO PERU PHILIPPINES UNITED KINGDOM UNITEDSTATES



Oceana USMCA Art. 24.27 Submission on Enforcement Matters — Statement of Facts
October 4, 2021
Page 1

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

North Atlantic right whales (NARWSs) have been listed as endangered since the advent of the Endangered Species List
in 1970, and protected under the Marine Mammal Protection Act (MMPA) since 1972.2 The North Atlantic right
whale is an ESA-listed marine mammal protected under both the Endangered Species Act (ESA) and the MMPA; the
U.S. Government has a concurrent obligation to effectively comply with, implement, and enforce the requirements
of both laws, among others. Since at least 1995, the U.S. Government has acknowledged that human-caused activity
— from fishing gear entanglement and vessel strikes — are the principal human-caused sources of NARW mortality
and serious injury.® Other human activities recognized by the U.S. Government as limiting NARW recovery include
climate change, ocean noise, and offshore energy development.*

Because of the U.S. Government’s long-standing failure to effectively comply with, implement, or enforce existing
environmental laws and regulations, fishing gear entanglements of NARWs continue in the U.S. Atlantic. Fatal NARW
interactions with vessels are occurring at unacceptable rates and show that enforcement of environmental laws and
regulations to control vessel traffic in the U.S. Atlantic is lacking. In just the last decade, the Fisheries Service
reported that 218 North Atlantic right whales have likely succumbed to fishing gear entanglement and vessel strikes
— approximately 24 whale deaths per year.> Worse yet, observed deaths of NARWSs are a fraction of actual deaths,®
and even if death is not the result, the sub-lethal effects of entanglements can stunt NARW growth and reduce
reproductive success.’

Additional stressors to NARWs, which the U.S. Government must mitigate under environmental law to protect the
species, include climate change, ocean noise, and offshore energy development. Climate change is impacting the
abundance and distribution of zooplankton species, including the prey of NARWS, the calanoid copepod (Calanus
finmarchicus).t Even a moderate change in NARW prey can negatively impact NARW fitness.® Since at least 2011,
NARWS are venturing into new areas in search of food, increasing the risks of fishing gear entanglement and vessel
strike as NARWs move into areas without protections in search of prey.*®

Ocean noise, such as from shipping®! and offshore energy development (e.g., seismic airgun blasting to explore for
offshore oil and gas),*? is a source of chronic stress for this critically endangered species, resulting in displacement
from habitat, communication masking, and vocalization changes. Rather than implementing effective measures to
abate ocean noise and reduce stress to the species, in recent years, the U.S. Government has gone so far as to
proactively permit seismic airgun blasting — one of the loudest noises in the ocean —in search of oil and gas in the
NARWS’ habitat along the Atlantic coast.’® Fortunately for NARWs and other marine species, Oceana and our
coalition partners successfully delayed these efforts via litigation until the permits expired unused.

Offshore energy development is rapidly expanding along the U.S. Atlantic coast in many of the same areas where
NARWSs feed, breed, calve, and migrate. If not responsibly sited, built, operated, and decommissioned to consider,
avoid, minimize and mitigate effects to NARWSs, the expansion of offshore energy poses not only an additional
source of stress from ocean noise and disruption of habitats, but also threats of mortality and serious injury from
entanglement and vessel strikes.' If multiple offshore energy projects proceed in haste in areas where NARWSs are
known to frequent with insufficient government efforts to apply precautionary approaches prescribed by law to
reduce environmental impacts and enforce mitigation measures, the cumulative effect on NARWs — due to
incr